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EXPLANATORY NOTE

The Company is filing this amended Annual ReporEorm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 20084gtate its previously
reported financial results for fiscal years 200btlyh 2003. These restatements are primarily daéjiestments relating to the accounting for
a limited number of the Company’s prior real estaties transactions with continuing involvementundng between 1999 and 2003,
reclassifications related to discontinued operati@tcounting for minority interest, accounting datlebt retirement transaction and other
items. For more details, see Note 18 to the Cotlstld Financial Statements contained herein.

Management of the Company is ultimately respondiiigreparing and presenting the Company'’s finalnstatements in accordance
with GAAP. As part of these processes, we consuliittl Ernst & Young LLP in their capacity as oudé@pendent auditors regarding the
application of GAAP. In particular, we consultedtwErnst & Young LLP regarding certain of the restate sales transactions with
continuing involvement, accounting for the MOPPRSBtdextinguishment in 2003, accounting for minoiitierest in the Operating
Partnership, and accounting for the compensatistsdo be recognized in 2004 in connection withréteement if the Company'’s former
CEO.

Real Estate Sales TransactionsAs part of its previously disclosed capital rdoyg program, the Company has completed a sigmifica
number of real estate sales transactions durintathdive years. Certain transactions involve@salhere the Company retained a partial
ownership interest or had continuing involvemerttwtihe properties. The forms of continuing invoharhincluded guarantees of a return on
investment, guarantees of rental income from sjpet@ihants, seller financing, or, in one instarac87.0% fair-market-value put option
granted to the buyer.

In the Company’s historical financial statemerttgse transactions were accounted for as sales, padion or all of the resultant gains
from these transactions were deferred becausesafdhtinuing involvement. The nature of all matiec@ntinuing involvement was disclosed
in the Company’s quarterly and annual regulatory famancial filings with the Securities and Exchar@ommission and the Company’s
annual reports.

Adjustments have been made with respect to theuatiog treatment for certain of those transactiehsre the Company had some
form of continuing involvement to comply with thaigance of Statement of Financial Accounting Statisld'SFAS”) No. 66, “Accounting
for Sales of Real Estate.” For three of the tratigas, the largest of which is the sale in late@00properties into the previously disclosed
MG-HIW, LLC joint venture, the Company has adjusitsdConsolidated Financial Statements to accaurttfese three transactions as
financing and/or profit-sharing arrangements rathan as sales. Accordingly, the assets, relasdilities and operations are now included in
the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements. In the otieances, the transactions have continued to loetegpas sales, but the timi
and amount of gain recognition changed due to tragany’s continuing involvement. This is also ic@aclance with SFAS No. 66.

Discontinued Operations. Certain properties were sold to joint venturegmelthe Company retained a minority interest. lditazh, in
other sales transactions the Company was retay#uetbuyer to perform management and leasing@ssvSince January 1, 2002, the
Company applied discontinued operations presentatimler SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the ImpairmenDisposal of Long-Lived
Assets” for the operations of those sold propeftieshe periods prior to the date of sale. Duthtpartial interest retained through joint
ventures and the continuing management fee incamed from such sold properties, the propertiesalaequire discontinued operations
presentation under SFAS No. 144. Accordingly, tkenfany has adjusted its Consolidated Statemeriteofe for 2001 through 2003 to
classify such items as continuing operations; theskassifications do not impact net income.

Minority Interest. In its Consolidated Financial Statements, the Compmaeviously computed minority interest in the imetome of its
majority owned subsidiary, Highwoods Realty Limitedrtnership (the “Operating Partnership”), forteeeporting period by applying the
weighted average ownership percentage of the niynoommon unitholders times the Operating Partripisimet income available to
common unitholders (continuing operations and disooed operations) for the period before dedudtiis¢yibutions to preferred unitholders.
In the restated Consolidated Financial Statememtsrity interest has been adjusted by applyingrik@hted average ownership percentage
of the minority common unitholders times the Opie@Partnership’s net income (continuing operatiang discontinued operations) for the
period after deducting distributions to preferraitholders.

Accounting for MOPPRS Debt Retirement.This transaction, which occurred in early Febru2093, is described in detail in Note 5.
The Company had previously accounted for the tictitsaas an exchange of indebtedness under EITE98Debtor’'s Accounting for a
Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments” aedarded $14.7 million in deferred financing costépresenting the excess of amounts
paid to retire the MOPPRS and the related remarfetption over the MOPPRS’ net carrying value agldted deferred credits. The
Company has now determined that this transactionldthave been accounted for as a debt extinguishumeler EITF 96-19. Accordingly,
the $14.7 million has been charged to loss on eiiguishment in the first quarter of 2003 rattiemn as deferred financing costs as
previously recorded. In addition, the amortizatexpense related to the
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previous net deferred financing costs, which agaped)approximately $250,000 in the first quarte2@d3 and approximately $370,000 per
quarter thereafter, have been reversed in thetees@onsolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matters. In addition to the above, the Company has ideuti§ieveral other matters that have been adjustetbsasibed in Note
18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Impact on Financial StatementsThe impact of these restatements on the Compamyrsdidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,
2003 and 2002 and Statements of Income for the tyears in the period ended December 31, 2003isrsin tables in Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PART |

We refer to (1) Highwoods Properties, Inc. as t@erhpany,” (2) Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersagthe “Operating
Partnership,” (3) the Company’s common stock agti@won Stock,” (4) the Company’s preferred stockRieferred Stock,” (5) the
Operating Partnership’s common partnership intsrast‘Common Units,” (6) the Operating Partnershjpeferred partnership interests as
“Preferred Units” and (7) in-service propertiesdlexling apartment units) to which the Company ftesdand 100.0% ownership rights as the
“Wholly Owned Properties.”

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

The Company is a self-administered and self-managedy REIT that began operations through a prestsar in 1978. Since the
Companys initial public offering in 1994, we have evolviedo one of the largest owners and operators ofihan office, industrial and ret
properties in the southeastern and midwestern didtates. At December 31, 2003, we:

» wholly owned 465 in-service office, industrialdaretail properties, encompassing approximatel9 &illion rentable square feet,
and 213 apartment unil

« owned an interest (50.0% or less) in 65 in-seraffice and industrial properties, encompassimy@gmately 6.8 million rentable
square feet and 418 apartment units. Six of treeimice properties are consolidated at Decembe2@®13 as a result of our
continuing involvement with these properties inadance with SFAS No. 66. See Note 1 to the Codatdd Financial Statements
for further description of the Compé’s accounting policy for investments in joint versy

» wholly owned 1,305 acres of undeveloped land ihatitable to develop approximately 14.3 milliremtable square feet of office,
industrial and retail space; a

« were developing an additional seven propertiggcivwill encompass approximately 959,000 rentabjieare feet (including three
properties encompassing 357,000 rentable squaréhtene are developing with a 50.0% joint ventoaetner).

The Company conducts substantially all of its atiéis through, and substantially all of its intdsei& the properties are held directly or
indirectly by the Operating Partnership. The Conyparthe sole general partner of the Operatingreaship. At December 31, 2003, the
Company owned 100.0% of the Preferred Units an8%%f the Common Units in the Operating Partnershipited partners (including
certain officers and directors of the Company) dlaaremaining Common Units. Holders of Common Unitsy redeem them for the cash
value of one share of the Company’s Common Stocktdhe Company’s option, one share of CommonkStbice Company’s weighted
average ownership of Common Units during the yaded December 31, 2003 was 88.9%. The Preferred Wnthe Operating Partnership
were issued to the Company in connection with tbm@any’s three Preferred Stock offerings that aszim 1997 and 1998.

The Company was incorporated in Maryland in 199 Dperating Partnership was formed in North Caaoih 1994. Our executive
offices are located at 3100 Smoketree Court, Sli6s Raleigh, North Carolina 27604 and our teleghommber is (919) 872-4924. We
maintain offices in each of our primary markets.

The business of the Company is the acquisitiongldgvment and operation of rental real estate ptggeThe Company operates office,
industrial and retail properties and apartmentsuriihere are no material inteegment transactions. See Note 17 to the Consatidéhancia
Statements for a summary of the rental incomeppetating income and assets for each reportablaesg

In addition to this amended Annual Report, we djilerterly and special reports, proxy statementsodéimer information with the SEC.
All documents that we file with the SEC are madailable as soon as reasonably practicable frebafye on our corporate website, which is
http://www.highwoods.com. The information on thishgite is not and should not be considered pahisfamended Annual Report on Form
10-K and is not incorporated by reference in tlisuinent. This website is only intended to be antina textual reference. You may also
read and copy any document that we file at theipubference facilities of the SEC at 450 Fifthe®ts
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N.W., Washington, D.C. 25049. Please call the SE@Q0) 73:-0330 for further information about the public nefiece facilities. These
documents also may be accessed through the SEEsalic data gathering, analysis and retrievakesgg“EDGAR”) via electronic means,
including the SEG home page on the Internet (http://www.sec.gavaddition, since some of our securities are listedhe New York Stoc
Exchange, you can read our SEC filings at the effiof the New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad §tN&w York, New York 10005.

Customers

The following table sets forth information concemgithe 20 largest customers of our Wholly OwnedoPrites as of December 31,
2003:

Percent of Total

Rental Annualized Annualized R Ayeragﬁ
Square Fee Rental Revenue Rental Revenue emaining Leas
Customer @ @ Term in Years

(in thousands)

Federal Governmel 639,88: $ 13,97: 3.34% 6.6
AT&T 612,09: 11,49: 2.7¢4 3.6
PricewaterhouseCoope 297,79! 6,957 1.6¢€ 6.3
State of Georgi 359,56 6,85¢ 1.64 5.4
Sara Lee 1,198,533 4,697 1.1z 3.6
IBM 194,93: 4,097 0.9¢ 1.9
Northern Telecon 246,00( 3,651 0.87 4.2
Volvo 267,71 3,431 0.82 5.5
Lockton Companie 132,71¢ 3,294 0.7¢ 11.2
US Airways® 295,04t 3,217 0.77 4.C
BB&T 241,07! 3,18¢ 0.7¢€ 7.2
ITC Deltacom® 147,37¢ 2,947 0.7C 14
Hartford Insuranct 129,64 2,861 0.6¢ 2.2
T-Mobile USA 120,56 2,801 0.67 2.5
WorldCom and Affiliates 144,62: 2,781 0.67 2.5
Bank of Americe 146,84: 2,70¢ 0.6k 5.3
Ilkon 181,36: 2,531 0.6C 3.9
Carlton Fields 95,77: 2,43¢F 0.5¢ 0.5
Ford Motor Compan 125,98 2,42¢ 0.5¢ 6.1
CHS Professional Servic 145,78: 2,38( 0.57 3.3
Total 5,723,30 $ 88,72t 21.19% 4.7

@  Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2003 reetainue (base rent plus operating expense passtigpmultiplied by 12.

@  In August 2002, US Airways filed voluntary petit®for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the USkBagrtcy Code. US Airways
emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection imad2003. On September 12, 2004, US Airways agdkaid foluntary petitions for
reorganization under Chapter 11. No action has baem to date with respect to the Comy’s leases with US Airway

@  ITC Deltacom (formerly Business Telecom) leasessia a property that, as of December 31, 2003ndker contract for sale. Althou
no assurances can be made, the sale is expeatldéan late 2004 or early 20C

Operating Strategy

Efficient, Customer Service-Oriented Organization. We provide a complete line of real estate sesvtoeour tenants and third parti
We believe that our in-house development, acqaisittonstruction management, leasing and propestyagement services allow us to
respond to the many demands of our existing anehpiat tenant base. We provide our tenants witl-efiective services such as build-to-
suit construction and space modification, includiegant improvements and expansions. In additt@bpteadth of our capabilities and
resources provides us with market information restegally available. We believe that the operatiffigiencies achieved through our fully
integrated organization also provide a competisisheantage in setting our lease rates and pricingraervices.

Capital Recycling Program. Our strategy has been to focus our real estéitétes in markets where we believe our extensogal
knowledge gives us a competitive advantage ovearatal estate developers and operators. Througbapital recycling program, we
generally seek to:

* engage in the development of office and induspriajects in our existing geographic markets, priman suburban business pari
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* acquire selective suburban office and induspraperties in our existing geographic markets mgsrbelow replacement cost that
offer attractive returns; ar

» selectively dispose of n-core properties or other properties in order totheenet proceeds for investments or other purp:

Our capital recycling activities benefit from oochl market presence and knowledge. Our divisifinars have significant real estate
experience in their respective markets. Based isrettperience, we believe that we are in a betisitipn to evaluate capital recycling
opportunities than many of our competitors. In &ddj our relationships with our tenants and thesents at properties for which we conc
third-party fee-based services may lead to devedopiprojects when these tenants seek new space.

The following summarizes the change in our Whollyr@d Properties during the three years ended Deze&ih 2003:

2003 2002 2001

Office, Industrial and Retail Properties:
(rentable square feet in thousan

Dispositions (includes 225 in 2002 related to thst&hore transactio (3,29¢) (2,270 (268)
Contributions to Joint Ventures (includes 205 t-HIW Harborview, LLP in 2002 (297) (205 (118
Developments Placed-Service 191 2,21¢< 1,351
Redevelopmer (227) 52 —
Acquisitions (including 1,319 and 205 from MHIW, LLC in 2003 and 2002 1,42¢ 20t 72
Net Change of Ir-Service Wholly Owned Properties (2,190 (10¢) 1,03:

Apartment Properties:
(in units)
Dispositions — — (1,672
p

Flexible Capital Structure . We are committed to maintaining a flexible camtaucture that: (1) allows growth through devetamt
and acquisition opportunities; (2) promotes futeaenings growth; and (3) provides access to thafmiand public equity and debt market
favorable terms. Accordingly, we expect to meetlong-term liquidity requirements through a combioa of any one or more of:

» cash flow from operating activitie

» borrowings under our unsecured and secured rephriadit facilities;

+ the issuance of unsecured de¢

+ the issuance of secured de

« the issuance of equity securities by both the Comad the Operating Partnerst

» the selective disposition of n-core properties or other properties; :

» private equity capital raised from unrelated jaianture partners that may involve the sale otrdaution of our Wholly Owned
Properties, development projects and developmedttiajoint ventures formed with unrelated invest
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Geographic Diversification. Since the Company’s initial public offering in948 we have significantly reduced our dependencaengn
particular market. We initially owned a limited nber of office properties located in North Carolingst of which were in the Research
Triangle. Today, including our various joint vergsy our portfolio consists primarily of office penies throughout the Southeast and retail
and office properties in Kansas City, Missourilirting one significant mixed retail and office pesty.

Competition

Our properties compete for tenants with similampenties located in our markets primarily on theiba$location, rent, services
provided and the design and condition of the fae#li We also compete with other REITs, finanaialitutions, pension funds, partnerships,
individual investors and others when attemptingdquire, develop and operate properties.

Employees
As of December 31, 2003, the Company employed &bdops.

Risk Factors

An investment in our equity and debt securitieolngs various risks. All investors should carefudbnsider the following risk factors
conjunction with the other information containedtiis amended Annual Report before trading in @gusities. If any of these risks actually
occur, our business, operating results, prospectsiaancial condition could be harmed.

Our Performance is Subject to Risks Associated witRReal Estate Investment We are a real estate company that derives masirof
income from the ownership and operation of our prips. There are a number of factors that mayraéieaffect the income that our
properties generate, including the following:

* Economic Downturns. Downturns in the national economy, particulanythe Southeast, generally will negatively imphet t
demand for our propertie

» Oversupply of Space An oversupply of space in our markets would tgfliccause rental rates and occupancies to dectiaging
it more difficult for us to lease space at attnaetiental rates

» Competitive Properties. If our properties are not as attractive to teadint terms of rents, services or location) as iogineperties
that are competitive with ours, we could lose téniam those properties or suffer lower rental re

» Renovation Costs In order to maintain the quality of our propestand successfully compete against other propewies
periodically have to spend money to maintain, nepad renovate our properti

e Customer Risk. Our performance depends on our ability to colteot from our customers. While no customer inwholly
owned portfolio accounted for more than 3.4% ofdhaualized rental revenue of these respectivespties at December 31, 2003,
our financial position may be adversely affectedibgncial difficulties experienced by a major arser, or by a number of smaller
customers, including bankruptcies, insolvenciegesreral downturns in busine:

* Reletting Costs. As leases expire, we try to either relet the sga@n existing customer or attract a new custdgmeccupy the
space. In either case, we likely will incur sigo#int costs in the process, including potentiallyssantial tenant improvement
expense. In addition, if market rents have declisiade the time the expiring lease was executedtegtms of any new lease signed
likely will not be as favorable to us as the teiwhthe expiring lease, thereby reducing the inceammed from that spac

* Regulatory Costs. There are a number of government regulationdydiiieg zoning, tax and accessibility laws that ggdplthe
ownership and operation of office buildings. Coraptie with existing and newly adopted regulationg neguire us to spend a
significant amount of money on our properti
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» Fixed Nature of Costs. Most of the costs associated with owning and a@ijpey our properties are not necessarily reducezhwh
circumstances such as market factors and competitiase a reduction in rental revenues from thpapty.

» Environmental Problems. Federal, state and local laws and regulatiorsingl to the protection of the environment may rexja
current or previous owner or operator of real propt investigate and clean up hazardous or tewlistances or petroleum product
releases at the property. The clean up can beycosit presence of or failure to clean up contationanay adversely affect our
ability to sell or lease a property or to borrowdis using a property as collate!

» Competition . A number of other major real estate investoré wignificant capital compete with us. These cofbqstinclude
publicly-traded REITSs, private REITS, private real estatestors and private institutional investment fur

Future acquisitions and development properties magail to perform in accordance with our expectationsand may require
development and renovation costs exceeding our estites.In the normal course of business, we typically egtd potential acquisitions,
enter into non-binding letters of intent, and matyany time, enter into contracts to acquire addél properties. However, changing market
conditions, including competition from others, ndigninish our opportunities for making attractivegatsitions. Once made, our investments
may fail to perform in accordance with our expedota. In addition, the renovation and improvemeggts we incur in bringing an acquired
property up to market standards may exceed ounats. Although we anticipate financing future asitjons and renovations through a
combination of advances under our revolving loae (Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statemamig)other forms of secured or
unsecured financing, no assurance can be givenvihatill have the financial resources to make &léacquisitions or renovations.

In addition to acquisitions, we periodically coraidieveloping and constructing properties. Riskseiated with development and
construction activities include:

» the unavailability of favorable financin

» construction costs exceeding original estime

» construction and lea-up delays resulting in increased debt service esgpand construction costs; ¢

» insufficient occupancy rates and rents at a newiyigleted property causing a property to be ungblfi.

If new developments are financed through conswuadtians, there is a risk that, upon completionarfstruction, permanent financing
for newly developed properties will not be avaitabt will be available only on disadvantageous terbevelopment activities are also suk
to risks relating to our inability to obtain, orldgs in obtaining, all necessary zoning, land-bséding, occupancy and other required
governmental and utility company authorizations.

Because holders of our Common Units, including som& our officers and directors, may suffer adverséax consequences upon
the sale of some of our properties, it is possibthat the Company may sometimes make decisions thate not in your best interest .
Holders of Common Units may suffer adverse tax eqoasnces upon the Company’s sale of certain piepeftherefore, holders of Common
Units, including certain of our officers and direxd, may have different objectives than our stottkrs regarding the appropriate pricing and
timing of a property’s sale. Although we are theeggeneral partner of the Operating Partnershiphave the exclusive authority to sell all of
our individual Wholly Owned Properties, officersdagirectors who hold Common Units may influencenasto sell certain properties even if
such sale might be financially advantageous toktolders or influence us to enter into tax defeerdhanges with the proceeds of such ¢
when such a reinvestment might not otherwise libérbest interests of the Company.

The success of our joint venture activity dependspon our ability to work effectively with financiall y sound partners.Instead of
owning properties directly, we have in some casessted, and may continue to invest, as a parineico-venturer. Under certain
circumstances, this type of investment may invaisks not otherwise
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present, including the possibility that a partneca@-venturer might become bankrupt or that a gartm co-venturer might have business
interests or goals inconsistent with ours. Alsehsa partner or co-venturer may take action copti@our instructions or requests or contrary
to provisions in our joint venture agreements tiatld harm us, including jeopardizing our qualifioa as a REIT.

Our insurance coverage on our properties may be irdequate.We carry comprehensive insurance on all of our @rigs, including
insurance for liability, fire and flood. Insurancempanies currently, however, limit coverage agaiegtain types of losses, such as losses
to terrorist acts, named windstorms and toxic mdhiis we may not have insurance coverage, or guffimsurance coverage, against cel
types of losses and/or there may be decreases Imtits of insurance available. Should an uninddoss or a loss in excess of our insured
limits occur, we could lose all or a portion of tbegital we have invested in a property or propertas well as the anticipated future revenue
from the property or properties. If any of our pedjes were to experience a catastrophic lossuidcdisrupt our operations, delay revenue
and result in large expenses to repair or rebhidaroperty. Such events could adversely affectbility to pay dividends to our
stockholders. Our existing insurance policies wereewed in June 2004 and expire on June 30, 20@5aMiCipate renewing or replacing
these policies at that time.

Our use of debt to finance our operations could haa material adverse effect on our cash flow and dity to make distributions.
We are subject to risks normally associated witht fi@ancing, such as the insufficiency of caslwfto meet required payment obligations,
difficulty in complying with financial ratios andtleer covenants and the inability to refinance éxgsindebtedness. Approximately $214.8
million of principal payments on our existing lotgrm debt is due in 2004 and 2005 which exclud@d®Lmillion related to the Put Option
Notes, which were extinguished in June, 2004. Ifailto comply with the financial ratios and othmyvenants, including our Revolvil
Loan, we would likely not be able to borrow anytfier amounts under the Revolving Loan, which caddersely affect our ability to fund
our operations, and our lenders could acceleratanding debt. If our debt cannot be paid, refoeahor extended at maturity, in addition to
our failure to repay our debt, we may not be ablpay dividends to stockholders at expected lemett all. Furthermore, if any refinancing
done at higher interest rates, the increased sttes@ense could adversely affect our cash flowadnility to pay dividends to stockholders.
Any such refinancing could also impose tighter ficial ratios and other covenants that could restrc ability to take actions that could
otherwise be in our stockholders’ best interesthsas funding new development activity, making opgstic acquisitions, repurchasing our
securities or paying distributions. If we do noteheur mortgage financing obligations, any progsriecuring such indebtedness could be
foreclosed on, which would have a material advefert on our cash flow and ability to make diattibns.

We may be subject to taxation as a regular corpor&n if we fail to maintain our REIT status . Our failure to qualify as a REIT
would have serious adverse consequences to olthsiders. Many of the requirements for taxatiomd®EIT, however, are highly technical
and complex. The determination that we are a REtjliires an analysis of various factual matterscaodmstances that may not be totally
within our control. For example, to qualify as alREat least 95.0% of our gross income must coramfcertain sources that are itemized in
the REIT tax laws. We are also required to distalio stockholders at least 90.0% of our REIT téx@icome, excluding capital gains. The
fact that we hold our assets through the Operd&ergnership and its subsidiaries further compl#te application of the REIT requireme
Even a technical or inadvertent mistake could jediga our REIT status. Furthermore, Congress aadRI$ might change the tax laws and
regulations and the courts might issue new rulthgs make it more difficult, or impossible, for tssremain qualified as a REIT.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we would be sultjéz federal income tax at regular corporate radso, unless the IRS granted us re
under certain statutory provisions, we would renthggualified as a REIT for four years followingethiear we first failed to qualify. If we
failed to qualify as a REIT, we would have to pansicant income taxes and would, therefore, hi@gs cash available for investments or to
pay dividends to stockholders. This would likelywba significant adverse effect on the value ofsmaurities. In addition, we would no
longer be required to pay dividends to stockholders

Because provisions contained in Maryland law, ourltarter and our bylaws may have an anti-takeover effct, investors may be
prevented from receiving a “control premium” for th eir shares.Provisions contained in our charter and bylaws el a8 Maryland genet
corporation law may have aritikeover effects that delay, defer or prevent adakr attempt, and thereby prevent stockholders fexeiving
a “control premium” for their shares. For examplesse provisions may defer or prevent tender offarsur Common Stock or purchases of
large blocks of our Common Stock, thus limiting tpportunities for our stockholders to receive enium for their Common Stock over
then-prevailing market prices. These provisionduide the following:

» Ownership limit . Our charter prohibits direct or constructive ovaiép by any person of more than 9.8% of our ontfitey capital
stock. Any attempt to own or transfer shares ofaayital stock in excess of the ownership limitheitit the consent of our Board of
Directors will be void
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» Preferred stock. Our charter authorizes our Board of Directorssne Preferred Stock in one or more classes aastablish the
preferences and rights of any class of Preferredk3ssued. These actions can be taken withoutiogj stockholder approval. Tt
issuance of Preferred Stock could have the effiedelaying or preventing someone from taking cdnifas, even if a change in
control were in our stockhold¢ best interest

» Staggered board. Our Board of Directors is divided into three cles. As a result each director generally servesa fbree-year
term. This staggering of our Board may discourdfgr®for us or make an acquisition of us moreiclift, even when an acquisiti
is in the best interest of our stockholds

* Maryland control share acquisition statute. Maryland law limits the voting rights of “contrehares” of a corporation in the event
of a“control share acquisitic”

* Maryland unsolicited takeover statute.Under Maryland law, our Board of Directors couldptlvarious anti-takeover provisions
without the consent of stockholders. The adoptiosuch measures could discourage offers for usakenan acquisition of us more
difficult, even when an acquisition is in the bexérest of our stockholder

» Anti-Takeover protections of Operating Partnershipagreement. Upon a change in control of the Company, thetéuhi
partnership agreement of the Operating Partnersinfains provisions that require certain acquitondaintain an UPREIT
structure with terms at least as favorable toithééd partners as are currently in place. Forainsg, the acquiror would be required
to preserve the limited partner’s right to continadold taxdeferred partnership interests that are redeenfiabtapital stock of th
acquiror. These provisions may make a change df@dnansaction involving the Company more comgitiéel and therefore might
limit the possibility of such a transaction occogij even if such a transaction would be in the ipgstest of the Company’s
stockholders

» Dilutive effect of Stockholder rights plan. We currently have in effect a stockholder righiesn pursuant to which our existing
stockholders would have the ability to acquire eiddal Common Stock at a significant discount ia #vent a person or group
attempts to acquire us on terms of which our Badifdirectors does not approve. These rights argded to deter a hostile
takeover by increasing the takeover cost. As dtresich rights could discourage offers for us akman acquisition of us more
difficult, even when an acquisition is in the biegérest of our stockholders. The rights plan stiawdt interfere with any merger or
other business combination the Board of Directpgaves since we may generally terminate the piamyatime at nominal cos

SEC communications As part of the implementation of the Sarbanes-ORetyof 2002 and other related SEC rulemaking SE€’s
Division of Corporation Finance has undertakeroiatinely review the annual reports of public coniparevery two to three years. We
recently received such a letter from the SEC’s §don of Corporation Finance providing comments on2003 Annual Report on Form 10-
K. One of the comments from the SEC’s Division @ir@bration Finance regarding the accounting treatrobsales transactions with
continuing involvement under SFAS No. 66 led usetdew substantially all of our sales transactidngng the past five years. As a result,
subsequently determined that it was appropriatedtate our historical financial statements by makiertain adjustments thereto as more
fully described under “Explanatory Note” and in tiestated Consolidated Financial Statements indludeer Iltem 15 herein. During
subsequent communications with the SEC’s Divisib@arporation Finance, we shared with the Staff @anclusions regarding the
appropriate methodology for these transactionsstuiaged with them language designed to enhancecoauating policy disclosures, which
we have made in this amended Form 10-K and whicintead to include in future filings.
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On August 4, 2004, we announced that we intendelélmy the release of our second quarter finamegallts because we expected to
restate our previously reported financial resutsor to this announcement, the SEC’s Division offidration Finance notified us that we had
satisfactorily responded to its comments.

Subsequent to our August 4, 2004 announcementeeeived a non-public, informal inquiry letter frahre SEC’s Division of
Enforcement asking us for our voluntary assistanggoviding them with documentation regarding ceview of real estate transactions
undertaken as a result of the initial letter frdva SEC’s Division of Corporation Finance and aka@ments relating to communications with
our independent auditor in connection therewithrerethough we are cooperating fully, we cannot a&sgau that the SEC’s Division of
Enforcement will not take any action that would exbely affect us.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

General

As of December 31, 2003, we owned 100.0% inteiast§5 in-service office, industrial and retail pesties, encompassing
approximately 34.9 million rentable square feet] 203 apartment units. The following table setghfanformation about our Wholly Owned
Properties at December 31, 2003:

Percentage of Annualized Rental Revenuél)

Rentable Occupancy Office Industrial Retail
Market Square Feet @ Total
Research Triangl® 4,706,001 80.8% 15.7% 0.2% — 15.%
Atlanta 6,919,00I 78.4 11.F 3.3 — 14.¢
Tampa 4,441,00! 63.44 13.C — — 13.C
Kansas City 2,433,001 92.7 4.1 — 8.6% 12.7
Nashville 2,869,00I 91.t 11.2 — — 11.2
Piedmont Triad® 6,688,00I 90.C 6.4 4.C — 10.4
Richmond 1,852,00! 91.t 7.1 — — 7.1
Charlotte 1,655,00! 79.¢ 4.4 0.3 — 4.7
Memphis 1,216,00! 81.C 4.¢ — — 4.6
Greenville 1,318,00! 80.2 3.7 0.1 — 3.8
Columbia 426,00( 57.¢ 0.8 — — 0.8
Orlando 299,00( 44.¢ 0.€ — — 0.€
Other 100,00 64.1 0.4 — — 0.4
Total 34,922,00 81.5% 83.5% 7.% 8.6% 100.(%

@  Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2003 reetanue (base rent plus operating expense passtigpmultiplied by 12.
@  Substantially all of our office properties are ltazhin suburban areas.
@ Includes properties located in the Raleigh/Durhagtrapolitan area.

@  Tampa’'s occupancy would be 77.8% if the 816,00@sg|foot Highwoods Preserve campus where Intern®@daldCom) rejected its
lease was exclude

®  Excludes basement space of 418,000 square feet.
©® Includes properties located in the Greensboro/\Wm&alem metropolitan area.

(n  Total occupancy would have been 83.4% if the 81® gifuare foot Highwoods Preserve campus wherenteia (WorldCom) rejected
its lease was exclude
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The following table sets forth information about ®iholly Owned Properties and our development priggeeas of December 31, 2003
and 2002:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Percent Percent
Rentable Leased/ Rentable Leased/
Square Feet Pre-Leasec Square Feet Pre-Leasec
In-Service:
Office 25,303,00 79.2%  25,342,00 82.% @
Industrial 8,092,00!I 85.7 10,242,00 86.2
Retail® 1,527,00! 96.5 1,528,00! 97.C
Total or Weighted Average 34,922,00 81.5% 37,112,00 84.(% W
Development:
Completed—Not Stabilized®
Office 140,00( 36.(% 231,00( 61.2%
Industrial — — 60,00( 50.C
Total or Weighted Average 140,00( 36.(% 291,00( 59.(%
In Process
Office 112,00( 100.(% 40,00¢( 0.C%
Industrial 350,00 100.C — —
Total or Weighted Average 462,00( 100.(% 40,00( 0.C%
Total:
Office 25,555,00 25,613,00
Industrial 8,442,001 10,302,00
Retail®@ 1,527,00! 1,528,00!
Total or Weighted Average 35,524,00 37,443,00

@  The occupancy percentages have been reduced sglteofethe rejection of the 816,000 square foteédmedia (WorldCom) lease on
December 31, 2002. The impact of the rejectionffineooccupancy and total occupancy in 2002 wa$%3a2d 2.2%, respectivel

@  Excludes basement space of 418,000 square feet.

@  Not stabilized is defined as less than 95.0% oezlipr a year from completio

Development Land

We estimate that we can develop approximately adlign square feet of office, industrial and rétpace on our development land
that was wholly-owned as of December 31, 2003 0Athis development land is zoned and availableffice, industrial or retail
development, substantially all of which has utilitfrastructure already in place. We believe that@ommercially zoned and unencumbered
land in existing business parks gives us a devedmpadvantage over other commercial real estatelalgment companies in many of our
markets. Any future development, however, is depatdn the demand for office, industrial or resgiaice in the area, the availability of
favorable financing and other factors, and no a@sstg can be given that any construction will taleeg@on the development land. In addition,
if construction is undertaken on the developmemd Jave will be subject to the risks associated wahstruction activities, including the risks
that occupancy rates and rents at a newly compjetgeerty may not be sufficient to make the properbfitable, construction costs may
exceed original estimates and construction anelepsmay not be completed on schedule, resultimgcireased debt service expense and
construction expense. We may also dispose of ogptaicels of development land that do not meetleuelopment criteria and we may
develop properties other than office, industrial agtail on certain parcels with unrelated joinbtuge partners.
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Other Properties

As of December 31, 2003, we owned an interest 5@0less) in 65 in-service office and industriedjerties, of which six are
consolidated as a result of our continuing involeaitrwith the properties. The properties encompppsoaimately 6.8 million rentable squs
feet and 418 apartment units. The following talels $orth information about these properties atdbewer 31, 2003:

Percentage of Annualized Rental Revenue — Our Sha@nly ()

Multi-
Rentable Occupancy Office Industrial Retail Family
Market Square Fee Total
Des Moines 2,245,000 95.2% © 33.5% 4.2% 1.2% 4.2% 43.2%
Orlando 1,764,001 85.€ 17.¢ — — — 17.€
Atlanta 650,00( 86.7 11.¢ — — — 11.¢
Research Triangl 455,00( 98.7 4.2 — — — 4.2
Kansas City 427,00( 87.€ 4.2 — — — 4.2
Piedmont Triac 364,00( 100.C 4.7 — — — 4.7
Tampa 205,00( 92.1 2.5 — — — 2.5
Charlotte 148,00( 100.C 1.C — — — 1.C
Richmond 412,00( 99.C 9.6 — — — 9.6
Other 110,00( 100.C 0.€ — — — 0.€
Total 6,780,001 92.2% 90.% 4.2% 1.2% 4.2% 100.(%

@  Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2003 reet&nue (base rent plus operating expense pasgtigpmultiplied by 12.
@  Excludes Des Moines’ apartment units.

@  Excludes Des Moines’ apartment occupancy percertbge.0%.
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Lease Expirations

The following tables set forth scheduled lease ratioins for existing leases at our Wholly Ownedderties (excluding apartment units)
as of December 31, 2003. The table includes tlezsfiof any early renewals exercised by tenanté Becember 31, 2003.

Office Properties:

Percentage of Average Percent of
Leased Annual Annualized
Square Footag Annualized Rental Rate Rental Revenur
Rental Revenut
Rentable Represented b Per Square Represented b
Squgre Feet Under Expiring Foot for
S;(%ﬁﬁgo Expiring Leases Expirations Expiring
Lease Expiring® Leases Leases?) Leases?
($ in thousands)
20040 2,803,87! 14.0% $ 51,01 $ 18.1¢ 14.€6%
2005 3,538,10! 17.€ 63,79( 18.0¢ 18.1
2006 3,095,69! 15.£ 56,91 18.3¢ 16.2
2007 1,779,65! 8. 29,63’ 16.6¢ 8.5
2008 3,117,53. 15.5 48,55¢ 15.5¢ 13.€
2009 1,802,30: 9.C 28,59¢ 15.8i 8.2
2010 1,243,67 6.2 24,50( 19.7( 7.C
2011 1,092,04 54 20,81¢ 19.0¢ 5.¢
2012 522,04 2.€ 10,73¢ 20.57 3.1
2013 548,87¢ 2.7 9,26¢ 16.8¢ 2.€
Thereatftel 543,88( 2.7 6,191 11.3¢ 1.8
20,087,70. 100.(% $ 350,01 $ 17.4 100.(%
Industrial Properties:
Percentage of Average Percent of
Leased Annual Annualized
Square Footag¢ Annualized Rental Rate Rental Revenur
Rentable Rental Revenu
Square Fee Represented by Per Square Represented b
. Under Expiring Foot for
SEuxtgi?icrfg:O Expiring Leases Expirations Expiring
Lease Expiring® Leases Leases?) Leases?)
($ in thousands)
2004® 1,652,55 23.&% $ 7,97(C $ 4.82 24.2%
2005 1,289,76! 18.¢€ 5,92¢ 4.5¢ 18.C
2006 887,00° 12.¢ 4,44 5.01 13.t
2007 1,677,69. 24.2 7,28: 4,32 22.2
2008 384,01: 5.8 1,86% 4.8t 5.7
2009 380,34¢ 5.t 2,40¢ 6.3: 7.3
2010 104,57( RS 432 4.1% 1.3
2011 66,34: 1.C 35€ 5.37 1.1
2012 44,44 0.€ 261 5.87 0.8
2013 102,38 1.5 61z 5.9¢ 1.9
Thereatftel 348,39 5.C 1,301 3.7¢ 4.C
6,937,51I 100.(% $ 32,85¢ $ 4.7 100.(%

@ Includes effects of any early renewals exercisetebgnts on or before December 31, 2003.
@  Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2003 reetainue (base rent plus operating expense passtigpmultiplied by 12.
® Includes 96,000 square feet of leases that arenoongh-to-month basis or 0.4% of total annualiztal revenue.

@ Includes 165,000 square feet of leases that asemonth-to-month basis or 0.2% of total annualizedal revenue.
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Retail Properties:

Lease Expiring®

20040
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereatftel

Total:

Lease Expiring®

2004@
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
Thereatftel

Percentage of Percent of
Leased Annualized
Square Footag¢ Annualized Average Rental Revenur
Rentable Rental Revenu Annual
Square Fee Represented by B Rental Rate Represented b
Subject to Expiring Leases Under Expiring Per Square Expiring
Expiring ) Foot for
Leases Leases® Expirations Leases®
($ in thousands)
201,84¢ 13.7% $ 2,691 $ 13.3¢ 7.5%
152,28( 10.4 2,92¢ 19.2¢ 8.2
91,82 6.3 2,23¢ 24.3¢ 6.2
92,81 6.3 2,39( 25.7¢ 6.7
144,70( 9.9 4,58¢ 31.6¢ 12.¢
169,80¢ 11.€ 4,881 28.7¢ 13.€
85,38¢ 5.8 2,34: 27.4¢ 6.5
57,78: 3.8 1,86¢ 32.3¢ 5.2
97,13 6.€ 2,23 22.9¢ 6.2
132,37 9.C 3,35¢ 25.3¢ 9.3
242,08: 16.5 6,372 26.3:2 17.¢
1,468,03! 100.(% $ 35,89: $ 244 100.(%
Percentage of Percent of
Leased Annualized
Square Footag Annualized Average Rental Revenur
Rental Revenur Annual
Rentable Represented by Rental Rate Represented b
Square Feet P ’ Under Expirin P '
Subject to Expiring Leases Png Per Square Expiring
Expiring ) Foot for
Leases Leases® Expirations Leases®
($ in thousands)
4,658,27. 16.2% $ 61,67 $ 13.2¢ 14.7%
4,980,141 17.4 72,64" 14.5¢ 17.5
4,074,52 14.% 63,591 15.61 15.2
3,550,161 12.t 39,31( 11.0% 9.4
3,646,24. 12.¢ 55,00: 15.0¢ 13.1
2,352,461 8.3 35,88t 15.2¢ 8.€
1,433,63. 5.C 27,27°" 19.0¢ 6.5
1,216,17. 4.2 23,04: 18.9¢ 5.5
663,62: 2.3 13,23: 19.9¢ 3.2
783,64( 2.8 13,23: 16.8¢ 3.2
1,134,35 4.C 13,86« 12.22 3.3
28,493,24. 100.(% $ 418,76 $ 14.7( 100.(%

@  Includes effects of any early renewals exercisetehgnts on or before December 31, 2003.

@  Annualized Rental Revenue is December 2003 reet&nue (base rent plus operating expense pasgtigpmultiplied by 12.

@ Includes 34,000 square feet of leases that arenoorgh-to-month basis or 0.1% of total annualizemtal revenue.

@ Includes 295,000 square feet of leases that aeemanth-to-month basis or 0.7% of total annualizsdal revenue.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are a party to a variety of legal proceedingsrag in the ordinary course of our business. Welse that we are adequately covered
by insurance and indemnification agreements. Adogtg, none of these proceedings are expectedue aanaterial adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We accrued $2.7 million in 2002 for litigation exyses related to various legal proceedings fromipusly completed mergers and
acquisitions. These claims were fully settled bitye2003.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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ITEM X. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth information with pest to our executive officers:

Name

Edward J. Fritscl

Michael E. Harris

Gene H. Anderso

Michael F. Beale

Robert Cutlip

Carman J. Liuzz

Mack D. Pridgen llI

W. Brian Reame

Age

45

54

59

51

54

43

55

41

Position and Background

Director, President and Chief Executive Offic

Mr. Fritsch joined us in 1982. He was a partneowf predecessor. Mr. Fritsch served as our chiefaijng
officer from January 1998 until December 2003 wherbecame president and chief operating officer. He
became chief executive officer in July 20

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Offi

Mr. Harris became chief operating officer in Ju§02. Prior to that, Mr. Harris was a senior vicegident and
responsible for our operations in Tennessee, Migdéansas and Charlotte. Mr. Harris was executice
president of Crocker Realty Trust prior to its mergith us in 1996. Before joining Crocker Realtyst, Mr.
Harris served as senior vice president, generalsgland chief financial officer of Towermarc Corgion, a
privately owned real estate development firm. Martis is a member of the Advisory Board of Direstat
SouthTrust Bank of Memphis, and Allen & Hoshallg |

Director and Senior Vice Preside

Mr. Anderson manages the operations of our Geqngiperties and the Piedmont Triad division of North
Carolina. Mr. Anderson was the founder and pregidéAnderson Properties, Inc. prior to its mergth the
Company in 1997

Senior Vice Presiden
Mr. Beale is responsible for our operations in iar Prior to joining us in 2000, Mr. Beale waserjaresident
of Koger Equity, Inc

Senior Vice President and Regional Mana

Prior to joining us in September 2003, Mr. Cutlipswice president of real estate for Progress Bnargublic
company, where he was responsible for the developaral facilities management in North Carolina, t8ou
Carolina, and Florida. Before joining Progress ggeMr. Cutlip was executive vice president for the
Carolinas and Tennessee Region of Duke-Weeks ReaRgal Estate Investment Trust. Mr. Cutlip is
chairman-elect of the National Association of Indiasand Office Properties, an industry associafiar
commercial real estate with over 11,000 membelismatde.

Vice President of Investments and Strategic Anal

Mr. Liuzzo served as our vice president, chieffiicial officer and treasurer from 1994 until NovemBe03.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Liuzzo was vice presidamid chief accounting officer for Boddie-Noell Eqtases,
Inc. and Boddi-Noell Restaurant Properties, It

Vice President, General Counsel and Secre
Prior to joining us in 1997, Mr. Pridgen was a partwith Smith Helms Mullis & Moore, L.L.P. and prito
that a partner with Arthur Andersen & Co. Mr. Prdgs an attorney and a certified public accoun

Senior Vice President and Regional Mana

Mr. Reames became senior vice president and relgisar@ager in August 2004 and has responsibilityofar
operations in Nashville, Memphis, Charlotte, Graégnand Columbia. Prior to that, Mr. Reames wavi
president responsible for the Nashville divisiopaaition held since 1996. Mr. Reames was a paaner
owner at Eakin & Smith, Inc., a Nashville basedoaffreal estate development, leasing and managédimant
from 1989 until the merger with Highwoods Propestie April 1996.
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Terry L. Steven: 56  Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and TreasL
Prior to joining us in December 2003, Mr. Steverssexecutive vice president, chief financial offiaad
trustee for Crown American Realty Trust, a pubbonpany. Before joining Crown American Realty Trudt,
Stevens was director of financial systems develapraeAlliedSignal, Inc., a large multi-national
manufacturer. Mr. Stevens was also an audit paviitarPrice Waterhouse. Mr. Stevens currently sease

trustee, chairman of the Audit Committee and menolbéne Compensation Committee of First Potomac
Realty Trust, a public compan
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RE LATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Common Stock has been traded on the New YartkSExchange (“NYSE”") under the symbol “HIW” sinttee Company’s initial
public offering. The following table sets forth thaarterly high and low stock prices per share rtegloon the NYSE for the quarters indica
and the dividends paid per share during such guarte

2003 2002
Dividend Dividend

Quarter Ended High Low High Low
March 31 $22.3¢ $20.0( $ .58t $28.3( $25.3¢ $ .58t
June 3( 22. 77  20.17 A28 29.3¢ 26.0( .58t
September 3 23.97 2231 A28 26.68 23.0( .58t
December 3: 26.0z 24.3: A28 23.3C  18.7( .58t

On October 22, 2004, the last reported stock pridche Common Stock on the NYSE was $25.11 pereshad the Company had 1,417
stockholders of record.

The Company intends to continue to pay quartesidénds to holders of shares of Common Stock atdieh® of Common Units.
Future dividend payments by the Company will bthatdiscretion of the Board of Directors and wépe&nd on the actual funds from
operations of the Company, its financial conditioapital requirements, the annual dividend requémnatsiunder the REIT provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code and such other factors aBdhed of Directors deems relevant. See “Manage@&iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations -uidify and Capital Resources —Stockholder Dividehds

During 2003, the Company’s Common Stock dividemdaléd $1.86 per share, $1.18 of which represemtedn of capital for income
tax purposes. The minimum dividend per share of @omStock required for the Company to maintaifREST status (excluding any net
capital gains) was approximately $0.07 per shag008 and $0.90 per share in 2002.

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment and Staokh@se Plan under which holders of Common Stogketext to automatically
reinvest their dividends in additional shares offftmon Stock and may make optional cash paymentdiitional shares of Common Stock.
The Company may issue additional shares of Comnback®r repurchase Common Stock in the open méoketurposes of satisfying its
obligations under the Dividend Reinvestment analSRurchase Plan.

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plati fiotive employees. At the end of each threetimoiffering period, each
participant’s account balance is applied to acgsii@es of Common Stock at a cost that is calait®&5.0% of the lower of the average
closing price on the NYSE on the five consecutiggdpreceding the first day of the quarter or the days preceding the last day of the
quarter. Participants may contribute up to 25.0%heir pay. During 2003, employees purchased 50s8a2es of Common Stock under the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

The section under the heading entitled “Equity Cengation Plan Information” in the Proxy Statemerihcorporated herein by
reference, except as noted in Item 11.

During the three months ended December 31, 20@3Cdmpany issued 257,508 shares of Common Stdu#dders of Common Units
in the Operating Partnership upon the redempticsuoh Common Units in private offerings pursuaréation 4(2) of the Securities Act.
Each of the holders of the redeemed Common Unissamaaccredited investor under Rule 501 of the i@e=uAct. The Company has
registered the resale of such shares under theieséct.

21



Table of Contents

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data as of Decenfiie 2003 and 2002 and for the three years en@ée@mber 31, 2003 is derived
from the Company’s audited Consolidated Financiatésnents included elsewhere herein. The selertaddial data as of December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 and for the two years endeémleer 31, 2000 is derived from previously issuadricial statements adjusted for
revisions related to the restatements discussevbel

The Company has restated its results for the fea-period from 1999 through 2003. These restattsmesulted from adjustments
related to the accounting for a limited numbertsfrior real estate sales transactions occurratgyden 1999 and 2003, reclassifications for
discontinued operations, accounting for minoritierast, accounting for a debt retirement, and atbers. Refer to Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dismn of the restatement adjustments. The infoomati the following table should be read
in conjunction with the Company’s audited ConsdkdaFinancial Statements and related notes inclhdegin:

Year Ended December 31,

2003W 2002 2001®) 2000 1999
Rental and other revenues $504,69¢ $521,72' $535,37' $526,14: $557,37¢
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 178,41. 169,56: 169,05¢ 157,88. 171,38t
Depreciation and amortizatic 142,10: 140,79( 127,62° 114,37 107,50:
Impairment of assets held for L — 9,91¢ — — —
General and administratiy 25,26¢ 26,19: 23,38t 24,06¢ 23,46¢
Litigation expenst — 2,70C — — —
Cost of unsuccessful transactic — — — — 1,50(C
Total operating expens 345,78 349,16: 320,06¢ 296,320 303,85:
Interest expense:
Contractua 119,52¢ 118,95 118,89¢ 108,35! 115,39¢
Amortization of deferred financing cos 4,40¢ 3,46¢ 4,03¢ 3,19¢ 3,50¢
Financing obligation 17,69: 12,48¢ 11,84: 1,77: 1,06t
Total interest expens 141,62: 134,90¢ 134,77% 113,32 119,96¢
Other income/expense
Interest and other incon 6,22( 7,718 13,99: 9,68( 9,56¢
Loss on debt extinguishmer (14,659 (37¢) (719 (4,71)  (7,34)
Gain on extinguishment of -venture obligatior 16,30: — — — —
Total other income/expen: 7,86¢ 7,33¢ 13,27 4,96¢ 2,22t
Income before disposition of property, cosenture expense, minority interest anc
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 25,16: 44,98 93,80¢ 121,467 135,78
Gains on disposition of property, r 12,31¢ 22,69: 21,91( 3,39¢ 6,47t
Cao-venture expens (4,589 (7,730 (6,859 (15¢) —
Minority interest in the Operating Partners (815 (4,347 (10,77¢ (12,050 (14,699
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia 4,952 5,64( 7,53¢ 2,64¢ 914
Income from continuing operations 37,02¢ 61,24: 105,61¢ 115,30t 128,47
Discontinued operations net of minority inter 10,91¢ 20,63t 11,76: 11,72¢ 8,26¢
Net income 47,94 81,877 117,38( 127,03« 136,74
Dividends on preferred stox (30,857 (30,857 (31,500 (32,580 (32,580
Excess of preferred stock carrying value over refpase valu — — 1,01z — —
Net income available for common stockholder $ 17,090 $ 51,02 $ 86,89: $ 94,45¢ $104,16!

Net income per common shar+ basic:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 01z $ 057 $ 13 $ 140 $ 15¢

Net income $ 032 $ 09 $ 161 $ 16C $ 1.7C

Net income per common shar+ diluted:



Income from continuing operatiol
Net income

Dividends declared per common sh
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$

0.1z2

0.57

1.37

1.3¢

1.5¢

$

0.32

1.8¢

0.9t

2.34

1.5¢

2.31

1.5¢

2.2F

1.6

2.1¢
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Year Ended December 31,

2003MW 2002 2001 2000M 1999M
Balance Sheet Data:

Net real estate asse $ 3,224,21. $ 3,357,571 $ 3,564,01 $ 3,447,771 $ 3,637,0L
Total asset $ 3,543,022 $ 3,769,081 $ 3,972,341 $ 4,032,900 $ 4,036,91
Total mortgages and notes paya $ 1,717,76! $ 1,793,761 $ 1,961,471 $ 1,825,58 $ 1,766,11
Financing obligation $ 124060 $ 121,01: $ 76,08 $ 73,62( $ 22,65
Cc-venture obligatiot $ — $ 43511 $ 4048 $ 36,04t $ —

Cumulative redeemable preferred shi 377,44! 377,44! 377,44! 397,50( 397,50(
Number of wholly owned i-service propertie 465 492 49¢ 492 563
Total rentable square fe 34,922,00 37,112,00 37,221,00 36,183,00 38,976,000

@  In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 whicjuires assets classified as held for sale draoh result of disposal activities
initiated subsequent to January 1, 2002 and whetebgperations and cash flows have been or widllineinated from the ongoing
operations of the Company and we will not have siggificant continuing involvement in the operasaafter the disposal transaction to
be reported as discontinued operations. Thus| jrealbds presented above, we have reclassifiglistontinued operations the
operations and/or gain/(loss) from disposal of ¢hpoperties that qualify for such treatment urisleAS No. 144

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and arialigsconjunction with the accompanying Consolidaf@nancial Statements and
related notes contained elsewhere in this amended# Report on Form 10-K.

D ISCLOSURE R EGARDING F ORWARD -L OOKING S TATEMENTS

Some of the information in this amended Annual Repo Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statemnse Such statements
include, in particular, statements about our platrategies and prospects under this section aderuhe heading “Business.” You can
identify forward-looking statements by our use affard-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,’'Ekpect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“continue” or other similar words. Although we hmle that our plans, intentions and expectatiorsatefd in or suggested by such forward-
looking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat our plans, intentions or expectations alachieved. When considering such
forward-looking statements, you should keep in nihmfollowing important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those contained in any forward-looking statatne

* speculative development activity by our compesito our existing markets could result in an essessupply of office, industrial
and retail properties relative to tenant dem:

» the financial condition of our tenants could detsate;

e we may not be able to complete development, adepn, reinvestment, disposition or joint ventprejects as quickly or on as
favorable terms as anticipate

* we may not be able to lease or release space yuickin as favorable terms as old lea

e an unexpected increase in interest rates woul@aser our debt service cos

e we may not be able to continue to meet our -term liquidity requirements on favorable terr
» we could lose key executive officers; ¢

» our southeastern and midwestern markets may sadfditional declines in economic grow

This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also revie other cautionary statements we
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth elsewtie this amended Annual Report.
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Given these uncertainties, you should not placeiemdliance on forward-looking statements. We utadterno obligation to publicly
release the results of any revisions to these fahl@king statements that may be made to reflegtfature events or circumstances or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

O VERVIEW

We are a fully integrated, self-administered REi{&ttprovides leasing, management, developmenttremtion and other customer-
related services for our properties and for thadtips. As of December 31, 2003, we own or havimi@nest in 530 irservice office, industri:
and retail properties, encompassing approximately #illion square feet. As of that date, we alsmed 1,305 acres of development land,
which is suitable to develop approximately 14.3lioml rentable square feet of office, industrial aathil space. We are based in Raleigh,
North Carolina, and our properties and developrfard are located in Florida, Georgia, lowa, Kansexyland, Missouri, North Carolini
South Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia.

We have restated our Consolidated Financial Statesmentained herein and related financial inforamator the five-year period from
1999 through 2003. These restatements resultecphnirom adjustments related to the accountirgafimited number of our prior real
estate sales transactions with continuing involveneecurring between 1999 and 2003, reclassifinatfor discontinued operations,
accounting for minority interest, accounting fadebt retirement, and other items. Refer to Notéolie Consolidated Financial Statements
for a more complete description of these adjustmeéitie following information should be read in aoxgtion with our audited Consolidated
Financial Statements and related notes includegither

Management of the Company is ultimately respondiiigreparing and presenting the Company'’s finalnstatements in accordance
with GAAP. As part of these processes, we consuli#ul Ernst & Young LLP in their capacity as oudependent auditors regarding the
application of GAAP. In particular, we consultedtwErnst & Young LLP regarding certain of the restate sales transactions with
continuing involvement, accounting for the MOPPRSBtdextinguishment in 2003, accounting for minoiitierest in the Operating
Partnership, and accounting for the compensatists¢o be recognized in 2004 in connection withrétieement of the Company’s former
CEO.

Results of Operations

During 2003, approximately 84.0% of our rental rave was derived from our office properties. Assute while we own and operate a
limited number of industrial and retail propertiesy operating results depend heavily on succdgd@asing our office properties.
Furthermore, since most of our office propertieslacated in Florida, Georgia and North Carolimap®yment growth in those states is and
will continue to be an important determinative éadn predicting our future operating results.

The key components affecting our revenue streamaaege occupancy and rental rates. During thiespasral years, as the average
occupancy of our portfolio has decreased, our ganmgerty rental revenue has declined. Average autypgenerally increases during times
of improving economic growth, as our ability todeaspace outpaces vacancies that occur upon tirateoqs of existing leases, while
average occupancy generally declines during tinistower economic growth, when new vacancies termaltpace our ability to lease space.
Asset acquisitions and dispositions also impactrental revenues and could impact our average ecmyp depending upon the occupancy
percentage of the properties that are acquiredldr s

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagapancy proportionally depends upon whether rendeunew leases are higher or
lower than the rents under the previous leasesnB@003, the average straight-lined rate per sgfaot on new leases signed in our Wholly
Owned Properties was 0.7% lower than the averagmgkst-lined rate per square foot on the expirgaskes. A further indicator of the
predictability of future revenues is the expectsgse expirations of our portfolio. Our averageceffease term, excluding renewal periods is
4.5 years. At December 31, 2003, the occupancyfeataur Wholly Owned Properties was 81.5%, andrdu2004 leases on approximately
4.7 million square feet of space will expire thavé not been renewed as of December 31, 2003 s@ihere footage represents approximately
15% of our annualized rental revenue. As of Sep&arBb, 2004, based on our leasing efforts sinceedber 31, 2003 and on other activity
such as early lease terminations, the occupaneyfeabur Wholly Owned Properties improved to 83.2% a result, in addition to seeking to
increase our average occupancy by leasing curesrant space, we also must concentrate our leaforgseon renewing leases on expiring
space. For more information regarding our leaséatkpns, see “Properties — Lease Expirations.”

Our expenses primarily consist of depreciation amartization, general and administrative expensegal property expenses and
interest expense. Depreciation and amortizati@nrien-cash expense associated with the ownershgabproperty and generally remains
relatively consistent each year, unless we buyelassets, since we depreciate our propertiesstramht-line basis. General and
administrative expenses, net of amounts capitaglizedsist primarily of management and employeerigsl@nd other personnel costs,
corporate overhead and long-term incentive compemsaRental property expenses are expenses assbgigth our ownership and
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operation of rental properties and include variapenses, such as common area maintenance dtiels,tiind fixed expenses, such as
property taxes and insurance. Some of these vareédgenses may be lower as our average occupaoliyede while the fixed expenses
remain constant regardless of average occupaneyebt expense depends upon the amount of ountiags, the weighted average interest
rates on our debt and the amount capitalized orldpmnent projects.

We also record income from our investments in usobdated affiliates, which are our joint ventusxept for two joint ventures whi
are included in our Consolidated Financial Statesas a result of our continuing involvement whib properties — see Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We record iniitggn earnings of unconsolidated affiliateslir proportionate share of the unconsolid
joint venture’ net income or loss. During 2003, income earnedhfthese unconsolidated joint ventures aggregdaedirillion, which
represented approximately 10.3% of our total nedrime.

Additionally, SFAS No. 144 requires us to recortlineome received from properties sold or heldsile that qualify as discontinued
operations under SFAS No. 144 separately as “indoome discontinued operations.” As a result, wessafely record revenues and expenses
from these qualifying properties. During 2003, imeg including gains and losses from the sale gbgmties, from discontinued operations
accounted for approximately 22.8% of our totalinebme.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We incur capital expenditures to lease space t@astomers and to maintain the quality of our proee to successfully compete
against other properties. Tenant improvementsheredsts required to customize the space for theifspneeds of the customer. Lease
commissions are costs incurred to find the custdorethe space. Building improvements are recurdagital costs not related to a customer
to maintain the buildings. As leases expire, whagitittempt to relet the space to an existing oustr attract a new customer to occupy the
space. Generally, customer renewals require logaxsithg capital expenditures than reletting to nestamers. However, market conditions
such as supply of available space on the marketelisss demand for space, drive not only custometal rates but also tenant improvement
costs. Leasing capital expenditures are amortized the term of the lease and building improvemangsdepreciated over the appropriate
useful life of the assets acquired. Both are inetlish depreciation and amortization in results pérations.

Because we are a REIT, we are required under trexdktax laws to distribute at least 90.0% of REIT taxable income to our
stockholders. We generally use rents received frostomers to fund our operating expenses, recucap@al expenditures and stockholder
dividends. To fund property acquisitions, developtretivity or building renovations, we incur détgm time to time. As of December 31,
2003, we had approximately $982.8 million of sedulebt outstanding and $735.0 million of unsecwielk outstanding. Our debt consist:
mortgage debt, unsecured debt securities and bimrgswinder our Revolving Loan. As of October 22)20ve have approximately $47.3
million of additional borrowing availability undeur Revolving Loan and our short-term cash neemistife remainder of 2004) include,
among other things, the funding of $9.4 milliordievelopment activity and $214.8 million in prindipayments due on our long-term debt in
the remainder of 2004 and 2005 which excludes $1L@lion related to Put Option Notes, which wertiguished in June, 2004.

Our Revolving Loan and the indenture governingautstanding long-term unsecured debt securitieB esquire us to satisfy various
operating and financial covenants and performaates. As a result, to ensure that we do not wothé provisions of these debt instruments,
we may from time to time be limited in undertakiceytain activities that may otherwise be in thet rgsrest of our stockholders, such as
repurchasing capital stock, acquiring additionak#s increasing the total amount of our debt areiasing stockholder dividends. We review
our current and expected operating results, firdmandition and planned strategic actions on agomy basis for the purpose of monitoring
our continued compliance with these covenants atids. While we are currently in compliance witlesk covenants and ratios and expect to
remain so for the foreseeable future, we cannotigecany assurance of continued compliance andalye to remain in compliance could
result in an acceleration of some or all of ourtdséverely restrict our ability to incur additidnkebt to fund short- and long-term cash needs
or result in higher interest expense. See Notetbadonsolidated Financial Statements for diseckseigarding a waiver of and amendments
to these covenants in 2004.
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To generate additional capital to fund our growtHd ather strategic initiatives and to lessen thaerahip risks typically associated w
owning 100.0% of a property, we may sell some affyoperties or contribute them to joint ventul&en we create a joint venture with a
strategic partner, we usually contribute one orermoperties that we own and/or vacant land toveynformed entity in which we retain an
interest of 50.0% or less. In exchange for our queninority interest in the joint venture, we geally receive cash from the partner and
retain all of the management income relating topttoperties in the joint venture. The joint ventitself will frequently borrow money on its
own behalf to finance the acquisition of, and/mel@ge the return upon, the properties being aedudy the joint venture or to build or
acquire additional buildings. Such borrowings grgdally on a non-recourse or limited recourse fiadle generally are not liable for the
debts of our joint ventures, except to the extémtuw equity investment, unless we have directlgrgnteed any of that debt. In most cases
and/or our strategic partners are required to gueeacustomary exceptions to non-recourse liahilityon-recourse loans. See Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation on certain debt guarantees.

We have historically also sold additional Commoaocg&tor Preferred Stock, or issued Common Unitaitmlfadditional growth or to
reduce our debt, but we have limited those effdutsng the past five years because funds genefiatadour capital recycling program in
recent years have provided sufficient funds. Initamtl we used funds from our capital recyclingépurchase Common Stock in 2003, 2002
and 2001 and Preferred Stock in 2001.

Management’s Analysis

We believe that funds from operations (“FFO”) arktOFper share are beneficial to management andtorgesnd are important
indicators of the performance of any equity REI'€cBuse FFO and FFO per share calculations exclffefactors as depreciation and
amortization of real estate assets and gains se$ofsom sales of real estate (which can vary amo@ngers of identical assets in similar
conditions based on historical cost accountingusedul life estimates), they facilitate comparisofsperating performance between periods
and between other REITs. Our management belieag¢historical cost accounting for real estate assehccordance with Accounting
Principles Generally Accepted in the United St4t€&A\AP”) implicitly assumes that the value of real estatesdiminishes predictably o
time. Since real estate values have historicadlgrrior fallen with market conditions, many industryestors and analysts have considered the
presentation of operating results for real estateganies that use historical cost accounting tm$afficient by themselves. As a result,
management believes that the use of FFO and FF€hpee, together with the required GAAP presentatiprovide a more complete
understanding of the Compasyperformance relative to its competitors and aemmiormed and appropriate basis on which to maaésibn:
involving operating, financing and investing adiizs. See “Funds from Operations.”

R ESULTS OF O PERATIONS

On January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 144. Axithesl in Note 12 to the Consolidated FinanciateSteents, we reclassified the
operations and/or gain/(loss) from the disposalesfain properties to discontinued operations flgperiods presented if the operations and
cash flows have been or will be eliminated from ongoing operations and we will not have any sigaift continuing involvement in the
operations after the disposal transaction and thpesties were either sold during 2003 and 200&2exe held for sale at December 31, 2003.
Accordingly, the operations and gain/(loss) frora gmoperties disposed of during 2001 and certaipgnties disposed of during 2002 were
not reclassified to discontinued operations.

As more fully described in Note 18 to the ConsdkdaFinancial Statements, three of our prior retdte sales transactions are
accounted for as financing and/or profit-sharingagements. Although the rental revenues and dpgraxpenses of these properties are
recorded in our Consolidated Financial Stateméhtsnet income excluding depreciation that is alted to our partner or the third party
buyer (to the extent of their ownership interest)dclassified as interest expense for a finanaingngement or co-venture expense for a
profit-sharing arrangement.
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Comparison of 2003 to 2002

The following table sets forth information regagliour restated results of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2003 and 200
in millions):

Year Ended December 31, 2003
to 2002 % of
2003 2002 $ Change Change
Rental and other revenues $ 5047 $ 5217  $(17.0 (3.9%
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen 178.¢ 169.t 8.9 5.3
Depreciation and amortizatic 142.1 140.¢ 1.3 0.¢
Impairment of assets held for L — 9.¢ 9.9 (200.0
General and administrati 25.2 26.2 (0.9 (3.9)
Litigation expenst — 2.7 (2.7 (200.0
Total operating expens 345.¢ 349.1 3.3 (0.9
Interest expense
Contractua 119 119. 0.5 0.4
Amortization of deferred financing cos 4.4 3.4 1.0 29.4
Financing obligation 17.7 12.t 5.2 41.¢€
141.¢ 134.¢ 6.7 5.C
Other income/expense
Interest and other incon 6.2 7.7 (1.5 (19.5)
Loss on debt extinguishmer (14.¢ (0.9 (14.2  3,550.(
Gain on extinguishment of -venture obligatior 16.5 — 16.5 100.(
7.9 7.3 0.6 8.2
Income before disposition of property, co-venture xpense, minority interest and
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 25.2 45.C (29.9) 44.0
Gains on disposition of property, r 12.2 22.7 (10.9) (45.9)
Cao-venture expens (4.6 (7.7) 3.1 (40.9)
Minority interest in the Operating Partners (0.9 (4.4 3.6 (81.9)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia 5.0 5.€ (0.€) (20.7)
Income from continuing operations 37.1 61.2 (24.)) (39.9)
Discontinued operation
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriteresi 2.4 9.1 (6.7) (73.€)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomitiy interest 8.5 11.€ (3.2 (26.7)
10.¢ 20.7 (9.9) (47.9)
Net income 48.C 81.¢ (33.¢ (41.9
Dividends on preferred stox (30.9 (30.9 — —
Net income available for common stockholder $ 171 $ 51.C $(33.9 (66.5)%

Rental and Other Revenues

The decrease in rental and other revenues fronineimg operations was primarily the result of (IJexrease in average occupancy
rates in our Wholly Owned Properties from 86.4%tfa year ended December 31, 2002 to 82.7% foyeheended December 31, 2003, and
(2) from the effect of properties sold in 2003 &2 that were not accounted for as discontinuedatipns. The decrease in average
occupancy rates was primarily a result of the digtfum of certain properties and the bankruptcigd/orldCom and US Airways, which
decreased average occupancy rates by 2.8% antlaedtather revenues from continuing operation$1y.4 million. Amounts partly
offsetting these decreases were: (1) during 208&cximately $3.1 million of straightline rentakiome was written off in connection with
the bankruptcy of WorldCom; (2) 2.0 million squéeet of development properties were placedarvice and, as a result, increased renta
other revenues from continuing operations by apprately $8.6 million; and (3) rental revenues i©2®nly included a partial year of rental
revenues from the Harborview Plaza transaction fwbcurred in June 2002, increasing 2003 renta&mess by approximately $3.8 million.
In addition, construction income increased from2@92003, as a result of the development of aedffice condominiums in 2003.
Recovery income from certain operating expensee dacreased in the year ended December 31, 2008 thuger occupancy



During the year ended December 31, 2003, 954 segeneration leases representing 7.6 million sqiesreof office, industrial and
retail space were executed in our Wholly Owned Briggs. The average rate per square foot
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on a GAAP basis over the lease term for leasesus@dn the year ended December 31, 2003 was @Wr lthan the rent paid by previous
customers.

As of the date of this filing, we are beginningsge a modest improvement in employment trendsviarakof our markets and an
improving economic climate in the Southeast. The® been modest positive absorption of office spao@ost of our markets during the last
five quarters. Occupancy in our Wholly Owned Préipsrincreased to 83.2% at September 30, 2004 &bBf%o at December 31, 2003. We
expect occupancy to increase modestly during taireder of 2004.

Operating Expenses

The increase in rental and other operating expensescontinuing operations (real estate taxestiai, insurance, repairs and
maintenance and other property-related expensigsaply resulted from (1) general inflationary ieases particularly compensation, utility
costs, real estate taxes and insurance and (2ad¢hthat certain fixed operating expenses do aof with net changes in our occupancy
percentages, such as real estate taxes, insurade#ility rate changes. In addition, we had 2.0Uiom square feet of development properties
placed in service during 2002 that resulted inremegase in rental and other operating expensesdomtinuing operations. Partly offsetting
these increases was a decrease in rental andop@eating expenses from continuing operations gp@rties sold in 2003 and 2002 that were
not accounted for as discontinued operations.

Rental and other operating expenses as a percesftagietal and other revenue increased from 32 &@%he year ended December 31,
2002 to 35.4% for the year ended December 31, Z0@3increase was a result of the increases ialrantl other operating expenses as
described above and a decrease in rental and rethemues, primarily due to lower average occupaasylescribed above.

Excluding the effects of property acquisitions @mpwsitions, we expect property and other operatikpgenses to increase slightly in
2004 due to inflationary increases along with iases in certain fixed operating expenses that tlwarg with occupancy such as real estate
taxes and utility rate changes.

The increase in depreciation and amortization foomtinuing operations in 2003 related to $14.0iomilin depreciation from buildings,
leasing commissions and tenant improvement expaeditfor properties placed in-service during 200@ $4.5 million from the write-off of
deferred leasing costs and tenant improvementsustomers who vacated their space prior to leagiation. Partly offsetting these increa
was a decrease in depreciation and amortization f@ntinuing operations of properties sold in 28688 2002 that were not accounted for as
discontinued operations.

Because there were no properties held for useindiicators of impairment and with carrying valueeading the sum of their
undiscounted future cash flows, no impairment lessted to properties held for use was recognizeihd the year ended December 31,
2003. For the year ended December 31, 2002, thaiimpnt loss on properties held for use with ayéagrvalue exceeding the sum of their
undiscounted future cash flows was $0.8 million. &&» recognized a $9.1 million impairment lossated to one office property, which ha
carrying value in excess of the sum of the properdpdiscounted future cash flows, that has beemotished and may be redeveloped into a
class A suburban office property in the future.

General and administrative expenses, net of amaapitalized, decreased $0.9 million for the yeatezl December 31, 2003 compa
to the year ended December 31, 2002. The decreasered because 2002 included $3.7 million of simgfion expense related to option
exercises; there was no corresponding expensediB. Abis decrease was offset by a decrease in @0&&pitalization of certain general and
administrative costs due to the decrease in demeopand leasing activity, an increase in long-teroentive compensation expense as a
result of the issuance of restricted and phantarksiuring 2003 and 2002, and higher expensestketatemployee compensation from
normal salary increases.

We accrued $2.7 million in the year ended Decer8lie2002 for litigation expense related to variagal proceedings from previously
completed mergers and acquisitions. These claims fudly paid and settled by early 2003.

In 2004, general and administrative expenses greatad to increase significantly due to inflatigneacreases in compensation, bene
and other expenses related to the implementatitimeoBarbanes-Oxley Act, costs
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associated with the retirement package for our {dE»ecutive Officer, professional fees and othestsaelated to consideration of a strategic
transaction that were incurred largely in the thjudirter 2004, and professional fees and othes cekstted to the restatement of the
Company’s financial statements.

I nterest Expense

Contractual interest expense increased by $0.5omith 2003. As a result of decreased developmetitity in 2003, capitalized interest
decreased from $7.0 million for the year ended D 31, 2002 to $1.2 million for the year endedé&meber 31, 2003, resulting in an
increase in interest expense from continuing operatn 2003. Offsetting this increase was a deséa interest caused by a decrease of
approximately $95 million in the average outstagdiebt balances in 2003 compared to 2002, andraaeein average interest rates from
6.5% in 2002 to 6.4% in 2003.

Interest expense for the years ended Decembei08B, &hd 2002 included $4.4 million and $3.4 millieespectively, of amortization
deferred financing costs.

Interest expense on financing obligations incredse$5.2 million in 2003 — see Note 3 to the Coitledkd Financial Statements for
additional information on our financing transacto®f the total $5.2 million increase, $4.6 millioacurred because 2002 only included a
partial year of interest expense on financing atl@ns from the Harborview and Eastshore transastighich closed in September 2002 and
in November 2002, respectively. The remainder efititrease relates to interest on the MG-HIW Onafitancing transaction.

Total interest expense is expected to decline 01 3@imarily due to (1) the December 1, 2003 refiiag of certain londgerm debt witt
new borrowings that have lower interest ratesti{&)June 2004 refinancing of the Put Option Notilk lorrowings on the Company’s
Revolving Loan which currently has lower floatiraje interest, (3) purchase of our partner’s intérethe Orlando City Group properties in
MG-HIW, LLC in March 2004 which eliminated interes the $62.5 million financing obligation, and &lling a 60.0% interest in these
Orlando properties in June 2004 into a joint vem@amd the resultant elimination of interest from thlated $136.2 million of secured debt.
These transactions are discussed in the footnotie tConsolidated Financial Statements.

Other Income/Expense

The decrease in interest and other income in 20@8irnarily related to the collection of a legattlenent amounting to $1.6 million
recorded as other income in the year ended Dece®ih@002 related to previously completed mergedsaxquisitions offset by a decreas
interest income due to the collection of notesixad®e during the years ended December 31, 2002668 and lower interest rates earnet
cash reserves.

Loss on debt extinguishments increased $14.2 miffiom 2002 to 2003 due primarily to the $14.7 ioillloss recorded in early 2003
related to the MOPPRS debt retirement transactiseribed in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financiatedhents.

In July 2003, we acquired our partner’s intereshinMG-HIW, LLC non©rlando City Group properties and recognized a3 dllion
gain upon settlement of the $44.5 million co-veatabligation that was recorded on our books. Asrilesd in Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, the non-Orlando City Growgperties in MG-HIW, LLC were accounted for as afppigharing arrangement.

Gains on Disposition of Property; Co-venture Expense; Minority I nterest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

In 2003, gain on disposition of properties was cosgal of a (1) $8.7 million net gain related pritato the disposition of
approximately 1.0 million square feet of office pesties that did not meet certain conditions telbassified as discontinued operations, (2)
$3.8 million net gain related to the dispositiorl68.5 acres of land, which includes a gain of apipnately $1.0 million related to the
condemnation of 4.0 acres of land and an impairrdeestof $0.5 million related to three land pardedd for sale at December 31, 2003, and
(3) a $0.2 million impairment loss on depreciahlegerties. In 2002, gain on disposition of propertivas comprised of a $15.5 million net
gain related to the disposition of 533,263 squaet 6f office properties, that did not meet certainditions to be classified as discontinued
operations, and a $7.2 million net gain relatetheodisposition of 112.7 acres of land.
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Co-venture expense relates to the operations diltheHIW, LLC non-Orlando City Group properties aoced for as a profit-sharing
arrangement, as more fully described in Note BitoGonsolidated Financial Statements. The dece&21 million in coventure expense
2003 is largely due to our acquisition of our partainterest in the non-Orlando City Group progsrin July 2003 and the resultant
elimination of recording co-venture expense asaf tate.

Minority interest in the continuing operations inee of the Operating Partnership, after preferrathpaship unit distributions,
decreased from $4.4 million in 2002 to $0.8 milliar2003 because of a corresponding reductiongérCtherating Partnership’s income from
continuing operations.

The decrease in equity in earnings from contingipgrations of unconsolidated affiliates was pritgaairesult of lower occupancy in
2003 for certain joint ventures. Partly offsettihgs decrease was an increase of $0.5 million uitgdn earnings in 2003 related to a charge
taken by a certain joint venture in 2002 relatedricearly extinguishment of debt loss resulting otecrease in equity in earnings of $0.3
million in 2002 and an increase in equity in eagsim 2003 of $0.2 million as a result of a gaicognized by a certain joint venture relate:
the disposition of land in 2003.

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classifiedimedme of $10.9 million and $20.7 million, net ofrmarity interest, as discontinued
operations for the year ended December 31, 2002@08, respectively. These amounts pertained ton#li®n square feet of property, four
apartment units and 122.8 acres of revenue-produaird sold during 2002 and 2003 and 274,744 sdfeetef property and 88 apartment
units held for sale at December 31, 2003. Thesauatadnclude gain on the sale of these propentieispf impairment charges related to
discontinued operations, of $8.5 million and $rhiBion, net of minority interest, in 2003 and 2Q08spectively.

Preferred Stock Dividends
We recorded $30.9 million in Preferred Stock divide in each of the years ended December 31, 2G03G02.

Net Income

We recorded net income in 2003 of $48.0 millionjahhwas a 41.4% decrease from net income of $8dll@min 2002, primarily due
to a decrease in rental revenues as a result @rloacupancy and the bankruptcies of WorldCom a8d\ways, the effects on continuing
and discontinued operations from being a net sell@003 and 2002 of operating properties undercapital recycling plan, an increase in
interest expense and increased loss on debt eigimgants in 2003. These decreases were offsetebguathtribution of development proper
placed in service during 2003 and by the gain dtheseent of the co-venture obligation related te MG-HIW, LLC non-Orlando properties.
In 2004, we expect net income to be lower as coatpatith 2003 due to flat average occupancy andspreson rental rates, higher
depreciation and amortization, higher property apeg costs, loss on extinguishment of the Exebdés®ut Option Notes on June 15, 2004,
and higher general and administrative costs (inofydosts associated with our CEQ's retirement pgek professional fees and other costs
related to consideration of a strategic transadiwh professional fees and other costs relatduketoestatement of our financial statements),
which amounts should be offset by lower interegtegse and settlement of our bankruptcy claim agsimldCom as more fully described
Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Comparison of 2002 to 2001

The following table sets forth information regagliour restated results of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2002 and 200

in millions):

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of assets held for L
General and administratiy
Litigation expenst

Total operating expens

Interest expense
Contractua
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligation

Other income/expense
Interest and other incon
Loss on debt extinguishmer

Income before disposition of property, co-venturexense, minority interest and equity
in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on disposition of property, r
Ca-venture expens
Minority interest in the Operating Partners
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operation
Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriteresi
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomitiy interest

Net income
Dividends on preferred stot
Excess of preferred stock carrying value over refpase valu

Net income available for common stockholder

Rental and Other Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

2002
to 2001 % of
2002 2001 $ Change  Change
$ 5217 $ 535. $(13.7) (2.6%
169.5 169.1 0.4 0.2
140.¢ 127.¢ 13.2 10.2
9.¢ — 9.¢ 100.C
26.2 23.4 2.8 12.C
2.7 — 2.7 100.C
349.1 320.1 29.C 9.1
119.C 118.¢ 01 (0.2
3.4 4.0 (0.6 (15.0
12.t 11.¢€ 0.€ 5.C
134.¢ 134.¢ 01 (0.
7.7 14.C (6.3 (45.0
(0.49) (0.7) 02 (429
7.3 13.: (6.0 (45.1)
45.C 93.6  (48.9) (52.0)
22.7 21.¢ 0.8 3.7
7.7 6.8 (0.5 13z
(4.4) (10.€) 6.4 (59.9
5.6 7.E (1.9 (25.9
61.2 105.6  (44.4) (42.0)
9.1 11.€ 2.7 (229
11.€ — 11.€ 100.C
20.7 11.€ 8.6 75.4
81.¢ 1172 (355 (30.9)
(30.9) (31.5) 06 (19
— 1.C (1.0 (100.0
$ 510 $ 86¢ $(359 (4LIY%

The decrease in rental and other revenues frominzimg operations was primarily due to a decreasg/erage occupancy rates in our
Wholly Owned Properties from 91.8% for the yearesh®ecember 31, 2001 to 86.4% for the year endegébker 31, 2002. The average
occupancy decreased primarily due to tenant rotlane early lease terminations at various propertieere vacant space was not re-leased
due to the lack of demand for office space couplid an increasing supply of competitive space.ibgi2002, approximately 2.0 million
square feet of development properties were platagivice that leased-up slower than expectedamd,result, have also adversely affected
the occupancy of our overall portfolio. Rental antlder revenues also decreased due to (1) the impditpositions during 2002 and 2001
that were not classified as discontinued operati®)sa $3.1 million write off of straight line r&al income in 2002 related to the bankruptcy
of WorldCom; and (3) a decrease in leasing andIdpugent fee income in 2002. Partly offsetting thédsereases was an increase in recovery
income from certain operating expenses in 2002amidicrease in lease termination fees in 2002.
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During the year ended December 31, 2002, 840 segeneration leases representing 5.6 million sqiesreof office, industrial and
retail space were executed at an average rateparesfoot on a GAAP basis that was 5.5% lower tharaverage rate per square foot on the
expired leases.

Operating Expenses

The increase in rental and other operating expensescontinuing operations (real estate taxedtias, insurance, repairs and
maintenance and other property-related expensesaply resulted from (1) general inflationary ieases particularly salaries, benefits,
utility costs, real estate taxes and insurance(2nthe fact that certain fixed operating expergsegaot vary with net changes in our occupa
percentages, such as real estate taxes, insurade#ility rate changes. In addition, we had 3.8iam square feet of development properties
placed in service during 2002 and 2001 that redultex $3.4 million increase in rental and otheemping expenses from continuing
operations. Partly offsetting these increases widexeease due to the impact of the dispositionsig@002 and 2001 that were not classified
as discontinued operations.

The increase in depreciation and amortization foomtinuing operations was due to an increase irr@@ation related to leasing
commissions and tenant improvement expendituregriggerties placed in-service during 2001 and 20@2the write-off of $5.8 million of
deferred leasing costs primarily related to thedsaejected by WorldCom at December 31, 2002.€Tineseases were partially offset by a
decrease in depreciation for properties disposetlinhg 2002 and 2001 that are not classified ssoditinued operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the impatrioss on properties held for use with a carryiafiie exceeding the sum of their
undiscounted future cash flows was $0.8 million. &&» recognized a $9.1 million impairment lossted to one office property, which ha
carrying value in excess of the sum of the propedpdiscounted future cash flows, that has beamotished and may be redeveloped into a
class A suburban office property in the future. fEh@ere no impairments on assets held for usededdn 2001.

General and administrative expenses, net of amaapitalized, increased $2.8 million in 2002. Irm#d in general and administrative
expenses in 2002 was a compensation charge ofi$iBian related to the exercise of options compaie81.2 million for such option
expense in 2001. Such exercises were recordedhgsecsation expense under FASB Interpretation N@-Aecounting For Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Options, An Interptieta of APB Opinion No. 25") as described in Nottb the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

We accrued $2.7 million in the year ended Decer8lie2002 for litigation expense related to variagal proceedings from previously
completed mergers and acquisitions. These claims fudly paid and settled in early 2003.

Interest Expense

Contractual interest expense increased by $0.lomilfom 2001 to 2002. This net increase resultethfa decrease in average interest
rates from 7.2% in 2001 to 6.5% in 2002, offse{bya decrease in capitalized interest from $1618om in 2001 to $7.0 million in 2002,
which increased interest expense from continuirgragons by $9.9 million and (2) an increase ingherage outstanding debt balances of
approximately $21.3 million in 2002 compared to 200

Interest expense on financing obligations incredmsefl0.6 million in 2002 — see Note 3 to the Coitleded Financial Statements for
additional information on real estate sales thatacounted for as financing transactions.
Other Income/Expense

The decrease in interest and other income fromimging operations primarily resulted from a deceesinterest income in the year
ended December 31, 2002 due to the collection Esu@ceivable during 2001 and 2002. Partly offsgthis decrease is a legal settlement
amounting to $1.6 million recorded as other incam2002.
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Gain on Disposition of Property; Co-venture Expense; Minority I nterest; Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

In 2002, gain on disposition of properties was cosgal of a $15.5 million net gain related to thepdisition of 533,263 square feet of
office properties, that did not meet certain caonds to be classified as discontinued operatiomlsaaf7.2 million net gain related to the
disposition of 112.7 acres of land. In 2001, gaird@sposition of properties was comprised of a $1illion net gain related to the disposit
of 1,672 apartment units and from other propertgssand a $4.7 million net gain related to thedsition of 180.3 acres of land.

Co-venture expense relates to the operations d¥itheHIW, LLC non-Orlando City Group properties acoted for as a profit-sharing
arrangement, as more fully described in Note &i¢oGonsolidated Financial Statements. The incri@aseventure expense is due to a dec
in interest rates from 2001 to 2002, which increabe net operating income of the non-Orlando Gitgup properties, 80.0% of which is
reflected as co-venture expense. Slightly offsgttitis increase is the decrease in base rentesuli of two tenants in the non-Orlando City
Group properties vacating space mid-year in 2002.

Minority interest in the continuing operations inee of the Operating Partnership, after preferrathpaship unit distributions,
decreased from $10.8 million in 2001 to $4.4 millia 2002 because of a corresponding reductiohérperating Partnership’s income from
continuing operations.

The decrease in equity in earnings of unconsolitlatéiliates was primarily a result of lower legsemination fees and lower property
operating expense reimbursements in 2002. The aseia earnings was partly offset by lower inteexgtense incurred during 2002 as a
result of lower weighted average borrowing rates @rnings from certain joint ventures formed witirelated investors during 2002.

Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we classifiedimetme of $20.7 million and $11.8 million, net ofrmarity interest, as discontinued
operations for the years ended December 31, 2002@®011, respectively, which pertained to 2.3 millsguare feet of property, four
apartment units and 122.8 acres of revenue-produaird sold during 2002 and 2003 and 274,744 scfeeteof property and 88 apartment
units held for sale at December 31, 2003. Includdtle 2002 amounts was a gain on the sale of thegeerties of $15.2 million, net of
minority interest, offset by impairment charges$df6 million, net of minority interest.

Preferred Stock Dividends and Repurchases

We recorded $30.9 million and $31.5 million in Fmeéd Stock dividends in the years ended Decenthe2@®?2 and 2001, respectively.
The decrease resulted from the Company’s repurabfe®20.1 million of its Preferred Stock at carryimalue during 2001 for total cash
consideration of $18.5 million. This repurchase werded in accordance with Emerging Issues TaséeFTopic D-42, “The Effect on
Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemptiolnduced Conversion of Preferred Stock.” Assult, in 2001, we classified the excess
of the carrying value of the Preferred Stock, rfiéssuance costs, over the repurchase value ascegase in the income available to common
stockholders. There were no Preferred Stock reagieshin 2002.

Net Income

We recorded net income in 2002 of $81.9 millionjchhwas a 30.2% decrease from net income of $1hilibn in 2001, primarily due
to a decrease in rental revenues as a result @rloecupancy and the bankruptcies of WorldCom aBdAUways, the net effects on
continuing and discontinued operations from beimgiaseller in 2002 of operating properties underaapital recycling plan, an increase in
rental property operating expenses, an increadepneciation and amortization and a decrease m@athe disposition of land and
depreciable assets.
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L 1QuibITY AND C APITAL R ESOURCES

Statement of Cash Flows

As required by GAAP, we report and analyze our dbsis based on operating activities, investingwitis and financing activities.
The following table sets forth the changes in tlen@any’s restated cash flows from 2002 to 2003 ¢ghousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 Change
Cash Provided by Operating Activiti $160,920 $214,56( $(53,645
Cash Provided by Investing Activitit 124,16« 121,16 2,997
Cash Used in Financing Activiti¢ (279,33)  (323,11) 43,78:
Total Cash Flow: $ 5758 $ 12,62: $ (6,867)

In calculating cash flow from operating activiti€AAP requires us to add depreciation and amoitizatvhich are non-cash expenses,
back to net income. As a result, we have histdsicggnerated a significant positive amount of casn operating activities. From period to
period, cash flow from operations depends primarggn changes in our net income, as discussed fulbrebove under “Results of
Operations,” changes in receivables and payabsi@nadditions or decreases in our overall padfevhich affect the amount of
depreciation and amortization expense.

Cash provided by or used in investing activitiesegally relates to capitalized costs incurred &arsing and major building
improvements and our acquisition, development,adigipn and joint venture activity. During periodfssignificant net acquisition and/or
development activity, our cash used in such inmgsdictivities will generally exceed cash providgdrivesting activities, which typically
would consist of cash received upon the sale gigntées or distributions from our joint venturesuring 2003 and 2002, since our disposition
and joint venture activity slightly outpaced ougaisition activity, we recorded positive cash flitnem investing activities in both years.

Cash used in financing activities generally relatestockholder dividends, incurrence and repayroédebt and sales or repurchases of
Common Stock and Preferred Stock. As discussedqugly, we use a significant amount of our casfutal stockholder dividends. Whether
or not we incur significant new debt during a péritepends generally upon the net effect of ouriaitgpn, disposition, development and
joint venture activity. We use our Revolving Loam Working capital purposes, which means that duany given period, in order
minimize interest expense associated with balaoagetanding under the Revolving Loan, we will likeécord significant repayments and
borrowings under the Revolving Loan.

The decrease of $53.6 million in cash provided pgrating activities was primarily a result of lowest income due to the disposition
certain properties under our capital recycling pang a decrease in average occupancy rates favimlly owned portfolio and the
bankruptcies of WorldCom and US Airways. In additithe level of net cash provided by operatingvéitats is affected by the timing of
receipt of revenues and payment of expenses.

The increase of $3.0 million in cash provided byeisting activities was primarily a result of anrigase in proceeds from disposition:s
real estate assets of approximately $10.1 mili@mtly offset by a decrease in distributions/repagta from unconsolidated affiliates of
approximately $3.6 million and a decrease in inwgstits in notes receivable of approximately $2.9ionilfor the year ended December 31,
2003.

The decrease of $43.8 million in cash used in franactivities was primarily a result of a deceea$ $115.1 million in net repayments
on the unsecured Revolving Loan, mortgages andmagable and a decrease of $29.4 million in distions paid on Common Stock and
Common Units for the year ended December 31, ZDBB.decrease was partly offset by an increasd 4f/million for the repurchase of
Common Stock and Common Units, a decrease of $4illiadn in borrowings on the financing obligatiotihe payment of $26.2 million on t
co-venture obligation and payments on extinguishtroédebt of $16.3 million related to the MOPPRS8m@ncing for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

In 2004, we expect to continue our capital recyglimogram of selectively disposing of non-core gnbies or other properties in order
to use the net proceeds for investments or othgroges. At December 31, 2003, we had
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0.44 million square feet of properties, 88 apartmarits and 168.1 acres of land under letter arihbr contract for sale in various
transactions with a carrying value of $65.7 millidimese transactions are subject to customaryngjainditions, including due diligence and
documentation, and are expected to close during.280wever, we can provide no assurance thatedlettransactions will be consummated.
As of September 2004, we have closed on some sétlansactions consisting of 169,962 square fg@operties and 67.4 acres of land.

During 2004, we expect to have positive cash flénm operating activities. The net cash flows frmwesting activities in 2004 could
be positive or negative, depending on the leveltanohg of property dispositions, property acquis, development, and capitalized leasing
and improvement costs. Any positive cash flows fiagerating and investing activities in 2004 areested to be used to pay stockholder and
unitholder distributions, required debt amortizatand recurring capital expenditures.

Capitalization
The following table sets forth our capitalizatichaf December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 dunsdnds, except per share
amounts):

December 31 December 31

2003 2002
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book $1,717,76!  $1,793,76!
Financing obligation $ 124,060 $ 121,01
Cc-venture obligation — 43,51
Preferred stock, at redemption va $ 377,441 $ 377,44
Common Stock and Common Units outstanc 59,677 60,37t
Per share stock price at period ¢ $ 254 $ 221
Market value of common equi 1,515,79! 1,334,28:
Total market capitalization with de $3,735,06i $3,670,01!

Based on our total market capitalization of appreagely $3.7 billion at December 31, 2003 (at theddeber 31, 2003 per share stock
price of $25.40 and assuming the redemption foreshaf Common Stock of the 6.2 million Common Umitshe Operating Partnership not
owned by the Company), our mortgages and notesbpmyapresented approximately 46.0% of our totaketacapitalization. Mortgages and
notes payable at December 31, 2003 was compris$88#.8 million of secured indebtedness with a Wieid average interest rate of 6.3%
and $735.0 million of unsecured indebtedness witle@hted average interest rate of 6.2%. As of Ddasr 31, 2003, our outstanding
mortgages and notes payable were secured by tatg @ssets with an aggregate carrying value abappately $1.6 billion.

We do not intend to reserve funds to retire exgsiacured or unsecured debt upon maturity. Forre wammplete discussion of our long-
term liquidity needs, see “Liquidity and Capitald®erces - Current and Future Cash Needs.”
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The following table sets forth a summary regarding known contractual obligations at December 8D3($ in thousands):

Amounts due during year ending December 31,

Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Fixed Rate Debt:®
Unsecured
Put Option Note®) $ 100,00 $10000( ¢ — $ — $ — & — & —
Notes 460,00( — — 110,00( — 100,00 250,00(
Secured:
Mortgage Loans Payabfe 777,84¢ 12,87 81,447 19,36: 79,47¢ 14,34! 570,35(
Total Fixed Rate Det 1,337,84! 112,87. 81,447 129,36: 79,47¢ 114,34! 820,35(
Variable Rate Debt:
Unsecured:
Term Loan 120,00( — 120,00( — — — —
Revolving Loar 55,00( — — 55,00( — — —
Secured:
Mortgage Loans Payabfe 204,91t 23t 27¢ 201,17 3,221 — —
Total Variable Rate Det 379,91t 23t 120,27¢ 256,17! 3,221 — —
Total Long Term Debt 1,717,76! 113,10¢ 201,72t 385,537 82,70: 114,34 820,35(
Operating Lease Obligations:
Land Leases (¢ 48,90¢ 1,26¢ 1,27z 1,21: 1,194 1,19¢ 42,76¢
Purchase Obligations:
MG-HIW, LLC Letter of Credit*-® 7,50( 7,50( — — — — —
MG-HIW Metrowest | and I, LLC% 3,20( 3,20C — — — — —
Completion Contract$ 18,20¢ 18,20« — — — — _
Other Long Term Liabilities Reflected on the Balane Sheet:
Plaza Colonade Debt Repayment Guararttee 2,46¢ — — 2,46¢ — — —
Plaza Colonnade Completion Guarant8e 37¢€ — 37¢€ — — — —
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP Lease Guaraftte 85E — — — — 85& —
Capital One Lease Guarantée 3,13¢ 1,73¢ — 334 36¢ 37¢ 321
Industrial Portfolio Lease Guarantée 2,347 85( 991 50€ — — —
MG-HIW, LLC Financing Obligatior”) 60,99 60,99 — — — — —
SF-HIW Harborview Financing Obligatidh 13,56¢ — — — — — 13,56¢
Eastshore Financing Obligatiéh 28,87: — — — 28,87: — —
Tax Increment Financing Obligatid 20,63: 687 77t 863 913 97€¢  16,41¢
DLF Note Payablé 3,28( 187 21€ 25C 28€ 32t 2,01¢€
Total $1,932,10: $207,72¢ $205,35 $391,17. $114,33¢ $118,07: $895,43!

@  The Operating Partnership’s unsecured notes of $560lion bear interest at rates ranging from 7 @98.125% with interest payable
semi-annually in arrears. Any premium and discoalsted to the issuance of the unsecured notesthegwith other issuance costs, is
being amortized over the life of the respectiveesas an adjustment to interest expense. All ofitisecured notes, except for the Put
Option Notes, are redeemable at any time priordtunity at our option, subject to certain condiiancluding the payment of make-
whole amounts. Our fixed rate mortgage loans gdlgeaee either locked out to prepayment for albgportion of their term or are pre-
payable subject to certain conditions includingopsenent penaltie:

@  See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statemaifitsough not contractually due, the Put Optiontésowere retired in June 2004.

@  The mortgage loans payable were secured by resbesmisets with an aggregate carrying value obappately $1.6 billion at
December 31, 200:

@  See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statesnent
) This letter of credit was terminated in March 2004.

These liabilities represent gains that were defeimeaccordance with SFAS No. 66 when we sold tipesperties to third parties. We



©® defer gains on sales of real estate up to our maximxposure to contingent loss. See Note 15 t€tresolidated Financial Statements.

(m  These liabilities represent our financing obligatto either our partner in the respective jointtues or the third party buyer as a result
of accounting for these transactions as a finanamgngement. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Fisa®t@atements
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® In connection with Tax Increment Financing for douastion of a public garage related to an officéding constructed by us, we are
obligated to pay fixed special assessments overyear period. The net present value of these sisgergs, discounted at 6.93%, is
shown as a Financing Obligation in the Balance SWge also receive special tax revenues and pipfextrebates which are intended,
but not guaranteed, to provide funds to pay theiapassessment

©  Represents a fixed obligation which we owe ourrmarin Highwoods DLF 98/29, LP. This amount arasenfan excess contribution
from our partner at the formation of the joint wanet See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Siarés.

Refinancings in 2003

On February 2, 1998, the Company (through the Qipgr&artnership) sold $125.0 million of Mandat@gr Put Remarketed Securit
(“MOPPRS") which were originally expected to matore February 1, 2013. The fixed interest rate w88® through January 31, 2003,
and would be reset at that date at 5.715% pluseadms determined under the terms of the MOPRR&irinection with the original
issuance, the Company granted a remarketing ofiiione of the underwriters for the MOPPRS, the ictamation for which was reflected in
the premium price of the bonds and aggregated@lidn. This consideration was deferred and inelddn deferred financing cost and was
amortized to income over the term of the MOPPR djtion, if exercised, allowed the option holdepurchase the MOPPRS on January
31, 2003 from the holders for $125.0 million andrthesell the MOPPRS in a new offering to new itmssat the reset interest rate (5.715%
plus the spread). If the option holder did not eiser the option, the Company would be requireépurchase the MOPPRS for $125.0
million plus any accrued interest. The Company &bt a one-time right to redeem the MOPPRS fronoftien holder on January 31, 2003
for $125.0 million plus the then present valuehaf temarketing option.

On January 28, 2003, the Company, the option hptdet an intermediary entered into an agreemergrumtich the option holder
agreed to exercise its option to acquire the MOPBR3anuary 31, 2003 and the intermediary agreaddaire the MOPPRS from the option
holder for $142.7 million. The intermediary and tbempany also agreed to exchange the MOPPRS foQuempany debt instruments in the
future, subject to certain terms and conditionse MOPPRS transaction between the option holdetlaéhtermediary occurred on January
31, 2003 and the interest rate on the MOPPRS veas at 8.975%. On February 4, 2003, a new $142I®mmortgage loan with a third
party, secured by 24 of the Company’s properties executed; this loan bears a fixed interestofa®e03% and matures in February 2013.
The intermediary received the proceeds from the mentgage loan, and the mortgage loan and the MGRR&te then exchanged between
the Company and the intermediary. The Company iteeéred the MOPPRS. The retirement of the MOPPRShie®n accounted for as an
extinguishment (See Note 18 to the Consolidatedrgial Statements). Accordingly, $14.7 million veasrged to loss on extinguishment of
debt in the quarter ended March 31, 2003.

On July 17, 2003, we amended and restated ouiirexigtvolving loan. The amended and restated $2%fl®n revolving loan (the
“Revolving Loan”) is from a group of nine lendemtda, matures in July 2006 and replaces our prev#809.0 million revolving loan. The
Revolving Loan carries an interest rate based wporsenior unsecured credit ratings. As a resutiérést currently accrues on borrowings
under the Revolving Loan at a rate of LIBOR plu$ b@sis points. The terms of the Revolving Loamirqus to pay an annual facility fee
equal to .25% of the aggregate amount of the R&wplvoan. We currently have a credit rating of BBsigned by Standard & Poor’s and
Fitch Inc. In August 2003, Moody’s Investor Serva@vngraded our credit rating from Baa3 to Bal.d&lenot provide any assurances that
Moody'’s or the other rating agencies will not fuattthange our credit ratings. If Standard and RoarrFitch Inc. were to lower our credit
ratings without a corresponding increase by Moodyis interest rate on borrowings under our Rewgj\tioan would be automatically
increased by 60 basis points.

On December 1, 2003, $146.5 million of our 8.0%d¢aind $100.0 million of our 6.75% Notes matured.réfinanced $127.5 million
with 10-year secured debt at an effective rate 26%. $100.0 million was refinanced with a two-yaasecured term loan with a floating rate
initially set at 1.3% over LIBOR. The balance, ding$19.0 million, was repaid using funds from &evolving Loan.

Refinancings in 2004

In 1997, a trust formed by the Operating Partnersbid $100.0 million of Exercisable Put Option &#ees due June 15, 2004 (“X-
POS”). The assets of the trust consisted of, anotimgy things, $100.0 million of
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Exercisable Put Option Notes due June 15, 2011“‘RbeOption Notes”), issued by the Operating Penghip. The Put Option Notes bore an
interest rate of 7.19% from the date of issuanoautijh June 15, 2004. In connection with the inisaliance of the Put Option Notes, a
counter party was granted an option to purchas@th@®ption Notes from the trust on June 15, 2QQDA.0% of the principal amount. The
counter party exercised this option and acquiredriit Option Notes on June 15, 2004. On that sat®e the Company exercised its optio
acquire the Put Option Notes from the counter pfantya purchase price equal to the sum of the ptesdue of the remaining scheduled
payments of principal and interest (assuming aer@st rate of 6.39%) on the Put Option Notes, 28 million. The difference between the
$112.3 million and the $100.0 million was chargedbss on extinguishment of debt in the quartereentune 30, 2004. The Company
borrowed funds from its Revolving Loan to make $#d.2.3 million payment.

In late June 2004, we repaid $51.0 million of theréased borrowing under our Revolving Loan witbcpeds from the sale of a 60.0%
interest in five office buildings in Orlando, Fldd and from the sale of a building at HighwoodssEree in Tampa, Florida. See Notes 3 a
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for furtietails of these asset sales.

Operating and Financial Covenants and Performance Btios

The terms of the $250 million Revolving Loan, tHe2® million bank term loans and the indenture gaaterns our outstanding notes
require us to comply with certain operating andficial covenants and performance ratios. We aremily in compliance with all such
requirements. Although we expect to remain in coamgle with the covenants and ratios under our Ré@wplLoan, bank term loans and
indenture for the foreseeable future, dependinghupo future operating performance and propertyfarahcing transactions, we cannot
assure you that we will continue to be in complanc

If we fail to comply with these financial ratiosdanther covenants (see below) and such conditi@re wot waived by the lending
banks, we would be unable to borrow any further am®under the Revolving Loan, which could adverséflect our ability to fund our
operations, and our lenders could accelerate aotyadgstanding under our Revolving Loan, bank terams or our indenture. If our debt
cannot be paid, refinanced or extended at matunitgddition to our failure to repay our debt, waymot be able to make distributions to
stockholders at expected levels or at all. Furtloeemif any refinancing is done at higher interases, the increased interest expense could
adversely affect our cash flows and ability to melatributions to stockholders. Any such refinagcoould also impose tighter financial
ratios and other covenants that could restrictadility to take actions that could otherwise beium stockholders’ best interest, such as
funding new development activity, making opportticiacquisitions, repurchasing our securities ofigdistributions.

The following table sets forth more detailed infation about the Company’s ratio and covenant canpé under the Revolving Loan
and the bank term loans, which have identical camés as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. Certdlmest definitions (including the
covenants regarding non-GAAP financial measureb as@EBITDA, Cash Available for Distribution (“CADand adjusted NOI) may differ
from similar terms used in the accompanying Codsdéid Financial Statements and may, for examplesider our proportionate share of
investments in unconsolidated affiliates. For aenbetailed description of the covenants in our Réwg Loan, including definitions of
certain relevant terms, see the credit agreemargrgimg our Revolving Loan, which is incorporatedrbference in this amended Annual
Report as Exhibit 10.13.

2003
Total Liabilities Less Than or Equal to 57.5% oftdloAsset: 53.8%
Unencumbered Assets Greater Than or Equal to Ztismsecured Del 2.2%
Secured Debt Less Than or Equal to 35% of Totakts 28.1%
Adjusted EBITDA Greater Than 2.10 times Interespé&nse? 2.1C
Adjusted EBITDA Greater Than 1.55 times Fixed Cleaf§ 1.5
Adjusted NOI Unencumbered Assets Greater Thanth#s Interest on Unsecured Di 2.4%
Tangible Net Worth Greater Than $1.574 Billi $1.6 billion
Restricted Payments, including distributions torehalders, Less Than or Equal to 95% of

CAD 72.2%

@ A waiver was obtained with respect to this covena@ctober 2004 as described below:
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In March 2004, the Company amended its RevolvingrLand the two bank term loans. The changes mddiéetain definitions used
all three loans to determine amounts that are tesedmpute financial covenants and also adjustedobthe financial ratio covenants.

In June 2004, the Company further amended its RegLoan and the two bank term loans. The chaegekided the $12.3 million
charge taken related to the retirement of the X-Bo@ the calculations used to compute financialecants.

In August 2004, the Company further amended itsolRévg Loan and two bank term loans. The changetueed the effects of
accounting for three sales transactions as fingramnd/or profit sharing arrangements under SFASG8pas described in Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, from the calimra used to compute financial covenants, adjustedfinancial covenant and tempora
adjusted a second financial covenant until thaexasf December 31, 2004 or the period when the @y can record income from the
settlement of a claim against WorldCom (see Not&é2@e Consolidated Financial Statements).

In early October 2004, the Company obtained a wdioen the lenders of the Company’s Revolving Laad two bank term loans for
certain covenant violations caused by the effextss restated basis, of the loss on debt extinguésih from the MOPPRS transaction in early
2003, as described in Notes 5 and 18 to the Calegeli Financial Statements.

The aforementioned modifications did not changeettenomic terms of the loans. In connection wigssthmodifications, the Company
incurred certain loan costs that are capitalizetlamortized over the remaining term of the loans.

The following table sets forth more detailed infation about the Operating Partnership’s ratio angnant compliance under the
Operating Partnership’s indenture as of DecembgP@03 and 2002. Certain of these definitions méfgrdfrom similar terms used in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and may, for @l@nsonsider our proportionate share of investsy@ntinconsolidated affiliates. For a
more detailed discussion of the covenants in aderiture, including definitions of certain relevéanms, see the indenture governing our
unsecured notes, which is incorporated by referentds amended Annual Report as Exhibit 4.2.

2003 2002
Overall Debt Less Than or Equal to 60% of Adjustethal Asset: 42.2% 42.2%
Secured Debt Less Than or Equal to 40% of AdjuStedl Asset: 24.2% 18.5%
Income Available for Debt Service Greater Than %iB®&s Annual Service Chart 2.6 2.9

Total Unencumbered Assets Greater Than 200% ofdumed Deb 333.(% 284.2%

Current and Future Cash Needs

Historically, rental revenue has been the princgmalrce of funds to meet our short-term liquidéguirements, which primarily consist
of operating expenses, debt service, stockholdédetids, any guarantee obligations and recurripitalaexpenditures. In addition,
construction management, maintenance, leasing amégement fees have provided sources of cash¥Mayar capital improvement
obligations related to the existing propertiesit®fal million. In addition, we could incur tenamprovements and lease commissions related
to any releasing of space previously leased by #@win and US Airways or other vacant space.

In addition to the requirements discussed abowvesloort-term (through the end of 2004) liquiditguéements also include the funding
of approximately $9.4 million of our existing despment activity (as of the date of this filing) afirdt generation tenant improvements and
lease commissions on properties placed in-serigeare not fully leased. We expect to fund ourrtstesm liquidity requirements through a
combination of working capital, cash flows from ogtions and some or all of the following:

* borrowings under our unsecured Revolving Loan (Wias up to $47.3 million of availability as of Ober 22, 2004)
» the selective disposition of n-core assets or other ass:
» the sale or contribution of some of our Wholly Odrieroperties, development projects i
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development land to strategic joint ventures tédomed with unrelated investors, which will have tiet effect of generating
additional capital through such sale or contribsic

» the issuance of secured debt (at October 22, 2004ad approximately $2.2 billion of unencumbereal estate assets at cost);
» the issuance of new unsecured d

Our long-term liquidity needs generally include fhading of existing and future development acjivitelective asset acquisitions and
the retirement of mortgage debt, amounts outstgnaimder the Revolving Loan and long-term unsecdsdat. Our goal is to maintain a
flexible capital structure. Accordingly, we expéatmeet our long-term liquidity needs through a boration of (1) the issuance by the
Operating Partnership of additional unsecured deburrities, (2) the issuance of additional equétyusities by the Company and the
Operating Partnership as well as (3) the sourcesritbed above with respect to our shiern liquidity. We expect to use such sources tet
our long-term liquidity requirements either throudjrect payments or repayments of borrowings utitieunsecured Revolving Loan. As
mentioned above, we do not intend to reserve ftmdstire existing secured or unsecured indebtesdapsn maturity. Instead, we will seek
refinance such debt at maturity or retire such dedatugh the issuance of equity or debt securities.

We anticipate that our available cash and cashvetguits and cash flows from operating activitieghwash available from borrowings
and other sources, will be adequate to meet outatamd liquidity needs in both the short and leegn. However, if these sources of funds
are insufficient or unavailable, our ability to pdiyidends to stockholders and satisfy other cagents may be adversely affected.

Stockholder Dividends

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we mustdbute to stockholders at least 90.0% of our Rtakiable income. REIT taxable
income, the calculation of which is determined g tederal tax laws, does not necessarily equahneie under GAAP. We generally
expect to use our cash flow from operating actsifior dividends to stockholders and for paymemeofirring capital expenditures. Future
dividends will be made at the discretion of our Bbaf Directors. The following factors will affecur cash flows and, accordingly, influence
the decisions of the Board of Directors regardiividends:

» debt service requirements after taking into accoebt covenants and the repayment and restructafiogrtain indebtednes
» scheduled increases in base rents of existingde

« changes in rents attributable to the renewal dfteng leases or replacement lea:

» changes in occupancy rates at existing propentideaecution of leases for newly acquired or deyatioproperties; an

» operating expenses and capital replacement newtdisding tenant improvements and leasing ct

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has several off balance sheet joirtuverand guarantee arrangements. The joint veniuees formed with unrelated
investors to generate additional capital to funapprty acquisitions, repay outstanding debt or fatir strategic initiatives and to lessen the
ownership risks typically associated with ownin@ X% of a property. When we create a joint ventwith a strategic partner, we usually
contribute one or more properties that we own tewaly formed entity in which we retain an intere660.0% or less. In exchange for an
equal or minority interest in the joint venture, ganerally receive cash from the partner and rét@rmanagement income relating to the
properties in the joint venture. For financial repag purposes, the sales of assets we sold twfwar joint ventures are accounted for as
financing and/or profit-sharing arrangements.
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As of December 31, 2003, our unconsolidated joamttures had $574.5 million of total assets and $881llion of total liabilities. Our
weighted average equity interest based on thedstadts of these unconsolidated joint venturesd@&d$6. During 2003, these unconsolidated
joint ventures earned $11.8 million of total netame, of which our share was $5.0 million. For aenetailed discussion of o
unconsolidated joint venture activity, see Nota thie Consolidated Financial Statements.

As required by GAAP, we use the equity method ebaating for our unconsolidated joint ventures imiein we exercise significant
influence but do not control the major operating &énancial policies of the entity regarding encuaribg the entities with debt and the
acquisition or disposal of properties. As a reshk, assets and liabilities of these joint ventaresnot included on our balance sheet and the
results of operations of these joint ventures aténtluded on our income statement, other thaggagty in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates. Generally, we are not liable for théotieof our joint ventures, except to the extendwf equity investment, unless we have directly
guaranteed any of that debt. In most cases, we@radr strategic partners are required to guaracussmary limited exceptions to non-
recourse liability in non-recourse loans.

As of December 31, 2003, our unconsolidated joamtures had $375.0 million of outstanding debt. filewing table sets forth the
principal payments due on that outstanding longitéebt as recorded on the respective joint verguredks at December 31, 2003 ($ in
thousands):

Percen Amounts due during year ending December 31,
Owned
Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

Board of Trade Investment Compa 490% $ 74 $ 184 $ 19¢ $ 21t $ 152 $ — & —
Dallas County Partnef8 50.0(% 38,00( 96¢ 1,041 4,41¢ 13,33 5,76¢ 12,47¢
Dallas County Partners ® 50.00(% 22,46¢ 1,24z 1,37t 1,522 1,68¢ 1,86: 14,77¢
Fountain Thre 50.0(% 29,92 1,10¢ 1,172 1,24: 1,31¢ 6,40( 18,68
RRHWoods, LLCY 50.0(% 67,307 1,27¢ 403 431 4,241 381 60,57¢
4600 Madison Associates, | 12.5(% 16,72 711 762 81F 8732 93t 12,62¢
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LI 22.81% 67,24 1,03t 1,107 1,18¢ 1,26¢ 1,35¢ 61,29(
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L 42.97% 59,027 714 77C 831 897 96¢ 54,84¢
Highwood:«-Markel Associates, LL( 50.00% 40,00( 55¢ 643 682 722 76€ 36,62¢
MG-HIW Metrowest I, LLC 50.0(% 7,32¢ — 7,32¢ — — — —
Concourse Center Associates, L 50.0(% 9,69¢ 17¢ 18¢ 202 217 232 8,67¢
Plaza Colonnade, LL! 50.0(% 16,49¢ — — — 16,49¢ — —
Total $374,95@ $7,96¢ $14,98¢ $11,54° $41,19¢ $18,66¢ $280,58¢

@  Des Moines joint ventures.

@  All of this joint venture debt is non-recourse ®axcept (1) in the case of customary exceptiortaipéng to such matters as misuse of
funds, environmental conditions and material misgepntations and (2) those guarantees and loaosh#skin the following
paragraphs

In connection with the Des Moines joint ventures, guaranteed certain debt and the maximum potentialint of future payments that
we could be required to make under the guaranse®25.5 million. Of this amount, $8.6 million ardsem housing revenue bonds that
require credit enhancements in addition to the @stdte mortgages. The bonds bear a floating sttesite, which at December 31, 2003
averaged 1.3%, and mature in 2015. Guarantees.®Bih$iflion will expire upon two industrial buildirsgbecoming 93.8% and 95.0% leased or
when the related loans mature. As of December @13 2hese buildings were 90.0% and 64.0% leassg@ectively. The remaining $7.4
million in guarantees relate to loans on four @&fuildings that were in the lease-up phase dirtethe loans were initiated. Each of the
loans will expire by May 2008. The average occupasfche four buildings at December 31, 2003 wa9% If the joint ventures are unable
to repay the outstanding balances under the |lo@msyill be required, under the terms of the agre@s)do repay the outstanding balances.
Recourse provisions exist that enable us to recasme or all of such payments from the joint veeduassets and/or the other partners. The
joint ventures currently generate sufficient cdelwfto cover the debt service required by the lo

In connection with the RRHWoods, LLC joint ventunas renewed our guarantee of $6.2 million to a hanluly 2003; this guarantee
expires in August 2006 and may be renewed by us.bEmk provides a letter of credit securing indaktevenue bonds, which mature in
2015. We would be required to perform under theaputze should the joint venture be unable to reépayonds. We have recourse provis
in order to recover from the joint venture’s assetd the other partner for amounts paid under tiaeamtee in excess of our proportionate
share. The
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property collateralizing the bonds is 100.0% leaaed currently generates sufficient cash flow teecdghe debt service required by the bond
financing.

With respect to the Plaza Colonnade, LLC joint uestwe have included $2.8 million in other liati#s and increased our investmer
unconsolidated affiliates by $2.8 million on ounsolidated balance sheet at December 31, 200&defatwo separate guarantees of a
construction loan agreement and a construction tetiop agreement. The construction loan maturd=ioruary 2006, with two one-year
options to extend the maturity date that are camthd on completion and lease-up of the projece Trm of the construction completion
agreement requires the core and shell of the Imgjlth be completed by December 15, 2005. Currethtéybuilding is scheduled to be
completed in December 2004. Both guarantees arosethe formation of the joint venture to constrantoffice building. If the joint venture
is unable to repay the outstanding balance undecdhstruction loan agreement or complete the nget&in of the office building, we would
be required, under the terms of the agreementsptay our 50.0% share of the outstanding balanderuhe construction loan and complete
the construction of the office building. The maximpotential amount of future payments by us unkdesé¢ agreements is $34.9 million. No
recourse provisions exist that would enable ugtover from the other partner amounts paid undegttarantee. However, given that the
is collateralized by the building, we and our partoould obtain and liquidate the building to reeothe amounts paid should we be required
to perform under the guarantee.

In addition to the Plaza Colonnade, LLC constructaan and completion agreement described abogegattners have collectively
provided $12.0 million in letters of credit in Denber 2002, $6.0 million by us and $6.0 million hyr partner. We and our partner would be
held liable under the letter of credit agreemehtaifd the joint venture not complete constructibthe building. The letters of credit expire
December 31, 2004. No recourse provisions existvwbald enable us to recover from the other parémeounts drawn under the letter of
credit. The building is nearing completion and fingt tenant is expected to take occupancy in theth quarter of 2004.

In the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP joint verd, a single tenant currently leases an entirglibgi under a lease scheduled to
expire June 30, 2008. The tenant also leases gpatieer buildings owned by us. In conjunction wath overall restructuring of the tenant’s
leases with us and with this joint venture, we adr® certain changes to the lease with the jantwre in September 2003. The modificat
included allowing the tenant to terminate the lemsdanuary 1, 2006, reducing the rent obligatipB®0% and converting the “net” lease to
a “full service” lease with the tenant liable fd.6% of these costs beginning January 1, 200&@rim tve agreed to compensate the joint
venture for any economic losses incurred as atrethese lease modifications. Based on the lgaaeantee agreement, we recorded
approximately $0.9 million in other liabilities amelcorded a deferred charge of $0.9 million in 8eyiter 2003. However, should new tenants
occupy the vacated space during the two and aybalfguarantee period, our liability under the gasge would diminish. Our maximum
potential amount of future payments with regarthts guarantee is $1.1 million. No recourse pravisiexist to enable us to recover the
amounts paid to the joint venture under this lgasgantee arrangement.

On December 29, 2003, we contributed an addititak in-service office properties encompassing@apmately 290,853 rentable
square feet valued at approximately $35.6 millmthie existing Highwoods-Markel, LLC joint ventufihe joint venture’s other partner,
Markel Corporation, contributed an additional $Mlion in cash to maintain its 50.0% ownershipeirst and the joint venture borrowed and
refinanced approximately $40.0 million from a thpdrty lender. We retained our 50.0% ownershipr@stein the joint venture and received
net cash proceeds of approximately $31.9 millior. & the manager and leasing agent for the preparid receive customary management
fees and leasing commissions.

In July 2003, we entered into an option agreemét @ur partner, Miller Global, to acquire its 5&0nterest in the assets of MG-HIW
Metrowest I, LLC and MG-HIW Metrowest Il, LLC for32 million. We had previously guaranteed $3.7 iomill(50.0%) of the $7.4 million
construction loan to fund the development of thigperty, of which $7.3 million was outstanding ad@mber 31, 2003. On March 2, 2004,
we exercised our option and acquired our partris!6% equity interest in the assets of MG-HIW Metest |, LLC and MGHIW Metrowest
I, LLC for $3.2 million. The assets in MG-HIW Metwest |, LLC and MG-HIW Metrowest Il, LLC include7@832 square feet of property
and 7.0 acres of development land zoned for theldpment of 90,000 square feet of office space.#hé million construction loan to fund
the development of this property was paid in fyllus at closing.

On February 25, 2004, we and Kapital-Consult, aopean investment firm, formed Highwoods KC GlenegdgLC, which on February
26, 2004 acquired from a third party Glenridge P@iffice Park, consisting of two office
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buildings aggregating 185,000 square feet locatede Central Perimeter sub-market of Atlanta. Bhiddings are currently 91.1% occupied.
We contributed $10.0 million to the joint venturereturn for a 40.0% equity interest and Kapitah@dt contributed $14.9 million for a

60.0% equity interest in the partnership. The jogniture entered into a $16.5 million 10-year seddoan on the assets. We are the manager
and leasing agent for this property and receivéotngry management fees and leasing commissionsadduésition also includes 2.9 acre:
development land that can accommodate 150,000 esdiesetr of office space.

RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partners each dgeel a new office building in Des Moines, lowa. fume 25, 2004, the joint
ventures financed both buildings with a $7.4 millioan from a bank. As an inducement to make the &t a 6.3% lon¢erm interest rate, w
and our partner agreed to master lease the vagace sind guaranteed $1.6 million, or $0.8 milliante with limited recourse. As of June 30,
2004, the buildings are together 82.0% leasedeasithg improves, the obligations under the loar@gent diminish. As of June 30, 2004,
we recorded $1.3 million in other liabilities antl.$ million as a deferred charge on our Consoli@i&ealance Sheet with respect to this
guarantee. The maximum potential amount of futagnpents that we could be required to make undemtmster leases in place is
approximately $4.8 million. We believe that theelikood of paying on our $0.8 million guaranteeemote since the master lease payments
provide the required 1.3 debt coverage ratio amoylsl we have to pay, we would recover the $0.8anilfrom other joint venture assets.

On June 28, 2004, Kapital-Consult, a European invesst firm, bought an interest in HIW-KC Orlandd,C, an entity formed by us.
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC owns five in-service office grerties, encompassing 1.3 million rentable squeeg focated in the central business
district of Orlando, Florida which were valued unttee joint venture agreement at $212.0 milliorjuding amounts related to our guaran
described below, and which were subject to a $18fillfbn secured mortgage loan. Our partner contedd $41.4 million in cash and recei
a 60.0% equity interest in return. The joint veathorrowed $143.0 million under a tgear fixed rate mortgage loan from a third partydier
and repaid the $136.2 million loan. We retained #% equity interest in the joint venture and reedinet cash proceeds of approximately
$46.6 million of which $33.0 million was used toypdown our Revolving Loan and $13.6 million wasdise pay down another loan of ours.
In connection with this transaction, we agreeduargntee rent to the joint venture for 3,248 relstafuare feet commencing in August 2004
and expiring in April 2011. In connection with tlgsarantee, as of June 30, 2004 we included $0l®min other liabilities and reduced the
total amount of gain to be recognized by the sameuat. Additionally, we agreed to guarantee retéing costs for approximately 11% of
the joint venture’s total square footage. We reedrd $4.1 million contingent liability with respegotsuch guarantee as of June 30, 2004 and
reduced the total amount of gain to be recognizethé same amount. We believe our estimate retat#fie re-tenanting costs guarantee is
accurate. However, if our assumptions prove taberrect, future losses may occur. The contributias accounted for as a partial sale as
defined by SFAS No. 66 and we recognized a $15l8mgain in June 2004. Since we have an ongo@% financial interest in the joint
venture and since we are engaged by the joint vendyprovide management and leasing servicehéojoint venture, for which we receive
customary management fees and leasing commissianeperations of these properties will not beatfid as discontinued operations
consistent with SFAS No. 144 and the related gaisate will be included in continuing operationghie second quarter 2004.

Financing and Profit-Sharing Arrangements

The following summarizes sale transactions thatao®unted for as financing and/or profit-sharinguagements under paragraphs 25
through 29 of SFAS No. 66, as described in Note thé Consolidated Financial Statements.

- MG-HIW, LLC

On December 19, 2000, we formed a joint venturé Wiiller Global, MG-HIW, LLC, pursuant to which wsold or contributed to MG-
HIW, LLC 19 in-service office properties in Ralejghtlanta, Tampa (the “Non-Orlando City Group”) aBdando (collectively the “City
Groups”), valued at approximately $335 million. part of the formation of MG-HIW, LLC, Miller Globalontributed approximately $85
million in cash for an 80.0% ownership interest #m&ljoint venture borrowed approximately $238.8iam from a third-party lender. We
retained a 20.0% ownership interest and receivedash proceeds of approximately $307 million. Bgr2001, we contributed a 39,000
square foot development project to MG-HIW, LLC &&.1 million. The joint venture borrowed an additb $3.7 million under its existing
debt agreement with a third party and we retained26.0% ownership
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interest and received net cash proceeds of appadeiyn$4.8 million. The assets of each of the @Gtpups were legally acquired by four
separate LLC’s for which MG-HIW, LLC was the solember.

The Non-Orlando City Group consisted of 15 progsréncompassing 1.3 million square feet and wesddd in Atlanta, Raleigh and
Tampa. Based on the nature and extent of certatalrguarantees made by us with respect to thegepres, the transaction did not qualify
for sale treatment under SFAS No. 66. The transadtas been accounted for as a profit-sharing geraent, and accordingly, the assets,
liabilities and operations of the properties remainour books and a co-venture obligation has lestablished for the amount of equity
contributed by Miller Global related to the non-&vtlo City Group properties. The income from operetiof the properties, excluding
depreciation, is being allocated 80.0% to Milleokl and is reported as “co-venture expense” inGamsolidated Financial Statements. We
continue to depreciate the properties and rectwmf #he depreciation on our books. In additiortite co-venture expense, we recorded
expense of $1.3 million, $0.7 million and $0.7 ioifl related to payments made under the rental gtega for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

On July 29, 2003, we acquired our partner’s 80.0uitg interest in the non-Orlando City Groups. WadpMiller Global $28.1 million,
repaid $41.4 million of debt related to the projsrand assumed $64.7 million of debt. We recoghiz816.3 million gain on the settlement
of the $43.5 million co-venture obligation recordedour books.

With respect to the Orlando City Group, which cetsf five properties encompassing 1.3 millionasgifeet located in the central
business district of Orlando, we assumed obligatiormake improvements to the assets as well akemease obligations and guarantees on
certain vacant space. Additionally, we guarantekv@raged internal rate of return (“IRR”) of 20.@ Miller Global’s equity. See Note 15
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for furtigcussion of the guarantee. The contributiothe$e Orlando properties is accounted for
as a financing arrangement under SFAS No. 66e-Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statesn@unsequently, the assets, liabilities
operations related to the properties remain orbooks and a financing obligation has been estadi$br the amount of equity contributed
Miller Global related to the Orlando City Group.&imcome from operations of the properties, exclgdiepreciation, is being allocated
80.0% to Miller Global and reported as “interestfimancing obligation” in our Consolidated Financ&atements. This financing obligation
is also adjusted each period by accreting the atitig up to the 20.0% guaranteed internal ratefirn by a charge to interest expense, such
that the financing obligation would equal at thel eh each period the amount due to Miller Globaluding the 20.0% guaranteed return. We
recorded interest expense on the financing obbigatf $11.6 million, $10.1 million and $9.9 millipwhich includes amounts related to this
IRR guarantee and payments made under the rerdedigpees, for the years ended 2003, 2002 and 2&§dectively. We have continued to
depreciate the Orlando properties and record alk@ftiepreciation on our books.

On July 29, 2003, we also entered into an optiogrexgent to acquire Miller Global’s 80.0% interesthie Orlando City Group. On
March 2, 2004, we exercised our option and acqutedpartner’'s 80.0% equity interest in the Orlaity Group. The properties were
83.8% leased as of December 31, 2003 and were drarachby $136.2 million of floating rate debt wiitherest based on LIBOR plus 200
basis points. At the closing of the transaction pa&l our partner, Miller Global, $62.5 million ands7.5 million letter of credit delivered to
the seller in connection with the option was calecelSince the initial contribution of these assets accounted for as a financing
arrangement and since the financing obligation agjssted each period for the IRR guarantee, no@dioss was recognized upon the
extinguishment of the financing obligation.

- SF-HIW Harborview, LP

On September 11, 2002, we contributed Harborvieaz&lan office building located in Tampa, FlorigaSF-HIW Harborview Plaza,
LP (“Harborview LP"),a newly formed entity, in exchange for a 20.0% fadipartnership interest and $35.4 million in caste other partni
contributed $12.6 million of cash and a new loars whtained by the partnership for $22.8 millioncémnection with this disposition, we
entered into a master lease agreement with Haarl/P for five years on the vacant space in thédimg (approximately 20%). We also
guaranteed to Harborview LP the payment of temaptévements and lease commissions of $1.2 milGar. maximum exposure to loss
under the master lease agreement was $2.1 milliSegtember 11, 2002 and was $1.4 million at Deegr@lh, 2003. Additionally, our
partner in Harborview LP was granted the rightubifs 80.0% equity interest in Harborview LP toimgxchange for cash at any time during
the one-year period commencing on September 14. 20t value of the 80.0% equity interest will gestmined at the time, if ever, that
such partner
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elects to exercise its put right, based upon tha thir market value of Harborview L$assets and liabilities, less 3.0%, which wasohed tc
cover the normal costs of a sale transaction.

Because of the put option and the master leaseagm, this transaction is accounted for as a fiimantransaction, as described in
Notes 1 and 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statesn Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and afiens related to Harborview Plaza,
property owned by Harborview LP, and any new finagdy the partnership remain on our books. Assaltewe have established a financ
obligation liability equal to the net equity comted by the other partner. At the end of eachnteypperiod, the balance of the financing
obligation is adjusted to equal the current faiueawhich is $13.6 million at December 31, 2003, fot less than the original financing
obligation. This adjustment is amortized prospetyithrough September 2014. Additionally, the mebime from the operations before
depreciation of Harborview Plaza allocable to tBe)86 partner is recorded as interest expense anding obligation. We continue to
depreciate the property and record all of the d#atien on our books. Additionally, any paymentsdmander the master lease agreement are
expensed as incurred ($0.4 million and $0.3 milli@re expensed during the years ended Decemb2083,and 2002, respectively) and any
amounts paid under the tenant improvement and E@asenission guarantee are capitalized and amortzesdpense over the remaining lease
term. At such time as the put option expires oentlise is terminated, we will record the transatts a sale and recognize gain on sale.

- Eastshore

On November 26, 2002, we sold three buildings @t Richmond, Virginia (the “Eastshore” transawjifor a total purchase price of
$28.5 million in cash, which was paid in full byetbuyer at closing. Each of the sold propertiessggle tenant building leased on a tripk-
basis to Capital One Services, Inc., a subsididapital One Financial Services, Inc.

In connection with the sale, we entered into aalegiiarantee agreement for each building for teefiieof the buyer to guarantee any
shortfalls that may be incurred in the paymenteoit and re-tenanting costs for a five-year periodhfthe date of sale (through November
2007). Our maximum exposure to loss under the rgnirantee agreements was $18.7 million at the afasale and was $15.9 million as of
December 31, 2003. No payments were made during @02002 in respect of these rent guarantees. Menim June 2004, we began to
make monthly payments to the buyer, at an anntelafa$0.1 million, as a result of the existingdatrenewing a lease in one building at a
lower rental rate.

These rent guarantees are a form of continuinghieweent as discussed in paragraph 28 of SFAS NdBé€ause the guarantees cover
the entire space occupied by a single tenant umtigule-net lease arrangement, our guaranteesoargdered a guaranteed return on the
buyer’s investment for an extended period of tiffteerefore, the transaction has been accountedfarfimancing transaction following the
accounting method described in Note 1 to the Caasteld Financial Statements. Accordingly, the @santl operations are included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, and a financbiigation of $28.5 million was recorded which regpents the amount received from the
buyer at the time of sale. The income from the afj@ns of the properties, other than depreciai®allocated 100.0% to the owner as inte
expense on a financing obligation. Payments maderuthe rent guarantees are charged to expensewased. This transaction will be
recorded as a completed sale transaction in thegfuthen the maximum exposure to loss under theagtees is equal to or less than the
related gain.

Interest Rate Hedging Activities

To meet in part our lonterm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atoanbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingsler ou
Revolving Loan bear interest at variable rates. IOng-term debt, which consists of long-term finags and the unsecured issuance of debt
securities, typically bears interest at fixed ratasaddition, we have assumed fixed rate and kbaieate debt in connection with acquiring
properties. Our interest rate risk management tibgscare to limit the impact of interest rate opesmon earnings and cash flows and to lower
our overall borrowing costs. To achieve these dbjes, from time to time we enter into intereseraedge contracts such as collars, swaps,
caps and treasury lock agreements in order to améigur interest rate risk with respect to varidelst instruments.
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The following table sets forth information regarmgliour interest rate hedge contracts as of DeceBthe2003 ($ in thousands):

Fair Market
Notional Maturity Fixed
Type of Hedge Amount Date Reference Rate Rate Value
Interest Rate Swa $20,00C 1/2/200¢ 1 month USI-LIBOR-BBA 0.99(% $ 3
Interest Rate Swa $20,00C 6/1/200¢ 1 month USI-LIBOR-BBA  1.59(% 20
$ 23

The interest rate on all of our variable rate delstdjusted at one and three month intervals, stibjesettlements under these interest
rate hedge contracts. We also enter into treasakydgreements from time to time in order to limit exposure to an increase in interest 1
with respect to future debt offerings. During 2008ly a nominal amount was received from countetigmunder interest rate hedge
contracts. The swap that matured on January 2, 8@84ot renewed or extended.

Related Party Transactions

We have previously reported that we have had a&cinto acquire development land in the Bluegraakey office development project
from GAPI, Inc., a corporation controlled by an extve officer/director of the Company. On January 2003, we acquired an additional
23.5 acres of this land from GAPI, Inc. for cash ahares of Common Stock valued at $2.3 milliorMay 2003, 4.0 acres of the remaining
acres not yet acquired by the Company was takehéeorgia Department of Transportation to devalopadway interchange for
consideration of $1.8 million. The Department oaiisportation took possession and title of the ptgpe June 2003. As part of the terms of
the contract between us and GAPI, Inc., we werileshto the proceeds from the condemnation of $dilBon, less the contracted purchase
price between us and GAPI, Inc. for the condemmegderty of $0.7 million. On September 30, 2003aassult of the condemnation, we
received the proceeds of $1.8 million. A relatedypayable of $0.7 million to GAPI, Inc. relateaithe condemnation of the development
land is included in accounts payable, accrued esggeand other liabilities in our Consolidated BeéaSheet at December 31, 2003 and a
of $1.0 million related to the condemnation of tlevelopment land is included in gain on dispositbtand in our Consolidated Statement of
Income for the year ended December 31, 2003. Weusethat the purchase price with respect to eastsaction did not exceed market va
These transactions were unanimously approved bgxbeutive committee and the full Board of Direstfwith the related executive
officer/director abstaining from the vote).

During 2000, in connection with the formation oétMG-HIW Peachtree Corners Ill, LLC, one of our affigatmade a construction Ic
to this joint venture. Interest accrued at a rételBOR plus 200 basis points. This constructioariavas repaid in full in July 2003 when we
were assigned our partner’s 50.0% equity intereité single property encompassing 53,896 squatefened by MG-HIW Peachtree
Corners I, LLC.

From 1998 to 2000, we advanced a total of $0.8anilio an officer/director of the Company related:ertain expenses paid by us on
behalf of the officer/director. During 2002, thidvance, along with accrued interest, was repaitheyofficer/director.

C RITICAL A CCOUNTING E STIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andrapsions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclsiicontingent assets and liabilities at the datée financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the repgoéingd. Actual results could differ from our estiem

The policies and estimates used in the preparafionr Consolidated Financial Statements are desdrin Note 1 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended Decemhe2(B. However, certain of our significant accanugpipolicies contain an increased level
of assumptions used or estimates made in detergnih@ir impact on our Consolidated Financial Staets. Management has reviewed our
critical accounting policies and estimates with dluelit committee of the Company’s Board of Direstand the Company’s independent
auditors.
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We consider our critical accounting estimates téhiose used in the determination of the reporteduants and disclosure related to the
following:

* Real estate asse
» Allowance for doubtful accounts; ai
e Property operating expense recover

Real Estate Assets

All capitalizable costs related to the improvemenieplacement of commercial real estate propeatiecapitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straiglte method over the estimated useful life of 4@rgefor buildings, 15 years for building improvertgand five tc
seven years for furniture, fixtures and equipm&ehant improvements are amortized over the lifthefrespective leases which currently
average 4.5 years, using the straight-line metRedl estate assets are stated at the lower obcéat value, if impaired.

Expenditures directly related to the development @nstruction of real estate assets are includeet real estate assets and are stated
at cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Experdidirectly related to the leasing of properéiesincluded in other assets and are stated
at cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Deredapexpenditures include pre-construction costsresal to the development of
properties, development and construction costsyést costs, real estate taxes, salaries andaiberincurred during the period of
development. Interest costs are capitalized umgilduilding is ready for its intended use. Constomcexpenditures include compensation
incurred in connection with specific constructiawjpcts. Leasing expenditures include compensaticurred in connection with successft
securing leases on the properties. Estimated oelst®d to unsuccessful activities are expenseacasred. If our assumptions regarding the
successful efforts of development, constructionleading are incorrect, the resulting adjustmeatdctimpact earnings.

Upon the acquisition of real estate, we assesfathealue of acquired tangible assets such as lamitHings and tenant improvements,
intangible assets such as above and below madstdeacquired-in place leases and other idenifftadgible assets and assumed liabilities
in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Comimnat” We allocate the purchase price to the aeguirssets and assumed liabilities
based on our relative fair values. We assess amsldzr fair value based on estimated cash floweptmjns that utilize appropriate discount
and/or capitalization rates as well as availableketanformation. The fair value of the tangiblesets of an acquired property considers the
value of the property as if it were vacant.

Above and below market leases acquired are recatébir fair value. Fair value is calculatedlzs present value of the difference
between (1) the contractual amounts to be paidupmtsto each in-place lease and (2) managemetit'sags of fair market lease rates for
each corresponding in-place lease, using a discatmthat reflects the risks associated with ¢asés acquired and measured over a period
equal to the remaining term of the lease for aboagket leases and the initial term plus the terramyf below-market fixed rate renewal
options for below-market leases. The capitalizenvabmarket lease values are amortized as a redutfibase rental revenue over the
remaining term of the respective leases and thitgatizpd below-market lease values are amortizeshascrease to base rental revenue over
the remaining term of the respective leases.

The value of in-place leases is based on our etiafuaf the specific characteristics of each teisadlehse. Factors considered include
estimates of carrying costs during hypotheticaleeted lease-up periods, current market conditiodscasts to execute similar leases. In
estimating carrying costs, we include real est@ted, insurance and other operating expenses tinas of lost rentals at market rates
during the expected lease-up periods, dependirgoath market conditions. In estimating costs tocere similar leases, we consider tenant
improvements, leasing commissions and legal aner otiated expenses. The value of an in-place isam®ortized to depreciation and
amortization expense over the remaining term oféispective lease. If a tenant vacates its spagetprits contractual expiration date, any
unamortized balance of its related intangible aissexpensed.

The value of a tenant relationship is based orowarall relationship with the respective tenantctbes considered include the tenant’s
credit quality and expectations of lease renevildis. value of a tenant relationship is amortizedxjpense over the initial term and any
renewal periods defined in the respective leasase& on our
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acquisitions to date, we have deemed tenant rakdtips to be immaterial and have not allocatedaamgunts to this intangible asset.

Real estate and leasehold improvements are ckedsi§i long-lived assets held for sale or as loreglassets to be held for use. Real
estate is classified as held for sale when thera@itet forth in SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for timepairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” are satisfied; this determination requimesmagement to make estimates and assumptionsgimglassessing the probability that
potential sales transactions may or may not odsttual results could differ from those assumptidnsaccordance with SFAS No. 144, we
record assets held for sale at the lower of theyitey amount or estimated fair value. Fair valuasdets held for sale is equal to the estimated
or contracted sales price with a potential buyss osts to sell. The impairment loss is the ambynthich the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated fair value. With respect to assets dladsas held for use, if events or changes in arstances, such as a significant decline in
occupancy or change in use, indicate that the icgymalue may be impaired, an impairment analysigerformed. Such analysis consists of
determining whether the asset’s carrying amourithveilrecovered from its undiscounted estimatedréutyperating cash flows. These cash
flows are estimated based on a number of assunsptia are subject to economic and market uncéigaimcluding, among others, demand
for space, competition for tenants, changes in ptadntal rates and costs to operate each propktie carrying amount of a held for use
asset exceeds the sum of its undiscounted futlembtipg cash flows, an impairment loss is recoifdedhe difference between estimated fair
value of the asset and the net carrying amountg&erally estimate the fair value of assets haldi$e by using discounted cash flow
analysis; in some instances, appraisal informatiay be available and is used in addition to thealisted cash flow analysis. As the factors
used in generating these cash flows are difficufiredict and are subject to future events that ati@y our assumptions, the discounted ar
undiscounted future operating cash flows estimhjeds in our impairment analyses or those estaddisty appraisal may not be achieved
we may be required to recognize future impairmessés on our properties held for sale and heldder

As of December 31, 2003, we had 0.44 million sqdieet of property, 88 apartment units and 168.&w0f land under contract for sale
or letter of intent in various transactions totgl90.3 million. These real estate assets havergimg amount of $65.7 million and have been
classified as assets held for sale in the acconipgifiynancial statements.

Sales Of Real Estate

We account for sales of real estate in accordariteS#AS No. 66. For sales transactions meetingefjgirements of SFAS No. 66 for
full profit recognition, the related assets andiliies are removed from the balance sheet andasealtant gain or loss is recorded in the
period the transaction closes. For sales transectitat do not meet the criteria for full profitognition, we account for the transactions in
accordance with the methods specified in SFAS BoF6r sales transactions with continuing involvatredter the sale, if the continuing
involvement with the property is limited by thertes of the sales contract, profit is recognizedhattime of sale and is reduced by the
maximum exposure to loss related to the naturbetontinuing involvement. Sales to entities inshhive have an interest are accounted for
in accordance with partial sale accounting prowvisias set forth in SFAS No. 66.

For sales transactions that do not meet saleieriisrset forth in SFAS No. 66, we evaluate thaneatf the continuing involvement,
including put and call provisions, if present, awtount for the transaction as a financing arramgenprofit-sharing arrangement or other
alternate method of accounting rather than asea baked on the nature and extent of the contirinimvement. Some transactions may h
numerous forms of continuing involvement. In thoases, we determine which method is most apprepb@déed on the substance of the
transaction.

If we have an obligation to repurchase the propatty higher price or at a future indeterminable@gsuch as fair market value), or we
guarantee the return of the buyer’s investmentretwn on that investment for an extended pemadaccount for such transaction as a
financing transaction. If we have an option to repase the property at a higher price and it slyikve will exercise this option, the
transaction is accounted for as a financing trarmad-or transactions treated as financings, wenkthe amounts received from the buyer as
a financing obligation and continue to keep thepprty and related accounts recorded on our bodies r@sults of operations of the property,
net of expenses other than depreciation (net dpgratcome), will be reflected as “interest expérme the financing obligation. If the
transaction includes an obligation or option tourepase the asset at a higher price, additionaldst is recorded to accrete the liability to the
repurchase price. For options or obligations
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to repurchase the asset at fair market value atrideof each reporting period, the balance ofiti#lity is adjusted to equal the current fair
value to the extent fair value exceeds the oridimaincing obligation. The corresponding debit mrdit will be recorded to a related discount
account and the revised debt discount is amortxed the expected term until termination of theapbr obligation. If it is unlikely such
option will be exercised, the transaction is actedrior under the deposit method or profit-sharmgthod. If we have an obligation or option
to repurchase at a lower price, the transacti@eé®unted for as a leasing arrangement. At suahdsrthese repurchase obligations expire, a
sale will be recorded and gain recognized.

If we retain an interest in the buyer and providgain rent guarantees or other forms of suppogresthe maximum exposure to loss
exceeds the gain, we account for such transacsi@npaiofit-sharing arrangement. For transacticgestéid as profit-sharing arrangements, we
record a profit-sharing obligation for the amouhequity contributed by the other partner and aurgito keep the property and related
accounts recorded on our books. The results ofatipes of the property, net of expenses other tiggmeciation (net operating income), will
be allocated to the other partner for their pemgatnterest and reflected as “co-venture expensalir Consolidated Financial Statements
future periods, a sale is recorded and profité@gaized when the remaining maximum exposure ®ikbseduced below the amount of gain
deferred.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowancarfwunts that may become uncollectible in the &itWe evaluate the adequacy of
our allowance for doubtful accounts on a quartbdgis. The evaluation primarily consists of reviggyast due account balances and
considering such factors as the credit qualitywftenants, historical trends of the tenant andtoer debtor, current economic conditions and
changes in customer payment terms. Additionallyhwespect to tenants in bankruptcy, we estimae#pected recovery through bankruj
claims and increase the allowance for amounts deéemeollectible. If our assumptions regarding thiectibility of accounts receivable
prove incorrect, we could experience write-off@ofounts receivable or accrued straight-line rextsivable in excess of our allowance for
doubtful accounts.

Property Operating Expense Recoveries

Property operating cost recoveries from tenantsdget reimbursements) are determined on a leadeasg-basis. The most common
types of cost reimbursements in our leases are amarea maintenance (“CAM”) and real estate tawbgre the tenant pays a share of
operating and administrative expenses and reakeestees, as determined in each lease.

The computation of cost reimbursements from tenfant€AM and real estate taxes is complex and v@®Ihumerous judgments
including the interpretation of terms and otheskeprovisions. Leases are not uniform in dealirth wiich cost reimbursements and there are
many variations in the computations. Most tenarakermonthly fixed payments of CAM, real estate $axad other cost reimbursement
items. We record these payments as income eacthmafet also make adjustments, positive or negattivepst recovery income to adjust the
recorded amounts to our best estimate of the eimalunts to be billed and collected with respethéocost reimbursements. After the end of
the calendar year, we compute each tenant’s fmgtl reimbursements and, after considering amouaitslyy the tenant during the year, issue
a bill or credit for the appropriate amount to teeant. The differences between the amounts biksg, previously received payments and the
accrual adjustment are recorded as increases mrad®s to cost recovery income when the final aiisprepared, usually beginning in Ma
and completed by June or July. The net amountaygach adjustments have not been material in¢hesypresented.

F uNnDSF rRoMm O PERATIONS

We believe that funds from operations (“FFO”) arkeOFper share are beneficial to management andtorgesnd are important
indicators of the performance of any equity REI€cBuse FFO and FFO per share calculations excloifefactors as depreciation and
amortization of real estate assets and gains sesofsom sales of operating real estate assetst{wean vary among owners of identical assets
in similar conditions based on historical cost astong and useful life estimates), they facilitatenparisons of operating performance
between periods and between other REITs. Our mamagiebelieves that historical cost accounting éal estate assets in accordance with
GAAP implicitly assumes that the value of real es&ssets diminishes predictably over time. Sieeéestate values have historically rise
fallen with market conditions, many industry inv@stand analysts have considered
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the presentation of operating results for realtestampanies that use historical cost accountirigetmsufficient by themselves. As a result,
management believes that the use of FFO and FF€hpee, together with the required GAAP presentatiprovide a more complete
understanding of the Compasyperformance relative to its competitors and aenimiormed and appropriate basis on which to madaistbn:
involving operating, financing and investing adiies.

FFO and FFO per share as disclosed by other RE&ysnot be comparable to our calculation of FFORRO per share as described
below. However, you should be aware that FFO ard pér share are naBAAP financial measure and do therefore not represet income
or net income per share as defined by GAAP. Netnmeand net income per share as defined by GAAEhamnost relevant measures in
determining our operating performance because FelF&O per share include adjustments that investagsdeem subjective, such as
adding back expenses such as depreciation andizatiarn. Furthermore, FFO per share does not dédpécamount that accrues directly to
the stockholders’ benefit. Accordingly, FFO and Fp& share should never be considered as alteesdtivnet income or net income per
share as indicators of our operating performance.

Our calculation of FFO, which we believe is coraistwith the calculation of FFO as defined by traidhal Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) and which appropriagteixcludes the cost of capital improvements aratedl capitalized interest, is as
follows:

* Netincome (loss) computed in accordance with GA
» Plus depreciation and amortization of assets uhjcgignificant to the real estate indust

» Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of degléeioperating properties (but excluding impairmesses, see Note 2 following the
table) and items that are classified as extraorgiitems under GAAP

e Plus minority interest
* Less dividends to holders of Preferred Stc

» Plus or minus adjustments for unconsolidatedngaships and joint ventures (to reflect funds frgperations on the same basis);
and

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation andréization and gains/(losses) on sales and minartgrest related to discontinued
operations

Other REITs may not define FFO in accordance withdurrent NAREIT definition or may interpret therent NAREIT definition
differently than we do.
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Restated FFO and FFO per share for the years ddelgeinber 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are summarizibe ifollowing table ($ in
thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Per Share Per Share Per Share
Amount Diluted Amount Diluted Amount Diluted
Funds from operations:
Net income $ 47,94: $ 81,87% $117,38(
Dividends to preferred sharehold (30,857 (30,857) (31,500
Excess of preferred stock carrying value over refpase valu — — 1,01z
Net income applicable to common sharehol 17,09 $ 0.32 51,02t $ 0.9t 86,89: $ 1.5¢
Add/(Deduct):
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a$Sets 139,27¢ 2.6C 138,07: 2.5¢ 124,59 2.2¢
Gain on disposition of depreciable real estateta8se (8,677) (0.1€)  (15,52) (0.29) (17,209 (0.37)
Minority interest from the Operating Partnershiprioome
from operation: 813 0.02 4,34 0.0¢ 10,77¢ 0.2C
Transition adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No. — — — — 55€ 0.01
Unconsolidated affiliates
Depreciation and amortization of real estate as8ets 7,27¢ 0.1z 7,64¢ 0.1¢4 6,76¢ 0.1z
Discontinued operation$ :
Depreciation and amortization of real estate a$8ets 1,35¢ 0.0z 5,42¢ 0.1C 5,56: 0.1C
Gain on sale, net of minority interest from the @pieg
Partnershig? (8,600 (0.16) (15,159 (0.2¢) — —
Minority interest from the Operating Partnership in
income from discontinued operatic 307 0.01 1,22¢ 0.0z 1,66¢ 0.0z
Funds from operations before amounts allocableitmrity interesi
in the Operating Partnership 148,84: 2.7¢ 177,06t 3.31 219,60« 4.0z
Minority interest in the Operating Partnershipumds from
operations (16,640 (0.31) (21,18 (0.40) (27,289 (0.50)
Funds from operations applicable to common shadens®) $132,20 $ 247 $155,88: $ 2.91 $19231t $ 3.5
Dividend payout data:
Dividends paid per common share/common $ 1.8¢ $ 234 $ 231
As a % of funds from operatiol 75.2% 80.4% 65.€%
Weighted average shares outstanc- diluted 53,52: 53,58 54,65¢

@  In connection with the SEC’s adoption of Regulati@nwhich governs the presentation of non-GAAPIiirial measures in documents
filed with the SEC, we revised our definition of BFor 2003 and all periods presented relating éoatid-back of non-real estate
depreciation and amortization. Our revised definitis in accordance with the definition providedMREIT.

@ In October 2003, NAREIT issued a Financial Repaortitert that changed its current implementatiordgunice for FFO regarding
impairment losses. Accordingly, impairment lossdated to depreciable assets have now been inclndgeO for the periods
presented. See Note 4 to our Consolidated FinaStiaéments for a breakdown of gain on disposéaiwoth impairment of depreciable
assets

@  As aresult of FASB’s SFAS No. 145, “RescissiorF8iSB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of F&&Bement No. 13, and
Technical Corrections,” gains or losses on thengxtishment of debt are no longer classified asxa@rdinary item in our
Consolidated Statements of Income. Therefore, @fmiation of FFO no longer includes an add-bacthisf amount. Amounts
previously reported in 2002 and 2001 have beerstatjuto reduce FFO by extraordinary items in thyeses. The 2003 Funds from
Operations include a gain on extinguishment of enture obligation of $16.3 million and a loss obtdextinguishment of $14.7
million.

@)  For further discussion related to discontinued apens, see Note 12 to the Consolidated Finant¢&esents.

)  Depreciation and amortization of real estate asselsdes adjustments for gains on dispositioneyrdciable assets of $0.1 million and



$0.3 million for 2003 and 2002, respective
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As a result of the changes to FFO due to the nsatfiscussed in Note 18 to the Consolidated FinhSts#ements and in footnotes (1),
(2) and (3) above, FFO has been reduced by thenfmify in dollars and per share amounts:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Change as discussed in Note 18 to the Consoliddteahcial Statemen $ (833 $ (7,150 $(13,999
Change as discussed in Note 1 ak (3,446 (3,389 (3,699
Change as discussed in Note 2 ak (28¢) (13,509 —
Change as discussed in Note 3 at — (687) (7149
FFO in dollars before amounts allocable to minarritgrest from the Operating Partners $(4,567) $(24,727) $(18,409
Change as discussed in Note 18 to the Consolidraiteacial Statemen $ (002 $ (019 $ (0.29
Change as discussed in Note 1 ak (0.06) (0.05) (0.06)
Change as discussed in Note 2 ak (0.09) (0.29) —
Change as discussed in Note 3 at — (0.09) (0.09)
FFO per shar $(0.09 $ (042 $ (0.3)

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The effects of potential changes in interest ratesdiscussed below. Our market risk discussioludes “forward-looking statements
and represents an estimate of possible changes walue or future earnings that would occur assgrhypothetical future movements in
interest rates. These disclosures are not prauikesitors of expected future effects, but only ¢adlbrs of reasonably possible effects. As a
result, actual future results may differ materidilym those presented. See “Management’s Discussidrnalysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations - Liquidity and CapitakBurces” and the Notes to Consolidated Finantaéé®ents for a description of our
accounting policies and other information relatethiese financial instruments.

To meet in part our lonterm liquidity requirements, we borrow funds atoanbination of fixed and variable rates. Borrowingsler ou
Revolving Loan and bank term loans bear interegadable rates. Our long-term debt, which consi$tsecured and unsecured long-term
financings and the issuance of unsecured debtitiesutypically bears interest at fixed rates althh some loans bear interest at variable
rates. In addition, we have assumed fixed ratevanidble rate debt in connection with acquiringgandies. Our interest rate risk management
objectives are to limit the impact of interest rab@nges on earnings and cash flows and to lowenvarall borrowing costs. To achieve th
objectives, from time to time we enter into intémede hedge contracts such as collars, swaps,atapgeasury lock agreements in order to
mitigate our interest rate risk with respect toimas debt instruments. We do not hold or issuedhiesivative contracts for trading or
speculative purposes.

As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately $ B8lion of fixed rate debt outstanding. The estted aggregate fair value of this
debt at December 31, 2003 was $1,419 million.tdrest rates increase by 100 basis points, theeggte fair market value of our fixed rate
debt as of December 31, 2003 would increase byoappately $71 million. If interest rates decreagelB0 basis points, the aggregate fair
market value of our fixed rate debt as of Decen®31er2003 would decrease by approximately $78 millio

As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately $88don of variable rate debt outstanding that was protected by interest rate
hedge contracts. If the weighted average inteegston this variable rate debt is 100 basis pdiigfiser or lower during the 12 months ended
December 31, 2004, our interest expense woulddreased or decreased approximately $3.6 million.

For a discussion of our interest rate hedge castineffect at December 31, 2003, see “Managera@iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Conditions and Results of Operationsguldity and Capital Resources — Interest Rate Heggictivities.” If interest rates increase
by 100 basis points, the aggregate fair marketevafithese interest rate hedge contracts as ofrileere31, 2003 would increase by
approximately $0.3 million. If interest rates dexse by 100 basis points, the aggregate fair magteé of these interest rate hedge contracts
as of December 31, 2003 would decrease by approsiyn®0.2 million.

52



Table of Contents

In addition, we are exposed to certain lossesearetrent of nonperformance by the counter partiéeuthe hedge contracts. We expect
the counter parties, which are major financialitatbns, to perform fully under the contracts. Hower, if either of the counter parties was to
default on its obligation under an interest ratddeecontract, we could be required to pay ther&i#ts on our debt, even if such rates were in
excess of the rate in the contract.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
See page F-1 of the financial report included Imerei
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
G ENERAL

The purpose of this section is to discuss the tffercess of our disclosure controls and procedanelsour internal control over financ
reporting. The statements in this section repretbentonclusions of Edward J. Fritsch, our CEO, Bey L. Stevens, our CFO. Mr. Fritsch
became our CEO on July 1, 2004 and Mr. Stevensniecauir CFO on December 1, 2003.

The CEO and CFO evaluations of our disclosure otsyeind procedures over financial reporting incladeview of the controls’
objectives and design, the controls’ implementatiprus and the effect of the controls on the infation generated for use in this amended
Annual Report. We seek to identify data errors tadmproblems or acts of fraud and confirm thatrappiate corrective action, including
process improvements, is undertaken. Our disclosum&ols and procedures over financial reportirggadso evaluated on an ongoing basis
through the following:

e activities undertaken and reports issued by empl®ye our internal audit departme

* by manageme’s evaluation of the results of audits provided byindependent auditors in connection with theitiaactivities;
» other personnel in our finance and accounting drgdion;

« members of our internal disclosure committee;

* members of the audit committee of our Board of Eles.

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, do xmeat that our disclosure controls and procedunesir@ernal control over
financial reporting will prevent all error and &aud. A control system, no matter how well coneei\and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the g the control system are met. Further, th@gieof disclosure controls and procedures
and internal control over financial reporting mreftect the fact that there are resource conssaamd the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. Because oirtherent limitations in all control systems, no lension of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instancaud, if any, within the Company have been detecidese inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making carfiaudty, and that breakdowns can occur becausesohple error or mistake. Additionally,
controls can be circumvented by the individual aftsome persons, by collusion of two or more peppt by management override of the
control. The design of any system of controls éddmased in part upon certain assumptions abodikitléhood of future events, and there can
be no assurance that any design will succeed iiewol its stated goals under all potential futcoaditions. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, sté&gements due to error or fraud may occur andaaletected.
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D 1ScLOSURE C ONTROLS AND P ROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure costaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosed
in our annual and periodic reports filed with tHeCSis recorded, processed, summarized and repwitieith the time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and guaces include, without limitation, controls andgedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us is aaglated and communicated to our management, induolim CEO and CFO, to allow time
decisions regarding required disclosure.

As described above under “Explanatory Note,” theopse of this amended Annual Report is to restatgoeviously reported financial
results for fiscal years 2001 through 2003 inclustedur 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Theseatestents are primarily due to:
adjustments relating to the accounting for a lichitember of our prior real estate sales transagtigth continuing involvement occurring
between 1999 and 2003, reclassifications relatelisttontinued operations with continuing involvemecounting for a debt extinguishm:
transaction, accounting for minority interest, asagious other matters. We believe that the matadaistments relate to transactions that \
previously disclosed by the Company in prior SHids. For instance, the nature of the Company’snal continuing involvement related
to our real estate sales transactions, the mafadt relating to our retirement of the $125 railliprincipal amount of MOPPRS, and the
method of accounting for minority interest werectbsed in our prior quarterly and annual regulatomg financial filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and our annual reports.

Based on our evaluation of disclosure controls@oededures, as of the date of the filing of thieaded Annual Report, our CEO and
CFO believe that our disclosure controls and prooesiare effective to ensure that information nexglito be disclosed in its financial reports
has been made known to management, including tl &t CFO, and other persons responsible for grepanch reports and is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported.

| NTERNAL C ONTROL O VER F INANCIAL R EPORTING

SEC rules also require us to maintain internal mmiver financial reporting designed to providasenable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with GAAP. Internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies anocedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in measle detail accurately and fairly reflect our gactions and dispositions of ass

» provide reasonable assurance that transactiengeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomandial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures airgomade only in accordance with authorizationsiahagement and directors;
and

« provide reasonable assurance regarding preveotibmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose wr disposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements

As noted above and described above under “Explandlote,” the purpose of this amended Annual Rejsoit restate our previously
reported financial results for fiscal years 200btigh 2003 included in our 2003 Annual Report om#&0-K. These restatements are
primarily due to: adjustments relating to the acettiog for a limited number of our prior real estatdes transactions with continuing
involvement occurring between 1999 and 2003, rsiflaations related to discontinued operations withtinuing involvement, accounting
for a debt extinguishment transaction, accountargrfinority interest, and various other matters. békeve that the adjustments required to
be made to the historical financial statementslteddirom prior unintentional misapplication of GRA

A majority of the adjustments made as part of #sgatement relate to transactions that occurresethods that were adopted during
1997 to 2002 timeframe. While a number of thoséyeatjustments had continuing effects into 2003 2004, only a few adjustments related
to transactions that occurred or methods that weopted in 2003 or 2004, such as the MOPPRS déhgeishment in early 2003 and the
CEO retirement package in the first quarter of 2@@th of which required some amount of subjecjtigment to determine the proper
accounting methodology.
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Ernst & Young LLP has issued an unqualified opiniated October 22, 2004 on our restated 2003, 28682001 Consolidated
Financial Statements that are included in this aledrAnnual Report. On October 26, 2004, Ernst & pULP advised our Audit
Committee that they identified the following maténveaknesses during their audits of the restateah¢ial statements for 2003, 2002 and
2001: inadequate procedures for appropriately asggand applying accounting principles to complaxsactions; lack of adequate finance
and accounting staff to appropriately identify @awvaluate accounting for transactions; inadequategatures to ensure critical information
regarding a transaction is known by the personswatiing for such transaction; and lack of applmatf GAAP to transactions due to
perceived immateriality of transactions.

Since late 2002, we have added several experiestaéido our Finance and Accounting Departmentgsthincluded an Assistant
Controller (new position), a Director of Financ&hndards and Compliance (new position), a Senir@c®r of Investor Relations
(replacement) and a new Chief Financial Officepl@eement, as the former CFO assumed a new posittbin the Company). During 2003
and 2004 up to the filing date of this amended AshiReport, we have further improved our internaitoal over financial reporting by, amo
other things, expanding supervisory activities arhitoring techniques and strengthening our proesddesigned to ensure that information
relating to transactions directly or indirectly aiving the Company and its subsidiaries is madenknto persons responsible for preparing
our financial statements. We have also implemerdgeded checklists and additional management ayetrsif our accounting staff to ensure
appropriate assessment and application of GAAH toaasactions, particularly complex transactisnsh as sales of real estate with
continuing involvement that are governed by SFAS 6&

Other than the foregoing and the adjustments tieab@ing made as described under “Explanatory Narte’Note 18 to our restated
Consolidated Financial Statements, there have beefanges in our internal controls over finanmglorting since December 31, 2003 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 megupublic companies, including us, with a fisa@hythat ends on December 31 to
report on the effectiveness of their internal contwver financial reporting in their 2004 Annualpget on Form 10-K, which we are required
to file with the SEC no later than March 16, 200%ir independent auditor will be required to atteghat report. Our management, including
our CEO and CFO, and our audit committee are wgrHliligently to ensure that our internal controko¥inancial reporting provides
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiiicial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with GAAP.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

On March 31, 2004, the Company filed a Proxy Statanfor the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, whicasaeld on May 18, 2004.
The section under the heading “Election of Diregtaf such Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetih@tckholders held May 18, 2004 is
incorporated herein by reference for informationdimectors of the Company. See ITEM X in Part ldaéifor information regarding executi
officers of the Company.

The Section under the heading “Committees of ther8of Directors -Audit Committee” of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein
by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct ands&ttat applies to all employees and members oBoard of Directors. We have
also adopted a separate Code of Ethics for our @0Senior Financial Officers. A copy of both Codeavailable free of charge on our
corporate website, which is http://www.highwoodsncdVe intend to satisfy the disclosure requirememnter Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding
an amendment to, or a waiver from, a provisiorhese Codes of Ethics by posting such informationumnwebsite as identified above. Our
website also includes our board committee chasaedsour corporate governance guidelines. Alteretjwyou may request any of this
information free of charge by writing to us at Highods Properties, Inc., Investor Relations, 310@&ree Court, Suite 600, Raleigh, NC
27604.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The section under the heading “Election of Diregt@ntitled “Compensation of Directors” of the Pydtatement and the section titled
“Executive Compensation” of the Proxy Statementiacerporated herein by reference except for tHid820ear-End Option Values table,
which is superseded by the table below.

The following table sets forth information with pest to options held by the following Named ExeariiDfficers as of December 31,
2003:

Value of
Number of Unexercised In-the-Money
Securities Underlying Options at 2003 Year-End
Options at 2003 Year-End () @.0)
Exercisable Unexercisabl¢ Unexercisable
Name Exercisable
Ronald P. Gibso 365,69 507,72! $1,266,301  $1,324,84
Edward J. Fritscl 264,79: 249,42° $1,025,141 $ 646,71t
Carman J. Liuzz 213,59! 193,12° $ 936,72¢ $ 500,78
Mack D. Pridgen llI 176,29 172,62( $ 792,65 $ 447,57(
Gene H. Anderso 42,51¢ 94,11 $ 4552( $ 153,48:
Michael E. Harris 122,71 94,11: $ 295,13. $ 241,68:

@  Options include incentive stock options and nonifjedl stock options. Options have varying vestingedules of no less than four year
ratable vesting

@  Represents the difference between a closing pfi&2®40 per share of common stock on Decembe2@13 and the options’ exercise
prices as adjusted by any Dividend Equivalent R{* DER") as described in (3) belo

® 196,660 nonqualified stock options granted to tlaensd Executive Officers in 1997 were accompanied B¥ER pursuant to the 1997
Performance Award Plan. The Plan provided thdtdftbtal return on a share of common stock exceedain thresholds during the
five-year vesting period ending in 2002, the exerciggepf such stock options with a DER will be reddicmder a formula that is bas
on dividends and other distributions that are maitle respect to such a share during the periodrivéigg on the date of grant and
ending upon exercise of such stock option. Baseith@mperformance of the common stock during the-figar vesting period and the
level of dividends paid on common stock through &weber 31, 2003, the exercise price per share @asreduced by $8.12. As of
December 31, 2003, 166,968 of these options hettidbfNamed Executive Officers remain outstand
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The sections under the headings “Voting Securéies Principal Stockholders” and “Equity Compensafdan Information” of the
Proxy Statement are incorporated herein by referenc

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS
The section under the heading “Related Party Trdiwges” of the Proxy Statement is incorporated meby reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The section under the heading “Ratification of Aippment of Independent Auditors” of the Proxy Staémt is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(&) List of Documents Filed as a Part of this Re|

Consolidated Financial Statements, ConsolidBiedncial Statement Schedules and Report of IndbgearRegistered Public

Accounting Firm. See Index on Pag-1

1.
2.
Ex. FN
31 (1)
32 (2
41 (2)
42 (3)
43 (4
4.4 (5)
45 (6)
46 (6)
47 (6)
48 (7)
49 (8)
4.1C (17)
101 (2)
102 (4)
10.3 (5)
10.4  (6)
105 (9)
10.6 (10)
10.7 (11)
10.8 (8)
10.9 (12)
10.1C (13)
10.11 (14)

Exhibits

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatiorhef €Compan
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Comg
Specimen of certificate representing shares of Com8tock

Indenture among the Operating Partnership, the @ognpnd First Union National Bank of North Carolateted as of
December 1, 199

Specimen of certificate representing 8 5/8% Seki€&umulative Redeemable Preferred Shi
Specimen of certificate representing 8% Series Biative Redeemable Preferred Sh
Specimen of certificate representing 8% Series bn@lative Redeemable Preferred She

Specimen of Depositary Receipt evidencing the DitgrysShares each representing 1/10 of an 8% SBriésmulative
Redeemable Preferred Sh:

Deposit Agreement, dated April 23, 1998, betweenGbmpany and First Union National Bank, as preféshare deposita
Rights Agreement, dated as of October 6, 1997, dmtvthe Company and First Union National Bankjg#s agen
Agreement to furnish certain instruments defining tights of lon-term debt holder

Amendment No. 1, dated as of October 7, 2003,adlights Agreement, dated as of October 7, 199Wedmn the Company
and Wachovia Bank, N.A., as rights ag

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partifestthe Operating Partnerst

Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedrartnership of the Operating Partnership vefipect to Series A
Preferred Unit:

Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedri*artnership of the Operating Partnership véfipect to Series B
Preferred Unit:

Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedrRartnership of the Operating Partnership véfipect to Series D
Preferred Unit:

Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement oftedri*artnership of the Operating Partnership veipect to certain
rights of limited partners upon a change of cor

Form of Registration Rights and Lockup Agreemenbtagithe Company and the Holders named therein hndgceement is
signed by all Common Unit holde

Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option
1997 Performance Award PI;
Form of Executive Supplemental Employment Agreenhbemiveen the Company and Named Executive Offi

Form of warrants to purchase Common Stock of the@amy issued to John L. Turner, William T. Wilsdhand John E.
Reece I

Form of warrants to purchase Common Stock of the@amy issued to W. Brian Reames, John W. EakinTdotnas S. Smit
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Ex.

10.1zZ
10.1:

21
23
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

1)

()
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)
(15)

(16)
(17)

(b)

FN  Description

(15) 1999 Shareholder Value PI

(16) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among HigtisyBealty Limited Partnership, Highwoods Properties., the
Subsidiaries named therein and the Lenders naneeelith dated as of July 17, 20

(12) Schedule of subsidiaries of the Compi
Consent of Ernst & Young LL
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saés-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saés-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sael-Oxley Act

Filed as part of the Company’s Current ReparForm 8-K dated September 25, 1997 and amendedibies supplementary filed as
part of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-kedaDctober 4, 1997 and articles supplementarg &t part of the Company’s
Current Report on Form-K dated April 20, 1998, each of which is incorpedhherein by referenc

Filed as part of Registration Statemen-76952 dated February 28, 1994 with the SEC andymcated herein by referenc

Filed as part of the Operating Partner’s Current Report on Forn-K dated December 2, 1996 and incorporated herenefeyence
Filed as part of the Compg’s Current Report on Forn-K dated February 12, 1997 and incorporated hergireterence

Filed as part of the Compég’'s Current Report on Forn-K dated September 25, 1997 and incorporated hbgeiaference

Filed as part of the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 20, 1998 and incorporated herein dfgrence

Filed as part of the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K dated October 4, 1997 and incorporated hereirefgrence

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual ReporfFonm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997rmeatporated herein by
reference

Filed as part of the Operating Partnership’ai@rly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endeteB0, 1997 and incorporated herein
by reference

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual Reparform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 19@9h6maorporated herein by
reference

Filed as part of the Compg’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual Reparform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 19@i8rmaorporated herein by
reference

Filed as part of Registration Statemen-88364 with the SEC and incorporated herein by esfee.
Filed as part of the Compg’s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 1, 1996 and incorporated herein tfemence

Filed as part of the Company’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 199Gmeorporated herein by
reference

Filed as part of the Compg’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 and incotgbitzerein by referenc
Filed as part of the Company’s Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembe2@03 and incorporated herein by
reference

The Company will provide copies of any exhibit, nparitten request, at a cost of $.05 per page.

Reports on Form-K

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmy authorized, in the City of Raleigh, StaféNerth Carolina, on November 15, 2004.

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC

By: /s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Highwoods Properties, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Highwoods Properties, Inc. as of Deeerdl, 2003 and 2002, and
the related consolidated statements of incomekbktdders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the¢hyears in the period ended December
31, 2003. Our audits also included the financialeshent schedules listed in the Index at Item 19{a¢se financial statements and schedules
are the responsibility of the Company’s managent@ut.responsibility is to express an opinion orsthnancial statements and schedules
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
Highwoods Properties, Inc. at December 31, 200328402, and the consolidated results of its opematand its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@®nformity with U.S. generally accepted accoongtprinciples. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedules, when coreside relation to the basic financial statemeakeh as a whole, present fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Notes 1, 18 and 19 to the congelidiinancial statements, the accompanying corstaltdbalance sheets as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the related coasatidtatements of income, stockholders’ equitst,ash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003 anfihtrecial statement schedules listed in the Inatelxem 15(a) have been restat

In 2003, as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidénedcial statements, the Company adopted theigioms of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 145, “Rescission of FAS&enents No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Btat¢ No. 13, and Technical
Corrections.” In 2002, as discussed in Note 1h&donsolidated financial statements, the Compdoptad the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accountiogthe Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assét

/SI ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
October 22, 2004
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(% in thousands)

(Restated)
December 31,
2003 2002
Assets:
Real estate assets, at ct
Land and improvemen $ 428,77¢ $ 445,23!
Buildings and tenant improvemet 3,114,30 3,158,63!
Development in proces 7,48¢ 6,81¢
Land held for developme! 197,06« 179,70¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 21,81¢ 20,96¢
3,769,44! 3,811,36:
Less— accumulated depreciatic (545,239 (453,78f)
Net real estate asst 3,224,21. 3,357,571
Property held for sal 65,72¢ 166,70:
Cash and cash equivalel 21,55! 15,79¢
Restricted cas 4,60z 10,63¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,235$hd57, respectivel 18,17¢ 17,71
Notes receivabl 10,06¢ 9,93
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl 58,91 53,11:
Investments in unconsolidated affilial 62,41° 60,35:
Other asset:
Deferred leasing cos 103,35( 92,22t
Deferred financing cos 19,28¢ 17,21¢
Prepaid expenses and otl 10,44: 11,45¢
133,07¢ 120,89¢
Less— accumulated amortizatic (55,719 (43,639
Other assets, n 77,36 77,26(
Total Assets $3,543,02:  $3,769,08!
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
Mortgages and notes payal $1,717,76!  $1,793,76!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritied 101,60¢ 110,26(
Financing obligation 124,06: 121,01:
Cc-venture obligatior — 43,51
Total Liabilities 1,943,43 2,068,54.
Minority interest in the Operating Partners 127,77t 153,31¢
Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 autbdrshares
8 5/8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSHhquidation preference $1,000 pe
share), 104,945 shares issued and outstandingcaniber 31, 2003 and 20 104,94! 104,94!
8% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Skiageglation preference $25 per share),
6,900,000 shares issued and outstanding at Decehb2003 and 200 172,50( 172,50(
8% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Sliageglation preference $250 per shai
400,000 shares issued and outstanding at Decerib2033 and 200 100,00( 100,00(
Common stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares; 53,474,403 and 53,400,195 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2003 anz| 28§pectiveh 53t 534
Additional paic-in capital 1,408,88: 1,407,34
Distributions in excess of net earnir (306,939 (224,86
Accumulated other comprehensive i (3,650 (9,209

Deferred compensatic (4,469 (4,039



Total Stockholder Equity 1,471,81. 1,547,22!

Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $3,5643,02.  $3,769,08!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
($ in thousands, except per share amounts)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 antl 200
(Restated)

Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses
Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of assets held for L
General and administratiy
Litigation expenst

Total operating expens

Interest expense
Contractua
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Financing obligation

Other income/expense
Interest and other incon
Loss on debt extinguishmer
Gain on extinguishment of -venture obligatior

Income before disposition of property, co-venturex@ense, minority interest and equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on disposition of property, r
Cc-venture expens
Minority interest in the Operating Partners
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Income from discontinued operations, net of miryoriteresi
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net ofomitiy interest

Net income
Dividends on preferred stox
Excess of preferred stock carrying value over refpase valu

Net income available for common stockholder

Net income per common share — basic:
Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operatia
Net income

Weighted average common shares outstan- basic

Net income per common shar+ diluted:

2003 2002 2001
$504,69¢ $521,72! $535,37
178,41 169,56 169,05
142,10. 140,79 127,62
— 9,91¢ —
2526¢  26,19:  23,38¢
— 2,70( —
34578:  349,16: 320,06
119,52¢  118,95. 118,89
4,40¢ 3,46¢ 4,03¢
17,69 12,48t  11,84:
141,62  134,90¢ 134,77
6,22( 7,711 13,99:
(14,659 (37 (714)
16,30: — —
7,86¢ 7,338 13,271
25,16. 44,987  93,80¢
12,31¢ 22,69  21,91(
(4,589 (7,730 (6,859
(813 (4,347 (10,779
4,95: 5,64( 7,53¢
37,02¢  61,24. 105,61
2,42¢ 9,058  11,76:
8,487  11,58( —
10,91¢ 20,63t  11,76:
47,94 81,877  117,38(
(30,85;) (30,85 (31,500
— — 1,017
$ 17,090 $ 51,02 $ 86,89:
$ 01z $ 057 $ 1.3¢
0.2¢ 0.3¢ 0.2z
$ 03z $ 09 $ 1.61
52,94  52,97( 54,03




Income from continuing operatiol $ 01z $ 057 $ 1.37

Income from discontinued operatia 0.2C 0.3¢ 0.22
Net income $ 032 $ 09 $ 1.5¢
Weighted average common shares outstan- diluted 53,52 53,58 54,65
Dividends declared per common sh $ 18 $ 232 $ 231

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(% in thousands, except for number of common shares
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 antl 200

(Restated)
Number of Accumulated Distributions
Additional Other in Excess
Common Common SeriesA  SeriesB SeriesD  Paid-In Deferred Comprehensive of Net
Shares Stock Preferred Preferred Preferred  Capital Compensatior Loss Earnings Total

Balance at December 31, 2000 (as

reported) 58,124,200 $ 581 $ 125,00 $172,50( $ 100,00¢ $1,506,16. $ (2,48¢) $ — $ (110,209 $1,791,54!
Restatement adjustments — — — — — 18,29¢ (913) — (2,819 14,57
Balance at December 31, 2000

(restated) 58,124,20 581 125,00( 172,50 100,000 1,524,46! (3,402 — (113,02) 1,806,11!
Issuance of Common Stock 72,25¢ — — — — 2,63¢€ — — — 2,63¢
Common Stock dividenc — — — — — — — — (125,38() (125,38()
Preferred Stock dividends — — — — — — — — (31,500 (31,500
Adjustment to minority interest of

unitholders in the Operating

Partnership — — — — — 26 — — — 26
Issuance of deferred compensation 84,66: — — — — 3,03z (3,039 — — —
Amortization of deferred

compensatiol — — — — — — 2,24: — — 2,247
Repurchase of Common Stock (5,389,301 (52) — — — (134,707 — — — (134,75
Repurchase of Preferred Stock — — (20,05%) — — 542 — — 1,017 (18,507
Other comprehensive lo — — — — — — — (9,447 — (9,447)
Net income — — — — — — — — 117,38( 117,38(
Balance at December 31, 20 52,891,82 52¢ 104,94! 172,50( 100,00(  1,395,99- (4,190 (9,44)) (151,51() 1,608,82'
Issuance of Common Stock 249,29° 2 — — — 5,60¢ — — — 5,60¢
Conversion of Common Units to

Common Stock 257,12: 3 — — — 7,471 — — — 7,47¢
Common Stock dividenc — — — — — — — — (124,379 (124,379
Preferred Stock dividends — — — — — — — — (30,857) (30,857)
Adjustment to minority interest of

unitholders in the Operating

Partnership — — — — — (1,909 — — — 1,909
Issuance of deferred compensation 48,56: — — — — 1,357 (1,359 — — —
Amortization of deferred

compensation — — — — — — 1,512 — — 1,512
Repurchase of Common Stock (46,607 — — — — (1,179 — — — (1,179
Other comprehensive incon — — — — — — — 237 — 237
Net income — — — — — — — — 81,871 81,871
Balance at December 31, 2002 53,400,19 534 104,94! 172,50( 100,000  1,407,34: (4,035 (9,209 (224,869 1,547,22!
Issuance of Common Sto 99,03¢ 1 — — — 1,97¢ — — — 1,97¢
Conversion of Common Units to

Common Stock 318,24¢ 3 — — — 7,82¢ — — — 7,821
Common Stock dividenc — — — — — — — — (99,167 (99,167
Preferred Stock dividends — — — — — — — — (30,857) (30,857)
Adjustment to minority interest of

unitholders in the Operating

Partnership — — — — — (2,537) — — — (2,53%)
Issuance of deferred compensation 103,52( 1 — — — 3,551 (3,557) — — —
Amortization of deferred

compensation — — — — — — 3,11¢ — — 3,11¢
Repurchase of Common Stock (446,600 4) — — — (9,279 — — — (9,2779)
Other comprehensive income — — — — — — — 5,55¢ — 5,55¢
Net income — — — — — — — — 47,94 47,94
Balance at December 31, 2003 5347440 $ 535 $104,94! $172,50( $ 100,000 $1,408,88! $ (4,469 $ (3,650 $ (306,939 $1,471,81

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 antl 200
(Restated)

2003 2002 2001
Operating activities:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 37,02¢ $ 61,24.  $105,61¢
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing r@piens to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciatior 123,77: 122,30¢ 114,34
Amortization of lease commissio 18,33: 18,48: 13,28
Amortization of deferred compensati 3,11¢ 1,51z 2,24z
Amortization of deferred financing cos 4,40¢ 3,46¢ 4,03¢
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive 1,68¢ 1,54: 1,56¢
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia (4,952 (5,640 (7,536
Gain on disposition of property, n (12,316 (22,697 (21,910
Gain on extinguishment of -venture obligatior (16,307 — —
Impairment of assets held for L 9,91¢ —
Minority interest in the Operating Partners 813 4,34 10,77¢
Loss on debt extinguishmer 14,65: 37¢ 714
Transition loss upon adoption of SFAS No. : — — 55€
Loss on ineffective portion of derivative instrunte — — 55¢
Discontinued operatior 4,09( 15,71( 18,98¢
Change in financing obligatiot 3,66( 4,23¢ 4,711
Change in c-venture obligatior (987) 3,02¢ 3,18¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (2,260 9,82t (3,079
Prepaid expenses and other as 7,90z (7,606 3,53¢
Accrued straigt-line rents receivabl (8,576 (4,799 (12,319
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritied (13,14¢) (69%) 18,36¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 160,92: 214,56¢ 258,65:
Investing activities:
Additions to real estate ass (131,53) (133,15) (324,229)
Proceeds from disposition of real estate as 245,47 235,39¢ 157,00:
Repayments of amounts due from unconsolidatedzéd — 78¢€ 27,57(
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliat 6,241 9,09¢ 8,124
Investments in notes receival 3,574 6,50¢ 1,33¢
Other investing activitie 41F 2,52¢ (23,33)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activi 124,16« 121,16° (153,53)
Financing activities:
Distributions paid on common stock and common (111,809 (141,179 (142,889
Settlement of interest rate swap agreen 3,86¢ — —
Dividends paid on preferred sto (30,857 (30,857 (31,500
Repurchase of preferred stc — — (18,507
Net proceeds from the sale of common si 1,97¢ 5,60¢ 2,63¢
Repurchase of common stock and common 1 (29,077) (4,409 (148,379
Borrowings on revolving loar 279,50( 211,50( 594,00(
Repayment of revolving loat (282,000 (382,500 (365,50()
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payi 247,50( 74,537 80,38(
Repayment of mortgages and notes pay (320,999 (94,617 (176,919
Borrowings on financing obligatior — 41,22¢ —
Payments on financing obligatio (609) (53¢ (46¢)
Contributions from c-venture partne — — 1,24¢
Payments on «-venture obligatiot (26,227) — —
Additions to deferred financing cos (4,339 (1,519 (1,417
Payments on debt extinguishme (16,287 (37¢) (7149



Net cash used in financing activiti (279,33) (323,11 (208,01()
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis. 5,75k 12,62: (102,89)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the 15,79¢ 3,17¢ 106,06!
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the $ 2155 $ 1579%¢ $ 3,17/

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(% in thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 antl 200
(Restated)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

2003 2002 2001

Cash paid for intere: $125,35° $128,89. $138,81!

Supplemental disclosure of no-cash investing and financing activities

The following table summarizes the net assets aedsubject to mortgage notes payable and othe-cash transaction

2003 2002 2001
Assets:
Net real estate asst $ (52) $ 2955 $ 6,00¢
Cash and cash equivalel — 353 40
Accounts receivabl (1,797 13¢ —
Notes receivabl 3,70¢ 447 (4,169
Investment in unconsolidated affiliat 3,801 (1,179 2,29¢
Deferred financing cos — — —
Prepaid and othe 85E — (219
$ 6,51t $ 29,31t $ 3,961
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payal $ — $2336¢ $ 3,92¢
Financing obligatior — (1,779
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied 6,51¢ 6,93¢ (748
$ 6,51f $ 30,30C $ 1,40C
Minority Interest and Stockholders’ Equity: $ — $ (982 $ 2,561

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2003
(Restated)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P OLICIES
Description of the Company

Highwoods Properties, Inc. and its consolidatecsslidries (the “Company”) is a self-administered aelf-managed real estate
investment trust (“REIT”) that operates in the $matstern and midwestern United States. The Compavholly owned assets include: 465
in-service office, industrial and retail propertied 3 apartment units; 1,305 acres of undeveloged suitable for future development; and an
additional four properties under development (abiely, the “Wholly Owned Properties”).

The Company conducts substantially all of its atiéis through, and substantially all of its intdsei® the properties are held directly or
indirectly by, Highwoods Realty Limited Partnersifibpe “Operating Partnership”). The Company issbke general partner of the Operating
Partnership. At December 31, 2003, the Company dvid€.0% of the preferred partnership interestseféd?red Units”) and 89.5% of the
common partnership interests (“Common Units”) ia @perating Partnership. Holders of Common Unitg redeem them for the cash value
of one share of the Company’s common stock, $.0vg@ae (the “Common Stock”), or, at the Comparggsion, one share of Common
Stock. In 2003, the Company redeemed in cash frmiteld partners (including certain officers andedtors of the Company) 453,635
Common Units and converted 318,249 Common Unihtoes of Common Stock, which increased the pexgerdf Common Units owned
by the Company from 88.4% at December 31, 20031698 at December 31, 2003. The Company’s weightechge ownership of Common
Units during the year ended December 31, 2003 8898 The three series of Preferred Units in ther@jng Partnership were issued to the
Company in connection with the Company’s threeqarefl stock offerings in 1997 and 1998. The netqeds raised from each of the three
preferred stock issuances were contributed by tmagany to the Operating Partnership in exchangeh®Preferred Units. The terms of e
series of Preferred Units generally parallel thenteof the respective Preferred Stock as to divddeliquidation and redemption rights as
more fully described in Note 9.

Basis of Presentation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Compaiiude the Operating Partnership, wholly ownehlsidiaries and those
subsidiaries in which the Company owns a majoritiing interest with the ability to control operatgof the subsidiaries and where no
approval, veto or other important rights have bgamted to the minority stockholders. In accordanith Statement of Position 78-9,
“Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventyrdse Company consolidates partnerships, jointwes and limited liability companies
when the Company controls the major operating arahtial policies of the entity through majority ogrship or in its capacity as general
partner or managing member. The Company does msbtidate entities where the other interest holtake important rights, including
approving decisions to encumber the entities witht dnd acquire or dispose of properties. In amttithe Company consolidates those
entities, if any, where the Company is deemed tthberimary beneficiary in a variable interestitgrias defined by FASB Interpretation N
46 (revised December 2003) “Consolidation of Vaadbterest Entities” (“FIN 467)). All significanintercompany transactions and accounts
have been eliminated.

The Company has elected and expects to contingeaiify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 86thefinternal Revenue Code of
1986 (the “Code”), as amended. As a REIT, the Campgenerally will not be subject to federal or steiicome taxes on its net income that it
distributes to stockholders. Continued qualificatas a REIT depends on the Company’s ability tisfyahe dividend distribution tests, stock
ownership requirements and various other qualificatests prescribed in the Code. In June 1994Ctmapany formed a taxable REIT
subsidiary, as permitted under the Code, througitwit conducts certain business activities; thebde REIT subsidiary is subject to federal
and state income taxes on its net taxable incordétenCompany records provisions for such taxethe@xtent required, based on its incc
recognized for financial statement purposes, irnplythe effects of temporary differences betwearhsaocome and that recognized for tax
purposes.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

Restated and Reclassified Financial DataAs more fully described in Notes 18 and 19, thesadidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the years dbdeember 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 have been restatefiect adjustments for certain
asset sales in which the Company has continuinghmlement to conform with paragraphs 25 through £8tatement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 66, “Accounting for SalesR#fal Estate,” accounting for minority interesthe net income of the Operating
Partnership, accounting for a debt retirement,@thdr matters. The adjustments resulted in theaflg increases/(decreases) in net income
and in net income per share — basic and net ing@nehare — diluted ($ in thousands, except peesha

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net income $(7,75]) $(11,589) $(13,83))
Net income per sha~ basic $(0.15) $ (0.2 $ (0.29
Net income per shar diluted $(0.19 $ (029 $ (0.29

The Company also made certain reclassificatiorsadlto discontinued operations and for presemtati@ertain tenant reimbursements
as revenue, rather than a reduction of operatipgreses. Certain amounts originally reported inlteeember 31, 2002 and 2001 financial
statements have been reclassified to conform t®#wember 31, 2003 presentation and accountindi$eontinued operations. (See Note 12
for further discussion.) These reclassificationd ha effect on net income or stockholders’ equéyeeviously reported.

Minority interest in the Operating Partnership. Minority interest in the accompanying Consolidakédancial Statements relates to
the common ownership interests in the OperatingnBeship owned by various individuals and entitigser than the Company. As of
December 31, 2003, the minority interest in the 1@fieg Partnership consisted of 6.2 million Comnunits. As described in Note 18, the
Company adjusted minority interest in the net inearhthe Operating Partnership. Minority interesttie net income of the Operating
Partnership is computed by applying the weighteztaye percentage of Common Units not owned by trep@ny (as a percent of the total
number of outstanding Common Units) to the Opegaftartnership’s net income after deducting distidms on Preferred Units. The result is
the amount of minority interest expense recordedHe period. In addition, when a common unitholgieteems a Common Unit for a shar
Common Stock or cash, the minority interest is ceduand the Company’s share in the Operating RaHipels increased. At the end of each
reporting period, the Company determines the amihattrepresents the minority unitholders’ sharthefnet assets (at book value) of the
Operating Partnership and compares this amouhgtainority interest balance that resulted fromgeations during the period involving
minority interest. The Company adjusts the minaintgrest liability to the computed share of netedis with an offsetting adjustment to the
Company’s paid in capital.

Following is the minority interest in the net inceraf the Operating Partnership ($ in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Minority Interest in continuing operatiol $ 81: $4,347 $10,77¢
Amount related to income from discontinued opereat 307 1,22¢ 1,66/
Amount related to gain on sale of discontinued afiens 1,06C 1,547 —
Total Minority Interest in net income of the OpémngtPartnershij $2,18C $7,11¢ $12,44(

Real estate asset#ll capitalizable costs related to the improvementeplacement of commercial real estate propeatiesapitalized.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-linghad over the estimated useful life of 40 yeardiiaitdings, 15 years for building
improvements and five to seven years for furnitfixtyures and equipment. Tenant improvements arertined over the life of the respective
leases, using the straight-line method. Real eattets are stated at the lower of cost or faireyaf impaired.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

Expenditures directly related to the developmenlt @nstruction of real estate assets are includeet real estate assets and are stated
at cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Experdidirectly related to the leasing of properéiesincluded in other assets and are stated
at cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Densapexpenditures include pre-construction costerdfal to the development of
properties, development and construction costsrest costs, real estate taxes, salaries andaibty incurred during the period of
development. Interest costs are capitalized umgiluilding is ready for its intended use. Constomcexpenditures include appropriate ger
and administrative costs, including compensati@uiired in connection with specific constructionjpots. Leasing expenditures include
appropriate general and administrative costs, @iolyicompensation incurred in connection with sastidly securing leases on the
properties. Estimated costs related to unsuccessfivities are expensed as incurred. If the Comgaassumptions regarding the successful
efforts of development, construction and leasireiacorrect, the resulting adjustments could imgachings.

Upon the acquisition of real estate, the Compasgsses the fair value of acquired tangible assets&s land, buildings and tenant
improvements, intangible assets such as aboveelod lmarket leases, acquired-in place leases dmat mtentified intangible assets and
assumed liabilities in accordance with SFAS No., 1Blisiness Combinations.” The Company allocatespihrchase price to the acquired
assets and assumed liabilities based on theiiveltir values. The Company assesses and condaiexalue based on estimated cash flow
projections that utilize appropriate discount andépitalization rates as well as available maikitrmation. The fair value of the tangible
assets of an acquired property considers the \lthee property as if it were vacant.

Above and below market leases acquired are recatébir fair value. Fair value is calculatedlzs present value of the difference
between (1) the contractual amounts to be paidupmtgo each in-place lease and (2) managemetitsats of fair market lease rates for
each corresponding in-place lease, using a discatmthat reflects the risks associated with ¢asés acquired and measured over a period
equal to the remaining term of the lease for aboagket leases and the initial term plus the terramyf below-market fixed rate renewal
options for below-market leases. The capitalizeavakmarket lease values are amortized as a reduztioase rental revenue over the
remaining term of the respective leases and thi¢gatizpd below-market lease values are amortizeshascrease to base rental revenue over
the remaining term of the respective leases.

The value of in-place leases is based on the Coy'pamaluation of the specific characteristics a€le tenant’s lease. Factors
considered include estimates of carrying costsnduniypothetical expected lease-up periods, cumamket conditions and costs to execute
similar leases. In estimating carrying costs, toenany includes real estate taxes, insurance &red operating expenses and estimates of
lost rentals at market rates during the expectasklaip periods, depending on local market conditibnestimating costs to execute similar
leases, the Company considers tenant improvemeatsng commissions and legal and other relatedresgs. The value of an in-place lease
is amortized to depreciation and amortization egpesver the remaining term of the respective ldasetenant vacates its space prior to its
contractual expiration date, any unamortized baanfdts related intangible asset is expensed.

The value of a tenant relationship is based orCibrapany’s overall relationship with the respectimeant. Factors considered include
the tenant’s credit quality and expectations oféegenewals. The value of a tenant relationshgpnisrtized to expense over the initial term
and any renewal periods defined in the respectiaeds. Based on the Company’s acquisitions to ihat€Gompany has deemed tenant
relationships to be immaterial and have not alled¢a@ny amounts to this intangible asset.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

Real estate and leasehold improvements are cksifi long-lived assets held for sale or as lorgglassets to be held for use. Real
estate is classified as held for sale when ther@iset forth in SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for tinepairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” are satisfied; this determination requimesmagement to make estimates and assumptionsgimglassessing the probability that
potential sales transactions may or may not odsttual results could differ from those assumptidnsaccordance with SFAS No. 144, the
Company records assets held for sale at the lofwbleaarrying amount or estimated fair value. alue of assets held for sale is equal to
the estimated or contracted sales price with anpialdouyer less costs to sell. The impairment isshe amount by which the carrying amc
exceeds the estimated fair value. With respecsseta classified as held for use, if events or ggsun circumstances, such as a significant
decline in occupancy and change in use, indicatethie carrying value may be impaired, an impaitna@alysis is performed. Such analysis
consists of determining whether the asset’s cagrgimount will be recovered from its undiscountetitested future operating cash flows.
These cash flows are estimated based on a numhssoinptions that are subject to economic and rankertainties including, among
others, demand for space, competition for tenahinges in market rental rates and costs to opeaate property. If the carrying amount of a
held for use asset exceeds the sum of its undiseddnture operating cash flows, an impairment lessld be recorded for the difference
between estimated fair value of the asset andehearrying amount. The Company generally estimidggedair value of assets held for use by
using discounted cash flow analysis; in some ircganappraisal information may be available angsél in addition to the discounted cash
flow analysis. As the factors used in generatirgs¢hcash flows are difficult to predict and argjettito future events that may alter the
Company’s assumptions, the discounted and/or uodiiged future operating cash flows estimated byQbmmpany in its impairment analyses
or those established by appraisal may not be agtliamd the Company may be required to recognizegtnpairment losses on its proper
held for sale and held for use.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had 0.44aniliquare feet of property, 88 apartment unitsl&&11 acres of land in various
transactions totaling $90.3 million classified asets held for sale. These real estate assetal@areying amount of $65.7 million.

Sales of real estateThe Company accounts for sales of real estatedordance with SFAS No. 66. For sales transactiosstimg the
requirements of SFAS No. 66 for full profit recotioim, the related assets and liabilities are rerddu@m the balance sheet and the resultant
gain or loss is recorded in the period the transaaioses. For sales transactions that do not theatriteria for full profit recognition, the
Company accounts for the transactions in accordaitbethe methods specified in SFAS No. 66. Foesatansactions with continuing
involvement after the sale, if the continuing inxerhent with the property is limited by the termghuf sales contract, profit is recognized at
the time of sale and is reduced by the maximum sxmoto loss related to the nature of the contmpuimolvement. Sales to entities in which
the Company has an interest are accounted forciordance with partial sale accounting provisionseigorth in SFAS No. 66.

For sales transactions that do not meet saleierisrset forth in SFAS No. 66, the Company evahiiie nature of the continuing
involvement, including put and call provisionspiesent, and accounts for the transaction as ading arrangement, profit-sharing
arrangement or other alternate method of accounditiger than as a sale, based on the nature amat @ftthe continuing involvement. Some
transactions may have numerous forms of continimmglvement. In those cases, the Company deternvithésh method is most appropriate
based on the substance of the transaction.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

If the Company has an obligation to repurchasetbperty at a higher price or at a future indeteable value (such as fair market
value), or the Company guarantees the return dtiyer’s investment or a return on that investnfienan extended period, the Company
accounts for such transaction as a financing tiwsa If the Company has an option to repurchheegptoperty at a higher price and it is
likely the Company will exercise this option, tmartsaction is accounted for as a financing. K itmlikely such option will be exercised, the
transaction is accounted for under the deposit atethn profit-sharing method. If the Company ha®hligation or option to repurchase at a
lower price, the transaction is accounted for Eaaing arrangement. At such time as these repseabisligations expire, a sale will be
recorded and gain recognized.

For transactions treated as financings, the Compaegrds the amounts received from the buyer asmading obligation, and continues
to keep the property and related accounts recavdets books. The results of operations of the priyp net of expenses other than
depreciation (net operating income), are refleetetinterest expense” on the financing obligatibthe transaction includes an obligation or
option to repurchase the asset at a higher prilthtianal interest is recorded to accrete the lighto the repurchase price. For options or
obligations to repurchase the asset at fair maskiele at the end of each reporting period, thertwaaf the liability is adjusted to equal the
current fair value to the extent fair value excetbgsoriginal financing obligation. This adjustménamortized over the expected term until
termination of the option or obligation.

If the Company retains an interest in the buyer@modides certain rent guarantees or other formmupport where the maximum
exposure to loss exceeds the gain, the Companyatcfor such transaction as a profit-sharing ajeament. For transactions treated as profit-
sharing arrangements, the Company records a tadittng obligation for the amount of equity conttéd by the other partner and continues
to keep the property and related accounts recardets books. The results of operations of the priyp net of expenses other than
depreciation (net operating income), are alloctetie other partner for their percentage inteaiestreflected as “co-venture expense” in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. laréuperiods, a sale is recorded and profit is reizegl when the remaining maximum
exposure to loss is reduced below the amount of defierred.

Discontinued operations.Properties that are sold or classified as helddte are classified as discontinued operationsdordance
with SFAS No. 144, provided that (1) the operatiand cash flows of the property will be eliminafssm the ongoing operations of the
Company and (2) the Company will not have any $icgnt continuing involvement in the operationgtud property after it is sold. If the
property is sold to a joint venture in which then@many retains an interest, the property will noabeounted for as a discontinued operation
due to the Company’s ongoing interest in the oparatthrough its joint venture interest. If the Guamy is retained to provide property
management, leasing and/or other services forribygepty owner after the sale, the property will hetaccounted for as a discontinued
operation due to the Company’s ongoing interegthiénoperations through its providing of such sarsicThe operations of properties
classified as held for sale in which the Companyld¢@otentially provide future property managemésdsing and/or other services are also
not classified as discontinued operations. See Wat®r further discussion.

Investments in joint ventures.The Company accounts for its investments in undateted affiliates under the equity method of
accounting as the Company exercises significahtente, but does not control the major operatirdyfarancial policies of the entity
regarding encumbering the entities with debt amdattquisition or disposal of properties. Thesesiments are initially recorded at cost, as
investments in unconsolidated affiliates, and atesequently adjusted for equity in earnings anti castributions and distributions. To the
extent the Company contributes assets to a joimiuve, the difference between the Company’s casishia the assets and basis reflected at
the joint venture level is amortized over the bfethe related asset and included in the Compashease of equity in net income of the joint
venture.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

From time to time, the Company contributes realtesassets to a joint venture in exchange for abewation of cash and an equity
interest in the venture. The Company assessesritsaing involvement in the joint venture and amats for the transaction according to the
nature and extent of the involvement. If substdigtall the risks and rewards of ownership havasfarred, a gain is recognized to the extent
of the third party investor’s interest and the Campaccounts for its interest in the joint ventuneler the equity method of accounting as an
unconsolidated affiliate as described in the pregedaragraph. However, if substantially all treks and rewards have not transferred,
depending upon the nature and extent of the invoére, the transaction is accounted for as a fimgner profit-sharing arrangement or other
alternate method of accounting rather than aseawsaler paragraph 25 through 29 of SFAS No. 68lamdssets, liabilities and operations of
such joint ventures are included on the CompangissGlidated Financial Statements. See also “Sélesabestate” above.

Additionally, the joint ventures will frequently bmw money on their own behalf to finance the astjioin of, and/or leverage the return
upon, the properties being acquired by the joimtwe or to build or acquire additional buildin@aich borrowings are typically on a non-
recourse or limited recourse basis. The Compangradiy is not liable for the debts of its joint tares, except to the extent of the Company’
equity investment, unless the Company has direethranteed any of that debt. (See Note 15 for dudiiscussion). In most cases, the
Company and/or its joint venture partners are megluio guarantee customary limited exceptions tonecourse liability in non-recourse
loans.

Rental and other revenuesRental and other revenues consist of the follow#hin thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Contractual rent $439,167 $461,81¢ $468,40t
Straigh-line rental income, ne 8,44¢ 4,43¢ 10,53(
Property operating cost recovery inco 41,34 45,70¢ 44,36
Termination fee: 6,04: 4,361 3,421
Fee income¢ 3,43¢ 3,292 3,92¢
Other miscellaneous operating inco 6,271 2,10¢ 4,72¢

$504,69¢ $521,72¢ $535,37!

In accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accaun®rinciples (“GAAP”), rental revenue is recogmizen a straight-line basis over
the terms of the respective leases. This meanswithtrespect to a particular lease, actual anmhitied in accordance with the lease during
any given period may be higher or lower than theam of rental revenue recognized for the periottraed straight-line rents receivable
represents the amount by which straight-line remtanue exceeds rents currently billed in accareavith lease agreements. Termination
fees are recognized as revenue when the followdngdonditions are met: a fully executed lease igation agreement has been delivered,
the tenant has vacated the space, the amount tdahie determinable, and collectibility of the isgeasonably assured.

Property operating cost recoveries from tenantsdget reimbursements) are determined on a leadeasg-basis. The most common
types of cost reimbursements in the Company’s fease common area maintenance (“CAM”) and reateséxes, where the tenant pays its
pro-rata share of operating and administrative Bgpg and real estate taxes.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

Many tenants make monthly fixed payments of CAM) estate taxes and other cost reimbursement itEhesCompany records these
payments as income each month. The Company makesradnts, positive or negative, to cost recovecpme to adjust the recorded
amounts to the Company’s best estimate of the &inadunts to be billed and collected with respethéocost reimbursements. After the end
of the calendar year, the Company computes eaentierfinal cost reimbursements and, after congideemounts paid by the tenants during
the year, issues a bill or credit for the apprdapremount. The differences between the amountddiiss previously received payments and
the accrual adjustment are recorded as increastecozases to cost recovery income when the filisldoe prepared. The net amounts of any
such adjustments have not been material in anlyeoyéars presented.

Operating expenses — rental property and otheRRental property and other operating expenses dafdise following ($ in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Maintenance, cleaning and general builc $ 63,72t $ 63,38: $ 61,85«
Utility, insurance and real estate ta: 92,47: 90,16 89,14¢
Division and allocated administrati' 13,72¢ 11,78: 13,30¢
Other miscellaneous operating exper 8,491 4,22¢ 4,751

$178,41: $169,56: $169,05¢

Allowance for doubtful accounts.Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowancarfaunts that may become uncollectible in the
future. The Company’s receivable balance is coredriimarily of rents and operating cost recovedi@s from tenants as well as accrued
rental rate increases to be received over thefifbe existing leases. The Company regularly extelithe adequacy of its allowance for
doubtful accounts. The evaluation primarily corssigtreviewing past due account balances and cerisgisuch factors as the credit quality
of the Company’s tenants, historical trends oftémant and/or other debtor, current economic camditand changes in customer payment
terms. Additionally, with respect to tenants in kauptcy, the Company estimates the expected regdliesugh bankruptcy claims and
increases the allowance for amounts deemed untiblledf the Company’s assumptions regarding thiéectibility of accounts receivable
prove incorrect, the Company could experience waffs of accounts receivable or accrued straighg-tients receivable in excess of its
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Cash equivalentsThe Company considers highly liquid investmentdwaitmaturity of three months or less when purchésée cash
equivalents.

Restricted cash Restricted cash includes security deposits foQbmmpany’s commercial properties and constructidaited escrows.
In addition, the Company maintains escrow and weskmds for debt service, real estate taxes aoggpty insurance established pursuant to
certain mortgage financing arrangements.

Income taxes.The Company is a REIT for federal income tax pugso#\ corporate REIT is a legal entity that holelsl estate assets
and, through the payment of dividends to stockhslde permitted to reduce or avoid the paymeriedéral and state income taxes at the
corporate level. As of December 31, 2003, to mairgaalification as a REIT, the Company was reqliedistribute to its stockholders at
least 90.0% of its REIT taxable income, excludiagital gains.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF B USINESS ANDS IGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLIciEs - Continued

No provision has been made for federal and stateie taxes during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2001 because the
Company qualified as a REIT, distributed the neamgsamount of taxable income and, therefore, irexlino income tax expense during the
periods. In addition, no provision has been reglioe federal and state income taxes with respetiid Company’s taxable REIT subsidiary
because it has had no taxable income for finamef@rting purposes since its formation.

Concentration of credit risk. Management of the Company performs ongoing credifuations of its tenants. As of December 31,
2003, the properties (excluding apartment unitsytach the Company holds title and has 100.0% oslhriprrights (the “Wholly Owned
Properties”) were leased to 2,407 tenants in 14@gdhic locations. The Company’s tenants engagenide variety of businesses. No single
tenant of the Company’s Wholly Owned Propertiesenily generates more than 3.4% of the Companyisaalated revenues. In addition
and as described in Note 15, in connection witlousrreal estate sales transactions, the Compangusanteed to the buyers the rental
income during various future periods due from Gafitne Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Capital ®imancial Services, Inc. The maximum
exposure under these guarantees related to CapitaBervices, Inc. aggregated $19.0 million at Béomr 31, 2003.

Stock compensationThe Company generally grants stock options fokedinumber of shares to employees with an exepeise
equal to the fair value of the shares at the datgant. As described in Note 14, the Company ebkéod follow Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issd¢o Employees” and related interpretations in aatiag for its stock options issued
through December 31, 2002. During 2002, the Fireatcounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SA& 148 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosuretwprovides methods of transition to the fair vabased method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation. This standard istig#dor financial statements issued for fiscalrgdaeginning after December 15, 2002.
The Company elected the prospective method aseteby SFAS No. 148 for options issued on or af@uary 1, 2003.

Stock granted under the Company’s Shareholder \alale and certain options accompanied by a dividendvalent right granted
under the 1997 Performance Award Plan are accotioteging variable plan accounting. See Note &daher discussion.

Restricted stock grants.The Company has a long-term incentive plan undectwih makes annual grants of restricted shares of
Common Stock. The restricted shares generally3@8&6 three years from date of grant and the reim@bB0.0% five years from date of
grant. Restricted shares issued through Decemh&@0BP? were recorded at market value on date oftgmunearned compensation expense
(recorded in Stockholder&quity), which is amortized to expense over thdingperiods. Restricted shares issued on or aftenary 1, 200
are measured at market value on date of grantertdjnized compensation expense over the vestimngdper

Fair value of derivative instruments.In the normal course of business, the Companyps$ed to the effect of interest rate changes.
The Company limits its exposure by following esistiiéd risk management policies and proceduresjdimd the use of derivatives. To
mitigate its exposure to unexpected changes inmdsteates, derivatives are used primarily to hexgenst rate movements on the Company’s
variable rate debt. The Company is required togeze all derivatives as either assets or liabiiiin its Consolidated Balance Sheets and to
measure those instruments at fair value. Changsrimalue will affect either stockholders’ equity net income depending on whether the
derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for antiog purposes.

To determine the fair value of derivative instrunisetthe Company uses a variety of methods and gemms that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at each balance gsteget For the majority of financial instruments;luding most derivatives, standard market
conventions and techniques such as discountedfloashnalysis, option pricing models, replacemeargt@and termination cost are used to
determine fair value. All methods of assessingvalue result in a general approximation of valrg] such value may never actually be
realized.
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Earnings per share. The Company computes earnings per share in ameoedvith SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing netrimreavailable for common stockholders by the weidjlaeerage number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computgide same manner except that the denominatamigrised of the weighted average
number of shares of Common Stock plus the dilutiffect of options, warrants and convertible se@sibutstanding, using the “treasury
stock” method. Earnings per share data is requiaedll periods for which an income statement anmary of earnings is presented,
including summaries outside the basic financiaksteents.

Use of estimatesThe preparation of financial statements in accatdamith GAAP requires management to make estineatds
assumptions that affect the amounts reported ifinlacial statements and accompanying notes. Ao#salts could differ from those
estimates.

Impact of Newly Adopted and Issued Accounting Stanards

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Resin of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, AmemdioieFASB Statement No.
13, and Technical Corrections,” which rescindsetant No. 4, which required all gains and lossas fthe extinguishment of debt to be
aggregated and, if material, classified as an exdiaary item, net of related income tax effecte fimovisions of SFAS No. 145 related to the
rescission of Statement No. 4 are effective foatfitial statements issued for fiscal years beginaftey May 15, 2002. The Statement also
requires gains and losses from the extinguishmiedelot classified as an extraordinary item in pgeriods presented that do not meet the
criteria in APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Réswf Operations — Reporting the Effects of thefisal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently OccurringeBts and Transactions” for classification as ana@xdinary item to also be reclassified.
The Company adopted SFAS No. 145 in the first guart 2003. In accordance with the statement, thi@any reclassified losses on early
extinguishment of debt of $0.4 million and $0.7Iril, respectively, from an extraordinary item tber expense in its Consolidated
Statements of Income for the years ended Decenih&@0®2 and 2001.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation 5 “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Reguients for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness oe@t’ (“FIN 45”), which changes the accounting fand disclosure of, certain guarantees.
Beginning with transactions entered into after Delger 31, 2002, certain guarantees are to be red@tdair value, which differs from prior
practice, under which a liability was recorded onlyen a loss was probable and could be reasonatityated. In general, the change applies
to contracts or indemnification agreements thatingently require the Company to make paymentsgaaanteed third party based on
changes in an underlying asset, liability or eqeiygurity of the guaranteed party. However, a quaeaor an indemnification whose existe
prevents the guarantor from being able to eitheoawt for a transaction as the sale of an asseisthelated to the underlying guarantee or
recognize in earnings the profit from that sal@sextion is exempt from FIN 45. The disclosure nexments in FIN 45 are effective for
interim and annual periods ending after Decembe@62. The Company adopted the accounting antbdises requirements under FIN 45
on January 1, 2003. As of December 31, 2003, thef@oy had various guarantees as further discusdedte 15.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148¢ctlating for Stock-Based Compensation - Transiéiod Disclosure,” which
amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Baseth@ensation” to provide alternative methods of titiors for a voluntary change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stockedaamployee compensation. In addition, the Statearaends the disclosure requirements
of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosurekath annual and interim financial statements egldb the method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation and the effébeafiethod used on reported results. The stanslaftective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after Decembe2082. On January 1, 2003, the Company adoptefaihealue recognition provision
prospectively for all awards granted on or aftetuday 1, 2003. Under this provision, total compé&nsaexpense related to stock options is
determined using the fair value of the stock ogion the date of grant and is recognized on agéitrdine basis over the option vesting
period. The Company continues to account for stgtlons issued prior to January 1, 2003 under thiéamce of APB Opinion No. 25. (See
Note 14 for further discussior
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In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Constilidtaof Variable Interest Entities” (“VIES”), theriary objective of which is to
provide guidance on the identification of entitieswhich control is achieved through means othantvoting rights and to determine when
and which business enterprise should consolidat®/ths. This new model applies when either (1)ebeity investors (if any) do not have a
controlling financial interest or (2) the equitwastment at risk is insufficient to finance theigra activities without additional financial
support. FIN 46 also requires additional disclosuiithe Company adopted the provisions of FIN 46HerCompany’s interests in VIEs
acquired subsequent to January 31, 2003. Accotdif$iN 46 (revised December 2003), entities shally.FIN 46 only to special-purpose
entities subject to FIN 46 no later than Decemlder2B03 and all other entities no later than M&th2004. Special-purpose entities are
defined as any entity whose activities are prirgaglated to securitizations or other forms of &dseked financings or single-lessee leasing
arrangements. Given that the Company has no signifivariable interests in special-purpose entifild 46 became effective March 31,
2004. As of December 31, 2003, it was initiallyibeéd that when FIN 46 became effective, it wasoeably possible the Company would
consolidate or disclose information about variabterest entities. Those entities would have caedisf two joint ventures with unrelated
investors in which the Company had retained 50.0%s3 minority equity interests. These joint veasuwere formed for the development,
management and leasing of office properties. HowereMarch 2, 2004, the Company acquired its gaigrinterests in these entities and
will now consolidate these entities, which elimemany FIN 46 impact that was previously anticidaidated to these joint ventures. (See
Note 2 for further discussion). FIN 46 requires @@mmpany to disclose its maximum exposure to less result of its involvement with the
entities, which would have been $6.0 million at Braber 31, 2003. The maximum exposure to loss assboth that the Company would be
required to fully satisfy its debt guarantees drat the Company experiences a complete loss efjiity investment in such entities.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amereht of Statement 133 on Derivative Instrumentstdedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting fodgve instruments, including certain derivatimstruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS N83, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments anddding Activities.” SFAS No. 149 is
effective for contracts entered into or modifieteaflune 30, 2003, with some exceptions, and fdging relationships designated after June
30, 2003. The guidance was applied prospectiveig. drovisions of SFAS No. 149 did not have an imhpacour financial condition and
results of operations. See Note 10 for furtherwismon of the Company’s derivative instruments.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158c¢ounting for Certain Financial Instruments withaCacteristics of Both Liabilities ai
Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes standards on the cles$ificand measurement of certain financial instmisith characteristics of ba
liabilities and equity. It requires that an issakassify a financial instrument that is within $isope as a liability (or an asset in certain
circumstances). SFAS No. 150 is effective for fitiahinstruments entered into or modified after My 2003, and otherwise is effective
July 1, 2003. It is to be implemented by reporting cumulative effect of a change in an accourpimgciple for financial instruments created
before the issuance date of SFAS No. 150 andesgisking at the beginning of the interim periodadbption. As of December 31, 2003, the
provisions of SFAS No. 150 do not have a matenmgddct on the Company’s financial condition or resof operations. The Company
initially believed the implementation of FIN 46March 31, 2004, as mentioned above, would resuttimority interest in VIESs, which woul
be classified as non-controlling interests in &rife entities under SFAS No. 150. However, on ¢fa2, 2004, the Company acquired its
partner’s interests in these entities, which elatéa the minority interest in VIEs that was expéatpon the implementation of FIN 46. (See
Note 2 for further discussion). Additionally, a Dctober 29, 2003 meeting, the FASB voted to dafiefinitely SFAS No. 150 as it relates
non-controlling interests in finite-life entities.
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During the past several years, the Company hasgfrarious joint ventures with unrelated investdtsee Company has retained
minority equity interests ranging from 12.50% to@@% in these joint ventures. The Company has ateduor its unconsolidated joint
ventures using the equity method of accountingaAasult, the assets and liabilities of these je@mtures for which the Company uses the
equity method of accounting are not included onGbenpany’s balance sheet. Two joint ventures atewted for as financing arrangements
and/or as profit-sharing arrangements pursuanFSSNo. 66, as described in Notes 3 and 18, andrditgly are not reflected in the tables
below.

The following tables set forth information regargliine Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures esrted on the joint ventures’
books at December 31, 2003 and 2002 ($ in thouyands

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Percent
Owned Total Total Total Total
Assets Debt Liabilities Assets Debt Liabilities

Balance Sheet Data

Board of Trade Investment Compa 490% $ 7,82¢ $ 74¢ $ 81t $ 7,77¢ $ 91¢ $ 1,071
Dallas County Partnefs 50.0(% 42,45¢ 38,00( 40,427 44,12¢ 38,90¢ 41,28¢
Dallas County Partners ® 50.0(% 18,25t 22,46 23,93« 18,90( 23,58 24,87
Fountain Thre&) 50.0(% 34,52 29,92/ 31,86( 37,15¢ 30,95¢ 32,58
RRHWoods, LLCY 50.0(% 81,321 67,307 70,707 82,64¢ 68,56 71,761
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( 26.5(% 8,57 — — 12,92¢ — 88¢
4600 Madison Associates, | 12.5(% 21,68« 16,72: 17,06( 23,25¢ 17,38t 17,89¢
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LI 22.81% 139,74 67,24 69,52: 140,69¢ 68,20¢ 70,48:
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L 42.9% 114,77 59,021 61,84. 118,05 59,68¢ 62,60:
Highwood:«-Markel Associates, LL( 50.00% 51,66 40,00( 41,12¢ 16,02¢ 11,62¢ 12,58
MG-HIW Peachtree Corners lll, LL 50.0(% — — — 3,80¢ 2,492 2,82%
MG-HIW Metrowest |, LLC 50.0(% 1,601 — — 1,601 — 3
MG-HIW Metrowest II, LLC 50.0(% 11,46( 7,32¢ 7,63¢ 9,60( 5,372 5,54(
Concourse Center Associates, L 50.0(% 14,48¢ 9,69¢ 9,93: 14,89¢ 9,85¢ 10,19:
Plaza Colonnade, LL! 50.0(% 26,08¢ 16,49¢ 17,43; 3,591 — 3
Total $574,46° $374,95. $392,30( $535,07( $337,56. $354,59(

Year ended December 31, 2003 Year ended December 31, 2002
Percent
Operating Net Operating Net
Owned Depr/ Income/ Depr/ Income/
Revenue Expenses Interest  Amort (Loss) Revenue Expenses Interest  Amort (Loss)

Income Statement Data.
Board of Trade Investment Compa 49.0(% $ 2,37:$ 1,60/$ 65% 40t $ 29€ $267(% 1647$ 83% 36:$% 577

Dallas County Partnefs 50.0(% 10,55: 5,50¢ 2,75¢ 1,917 367 11,04¢ 5,47C 2,66: 1,99¢ 91t
Dallas County Partners ® 50.0% 6,167 2,707 2,34 822 208 594¢ 252: 2,45: 1,062 (88)
Fountain Thre&) 50.0(% 6,93¢ 3,12¢ 2,22( 1,53t 55 6,88/ 2,85( 2,14 1,51¢ 37E
RRHWoods, LLCD 50.0(% 14,40. 7,46¢ 2,51C 3,45¢ 96¢ 13,74( 7,14t 3,397 3,61i (419)
Kessinger/Hunter, LL( 26.5(% 6,40z 4,72¢ — 71€ 95¢ 6,861 4,92i — 682 1,25¢
4600 Madison Associates, | 12.5(% 5,437 2,211 1,166 1,78¢ 275 522¢ 1,95/ 1,258 1,83¢ 17¢
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LI 22.81% 19,35¢ 5,51¢ 4,58¢ 3,46¢ 5,78¢ 20,30. 554¢ 4,65¢ 3,391 6,70¢

Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L 42.9% 15,89! 4,37¢ 4,591 4,03¢ 2,89: 16,85¢ 4,46t 4,63t 3,96¢ 3,791
Highwood«-Markel Associates, LL(  50.0% 3,34z 1,83¢ 1,13t 632 (25¢) 3,191 1,64: 1,03 562 (45)

MG-HIW Peachtree Corners Ill, LL  50.0(% 214 74 72 73 (5) — 55 — 44 (99)
MG-HIW Rocky Point, LLC 50.0(% — — — — — 1,81: 55k 271 24¢ 73¢
MG-HIW Metrowest I, LLC 50.0(% — 28 — — (28) — 26 — — (26)

MG-HIW Metrowest I, LLC 50.0(% 63& 411 16¢ 34¢ (2949) 30:¢ 24C 50 24¢€ (239



50.0(%
50.0(%

2,08
11

542 72¢€ 30¢ 50¢
2 — 4 5

Concourse Center Associates, L
Plaza Colonnade, LL!

2,11c 53¢
9 —

681 30z 591
— 2 7

Total $93,80¢ $40,137 $22,34 $19,50: $11,82¢

$96,97: $39,58¢ $23,31¢ $19,84( $14,22¢

@  Des Moines joint ventures.
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The following summarizes the formation and printietivities of the various unconsolidated jointtigres in which the Company ha
minority equity interest.

Board of Trade Investment Company; Kessinger/Huntey LLC; 4600 Madison Associates, LP

In connection with the Company’s merger with J.@Hdls Company in July 1998, the Company acquird8.6% interest in Board of
Trade Investment Company, a 30.0% interest in KgssiHunter, LLC, and a 12.5% interest in 4600 MadiAssociates, L.P. The Company
is the property manager for the Board of Trade $twment Company and 4600 Madison Associates, Lift.yentures, for which it received
fees of $0.1 million in each of 2003, 2002 and 200%&ddition, Kessinger/Hunter, LLC provides prdpenanagement, leasing and broker
services and provides certain construction relagdices to certain Wholly Owned Properties of@oenpany. Kessinger/Hunter, LLC
received $2.7 million, $3.0 million and $5.8 mitidrom the Company for these related services 082Q002 and 2001, respectively. During
2002, the Company decreased its ownership interéstssinger/Hunter, LLC to 26.5%.

Des Moines Joint Ventures

Also in connection with the Company’s merger wits.Nichols Company in July 1998, the Company seded to the interests of J.C.
Nichols in a strategic alliance with R&R Investdrsd. pursuant to which R&R Investors manages aadés certain joint venture proper
located in the Des Moines area. As a result ofhtkeger, the Company acquired an ownership intefes®.0% or more in a series of nine
joint ventures with R&R Investors (tt*‘Des Moines Joint Ventures”). Certain of these fambies were previously included in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. On June 2, 1883Company agreed with R&R Investors to reorgaiizrespective ownership interests
in the Des Moines Joint Ventures such that eacHdvown a 50.0% interest.

Highwoods DLF 98/29, L.P.

On March 15, 1999, the Company closed a transaatitnSchweiz-Deutschland-USA Dreilander BeteiliguBbjekt DLF 98/29-
Walker Fink-KG (“DLF") pursuant to which the Compasold or contributed certain office propertiesua at approximately $142.0 million
to a newly created limited partnership (the “DLFoint Venture”). DLF contributed approximately $&@nillion for a 77.19% interest in the
DLF I Joint Venture and the DLF | Joint Venture ftmaved approximately $71.0 million from third-patgnders. The Company retained the
remaining 22.81% interest in the DLF | Joint Verfueceived net cash proceeds of approximately $I2dlion and is the property manager
and leasing agent of the DLF | Joint Venture’s @rtips. At the formation of this joint venture, taimount DLF contributed in cash to the
venture was determined to be in excess of the atmeqgaired based on its ownership interest andherfihal agreed-upon value of the real
estate assets. The Company agreed to repay thisnanooDLF over 14 years. The payments of $7.2iomlivere discounted to net present
value of $3.8 million using a discount rate of 962pecified in the agreement. Payments of $0.5anilvere made in each of the years er
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, of which $0.Bamiln each year represented imputed interestesg@e
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Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L.P.

On May 9, 2000, the Company closed a transactioim Bieilander-Fonds 97/26 and 99/32 (“DLF 11") puasit to which the Company
contributed five in-service office properties engassing 570,000 rentable square feet and a 246@@dre-foot development project valued
at approximately $110.0 million to a newly crealiedted partnership (the “DLF Il Joint Venture”).LF Il contributed $24.0 million in cash
for a 40.0% ownership interest in the DLF Il Joifenture and the DLF Il Joint Venture borrowed apprately $50.0 million from a third-
party lender. The Company initially retained themagning 60.0% interest in the DLF 1l Joint Ventaned received net cash proceeds of
approximately $73.0 million. During 2001 and 2000Q,F 1l contributed an additional $10.7 million imsh to the DLF Il Joint Venture. As a
result, the Company decreased its ownership pergernb 42.93% as of December 31, 2001. The Comigahg property manager and
leasing agent of the DLF Il Joint Venture's prostand receives customary management and leasnguissions.

Highwoods-Markel Associates, LLC; Concourse CenteAssociates, LLC

During 1999 and 2001, the Company closed two tctitses with Highwoods-Markel Associates, LLC andnCourse Center
Associates, LLC pursuant to which the Company soldontributed certain office properties to newfgated limited liability companies.
Unrelated investors contributed cash for a 50.0%e»ghip interest in the joint ventures. The Compatagined the remaining 50.0% interest,
received net cash proceeds and is the propertygeaaad leasing agent of the joint ventures’ priger

On December 29, 2003, the Company contributed ditiaal three in-service office properties encosgiag 290,853 rentable square
feet valued at approximately $35.6 million to thigvoods-Markel, LLC joint venture. The joint vergls other partner, Markel Corporati
contributed an additional $3.6 million in cash taimain its 50.0% ownership interest and the jeerture borrowed and refinanced
approximately $40.0 million from a third party l@xdThe Company retained its 50.0% ownership istérethe joint venture and received
cash proceeds of approximately $31.9 million. Assult, the Company recognized $2.7 million of $8e4 million gain in accordance with
SFAS No. 66, which represents the extent of the @2om's interest sold to outside parties. The Conpsithe manager and leasing agent for
the properties and receives customary managemesafed leasing commissions.

MG-HIW Development Joint Ventures

On December 19, 2000, the Company formed or agrettm four development joint ventures with Denbaised Miller Global
Properties, LLC (“Miller Global”) pursuant to whicthe Company contributed approximately $7.5 milladrdevelopment land to various
newly created limited liability companies and ratad a 50.0% ownership interest. Three of thesé¢ y@intures have developed three
properties that encompass an aggregate of 347eb@@ble square feet and that cost approximately4$sdlion in the aggregate. The
Company was the developer of these propertiedditian, the Company is the property manager aasitg) agent for the properties in all of
these joint ventures. The fourth joint venture, MGA Metrowest I, LLC, did not develop a propertytthwlds development land.

On June 26, 2002, the Company acquired Miller Alsliaterest in MG-HIW Rocky Point, LLC, which owdeéHarborview Plaza, a
205,000 rentable square foot office property, tadits ownership interest in that entity to 100.086that time, the Company consolidated
the assets and liabilities and recorded revenugegpenses of that entity on a consolidated bé&ée also Note 3 for SF-HIW Harborview,
LP discussion).

As a part of the MG-HIW, LLC acquisition on July,Z803 (See Note 3), the Company was assignedm@liebal’s 50.0% equity
interest in MG-HIW Peachtree Corners lll, LLC, whimicreased the Compasyownership interest to 100.0%; the Company codatdd thi:
entity from July 29, 2003 on. The entity ownedrags property encompassing 53,896 square feetcdhstruction loan, which was made to
this joint venture by a wholly owned affiliate dfet Company, Highwoods Finance, LLC, had an intesgstof LIBOR plus 200 basis points
and was paid in full on July 29, 2003 in conneciidth the assignment.
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In July 2003, the Company entered into an opticoe@ment with its partner, Miller Global, to acquiidler Global's 50.0% interest in
the assets encompassing 87,832 square feet ofriyramel 7.0 acres of development land (zoned fedivelopment of 90,000 square feet of
office space) of MG-HIW Metrowest |, LLC and MG-HIWetrowest Il, LLC for $3.2 million, to bring itsvanership interest in those entities
to 100.0%.

On March 2, 2004, the Company exercised this optidhe assets of MG-HIW Metrowest I, LLC and MGWIMetrowest II, LLC for
$3.2 million. At that time, the Company accountedthe assets and liabilities and recorded reveandsxpenses of that entity on a
consolidated basis. A $7.4 million constructionnda fund the development of this property, of vih&7.3 million was outstanding at
December 31, 2003, was paid in full by the Compatnglosing. (See Note 15 for further discussion).

Plaza Colonnade, LLC

On June 14, 2002, the Company contributed $1.1amilh cash to Plaza Colonnade, LLC, a newly fordiited liability company, fo
the construction of a 285,000 square foot developimpmperty. The Company has retained a 50.0%satén this joint venture. On February
12, 2003, Plaza Colonnade, LLC signed a $61.3aniltionstruction loan to fund the development of thioperty which is expected to cost
$70.6 million. The Company is a co-developer of fioperty. The construction loan requires thajdit venture invest $9.3 million, $4.6
million of which will be the Company’s share. Ther@pany and its joint venture partner have eachagueed 50.0% of the loan. The loan
repayment guarantees are reduced upon the prepshing certain predetermined criteria. In additmthe construction loan, the partners
collectively provided $12.0 million in letters ofedit, $6.0 million by the Company and $6.0 millioy its partner. (See Note 15 for further
discussion).

Other Unconsolidated Affiliates

On February 20, 2004, the Company and Kapital-ClorsEuropean investment firm, formed Highwoods &f@nridge, LLC, which
on February 26, 2004, acquired from a third-pafgn@dge Point Office Park, consisting of two offibuildings aggregating 185,000 square
feet located in the Central Perimeter sub-markéittzinta. The buildings are currently 91.1% occdpi€he Company contributed $10.0
million to the joint venture in return for a 40.08quity interest and Kapit&lonsult contributed $14.9 million for a 60.0% eguitterest in thi
partnership. The joint venture entered into a $héilBon ten-year secured loan on the assets. Tdragainy is the manager and leasing agent
for this property and receives customary managemeestand leasing commissions. The acquisitioniatdades 2.9 acres of development
land that can accommodate 150,000 square feefiot apace.

See Note 4 for information regarding HIW-KC OrlandéaC.

Development, Leasing and Management Fees

As discussed above, the Company receives develdpmanagement and leasing fees for services prdvmeertain of its joint
ventures. Development, management and leasingéeenie recognized by the Company during the yeatsdeBecember 31, 2003, 2002 ;
2001 are as follows ($ in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Development fee $ 208 $ 35 $ 541
Management and Leasing fe 1,22¢ 1,41t 1,251

Total fees $1,432 $1,45C $1,792
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3. FINANCING AND P ROFIT -SHARING A RRANGEMENTS

The following summarizes sale transactions thatao®unted for as financing and/or profit-sharingiagements under paragraphs 25
through 29 of SFAS No. 66, as described in Notnd, as further described in Note 18.

MG-HIW, LLC

On December 19, 2000, the Company formed a jointure with Miller Global, MGHIW, LLC, pursuant to which the Company solc
contributed to MG-HIW, LLC 19 in-service office gerties in Raleigh, Atlanta, Tampa (the “Non-OrlariZity Groups”) and Orlando
(collectively the “City Groups”) valued at approxamely $335.0 million. As part of the formation of@HIW, LLC, Miller Global contribute:
approximately $85.0 million in cash for an 80.0%nanship interest and the joint venture borrowed-axmately $238.8 million from a
third-party lender. The Company retained a 20.0%eship interest and received net cash proceeaprbximately $307.0 million. During
2001, the Company contributed a 39,000 squaredeetlopment project to MG-HIW, LLC in exchange &ar.1 million. The joint venture
borrowed an additional $3.7 million under its exigtdebt agreement with a third party and the Campatained its 20.0% ownership intel
and received net cash proceeds of approximate8/dlion. The assets of each of the City Groupsenegally acquired by four separate
LLC’s for which MG-HIW, LLC was the sole member.

The non-Orlando City Groups consisted of 15 prapgegncompassing 1.3 million square feet and weratéd in Atlanta, Raleigh and
Tampa. Based on the nature and extent of certatalrguarantees made by the Company with respebese properties, the transaction did
not qualify for sale treatment under SFAS No. 6e Transaction has been accounted for as a phaitrg) arrangement, which means that
the assets, liabilities and operations of the pitiggeremain on the books of the Company and aerttve obligation has been established for
the amount of equity contributed by Miller Globelated to the non-Orlando City Group propertiese Fitome from operations of the
properties, excluding depreciation, is being alteda80.0% to Miller Global (which represents iteenest in the joint venture) and is reported
as “co-venture expense” in these Consolidated EiahBtatements. The Company continues to depeethatproperties and record all of the
depreciation on its books. In addition to the cotuee expense, the Company recorded expense ofi$illic, $0.7 million and $0.7 million
related to payments made under the rental guasfie¢he years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 @Dt Pespectively.

On July 29, 2003, the Company acquired its parsn@&®.0% equity interest in the non-Orlando City @g® The Company paid Miller
Global $28.1 million, repaid $41.4 million of defedated to the properties and assumed $64.7 mififatebt. The Company recognized a
$16.3 million gain in 2003 on the settlement of $4e.5 million co-venture obligation recorded oa Hooks of the Company.

With respect to the Orlando City Group, which cetssf five properties encompassing 1.3 millionasgifeet located in the central
business district of Orlando, the Company assunbidaiions to make improvements to the assets #isawenaster lease obligations and
guarantees on certain vacant space. Additionéley ompany guaranteed a leveraged internal ratturh (“IRR”) of 20.0% on Miller
Global’s equity. See Note 15 for further discussibthe guarantee. The contribution of these Odgmidperties is accounted for as a
financing arrangement under SFAS No. 6&e Note 18. Consequently, the assets, liabilifigsoperations related to the properties rema
the books of the Company and a financing obligatias been established for the amount of equityriboried by Miller Global related to the
Orlando City Group. The income from operationshaf properties, excluding depreciation, is beingcated 80.0% to Miller Global and
reported as “interest on financing obligation” lrese Consolidated Financial Statements. This fingrabligation is adjusted each period by
accreting the obligation up to the 20.0% guarantetstnal rate of return by a charge to interegtemse, such that the financing obligation
would equal at the end of each period the amouatadwiiller Global including the 20.0% guaranteeturn. The Company recorded interest
expense on the financing obligation of $11.6 mil)i$#10.1 million and $9.9 million, which includesaunts related to this IRR guarantee and
payments made under the rental guarantees, fyetirs ended 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectivelyCbingpany has continued to depreciate
the Orlando properties and record all of the ddptien on its books.
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On July 29, 2003, the Company also entered intopgion agreement to acquire Miller Global's 80.08erest in the Orlando City
Group. On March 2, 2004, the Company exercisegpt®n and acquired its partner’'s 80.0% equityriegein the Orlando City Group of MG-
HIW, LLC. The properties were 83.8% leased as afdbaber 31, 2003 and were encumbered by $136.2mill floating rate debt with
interest based on LIBOR plus 200 basis pointshAtdlosing of the transaction, the Company paidarsner, Miller Global, $62.5 million al
a $7.5 million letter of credit delivered to thdleein connection with the option was cancelleohcs the initial contribution of these assets
was accounted for as a financing arrangement aee $he financing obligation was adjusted eachopdiar the IRR guarantee, no gain or
loss was recognized upon the extinguishment ofitfaacing obligation.

SF-HIW Harborview, LP

On September 11, 2002, the Company contributeddtéidw Plaza, an office building located in Tamphkrida, to SF-HIW
Harborview Plaza, LP (“Harborview LP"), a newly foed entity, in exchange for a 20.0% limited parshgr interest and $35.4 million in
cash. The other partner contributed $12.6 milliboash and a new loan was obtained by the partipefeh$22.8 million. In connection with
this disposition, the Company entered into a mdstese agreement with Harborview LP for five yearshe vacant space in the building
(approximately 20% of the building); occupancy Wa8%% at September 30, 2004. The Company also igiesichto Harborview LP the
payment of tenant improvements and lease commssibfil.2 million. The Company’s maximum exposwréoss under the master lease
agreement was $2.1 million at September 11, 2082nas $1.4 million at December 31, 2003. Additionehe Company’s partner in
Harborview LP was granted the right to put its 80.€quity interest in Harborview LP to the Compamgxchange for cash at any time du
the one-year period commencing on September 14. 20t value of the 80.0% equity interest will gestmined at the time, if ever, that
such partner elects to exercise its put right, thag®n the then fair market value of Harborview 4. Bssets and liabilities less 3.0%, which
amount was intended to cover normal costs of ateahsaction.

Because of the put option and the master leasemgm, this transaction is accounted for as a imgrntransaction as described in
Notes 1 and 18. Consequently, the assets, ligsilind operations related to Harborview Plazaptbperty owned by Harborview L
including any new financing by the partnership, agmon the books of the Company. As a result, thegany has established a financing
obligation equal to the net equity contributed Iy bther partner. At the end of each reportingagerine balance of the financing obligatio
adjusted to equal the current fair value, whicf18.6 million at December 31, 2003, but not lessitthe original financing obligation. This
adjustment is amortized prospectively through Saptr 2014. Additionally, the net income from thee@giions before depreciation of
Harborview Plaza allocable to the 80.0% partneed®rded as interest expense on financing obligalihe Company continues to depreciate
the property and record all of the depreciationt®mooks. Any payments made under the master erg@ment were expensed as incurred
($0.4 million and $0.3 million was expensed during years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, rasggrand any amounts paid under
the tenant improvement and lease commission gueeane capitalized and amortized to expense oeaethaining lease term. At such time
as the put option expires or is otherwise termuhatiee Company will record the transaction as a aabl recognize gain on sale.

Eastshore

On November 26, 2002, the Company sold three mgikllocated in Richmond, Virginia (the “Eastsharahsaction) for a total
purchase price of $28.5 million in cash, which wagl in full by the buyer at closing. Each of tliédsproperties is a single tenant building
leased on a triple-net basis to Capital One Sesyice., a subsidiary of Capital One Financial &y, Inc.
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In connection with the sale, the Company enter&alarrental guarantee agreement for each buildinthe benefit of the buyer to
guarantee any shortfalls that may be incurredeénpyment of rent and re-tenanting costs for aya@r period from the date of sale (through
November 2007). The Compe’'s maximum exposure to loss under the rental gueeaagreements was $18.7 million at the date efaad
was $15.9 million as of December 31, 2003. No paymeere made by the Company during 2003 and 200&spect of these rent
guarantees. However, in June 2004, the Companynttegaake monthly payments to the buyer at an dmateof $0.1 million as a result of
the existing tenant renewing a lease in one bigldina lower rental rate.

These rent guarantees are a form of continuinghiewent as prescribed by SFAS No. 66. Becauseuheagtees cover the entire sp
occupied by a single tenant under a triple-netdeasangement, the Company’s guarantees are coadidguaranteed return on the buyer’s
investment for an extended period of time. Theeftre transaction has been accounted for as racfimtransaction, following the
accounting method described in Note 1. Accordintilg,assets, liabilities and operations are inaudeghese Consolidated Financial
Statements, and a financing obligation of $28.3ionilwas recorded which represents the amountveddrom the buyer. The income from
the operations of the properties, other than dégtien, is allocated 100.0% to the owner as inteegpense on financing obligation. Paym:e
made under the rent guarantees are charged tosxpsrincurred. This transaction will be recorded aompleted sale transaction in the
future when the maximum exposure to loss undegtiz@antees is equal to or less than the related gai

4. DISPOSITIONS
Gains on disposition of properties, net, excludiagns or losses from discontinued operations, stagsiof the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Gains and impairments on disposition of land, $ 3,83 $ 7,165 $ 4,702

Gains on disposition of depreciable proper 8,671 15,527  17,20¢
Impairments of depreciable propert (297 — —

Total $12,31¢  $22,69: $21,91(

Gains on disposition of properties, net of minoiitierest, from discontinued operations, consistigtie following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Gains on disposition of depreciable proper $9,67% $17,17¢ $—
Impairments of depreciable propert (12¢) (4,05 —
Allocable minority interes (2,060 (1,547 —
Total $8,487 $1158( $—

During 2003, the Company sold approximately 3.3iomlrentable square feet of office, industrial aathil properties, 122.8 acres of
revenue-producing land and 108.5 acres of develophard for gross proceeds of $221.6 million. ThemPany recognized gains, net of
impairments, totaling $19.2 million related to teeispositions, of which $9.6 million was includeddiscontinued operations and $9.6
million was included in continuing operations. kidiion, the Company contributed three propertmsscsting of 290,853 rentable square feet
to Highwoods-Markel Associates, LLC in which thenr@many has a 50.0% equity interest. As a resultCibmpany recognized $2.7 million
of the $5.4 million gain in continuing operationwadeferred $2.7 million of the $5.4 million gamaccordance with SFAS No. 66. See Note
2 for further discussion.
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On June 16, 2004, the Company sold a 177,000 sdpatreuilding (the network operations center) keckin the Highwoods Preserve
Office Park in Tampa, Florida. Highwoods Preses/a 816,000 square foot office park that has nen leecupied since WorldCom vacated
the space as of December 31, 2002. Net proceeustfre sale were approximately $18.6 million. Theeatiad a net book value of
approximately $22.4 million. The Company recogniaedmpairment loss of approximately $3.7 millionApril 2004 when the planned sale
met the criteria to be classified as held for seeonnection with the sale of the network operagicenter, the buyer also agreed to purch
3.3 acre tract of development land located in ffieeopark for approximately $1.4 million, which $sibject to the Company securing certain
development rights for the land from the local noipality. The net book value of the land is appmoeately $0.6 million and was classified as
held for sale in accordance with SFAS No. 144 imil&3004. This land sale is subject to customapnsitlg conditions and no assurances can
be provided that the disposition will occur. Thenegning assets in the office park were classifietield for use as of December 31, 2003 and
continue to be so classified in accordance with Si. 144,

In May 2004, the Company executed two agreemerdsit@pproximately 30.0 acres of land in suburBaliimore, Maryland. The
agreements provide for estimated net proceedspybajmately $6.1 million and the net book valuetod land is $7.9 million. Accordingly,
an impairment loss of approximately $1.8 millionswacorded in May 2004 when the land was reclassffiom held for use to held for sale.
On September 30, 2004, one sale of 27.0 acresavasimmated. The Company received $5.5 million irpneceeds. Sale of the remaining
3.0 acres is subject to customary closing conditimmd no assurances can be provided that the diepasill occur.

On June 28, 2004, Kapital-Consult, a European invesst firm, bought an interest in HIW-KC Orlandd,, an entity formed by the
Company. HIW-KC Orlando, LLC owns the Orlando G&youp assets which were valued under the jointureragreement at $212.0
million, including amounts related to the Companguarantees described below, and which were dubjec$136.2 million secured mortg:
loan. Kapital-Consult contributed $41.4 milliondash and received a 60.0% equity interest in reftlie joint venture borrowed $143.0
million under a ten-year fixed rate mortgage loamT a third party lender and repaid the $136.2iomlloan. The Company retained a 40.0%
equity interest in the joint venture and receivetdaash proceeds of approximately $46.6 millionwbich $33.0 million was used to pay
down the Company’s Revolving Loan and $13.6 millieas used to pay down another loan of the Comgargonnection with this
transaction, the Company agreed to guaranteeaehétoint venture for 3,248 rentable square éeetmencing in August 2004 and expiring
in April 2011. In connection with this guarantee,cd June 30, 2004 the Company included $0.6 millioother liabilities and reduced the
total amount of gain to be recognized by the sameusnt. Additionally, the Company agreed to guaramétenanting costs for approximat:
11% of the joint venture’s total square footagee Tompany recorded a $4.1 million liability witrspect to such guarantee as of June 30,
2004 and reduced the total amount of gain to begrized by the same amount. The Company beliesesiimate related to the re-tenanting
costs guarantee is accurate. However, if its assangprove to be incorrect, future losses may ncthe contribution was accounted for as a
partial sale as defined by SFAS No. 66 and the Gmmypecognized a $15.9 million gain in June 200Ac&the Company has an ongoing
40.0% financial interest in the joint venture aimte the Company is engaged by the joint ventuprdeide management and leasing sern
for the joint venture, for which it receives custmymanagement fees and leasing commissions, gratigms of these properties will not be
reflected as discontinued operations consistefit 8#AS No. 144 and the related gain on sale wilhbkided in continuing operations in the
second quarter 2004.

During 2002, the Company sold approximately 2.0iomlrentable square feet of office and industpiaperties and 137.7 acres of
development land for gross proceeds of $235.2anillThe Company recognized gains, net of impairmerit$35.8 million related to these
dispositions, of which $13.1 million was includeddiscontinued operations and $22.7 million waduided in continuing operations. The
Company also sold three buildings in the Eaststraresaction, which was accounted for as a finanaimgngement. See Notes 3 and 18 for
further discussion. In September 2002, the Comganyributed an office property to SF-HIW HarborvidwP and accounted for the
contribution as a financing arrangement. See N®t®sd 18 for further discussion.
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During 2001, the Company sold approximately 386 @@able square feet of office and industrial prtips, 215.7 acres of
development land and 1,672 apartment units forsgposceeds of $175.2 million. The Company recoghaegain of $20.2 million related to
these dispositions of which all were included imtimuing operations. The Company contributed 38 @#fable square feet of office property
to MG-HIW, LLC in July 2001. No gain or loss wasognized — see Note 3 for further discussion.

5. M ORTGAGES AND N OTES P AYABLE
The Company'’s consolidated mortgages and notesbfmgansisted of the following at December 31, 2808 2002:

2003 2002

($ in thousands)
Mortgage loans payabl

9.0% mortgage loan due 20 $ 35,17( $ 36,08¢
8.1% mortgage loan due 20 27,25 28,00:
8.2% mortgage loan due 20 66,89¢ 68,44
7.8% mortgage loan due 20 88,32: 89,94¢
7.9% mortgage loan due 20 88,40: 90,00¢
7.8% mortgage loan due 20 140,49¢ 142,84:

6.0% mortgage loan due 20 143,71: —

5.7% mortgage loan due 2013 127,50 _
4.5% to 9.1% mortgage loans due between 2005 a2 20 60,08 82,88
Variable rate mortgage loan due 2006 200,883 242 24(
Variable rate mortgage loan due 2( 4,03: 4,30¢
982,76! 784,76(

Unsecured indebtedne:

6.75% notes due 2003 — 100,00(
8.0% notes due 2003 —_® 146,50(
7.0% notes due 20( 110,00( 110,00(
7.125% notes due 20! 100,00 100,00(
8.125% notes due 20! 50,00( 50,00(
MOPPRS due 2013 _® 125,00(
Put Option Notes due 2011 100,00(® 100,00(
7.5% notes due 201 200,00( 200,00(
Term loan due 200 20,00( 20,00(

Term loan due 2005 100,00(® —
Unsecured Revolving loan due 2C 55,00( 57,50(
735,00( 1,009,00i
Total $1,717,76! $1,793,76!

@  On December 1, 2003, $146.5 million of the Compar8/0% Notes and $100.0 million of the Company?5&6 Notes matured. The
Company refinanced $127.5 million with 5.7% 10-ysecured debt which had an effective rate of 5.28& taking into consideration
the effect of the interest rate swap hedging thistdAnother $100.0 million was refinanced with-gear unsecured bank term loan with
a floating rate initially set at 1.3% over LIBORhE balance, equaling $19.0 million, was repaidgifimds from the Company’s $250.0
million revolving loan.

@  Includes $22.8 million related to the SF-HIW Hanlew, LP, which has been accounted for as a fimgpnarrangement and is included
in the Compan’'s mortgages and notes payable in its ConsolidaédahBe Sheets. See Note

@  Includes $136.2 million related to MG-HIW, LLC, vahi has been accounted for as a financing arrangeaneris included in the
Compan’s mortgages and notes payable in its ConsolidaédehBe Sheets. See Note
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4)

®)

In 1997, the Operating Partnership sold $100.0anilbf Exercisable Put Option Notes due June 1%13¢€he “Put Option Notes”). The
Put Option Notes bore an interest rate of 7.19%nftloe date of issuance through June 15, 2004. Aftee 15, 2004, the interest rate to
maturity on the Put Option Notes was required t® 138% plus the applicable spread determined daré 10, 2004. In connection w
the initial issuance of the Put Option Notes, anteuparty was granted an option to purchase th®Ption Notes on June 15, 2004 at
100.0% of the principal amount. The counter paxigreised this option and acquired the Put Optioteslon June 15, 2004. On that
same date, the Company exercised its option toirgctite Put Option Notes from the counter partyadqurchase price equal to the sum
of the present value of the remaining scheduledngays of principal and interest (assuming an isten@e of 6.39%) on the Put Option
Notes, or $112.3 million. The difference between$112.3 million and the $100.0 million was charteetbss on extinguishment

debt in the quarter ended June 30, 2004. The Coyripamowed funds from its Revolving Loan to make $112.3 million paymen

On February 2, 1998, the Company (through the Qipgr&artnership) sold $125.0 million of Mandat@®gr Put Remarketed Securi
(“MOPPRS") which were originally expected to matore February 1, 2013. The fixed interest rate w88® through January 31,
2003, and would be reset at that date at 5.715%agkpread as determined under the terms of thelRSPIn connection with the
original issuance, the Company granted a remareiation to one of the underwriters for the MOPP®RS,consideration for which
was reflected in the premium price of the bonds aygtregated $3.5 million. This consideration wagided and included in deferred
financing cost and was amortized to income ovetehm of the MOPPRS. The option, if exercised,va#ld the option holder to
purchase the MOPPRS on January 31, 2003 from tidertscfor $125.0 million and then resell the MOPHRRS& new offering to new
investors at the reset interest rate (5.715% plespread). If the option holder did not exerdmedption, the Company would be
required to repurchase the MOPPRS for $125.0 militus any accrued interest. The Company also hakdime right to redeem the
MOPPRS from the option holder on January 31, 200%125.0 million plus the then present value efitamarketing optior

On January 28, 2003, the Company, the option h@ddran intermediary entered into an agreementrumldieh the option holder
agreed to exercise its option to acquire the MOPBR3anuary 31, 2003 and the intermediary agreaddaire the MOPPRS from the
option holder for $142.7 million. The intermediayd the Company also agreed to exchange the MORIPR8w Company debt
instruments in the future, subject to certain teamd conditions. The MOPPRS transactions betweznkion holder and the
intermediary occurred on January 31, 2003 andrtezdst rate on the MOPPRS was reset at 8.975%e0ruary 4, 2003, a new $14
million mortgage loan with a third party, securgd2d of the Company’s properties, was executed;|t@in bears a fixed interest rate of
6.03% and matures in February 2013. The intermpgdéreived the proceeds from the new mortgage kach the mortgage loan and
the MOPPRS were then exchanged between the Conapahthe intermediary. The Company then retiredM#PPRS. The retirement
of the MOPPRS has been accounted for as an exsimgeint (See Note 18 to the Consolidated Finantié®ents). Accordingly,

$14.7 million was charged to loss on extinguishneérebt in the quarter ended March 31, 2003.
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The following table sets forth the principal payrgedue on the Company’s long-term debt as of Deee®b, 2003 ($ in thousands):

Amounts due during year ending December 31,

Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Fixed Rate Debt:
Unsecured @ ;
Put Option Note$®) $ 100,00 $10000( $ — $¢ — $ — $ — & —
Notes 460,00( — — 110,00( — 100,00  250,00(
Secured:
Mortgage loans payabf@ 777,84¢ 12,87: 81,44% 19,36:  79,47¢ 14,34  570,35(
Total Fixed Rate Det 1,337,84¢ 112,87: 81,447 129,36: 79,47¢ 114,34. 820,35(
Variable Rate Debt; ®
Unsecured:
Term Loans 120,00( — 120,00( — — — —
Revolving Loar® 55,00( — — 55,00( — — —
Secured:
Mortgage loans payab(® 204,91t 23t 27¢ 201,17 3,227 — —
Total Variable Rate Del 379,91¢ 23t 120,27¢ 256,17 3,221 — —
Total Long Term Debt $1,717,76! $113,10t $201,72¢ $385,537 $82,70: $114,34. $820,35(

(€3

@
®)
4)
(©)

The Operating Partnership’s $560.0 million of unsed notes bear interest at rates ranging from 7d86125% with interest payable
semi-annually in arrears. Any premium and discoatsted to the issuance of the unsecured notefiargeith other issuance costs is
being amortized over the life of the respectiveesas an adjustment to interest expense. All ofitisecured notes, except for the Put
Option Notes, are redeemable at any time prioratunty at the Company’s option, subject to certanditions including the payment
of make-whole amounts. The Company’s fixed ratetgame loans generally are either locked out togyemnt for all or a portion of
their term, or are p-payable subject to certain conditions includingppsenent penaltie:

The Put Option Notes were extinguished in June 2004
The mortgage loans payable are secured by reat estsets with an aggregate carrying value of Billién at December 31, 2003.
The Company has various interest rate hedging geraents, as described in Note 10 to the Consotidéateancial Statements.

In July 2003, the Company amended and restatedigting revolving loan and two bank term loanse Bmended and restated $250.0
million revolving loan (the “Revolving Loan”) isdm a group of nine lender banks, matures in JuB62ihd replaces its previous
$300.0 million revolving loar

In March 2004, the Company amended its RevolvingrLand two bank term loans. The changes modifigdinedefinitions used in all
three loans to determine amounts that are useantpute financial covenants and also adjusted otteedfinancial ratio covenants.

In June 2004, the Company further amended its RewgLoan and two bank term loans. The changesudrd the $12.3 million char
taken related to the refinancing of the Put Ophilmtes from the calculations used to compute fir@rmvenants.

In August 2004, the Company further amended itsolRévg Loan and two bank term loans. The changetudrd the effects of
accounting for three sales transactions as fingraid/or profit sharing arrangements under SFAS88pas described in Note 18, from
the calculations used to compute financial coves)adjusted one financial covenant and temporadjysted a second financial
covenant until the earlier of December 31, 200therperiod when the Company can record income frenanticipated settlement of a
claim against WorldCom (see Note 20).

In early October 2004, the Company obtained a wdreen the lenders of the Company’s Revolving Laaud two bank term loans for
certain covenant violations caused by the effetthmloss on debt extinguishment from the MOPPR8saction in early 2003, as
described above and in Note 18.
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The aforementioned modifications did not changesitenomic terms of the loans. In connection wigtsthmodifications, the Company
incurred certain loan costs that are capitalizetlamortized over the remaining term of the loans.

The Revolving Loan carries an interest rate baget the Company’s senior unsecured credit ratiAgs result, interest currently
accrues on borrowings under the Revolving LoanlBOR plus 105 basis points. The terms of the Reéagioan require the Compal
to pay an annual facility fee equal to .25% of dlggregate amount of the Revolving Loan. The Compganiently has a credit rating of
BBB- assigned by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch IncAugust 2003, Moody’s Investor Service downgrattedCompany’s assigned
credit rating from Baa3 to Bal. If Standard androor Fitch Inc. were to lower the Company'’s ctediings without a corresponding
increase by Moody'’s, the interest rate on borrowingder the CompanyRevolving Loan would be automatically increasgd® basis
points.

Other Information
The terms of the Revolving Loan and the indenthag ¢overns the Company’s outstanding notes rethir€ompany to comply with
certain operating and financial covenants and pedioce ratios. The Company is currently in comgigawith all such requirements.
Total interest capitalized was approximately $1iion, $7.0 million and $16.9 million in 2003, 2@@&nd 2001, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had $19.3amitif deferred financing costs, with $6.7 milliohaccumulated amortization.
Deferred financing costs include loan fees, loasiclg costs, premium and discounts on bonds, patgsble and public debt issuance costs.
Amortization of bond premiums and discounts isudeld in contractual interest expense. All other ization is shown as amortization of
deferred financing costs. The scheduled future timation of these deferred financings costs wilklseollows ($ in thousands):

Contractual Deferred

Financing
Interest Total
2004 $ 15 $ 3,41¢ $ 3,431
2005 251 2,84( 3,091
2006 23¢ 1,354 1,59:¢
2007 111 82¢ 934
2008 70 654 724
Thereatftel 33€ 2,43¢ 2,77¢

$ 1,022 $11,52¢ $12,54]

In June 2004, $0.9 million of unamortized deferiedncing costs were written off in connection witte early extinguishment of the
$136.2 million secured loan related to the MG-HIWaDdo assets sold to a 40.0% owned joint ventuitte apital Consult, as described in
Note 4.
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Management Compensation Program

The Company'’s officers participate in an annuahdasentive bonus program whereby they are eligifMeash bonuses based on a
percentage of their annual base salary. Each offitarget level bonus is determined by competitimalysis and the executive’s ability to
influence overall performance of the executive’sibass unit and/or of the Company as a whole amjes from 40.0% to 85.0% of base
salary depending on position in the Company. Thghd¢ bonus percentage for each officer is deteediby a weighted average of business
unit and Company actual performance using varimantial and operating metrics that can change frear to year. To the extent this
weighted average is less than or exceeds the ¢argetrformance level for these metrics, the boreusgntage paid is proportionally reduced
or increased on a predetermined scale. Dependirgtoal performance, annual incentive bonuses aamige from zero to 200% of an
officer’s target level bonus. Bonuses are accroetié year earned and are included in accrued erpén the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Certain other members of management participaé® iannual cash incentive bonus program wherebrgattkevel cash bonus is
established based upon the job responsibilitiekeif position. Cash bonus eligibility ranges frét0% to 40.0%. The actual cash bonus is
determined by the overall performance of the Comzard the individual's performance during each y&aese bonuses are also accrued in
the year earned and are included in accrued expémsiee Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On January 1, 1999, the Company established a awsapien program that allows officers and certaeomembers of management to
participate in a long-term incentive plan that uttl#s annual grants of stock options, restrictedeshend grants of units in the Shareholder
Value Plan. Twenty-five percent of the number drsls in each option grant vests at the end of efttte first four years from date of grant.
The options remain outstanding for ten years frae @f grant.

The restricted shares generally vest 50.0% thraesyfeom the date of grant and the remaining 5(fi0&oyears from date of grant. Such
shares are no longer restricted after the vesteg. d he restricted share awards are amortizexigiense over the restriction periods.
Recipients are eligible to receive dividends onrigted stock issued. Restricted stock and anmxagrse information is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Restricted shares outstanding at Janus 252,35! 211,66¢ 127,00¢
Number of restricted shares awar 104,07¢ 78,96¢ 89,91(
Restricted shares vest (21,697 (7,87¢) —

Restricted shares repurchased upon cancellatitorferture (55€) (30,407 (5,249
Restricted shares outstanding at Decembg 334,18: 252,35! 211,66¢
Annual expens $1,937,000 $1,158,000 $1,053,00!
Average fair value per share at date of g $ 2400 $ 2490 $ 248

Under the Shareholder Value Plan, participatingcefé are granted units in the plan each year.units will produce a cash payment at
the end of three years if the Company’s total retaeasured by increases in the market value dEtimemon Stock plus the dividends on
those shares exceeds a comparable index of the &grsmpeers over a three year period. If the Comgaperformance is not at least 100.
of the peer group index, no payout is made. Teeient performance exceeds the peer group, theupayaweases. A new three-year plan
cycle begins each year under this program. There we cash payouts under this plan for the yeats@®ecember 31, 2003, 2002 or 2001,
respectively. This plan is accounted for underalda plan accounting and accordingly, at each degiad, a liability equal to the current
computed value under the plan for all outstandilag pinits, adjusted for the three-year vestingqakris recorded with corresponding charges
or credits to compensation expense. Compensatijpense (income) recognized under this plan amount&@ in 2003, $(846,000) in 2002

and $846,000 in 2001.

F-30



Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

6. EmMPLOYEE B ENEFIT P LANS - Continued

In 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Performamed\Plan under which 349,990 option shares gramtedrtain executive
officers were accompanied by a dividend equivalightt (‘“DER”). No other options granted by the Caanp since 1997 have been
accompanied by a DER. The Plan provided that itéked return on a share of common stock exceedgdin thresholds during the five-year
vesting period ending in 2002, the exercise pridi® options would be reduced by an amount basetividends and other distributions
made with respect to such a share during the péegthning on the date of grant of the stock optiand ending when the options are
exercised or expire. At the end of the five-yeastivey period, the total return performance resuitea reduction in the option exercise price
of $6.098 per share. Since then, the exercise peception share has been further reduced by $8ré2gh December 31, 2003 as a result of
the dividend payments on common shares. Becaube eercise price reduction feature, the stoclonptaccompanied by a DER are
accounted using variable accounting as providdeA8B Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certdiransactions Involving Stock
Compensation.” As a result, the Company recordedpemsation expense of $1.2 million, $0.4 milliord &1.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectivelipekember 31, 2003 there were 244,569 optionsavitaccompanying DER still
outstanding.

The Company also established a deferred compengaltio pursuant to which various officers may eteadefer a portion of the
compensation that otherwise would be paid in exghdar investment in units of phantom common stodke Company or in other
investments unrelated to the Company’s securifiethe end of each calendar quarter, any officat éhects to defer compensation in
phantom stock is credited with units of phantontistat a 15.0% discount. The units of phantom stmkue dividends in an amount equal to
the dividends paid on the Company’s common stddkel officer leaves employment for any reasondgpthan death, disability, normal
retirement or voluntary termination by the Compawithin two years after the end of the year in whstich officer has deferred
compensation, such officer will incur a penaltylwiespect to amounts deferred in phantom stock Cidmepany records compensation
expense for the full amount of compensation defebreparticipating officers in each deferral peri@Ver the two-year vesting period, the
Company records additional compensation expensa &gthe 15.0% discount, the accrued dividendsaaydchanges in the market value of
the Company’s Common Stock from the date of themal, which aggregated $0.7 million, $0.2 milliand $0.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan coveringtaatially all employees who meet certain age angleyment criteria. The
Company matches the first 6.0% of compensationraefaat the rate of 75.0% of employee contributi@sring 2003, 2002 and 2001, the
Company contributed $1.0 million, $0.9 million a$@.6 million, respectively, to the 401(k) savindarp Administrative expenses of the plan
are paid by the Company.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plati fiotive employees under which employees caet &decontribute up to 25.0%
of their base compensation. At the end of eaclethmenth offering period, the contributions in eaelnticipants account balance is appliec
acquire shares of Common Stock at a cost thatdslesed at 85.0% of the lower of the average dlggirice on the New York Stock
Exchange on the five consecutive days precedinfjrdtaday of the quarter or the five days precgdime last day of the quarter. Employees
purchased 50,812, 47,488 and 40,935 shares of Carfsteck under the Employee Stock Purchase Planglthie years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The discounssued shares is expensed by the Company as additiompensation and aggregated !
million, $0.1 million and $0.0 million in 2003, 2@Gnd 2001, respectively.
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The Companys real estate assets are leased to tenants uretating leases, substantially all of which expiverdhe next 10 years. T
minimum rental amounts under the leases are géyeitiler subject to scheduled fixed increasesdpusiments based on the Consumer Price
Index. Generally, the leases also require thatahants reimburse the Company for increases iainecbsts above the base-year costs.

Expected future minimum rents to be received ovemiext five years and thereafter from tenantéefases in effect at December 31,
2003 for the Company’s Wholly Owned Propertiesagdollows ($ in thousands):

2004 $ 375,28
2005 329,37¢
2006 273,64’
2007 223,45¢
2008 171,33:
Thereaftel 427,04:

$1,800,14.

8. RELATED P ARTY T RANSACTIONS

The Company has previously reported that it hassheahtract to acquire development land in the glags Valley office development
project from GAPI, Inc., a corporation controlleg én executive officer/director of the Company. &amuary 17, 2003, the Company acqt
an additional 23.5 acres of this land from GAPt,. lfor cash and shares of Common Stock valued.a8tr$iflion. In May 2003, 4.0 acres of
the remaining acres not yet acquired by the Compaas/taken by the Georgia Department of Transpontaéb develop a roadway
interchange for consideration of $1.8 million. Thepartment of Transportation took possession dleddi the property in June 2003. As part
of the terms of the contract between the CompandyGAPI, Inc., the Company was entitled to the pealsefrom the condemnation of $1.8
million, less the contracted purchase price betvieerCompany and GAPI, Inc. for the condemned ptgpe $0.7 million. On September
30, 2003, as a result of the condemnation, the Gompeceived proceeds of $1.8 million. A relatethppayable of $0.7 million to GAPI,

Inc. related to the condemnation of the developrteantt is included in accounts payable, accruedresgeand other liabilities in the
Company'’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at Decemh&08B and a gain of $1.0 million related to thademnation of the development land
is included in gain on disposition of land in thempany’s Consolidated Statement of Income for & ynded December 31, 2003. The
Company believes that the purchase price with igpesach transaction did not exceed market valbese transactions were unanimously
approved by the executive committee and the fullrBBaf Directors (with the related executive officérector abstaining from the vote).

During 2000, in connection with the formation of MBW Peachtree Corners lll, LLC, a constructionfagas made by an affiliate of
the Company to this joint venture. Interest accrated rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis points. Thisstarction loan was repaid in full in July
2003 when the Company was assigned its partnei@®o@quity interest in the single property encorsjmap53,896 square feet owned by
MG-HIW Peachtree Corners Ill, LLC.

From 1998 to 2002, the Company advanced a totBD & million to an officer/director related to aart expenses to be paid by the
Company on behalf of that officer/director. Durid@02, this advance, along with accrued interess, n@paid by the officer/director.
9. STOCKHOLDERS ' E QuITY
Common Stock Dividends

Quarterly dividends paid per share of Common Stggregated $1.86, $2.34 and $2.31 for the yeamsdeDdcember 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the estimated tditalmf dividends paid for federal income tax puses:
2003 2002 2001

Per share
Ordinary income $0.3¢ $1.2¢ $1.81
Capital gains 0.2¢ 0.5t 0.3¢
Return of capita 1.1¢ 05z 0.17
Total $1.8¢ $2.32 $2.31

The Company'’s tax returns have not been examingtéiRS and, therefore, the taxability of dividens subject to change. As of
December 31, 2003, the tax basis of the Comparsgsta and liabilities was $2.5 billion and $1.%idvil, respectively.

On February 2, 2004, the Board of Directors dedareash dividend of $0.425 per share of CommookStayable on March 5, 2004
stockholders of record on February 13, 2004. Oril 28y, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a adistdend of $0.425 per share of
Common Stock payable on June 4, 2004 to stockhelferecord on May 10, 2004. On July 27, 2004 Bberd declared a cash dividend of
$0.425 per share of Common Stock payable on Septe® 2004 to stockholders of record on Augustd®42 On October 26, 2004, the
Board declared a cash dividend of $0.425 per shia@®mmmon Stock payable on December 3, 2004 tkbktiders of record on November 8,
2004.

Preferred Stock

On February 12, 1997, the Company issued 125,@J8% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred St{tire “Series A Preferred
Shares”). The Series A Preferred Shares are nongvahd have a liquidation preference of $1,00@p6&0share for an aggregate liquidation
preference of $125.0 million plus accrued and uhpéridends. The net proceeds (after underwritiognmission and other offering costs) of
the Series A Preferred Shares issued were $121liBrmHolders of the Series A Preferred Sharesestéled to receive, when, as and if
declared by the Company’s Board of Directors outiofis legally available for payment of dividendgmulative preferential cash
distributions at a rate of 8 5/8% of the liquidatioreference per annum (equivalent to $86.25 pae3hOn or after February 12, 2027, the
Series A Preferred Shares may be redeemed foratdish option of the Company. The redemption pfitker than the portion thereof
consisting of accrued and unpaid dividends) is pkeysolely out of the sale proceeds of other chgitares of the Company, which may
include shares of other series of preferred st@ckJune 19, 2001, the Company repurchased in atplyvnegotiated transaction 20,055 of
these shares at $922.50 per share, for a totahasecrice of $18.5 million. For each Series A &refd Share repurchased by the Company,
one equivalent Series A Preferred Unit of the OfregaPartnership was retired. In accordance witheEgimg Issues Task Force Topic D-42,
“The Effect on Calculation of Earnings per Shanetf® Redemption or Induced Conversion of Prefe8&xtk,” the Company has classified
the excess of the carrying value of the Prefertedk$ net of issuance costs, over the repurchdse @& an increase in the income availab
common stockholders. Of the $86.25 dividend paidSezies A Preferred Share in 2003, $49.24 wadtexas ordinary income and $37.01
was taxable as capital gain.

On September 25, 1997, the Company issued 6,908%08eries B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred SlituesSeries B Preferred
Shares”). The Series B Preferred Shares are namgvabd have a liquidation preference of $25.00gbare for an aggregate liquidation
preference of $172.5 million plus accrued and uhpéridends. The net proceeds (after underwritiognimission and other offering costs) of
the Series B Preferred Shares issued were $166i8nmHolders of the Series B Preferred Sharesat#led to receive, when, as and if
declared by the Company’s Board of Directors outiofis legally available for payment of dividendgmulative preferential cash
distributions at a rate of 8.0% of the liquidatjgreference per annum (equivalent to $2.00 per sh@reor after September 25, 2002, the
Series B Preferred Shares may be redeemed foratdlsé option of the Company. The redemption pfateer than the portion thereof
consisting of accrued and unpaid dividends) is pkeysolely out of the sale proceeds of other chgitares of the Company, which may
include shares of other series of preferred stoékhe $2.00 dividend paid per Series B Preferfear&in 2003, $1.14 was taxable as ordi
income and $0.86 was taxable as capital gain.
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On April 23, 1998, the Company issued 4,000,00mdiépry shares (the “Series D Depositary Sharesigh representing a 1/10
fractional interest in an 8.0% Series D CumulaRezleemable Preferred Share (the “Series D Preféitates”). The Series D Preferred
Shares are non-voting and have a liquidation peefess of $250.00 per share for an aggregate ligoiareference of $100.0 million plus
accrued and unpaid dividends. The net proceeds (@fiderwriting commission and other offering cpsfshe Series D Preferred Shares
issued were $96.8 million. Holders of Series D &mefd Shares are entitled to receive, when, a# aledlared by the Company’s Board of
Directors out of funds legally available for paymehdividends, cumulative preferential cash disitions at a rate of 8.0% of the liquidation
preference per annum (equivalent to $20.00 pee$h@n or after April 23, 2003, the Series D PneféiShares may be redeemed for cash at
the option of the Company. The redemption prichdpthan the portion thereof consisting of accraled unpaid dividends) is payable solely
out of the sale proceeds of other capital sharéiseo€ompany, which may include shares of otheesef preferred stock. Of the $20.00
dividend paid per Series D Preferred Share in 2608,42 was taxable as ordinary income and $8.58taable as capital gain.

The net proceeds raised from each of three prefetack issuances were contributed by the Compattyet Operating Partnership in
exchange for Preferred Units in the Operating Rastnip. The terms of each series of Preferred geiteerally parallel the terms of the
respective preferred stock as to distributionsiitigtion and redemption rights.

Stockholder Rights Plan

The Company currently has in effect a stockholdghts plan pursuant to which existing stockholdeeosild have the ability to acquire
additional Common Stock at a significant discounthie event a person or group attempts to acqur€bmpany on terms of which the
Company’s current board does not approve. Thebésraye designed to deter a hostile takeover bgasing the takeover cost. As a result,
such rights could discourage offers for the Compamyake an acquisition of the Company more difficeven when an acquisition is in the
best interest of the Company’s stockholders. Tletsi plan should not interfere with any mergertbeobusiness combination the board of
directors approves since the Company may gendgalyinate the plan at any time at nominal cost.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Company has instituted a Dividend ReinvestraadtStock Purchase Plan under which holders of Gomfatock may elect to
automatically reinvest their dividends in additibslares of Common Stock and may make optional pagments for additional shares of
Common Stock. The Company currently repurchasesn@mmstock in the open market for purposes of firfjl its obligations under the
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan bytatect to issue additional shares of Common Sitotiku of open market purchases.

Stock Repurchases

During 2003, the Company repurchased a total oféBfBshares of Common Stock at a weighted avenage gf $20.73 per share.
Since commencement of its initial repurchase piat9i99, the Company has repurchased 10.0 milliareshof Common Stock at a weighted
average price of $23.87 per share for a total mgelprice of $237.9 million. At December 31, 2008, Company has 5.1 million shares of
Common Stock and Common Units remaining underrggipusly announced share repurchase programs.
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SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 149, reqtiiee€ompany to recognize all derivatives on thaie sheet at fair value.
Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjustéairtealue through income. If the derivative ieedge, depending on the nature of the
hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivatiileeither be offset against the change in failuesof the hedged assets, liabilities or firm
commitments through earnings or will be recogniredccumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (“AOCLiuthe hedged item is
recognized in earnings. The ineffective portiomaferivative’s change in fair value is recognize@arnings.

The Companys interest rate risk management objectives arienibthe impact of interest rate changes on eamam cash flows and
lower overall borrowing costs. To achieve thesedijes, the Company may enter into interest rathyl contracts such as collars, swaps,
caps and treasury lock agreements in order to atdigs interest rate risk with respect to varidabt instruments. The Company does not
hold these derivatives for trading or speculatiueppses.

The interest rate on all of the Company’s variabte debt is currently adjusted at one to threetmuntervals, subject to settlements
under these contracts. The Company received onbnanal amount of payments under the interesthratie contracts in 2003. Net
payments made to counter parties under interestiedge contracts were $0.4 million and $1.0 mmillio2002 and 2001, respectively, and
were recorded as increases to interest expense.

The Company is exposed to certain losses in thet@feonperformance by the counter party under the inteetsthedge contract. T
Company expects the counter party, which is a nfajancial institution, to perform fully under thentract. However, if the counter party
was to default on its obligations under the interate hedge contract, the Company could be redjtiir@ay the full rates on its debt, even if
such rates were in excess of the rate in the otntra

On the date that the Company enters into a devivatntract, the Company designates the derivasvd) a hedge of the variability of
cash flows that are to be received or paid in cotioie with a recognized liability (a “cash flow” tige), (2) a hedge of changes in the fair
value of an asset or a liability attributable tpaaticular risk (a “fair value” hedge) or (3) arsirument that is held as a non-hedge derivative.
Changes in the fair value of highly effective clslv hedges, to the extent that the hedges aretafée are recorded in AOCL, until earnings
are affected by the hedged transaction (i.e., petilodic settlements of a variable-rate liabilitg recorded in earnings). Any hedge
ineffectiveness (which represents the amount bylwiiie changes in the fair value of the derivagixeeed the variability in the cash flows of
the transaction) is recorded in current-period i@ For derivatives designated as fair value Bedghanges in the fair value of the
derivative and the hedged item related to the he:digk are recognized in current-period earnindgriges in the fair value of non-hedging
instruments are reported in current-period earnings

The Company formally documents all relationshipsveen hedging instruments and hedged items asawél risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking various leetilgnsactions. This process includes linking ethdtives that are designated as cash flow
hedges to (1) specific assets and liabilities endhlance sheet or (2) forecasted transactionsCohgany also assesses and documents, botl
at the hedging instrumestinception and on an ongoing basis, whether thgat®es that are used in hedging transactionhayey effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows associated wighhedged items. When the Company determinesittiativative is not (or has ceased to
be) highly effective as a hedge, the Company discoes hedge accounting prospectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Coynpatered into and subsequently terminated a tredsck agreement to hedge
change in the fair market value of the MOPPRS atated remarketing option issued by the Operatangnérship. The termination of this
treasury lock agreement resulted in a payment & gillion to the Company, which was included ag pathe $14.7 million loss on
extinguishment recorded in early 2003 — see Note 5.
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In addition, during the year ended December 31320%& Company entered into and subsequently tatedrthree interest rate swap
agreements related to a ten-year fixed rate fimgncompleted on December 1, 2003. These swap agragmvere designated as cash flow
hedges. The unamortized effective portion of thawative gain on these derivative instruments w9 #illion at December 31, 2003 ani
being reported as a component of AOCL in stockhsldayuity. This deferred gain will be recognizedhiet income as a reduction of interest
expense in the same period or periods during winiglest expense on the hedged fixed rate finaraffegts net income. The Company
expects that approximately $0.3 million will be ogaized in 2004.

In 2003, the Company also entered into two interast swaps related to a floating rate creditifgcilThe swaps effectively fixed the
one month LIBOR rate on $20.0 million of floatinate debt at 0.99% from August 1, 2003 to Janua®p@4 and at 1.59% from January 2,
2004 until May 31, 2005. These swap agreementdesignated as cash flow hedges and the effectitmp®f the cumulative gain on these
derivative instruments was $0.02 million at Decen8f 2003. The Company expects that the portich@tumulative gain recorded in
AOCL at December 31, 2003 associated with theseatere instruments, which will be recognized withthe next 12 months, will be
approximately $0.04 million.

At December 31, 2003, approximately $6.0 milliordeferred financing costs from past cash flow heglgnstruments remained in
AOCL. These costs will be recognized as interepeage as the underlying debt is repaid. The Compapgcts that the portion of the
cumulative loss recorded in AOCL at December 30328ssociated with these derivative instruments;hwvill be recognized as interest
expense within the next 12 months, will be appratity $0.8 million.

11. OTHER C OMPREHENSIVE | NCOME /(L 0sS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) represents netrie plus the results of certain stockholders’ tgghianges not reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. The componédmher comprehensive income/(loss) are as folli§is thousands):

December 31 Decemberd 31
2003 2002
Net income $ 47,94« $ 81,87
Other comprehensive income/(los

Realized derivative gains/(losses) on cashflow ke 3,86¢ (2,306
Amortization as interest expense of hedging gamklasses included in other comprehensive

income/(loss 1,68¢ 1,54:

Total other comprehensive incor 5,554 237

Total comprehensive incon $ 53,49¢ $ 82,11

12. DISCONTINUED O PERATIONS AND THE | MPAIRMENT OF L ONG -L IVED A SSETS

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Wwhkigercedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the linmpant of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be disposedantf the accounting and reporting provisions fepdsals of a segment of business as
addressed in APB Opinion No. 30. SFAS No. 144 viiestve as of January 1, 2002 and extended thertieg requirements of discontinued
operations to include those long-lived assetswleaie classified as held for sale at December 303 28 a result of disposal activities that
were initiated subsequent to January 1, 2002, oe weld during 2002 or 2003 as a result of dispastwities that were initiated subsequent
to January 1, 2002, and the operations and casis fiave been or will be eliminated from the ongaipgrations of the Company and the
Company will not have any significant continuingatvement in the operations after the disposaldaation. As a result, assets which do not
satisfy these requirements, have been excludeddisoontinued operations.
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should be accounted for in accordance with SFAS12&.and APB Opinion No. 30. During 2002, the Comypsold three properties as a
result of disposal activities initiated prior tandiary 1, 2002, and the gains realized on these aadeappropriately included in the gains on
disposition of property, net in the Company’s Cditlted Statements of Income.

As part of its business strategy, the Companyfwdlh time to time selectively dispose of noore properties or other properties in ol
to use the net proceeds for investments or othgroses. The table below sets forth the net opeyraéisults and net carrying value of those
assets classified as discontinued operations i€tmpany’s Consolidated Statements. These assstsfedd as discontinued operations
comprise 2.3 million square feet of property, fapartment units and 122.8 acres of revenue-produaimd sold during 2002 and 2003 and
0.3 million square feet of property and 88 apartnits held for sale at December 31, 2003. Thesg-lived assets relate to disposal
activities that were initiated subsequent to tifeative date of SFAS No. 144, or that met certéijpusations prescribed by SFAS No. 144.
The operations and cash flows of these assetsbh®areor will be eliminated from the ongoing operasi of the Company, and the Company
will not have any significant continuing involventen the operations after the disposal transadioim thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Rental and other revenues $ 7,34C $24,26¢ $ 28,50¢
Operating expenses
Rental property and other expen 2,28: 6,99( 8,127
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,35¢ 5,42¢ 5,56:
Total operating expens 3,631 12,41¢ 13,68¢
Interest expense 1,00¢ 1,71¢ 1,71¢
Other income 33 15C 328
Income before minority interest in the Operating Patnership and gain on sale of discontinued
operations 2,73€ 10,28¢ 13,42¢
Minority interest in discontinued operatic (307) (1,229 (1,669
Income from discontinued operations net of minorityinterest in the Operating Partnership 2,42¢ 9,05t 11,76:
Gain on sale of discontinued operation 9,541 13,12 —
Minority interest in discontinued operatic (1,060 (1,542 —
Gain on sale/impairment of discontinued operationsnet of minority interest in the Operating
Partnership 8,481 11,58( —
Total discontinued operations $10,91¢ $20,638 $ 11,76:
Carrying value of assets held for sale and assetsld during the year $24,26¢ $85,80. $202,32

SFAS No. 144 also requires that a long-lived aslsessified as held for sale be measured at therloivie carrying value or fair value
less cost to sell. During 2003, the Company hadrdeted that the carrying value of two office prdjes held for sale, which have now been
sold, was greater than their fair value less amsttl and has recognized a $0.1 million impairniess, which is included in gain on sale of
discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statésmaf Income for the year ended December 31, 20682002, the impairment loss
related to two additional properties whose carryialyie was greater than their fair value less tmsell, which have now been sold, was $4.1
million. This impairment loss is included in gain sale of discontinued operations in the Consaid&tatement of Income for the year er
December 31, 2002.
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SFAS No. 144 also requires that if indicators opainment exist, the carrying value of a long-livas$et classified as held for use be
compared to the sum of its estimated undiscountead cash flows. If the carrying value is grediban the sum of its undiscounted future
cash flows, an impairment loss should be recogriiaethe excess of the carrying amount of the asget its estimated fair value. At
December 31, 2003, because there were no propkeiésor use with indicators of impairment whehe tarrying value exceeds the sum of
undiscounted future cash flows, no impairment lessted to properties held for use was recognizeihd the year ended December 31,
2003. For the year ended December 31, 2002, thaiimpnt loss based on this criteria was $0.8 mmillio addition, in 2002, the Company
recognized a $9.1 million impairment loss relatdne office property that has been demolishednaalbe redeveloped into a class A
suburban office property in the future. The camgyiralue of this property exceeded the sum of iiscounted future cash flows. These
impairment losses aggregating $9.9 million areudet as “impairment of assets held for use” inGbesolidated Statements of Income for
the year ended December 31, 2002.

13. EARNINGS P ER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share:

2003 2002 2001

(% in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Numerator:
Net income $ 4794 $ 81,877 $ 117,38l
Non-convertible preferred stock dividenés (30,857 (30,857) (31,500
Excess of preferred stock carrying value over refpase valu — — 1,01z
Numerator for basic earnings per sh— income available to common stockhold $ 17,090 $ 51,028 $ 86,89:

Numerator for diluted earnings per sh— net income available to common stockholders er aft
assumed conversiol $ 17,09 $ 51,028 $ 86,89:

Denominator:

Denominator for basic earnings per st- weightec-average share 52,94( 52,97( 54,03:
Effect of dilutive securities
Employee stock optiorn® 247 35¢€ 42C
Warrants® 3 5 6
Dilutive potential common shar: 25C 361 42€
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — adflisteighted average shares and assumed
conversion 53,52: 53,587 54.,65¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 032 $ 09% $ 161
Diluted earnings per common shé¥e $ 032 $ 09 % 1.5¢

@  For additional disclosures regarding outstandirejgsred stock, employee stock options and warraets Notes 9 and 14 included
herein.

@  The outstanding Common Units and related Minoriteiest in the income of the Operating Partnerahépexcluded from diluted
earning per common share in each period sinceftbet @ould be an-dilutive.

The number of shares of Common Stock that couldsesd upon the exercise of warrants and stockmptire as follows:

December 31 December 31

2003 2002
Outstanding warrani 921,71! 921,71!
Outstanding stock optior 4,370,64 3,672,24!
Possible future issuance under stock option 656,28! 1,410,98:

5,948,64 6,004,94!



As of December 31, 2003, the Company had 146,5Z5%B8res of Common Stock available to be issued.
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As of December 31, 2003, 6.0 million shares of@loenpany’s authorized Common Stock were reservei$oiance under the
Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan. $tptikns granted under this plan generally vest avaur or five-year period beginning
with the date of grant.

In 1995, FASB issued SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 128meunends the use of a fair value based method ouating for an employee
stock option whereby compensation cost is measatrédte grant date based on the fair value of ther@and is recognized over the service
period (generally the vesting period of the awakHfwever, SFAS No.123 specifically allows an enti@ycontinue to measure compensation
cost under APB Opinion No. 25, so long as pro fodisalosures of net income and earnings per shharmade as if SFAS No. 123 had been
adopted. Through December 31, 2002, the Compamyeel¢o follow APB Opinion No. 25 and related imptetations in accounting for its
employee stock options. In 2002 and 2001, 494,32/9&,443 options were exercised whereby the Coyngianultaneously repurchased
shares from the employees sufficient to pay forabion exercise price and the employees’ withhmgdiaxes. Accordingly, these option
exercises were considered to represent new measnreates and the entire intrinsic value of théomstwas expensed in accordance with
FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certdiransactions Involving Stock Options, An Interptetn of APB Opinion No. 25.” The
amounts expensed aggregated $3.7 million and $illidmduring the years ended December 2002 and 26#pectively. There were no
similar option exercises during the year ended Dy 31, 2003.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148dwvige alternative methods of transition for a vahary change to the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based emploge®ensation. In addition, the statement ameradiitlosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in bothuah and interim financial statements about thehoatbf accounting for sto-based
employee compensation and the effect of the metised on reported results. On January 1, 2003, ¢hgp@ny adopted the fair value method
of accounting for stock-based compensation promgsimf SFAS No. 123. The Company applied the prdsmemethod of accounting and
expenses all employee stock options (and similards) issued on or after January 1, 2003 overélting period based on the fair value of
the award on the date of grant. The adoption sfstatement did not have a material impact on dragany’s results of operations.

Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of a stock apt®estimated by using an optipricing model that takes into account as of thet
date the exercise price and expected life of th®opthe current price of the underlying stock #sdexpected volatility, expected dividends
on the stock and the risk-free interest rate ferekpected term of the option. SFAS No. 123 pravieleamples of possible pricing models and
includes the Black-Scholes pricing model, which @mmpany used to develop its pro forma disclosurke.Black-Scholes model was
developed for use in estimating the fair valuerafléd options that have no vesting restrictionsaardully transferable rather than for use in
estimating the fair value of employee stock optisualject to vesting and transferability restriction
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Because SFAS No. 123 is applicable only to optgmasited subsequent to December 31, 1994, onlyraptjcanted subsequent to that
date were valued using the Black-Scholes model.fainealues of the options granted in 2003 wetérexted at the grant dates using the
following weighted average assumptions: risk-frgeriest rates of 2.98% and 3.94%, dividend yiel8.81% and 11.05%, expected volatility
of 17.10% and 20.39% and a weighted average expéfeef the options of four years. The fair valofethe options granted in 2002 was
estimated at the grant dates using the followingyited average assumptions: risk-free interessnateging between 3.64% and 4.06%,
dividend yield of 8.70%, expected volatility of Z2% and a weighted average expected life of thewgbf four years. The fair values of the
options granted in 2001 were estimated at the glatets using the following weighted average assiomgitrisk-free interest rates ranging
between 5.76% and 6.11%, dividend yield of 9.00%pgeted volatility of 17.20% and a weighted avereggected life of the options of four
years. Had the compensation cost for the Con’s stock option plans for options issued beforeuday 1, 2003 been determined based on
the fair values at the grant dates for awards gohbetween January 1, 1995 and December 31, 20@3&tent with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123, the Compar's net income and net income per share would haeesdsed to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

($ in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income available for common stockhold— as reportet $ 17,090 $ 51,02t $ 86,89
Add: Stock option expense included in reportedimeame 1,24¢ 354 1,19(C
Deduct: Total stock option expense determined ufadevalue recognition method for all awal (1,840 (1,142 (3,429
Pro forma net income available for common stockéis $ 16,50 $ 50,237 $ 84,65«
Basic net income per common sh- as reporte: $ 03z $ 09% $ 161
Basic net income per common sh- pro forma $ 031 $ 09 $ 157
Diluted net income per common sh- as reportes $ 03z $ 09 $  1.5¢
Diluted net income per common sh«- pro forma $ 031 $ 094 $ 15t

The following table summarizes information abouiptoyees’ and directors’ stock options outstandinBecember 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001:

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average

Number

of Shares Exercise Price
Balances at December 31, 2( 3,273,65! $ 22.9¢
Options grante: 741,88: 25.02
Options terminate (119,129 26.9¢
Options exercise (95,449 13.3¢
Balances at December 31, 2( 3,800,97! 23.2¢
Options grante: 570,33 26.9¢
Options terminate (204,739 25.6¢
Options exercise (494,329 19.6¢
Balances at December 31, 2( 3,672,24! 24.0¢
Options grante: 756,95: 21.0¢
Options terminate (2,250 30.3¢
Options exercise (56,300 19.0¢
Balances at December 31, 2( 4,370,641 $ 24.4(

Options Exercisable

Weighted Average
Number
of Shares Exercise Price



December 31, 20C 1,712,62 $ 23.7¢
December 31, 20C 1,729,32! $ 23.5¢F
December 31, 20C 2,478,78 $ 23.6(
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Exercise prices for options outstanding as of D31, 2003 ranged from $12.57 to $31.14. The htedjaverage remaining
contractual life of those options is 6.4 years.nggshe Black-Scholes options valuation model, teggited average fair values of options
granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $0.932%8nd $1.11, respectively, per option.

Warrants

In connection with various acquisitions in 199596%nd 1997, the Company issued warrants to puectteeres of Common Stock.

The following table sets forth information regamgliwarrants outstanding as of December 31, 2003:

Number of Exercise
Date of Issuance Warrants Price
February 199! 35,00( $21.0C
April 1996 150,00( $28.0(
October 1997 626,71! $32.5(C
December 199 110,00( $34.1:
Total 921,71!

The warrants granted in February 1995, April 1986 Becember 1997 expire 10 years from the respedtites of issuance. All
warrants are exercisable from the dates of issudimewarrants granted in October 1997 do not laavexpiration date.
15. COMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES
Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash and cash equiveleestments at financial institutions. The combiaedount balances at each
institution typically exceed FDIC insurance coveramd, as a result, there is a concentration dftatisk related to amounts on deposit in
excess of FDIC insurance coverage. ManagemenedEtmpany believes that the potential risk of issgemote.

Land Leases

Certain properties in the Company’s wholly ownedfotio are subject to land leases expiring thro2gB2. Rental payments on these
leases are adjusted annually based on either tisiower price index or on a predetermined schetlaled leases subject to increases under a
pre-determined schedule are accounted for undestthight-line method.

For three properties, the Company has the optignutchase the leased land during the lease tetine afreater of 85.0% of appraised
value or $0.03 million per acre.

The Company’s payment obligations for future minimiease payments are as follows ($ in thousands):

2004 $ 1,26¢
2005 1,27:
2006 1,21z
2007 1,19¢
2008 1,19¢
Thereaftel 42,76¢

$48,90¢
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Contracts

The Company has entered into contracts relateghtant improvements and the development of certaipguties totaling $24.1 million
as of December 31, 2003. The amounts remaining fald under these contracts as of December 3B, 2@led $18.2 million.
Environmental Matters

Substantially all of the Company’s in-service pmtjgs have been subjected to Phase | environmassalssments (and, in certain
instances, Phase Il environmental assessmentd).888essments and/or updates have not revealed,management aware of, any
environmental liability that management believesilddhave a material adverse effect on the accompgrgonsolidated Financial
Statements.

Joint Ventures

Certain properties owned in joint ventures withffiiated parties have buy/sell options that mayesercised to acquire the other
partner’s interest by either the Company or itatj@enture partner if certain conditions are mesetsforth in the respective joint venture
agreement.

Guarantees and Other Obligations

The following is a tabular presentation and relatisd¢ussion of various guarantees and other odigaes of December 31, 2003 and
additional guarantees and obligations that arase Becember 31, 2003:

Date

Amount Guarantee
Type of Recorded/
Entity or Transaction Guarantee or Other Obligation Deferred Expires
($ in thousands
MG-HIW Metrowest I, LLC and MG-HIW Metrowest I, LC ® Purchase optio $ — 3/200¢
MG-HIW Metrowest |, LLC and MG - HIW Metrowest ILLC @.@®) Debt $ — 3/200¢
Des Moines Joint Venturéd.(©) Debt $ — Various
MG-HIW, LLC @.®) Letter of credi $ — 3/200¢
MG-HIW, LLC ®.G) Return of investmer $ 60,991 3/200¢
MG-HIW, LLC ®.6) Rent and leasing cos $ — 3/200¢
RRHWoods, LLC®2.10) Debt $ — 8/200¢
Plaza Colonnad@:-t1) Construction loan and complett  $ 2,84¢ 2/200¢
Plaza Colonnad@® (1) Letter of credi $ — 12/200:
SF-HIW Harborview, LP®).(™) Rent and tenant improvemefit $ — 9/2007
SF-HIW Harborview, L. Purchase obligatio $ 13,56¢ 9/201¢
Eastshore (Capital Oné)(12) Rent® $ — 11/200:
Capital One?®-(13) Rent® $ 3,13¢  10/200¢
Industrial®).(14) Rent® $ 2,347 12/200¢
Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, L®.15) Rent® $ 85E 6/200¢
Guarantees that arose after December 31, 2003:
RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partn@r§6) Indirect debt* $ 1,29C 6/201¢
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC®.a7 Rent® $ 62¢ 4/2011
Leasing cost $ 4,101  12/202:

HIW-KC Orlando, LLC®.7)

@  Represents guarantees entered into prior to theadad, 2003 effective date of FIN 45 for initiakcognition and measurement.
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@

®)

4)

®)

(6)

©)

®)

©)

Represents guarantees that fall under the ing@gnition and measurement requirements of FIN 45.

Represents guarantees that are excluded fromitheafae accounting and disclosure provisions & Bb since the existence of such
guarantees prevents sale treatment and/or themnigioogof profit from the sale transactic

The maximum potential amount of future paymentdesd below for these guarantees assumes the Cynpaas the maximum
possible liability under the guarantee with no efésor reductions. If the space is leased, it assuhe existing tenant defaults at
December 31, 2003 and the space remains unleasegththe remainder of the guarantee term. If gzees is vacant, it assumes the
space remains vacant through the expiration ofjttaantee. Since it is assumed that no new tendrtosupy the space, lease
commissions, if applicable, are exclud

As more fully described in Note 3, in December 2a8@ Company guaranteed its 80.0% partner in tBeHW, LLC joint venture a
20.0% leveraged internal rate of return on thatrigas $50.0 million equity investment in the OrdienCity Group. This transaction was
accounted for as a financing arrangement and timep@oy adjusted the related financing obligatiorhgaeriod up to the 20.0% internal
rate of return guarantee which was $61.0 millioDatember 31,2003. The Company settled its obligdtir $62.5 million in cash in
March 2004 as described in Note 3. In additiordescribed in Notes 3 and 18, the Company guarackain rents and leasing costs.
In 2004 and prior to the Company acquiring Milldokal’'s 80.0% interest on March 2, 2004, the Conygaaid $0.4 million related to
these guaranteed rents and leasing ¢

On July 29, 2003, the Company entered into an p@igreement to acquire Miller Global's 80.0% instiia the Orlando City Group. In
connection with the option agreement, the Compantgred into a letter of credit in the amount ofSsmillion in favor of Miller Global,
which could have been drawn by Miller Global in theent the Company did not exercise its optionuieipase Miller Global's 80.0%
interest in the Orlando City Group of MBAW, LLC by March 24, 2004. Since the Company eisad its option in March 2004, the f
value of the letter of credit guarantee liabilisynot recorded in the Compé s Balance Sheet. See Note 3 for further discus

As more fully described in Note 3, in 2002 the Camyp granted its partner in SfW Harborview, LP a put option and also entered

a master lease arrangement for five years cov@dognt space in the building owned by the partrirshd agreed to pay certain tenant
improvement costs. The maximum potential amourftifre payments as of December 31, 2004 the Compaug be required to

make related to the rent guarantee and tenant iraprent is $1.4 million

As more fully described in Note 2, in July 2003 thompany entered into an option agreement witbatser, Miller Global, to acquil
Miller Global’s 50.0% interest in the assets encasging 87,832 square feet of property and 7.0 adrésvelopment land of MG-HIW
Metrowest I, LLC and MG-HIW Metrowest Il, LLC for32 million. The $7.4 million construction loanfind the development of this
property, of which $7.3 million was outstandindCetcember 31, 2003, was either to be paid in fulssumed by the Company in
connection with the acquisition. On January 29,2@0e Company guaranteed 50.0% of the construtgiEmsuch that if the joint
venture is unable to repay the outstanding baladheeCompany would have been required, under tingstef the agreement, to repay
50.0% of the outstanding balance. The maximum piaiesamount of future payments by the Company utiderguarantee agreement
was $3.7 million. However, the Company had the mmtial right to seek recourse from its partne5@0% of that amount. The
Company exercised its option on March 2, 2004 amglised its partner’s 50.0% interest in MG-HIW Metrest |, LLC and MG-HIW
Metrowest Il, LLC for $3.2 million. The $7.4 millioconstruction loan was paid in full by the Companyglosing

In connection with the Des Moines joint venturés, Company has guaranteed certain loans of theyjeiriures; such guarantees were
in place prior to January 1, 2003. The maximum pidéamount of future payments the Company coelddnguired to make under the
guarantees is $25.5 million. Of this amount, $8ilian arose from housing revenue bonds that reqjoiedit enhancements in addition
to the real estate mortgages. The bonds beartinfidaterest rate, which at December 31, 2003ayed 1.3%, and mature in 2015.
Guarantees totaling $9.5 million will expire upevotindustrial buildings becoming 93.8% and 95.0%skxl or when the related loans
mature. As of December 31, 2003, these buildingge w8.0% and 64.0% leased, respectively. The rentafv.4 million in guarantees
relate to loans on four office buildings that war¢he leasaip phase at the time the loans were initiated. B&the loans will expire b
May 2008. The average occupancy of the four bujisliat December 31, 2003 was 91.0%. If the jointwes are unable to repay the
outstanding balances under the loans, the Compdhlyenrequired, under the terms of the agreemeatsgpay the outstanding
balances. Recourse provisions exist to enable tmep@ny to recover some or all of such payments tfamjoint ventures’ assets and/or
the other partner. The joint ventures currentlyagate sufficient cash flow to cover the debt serviaquired by the loan
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10) In connection with the RRHWoods, LLC joint ventutiee Company renewed its guarantee of $6.2 mitiioa bank in July 2003; this
guarantee expires in August 2006 and may be renbwélte Company. The bank provides a letter ofitaturing industrial revenue
bonds that mature in 2015. The Company would beired to perform under the guarantee should th@ ja@nture be unable to repay
the bonds. The Company has recourse provisionsdigr ¢o recover from the joint ventuseassets and the other partner for amounts
in excess of its proportionate share. The propesthateralizing the bonds is 100.0% leased andeatiyr generates sufficient cash flow
to cover the debt service required by the bondhfiirey. As a result, no liability has been recoriiethe Compan’'s Balance Shee

11  With respect to the Plaza Colonnade, LLC joint vesit the Company has included $2.8 million in offabilities and adjusted its
investment in unconsolidated affiliates by $2.8lianil on its consolidated balance sheet at Decerdbge?003 related to two separate
guarantees of a construction loan agreement andstraction completion agreement. The construdban matures in February 2006,
but has two one-year options to extend the matdete that are conditional on completion and lagsef the project. The terms of the
construction completion agreement require the aarkshell of the building to be completed by Decenib, 2005. Currently, the
building is scheduled to be completed in DecemB@A2Both guarantees arose from the formation@fdnt venture to construct an
office building. If the joint venture is unable tepay the outstanding balance under the construliam agreement or complete the
construction of the office building, the Companyulbbe required, under the terms of the agreemenmtepay its 50.0% share of the
outstanding balance under the construction loancantplete the construction of the office buildifigpe maximum potential amount of
future payments by the Company under these agreerise$34.9 million. No recourse provisions exftttwould enable the Company
to recover from the other partner amounts paid utideguarantees. However, given that the loanliateralized by the building, the
Company and its partner could obtain and liquidia¢ebuilding to recover the amounts paid shoulddbmpany be required to perform
under the guarante

In addition to the Plaza Colonnade, LLC construttaman and completion agreement described aboggaltners collectively provided
$12.0 million in letters of credit in December 2088.0 million was provided by the Company and $6illion was provided by its
partner. The Company and its partner would be ladide under the letter of credit agreements shthddoint venture not complete
construction of the building. The letters of creshipire December 31, 2004. No recourse provisiarst that would enable the Compe
to recover from the other partner amounts drawreatite Company’s letter of credit. The buildinghearing completion and the first
tenant is expected to take occupancy in the foyutirter of 2004.

12 As more fully described in Note 3, in connectiorthathe sale of three office buildings to a thirdtpan 2002 (the “Eastshore”
transaction), the Company agreed to guaranteeshamtfalls and any re-tenanting costs for a fivarygeriod of time from the date of
sale (i.e., through November 2007). The maximuneipidl amount of future payments related to thigrgntee the Company could be
required to make as of December 31, 2004 is $18l@m These three buildings are currently leated single tenant, Capital One
Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Capital One Finaln8ervices, Inc., under leases that expire fromy RZO6 to March 201(

13 In connection with an unrelated disposition of 288, square feet of property in 2003 which was fldgsed to Capital One Services,
Inc., a subsidiary of Capital One Financial Sersjdac., the Company agreed to guarantee to therbayer various contingency
periods through October 2009, any rent shortfalls@rtain space. Because of this guarantee, inr@daece with SFAS No. 66, the
Company deferred $4.4 million of the total $8.4limil gain. The deferred portion of the gain is mmaiaed when each contingency
period is concluded. As a result, the Company reizegl $1.3 million of the deferred gain in 2003eT@ompany’s total contingent
liability of $3.1 million with respect to the guarae is included in the deferred gain as of Decer@ibe2003

a4 In December 2003, the Company sold 1.9 million sgdeet of industrial property for $58.4 million @ash, a $5.0 million note
receivable that bears interest at 12.0% and afilllidn note receivable that bears interest at 8.0%addition, the Company agreed to
guarantee, over various contingency periods thrddgtember 2006, any rent shortfalls on 16.3% oféméable square footage of the
industrial property, which is occupied by two tetsarThe Company’s contingent liability with respezsuch guarantee as of December
31, 2003 was $2.4 million. The total gain as altesfithe transaction was $5.2 million. Becausettrens of the notes require only
interest payments to be made by the buyer untib2@0accordance with SFAS No. 66, the entire $8illlon gain was deferred and
offset against the note receivable on the balaheetsThe cost recovery method is being used fsttitainsaction. Accordingly, once
sufficient principal amounts have been paid onnibie receivable so that the note receivable balenegual to the deferred gain, the
gain will be recognized as additional paymentsnaaele on the note
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15. CoMmmITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES - Continued

(15)

(16)

()]

In the Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP joint verd, a single tenant currently leases an entirglibgi under a lease scheduled to
expire June 30, 2008. The tenant also leases gpatieer buildings owned by the Company. In confiorcwith an overall restructuring
of the tenant’s leases with the Company and withjtint venture, the Company agreed to certaimgka to the lease with the joint
venture in September 2003. The modifications inelalfowing the tenant to terminate the lease onaignl, 2006, reducing the rent
obligation by 50.0% and converting the “net” leésa “full service” lease with the tenant liable £0.0% of these costs beginning on
January 1, 2006. In turn, the Company agreed tgeosate the joint venture for any economic lossesried as a result of these lease
modifications. Based on this lease guarantee agregithe Company recorded approximately $0.9 millioother liabilities and
recorded a deferred charge of $0.9 million in Seter 2003. However, should new tenants occupy déleated space during the two i

a half year guarantee period, the Company’s lighilnder the guarantee would diminish. The Companyaximum potential amount of
future payments with regard to this guarantee i4 #iillion. No recourse provisions exist to enathle Company to recover the amounts
paid to the joint venture under this lease guamateangemen

RRHWoods, LLC and Dallas County Partners each dgeel a new office building in Des Moines, lowa. fume 25, 2004, the joint
ventures financed both buildings with a $7.4 millit0-year loan from a bank. As an inducement toenhk loan at a 6.3% long-term
rate, the Company and its partner agreed to mkestee the vacant space and guaranteed $1.6 molic&0.8 million each, with limited
recourse. As leasing improves, the obligations uttteloan agreement diminish. As of June 30, 26 Company recorded $1.3
million in other liabilities and $1.3 million asdeferred charge on its Consolidated Balance Shidletr@spect to this guarantee. The
maximum potential amount of future payments that@ompany could be required to make based on thentueases in place is
approximately $4.8 million. The likelihood of th@@pany paying on its $0.8 million guarantee is rexgince the master lease
payments provide the required 1.3 debt coverage Bhould the Company have to pay, it would recalie $0.8 million from other
joint venture asset

As more fully described in Note 4, in connectiothathe formation of HIW-KC Orlando, LLC, the Compaagreed to guarantee rent to
the joint venture for 3,248 rentable square featrm@ncing in August 2004 and expiring in April 20Atditionally, the Company
agreed to guarantee leasing costs for approximafélfy of the joint venture’s total square footagee Tompany believes its estimate
related to the leasing costs guarantee is acciateever, if its assumptions prove to be incorrfdyre losses may occt

Litigation

The Company is party to a variety of legal procegdiarising in the ordinary course of its busin&@s& Company believes that it is

adequately covered by insurance. Accordingly, rafrtbese proceedings are expected to have a niadviarse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition and results of openst

The Company accrued $2.7 million for litigation erge related to various legal proceedings fromipusly completed mergers and

acquisitions during 2002. These were fully setttedarly 2003.
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16. DISCLOSURE A BOUT F AIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL | NSTRUMENTS

The following disclosures of estimated fair valuerardetermined by management using available markemation and appropriate
valuation methodologies. Considerable judgmenseduo interpret market data and develop estinfaiedalues. Accordingly, the estimates
presented herein are not necessarily indicatitheamounts that the Company could realize upgrodison of the financial instruments. 1
use of different market assumptions and/or estonatiethodologies may have a material effect orestienated fair values. The carrying
amounts and estimated fair values of the Compdinasicial instruments at December 31, 2003 werfelksvys:

Carrying Fair
Amount Value
($ in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2155 $ 21,55
Accounts and notes receival $ 28,24. $ 28,24.
Mortgages and notes payal $1,717,76!  $1,799,25!
Financing obligatior $ 124,060 $ 125,88t

The fair values of the Company’s fixed rate morggmgnd notes payable were estimated using disabuagh flow analysis based on
the Companys estimated incremental borrowing rate at DecerBibeP003 for similar types of borrowing arrangermseitte carrying amour
of the Company’s variable rate borrowings approxarair value.

Disclosures about the fair value of financial ingtients are based on relevant information availabiee Company at December 31,
2003. Although management is not aware of any fadttat would have a material effect on the falugamounts reported herein, such
amounts have not been revalued since that dateuaneht estimates of fair value may significantiffed from the amounts presented herein.

17. SEGMENT | NFORMATION
The sole business of the Company is the acquisitiemelopment and operation of rental real estaipeasties. The Company operates
office, industrial and retail properties and apamtunits. There are no material inter-segmensaetions.

The Company’s chief operating decision maker (“CDls8sesses and measures operating results basefraperty level net operati
income. The operating results for the individuaeds within each property type have been aggregated the CDM evaluates operating
results and allocates resources on a property-tyyepty basis within the various property types.
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17. SEGMENT | NFORMATION - Continued

The accounting policies of the segments are thesesthose described in Note 1 included hereirthEyrall operations are within the
United States and at December 31, 2003, no teridné ompany’s Wholly Owned Properties comprisemterthan 3.4% of the respective
consolidated revenues. The following table sumnearthe restated rental income, net operating inG@meassets for each reportable segi
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 ant @0id thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Rental and Other Revenuesh:
Office segmen $ 423,68! $ 442,67 $ 449,74
Industrial segmer 41,64° 40,91¢ 42,415
Retail segmer 38,00 36,97 35,257
Apartment segmel 1,362 1,164 7,961
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 504,69¢ $ 521,72¢ $ 535,37!
Net Operating Income® :
Office segmen $ 266,48" $ 293,28 $ 303,62:
Industrial segmer 33,06( 32,92 35,04+
Retail segmer 26,19: 25,38: 23,59:
Apartment segmel 55C 571 4,05¢
Total Net Operating Income 326,28 352,16: 366,31¢
Reconciliation to income before disposition of progrty, co-venture expense, minority
interest and equity in earnings of unconsolidatedféiliates:
Depreciation and amortizatic (142,109 (140,790 (127,62)
Impairment of assets held for L — (9,919 —
General and administrative expen (25,269 (26,197 (23,38¢)
Litigation expenst — (2,700 —
Interest expens (141,62) (134,909 (134,775
Other income/expens 7,86¢ 7,33¢ 13,271
Income before disposition of property, co-venturexpense, minority interest and equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 2516 $ 4498 $ 93,80¢

December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Total Assets:
Office segmen $2,793,92° $2,962,71! $3,183,93
Industrial segmer 274,37¢ 354,39¢ 343,60t
Retail segmer 282,19¢ 277,88¢ 263,62:
Apartment segmel 13,80 13,05 10,39
Corporate and oth¢ 178,71. 161,03: 170,78!
Total Assets $3,543,02.  $3,769,08! $3,972,34

@  Net of discontinued operatior
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18. RESTATED F INANCIAL D ATA
Overview

The Company has restated its Consolidated FinaStaéments as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 atidefgears ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The restatements reldke timllowing general matters, as discussed futtleéow. The tables that follow provide a
reconciliation between amounts previously repoged the restated amounts in the Income Statemantisef years ended December 31, 2
2002 and 2001 and in the Balance Sheets as of e, 2003 and 2002. In addition, some of thasidjents impacted periods prior to
2001 and the net effect of these prior adjustmisras$2.8 million reduction in retained earningSatuary 1, 2001.

Accounting for real estate sales transactions witbontinuing involvement by the Company Since 1999, the Company completed
several real estate sale transactions that invaitbdr (i) sales of real estate to third partieogoint ventures in which the Company retai
an interest, and/or (ii) continuing involvementthg Company in the real estate in the form of agptibn, guarantee of the sellers’ return on
investment, seller financing, and guarantee ofalantome from specific tenants or specific spageguding re-tenanting costs. In its
historical financial statements filed prior to tih&te hereof, the Company believed that such tréinsacshould be accounted for as sales and
deferred some or all of the resultant gains in iwration of the continuing involvement until sudaihe as the continuing involvement
obligation expired. Under this method of accountisheferred gains are either subsequently reducebl@mtions are paid or recognized as
obligations expire. Furthermore, at the time thinaesactions occurred, the Company identified thaigle guarantees and other types of
continuing involvement and disclosed the natureandunt of any material continuing involvement tielaships (guarantees, etc.). The
Company has now determined that certain adjustnsfiatgld be made with respect to the accountingntrexat for certain of those transacti
where the Company had some form of continuing wswient to conform with paragraphs 25 through 28FAS No. 66. For three of the
transactions, the largest of which is the sal@ia PO00 of properties into the previously disatbs&s-HIW, LLC joint venture, the Company
has adjusted its Consolidated Financial Statentergscount for these three transactions as fingresnal/or profitsharing arrangements rat|
than as sales, as more fully described in Notasd13aUnder these methods, the assets, relatélitiésband operations are now included in
the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements. In the otisances, the transactions have continued to loetegpbas sales, but the timi
and amount of gain recognition was changed duegdbmpany’s continuing involvement, including aerttransactions that occurred prior
to January 1, 2001. These adjustments in the agtgegsulted in (decreases) to previously reparéddncome as follows: $(3.2) million in
2003, $(14.0) million in 2002 and $(12.8) milliam2001.

Presentation and classification of discontinued opations with continuing involvement by the Company.In the Company’s
previous Consolidated Financial Statements foy#es ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 aimpghy had classified as
discontinued operations under SFAS No. 144 seypeogerties that were sold or transferred to joeritures in which the Company retained a
financial interest and other sold properties whieeeCompany was retained by the new owner to peowidnagement and leasing services.
However, the Company has now determined that beaafusuch continuing involvement, these sold prigedo not qualify for discontinued
operations classification under SFAS No. 144. Adealy, the results of operations from such praperhave now been reclassified into
income from continuing operations for the yearseehBecember 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 in the accoymup@onsolidated Financial
Statements. In addition, in 2002 the Company remah impairment loss related to a property that deanolished in connection with a
redevelopment project. That loss was previouslgsifeed with gains and losses of sold assets, lEm€bmpany has now determined that ¢
loss should be included in continuing operatiors laas so classified the loss in the accompanyimgs@alated Financial Statements. These
reclassifications did not impact net income in geryiod.
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Minority interest. In its Consolidated Financial Statements, the Compeeviously computed minority interest in the metome in its
majority owned subsidiary, the Operating Partngrstar each reporting period by applying the wegghaverage ownership percentage of the
minority common unitholders times the Operatingti®anship’s net income for the period (continuingi@tions and discontinued operations)
before deducting distributions to preferred unitiest. In the restated Consolidated Financial Staésn minority interest has been adjusted
by applying the weighted average ownership pergentd the minority common unitholders times the @gag Partnership’s net income
available to common unitholders (continuing operadiand discontinued operations) for the periogr aféducting distributions to preferred
unitholders. These adjustments increased net indyn$3.4 million in 2003, $3.7 million in 2002 af8.8 million in 2001. In addition, at the
end of each reporting period, the Company detersrine amount that represents the minority unithsldshare of the net assets (at book
value) of the Operating Partnership and compaiesathount to the minority interest balance thatiitesl from transactions during the period
involving minority interest. The Company adjusts thinority interest liability to the computed shafenet assets with an offsetting
adjustment to the Company’s paid in capital.

Accounting for MOPPRS transaction.This transaction is described in detail in Not&Be Company had previously accounted for the
transaction as an exchange of indebtedness un@ier#s-19 and recorded in deferred financing codt Binillion, representing the excess of
amounts paid to retire the MOPPRS and the relaedirketing option over the MOPPRS' net carryingigadnd related deferred credits. The
Company has now determined that this transactionldrhave been accounted for as a debt extinguishumeler EITF 96-19. Accordingly,
the $14.7 million has been charged to loss on eefitiguishment in the first quarter of 2003 ratthem as deferred financing costs as
previously recorded. In addition, the amortizatexpense related to the previous net deferred fingraosts, which aggregated approxima
$250,000 in the first quarter of 2003 and approxétya$370,000 per quarter thereafter, have beegrsed in the restated Consolidated
Financial Statements. In total, these adjustmaeifits; minority interest, reduced net income in 269311.8 million.

Other matters. In addition to the above, the Company identifiedesal other matters that have been adjusted, whitie aggregate
resulted in increases or (decreases) in net in@miellows: $3.9 million in 2003, $(1.2) million BD02 and $(4.8) million in 2001. These
adjustments included: (1) adjustments to defetheécextent of the Company’s ownership interesttageleasing, development and certain
other fee income charged by the Company to jointwes and which the joint ventures capitalizeth@ir financial statements, and to
recognize such deferred amounts as fee incomedltirenperiods in which the related capitalized amt®in the joint ventures’ financial
statements are recognized as expense, which redet@ttome in all periods; (2) accounting for timpact of dividend equivalent rights that
were granted in 1997, which reduced net incoméd! ipesiods; (3) over- and under-accruals of borxgease in 2002 and 2001; (4)
adjustments in the method of accounting for exectstock options which reduced net income in 2@000 and 1999; (5) reclassification of
certain revenue and expense items to present theargooss basis instead of a net basis which egkirtno impact on net income in any
period; and (6) recognizing as a financing obligiatihe fixed tax assessment related to certaimtagment financing (“TIF"ponds issued i
late 1998 by a municipality and as real estatetasise related parking garage asset constructedtfie TIF proceeds, together with related
income and expenses, in accordance with EITF 91-10.

Following is a description of the three transadipreviously accounted for as sales but now aceduior as financing and/or profit-
sharing arrangements.
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- MG-HIW, LLC

As discussed in Note 3, in December 2000, the Compeeated a joint venture named MG-HIW, LLC witlillst Global, pursuant to
which the Company sold or contributed to MG-HIW,Q. 119 office properties in Atlanta, Raleigh, Tampa ®rlando (each a “City Group”).
The Company retained a 20.0% interest and Milleb@l obtained an 80.0% interest.

With respect to the properties originally contrisdiby the Company to the Orlando City Group, then@any assumed obligations to
make improvements to the assets, as well as nlaater obligations and guarantees on certain vapaige. The Company also provided a
guaranteed leveraged internal rate of return (“[R&"20.0% on the approximate $50.0 million of MillGlobal’s equity that related to the
properties in the Orlando City Group. The IRR gutea was for the duration of MG-HIW, LLC.

The Company treated the transaction with respettte@®rlando City Group and the non-Orlando Citp@s as a sale in 2000 and
recognized partial gain after establishing accrt@ml€stimated obligations, at that time. During tturation of MG-HIW, LLC (which
concluded prior to the date hereof as explainedvbglthe Company paid out approximately $14.6 waillin guarantee obligations to MG-
HIW, LLC, which was comprised of $6.7 million initding improvements, tenant improvements and leasemissions and $7.9 million of
rental support.

The Company has now concluded under SFAS No. @6hbkaale of the 80.0% interest in the propeitighe Orlando City Group
should be accounted for as a financing rather #sazm sale due to the 20.0% IRR guarantee. Consiygurrthese Consolidated Financial
Statements the assets, liabilities and operatielased to the properties in the Orlando City Groapains on the books of the Company and a
financing obligation has been established for thewnt of equity contributed by Miller Global reldt® the Orlando City Group. This
financing obligation is adjusted each period byretieg the obligation up to the 20.0% guarante¢erival rate of return by a charge to inte
expense, such that the financing obligation eqgatdke end of each period the amount due to MBllebal, including the 20.0% guaranteed
return. The Company continues to depreciate tharndd properties and records all the depreciatioitsdmoks. On March 2, 2004, the
Company exercised an option and acquired Milleh@ls 80.0% interest in the Orlando City Group. Skege 3.

Based on the nature and extent of certain rentalagiiees made by the Company with respect to thedmando City Group properties,
the Company has also now concluded that the sdfeeaion-Orlando properties to MG-HIW, LLC shouleldccounted for as a profit-sharing
arrangement. Under this profit-sharing arrangemnianhese Consolidated Financial Statements thetgdgbilities and operations of the
properties in the non-Orlando City Groups remaintenbooks of the Company, and a co-venture olitigdtas been established for the
amount of equity contributed by Miller Global reddtto the non-Orlando City Groups. The income fagarations of the properties,
excluding depreciation, is allocated 80.0% to MifBlobal and reported as “co-venture expense” énQbmpany’s Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company continues to depreciateamérlando properties and records all the deptieci on its books. In July 2003, the
Company repurchased Miller Global’s interest intle@-Orlando City Groups for approximately $28.0ion, which resulted in a gain of
$16.3 million related to the settlement of the emtwure obligation. See Note 3.
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- SF-HIW Harborview, LP

As discussed in Note 3, on September 11, 2002 ¢mepany contributed Harborview Plaza to ISR Harborview, LP, a newly forme
entity, in exchange for a 20.0% limited partnershigrest and $35.4 million in cash. The othermparcontributed $12.6 million of cash and a
new loan was obtained by the partnership for $&dl8on. In connection with this disposition, the@pany entered into a master lease
agreement with SF-HIW Harborview, LP for five yearsthe vacant space in the building (approxima2@y%). The Company also
guaranteed to SF-HIW Harborview, LP the paymernenént improvements and lease commissions of $illidmim The Companys maximun
exposure to loss under this master lease agreemasr$2.1 million at September 11, 2002 and was $llibn at December 31, 2003.
Additionally, the Company’s partner in SF-HIW Harbew, LP was granted the right to put its 80.0%iigginterest in SF-HIW Harborview,
LP to the Company in exchange for cash at any tiorang the one-year period commencing on Septethbe2014. The value of the 80.0%
equity interest will be determined at the timegvkr, that such partner elects to exercise itsight, based upon the then fair market value of
SF-HIW Harborview, LP’s assets and liabilities 1858%, which was intended to cover normal costs sdle transaction.

The Company originally recorded the transaction aale and deferred recognition of a $4.3 milliamgBecause the put option and the
master lease agreement are deemed to be formatiriwing involvement as discussed in paragraphar228 of SFAS No. 66, the Compe
has now concluded that Harborview should be acealfar as a financing transaction. Consequentlthése Consolidated Financial
Statements the assets, liabilities and operatielased to Harborview Plaza, the property owned bybldrview LP, including any new
financing by the partnership, remain on the bodikkb® Company. The Company established a financbiigation equal to the net equity
contributed by the other partner. At the end oheaporting period, the balance of the financintigalion is adjusted to equal the current fair
value but not less than the original financing gélion. This adjustment is amortized prospectitiefpugh September 2014. Additionally, the
net income from the operations before depreciasfddarborview Plaza allocable to the 80.0% parteeecorded as interest expense on the
financing obligation. The Company depreciates tloperty and records all of the depreciation omdsks. Additionally, any payments made
under the master lease agreement are expensetba®a($0.4 million and $0.3 million was expensleding the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively) and any amounts paiénthe tenant improvement and lease commissiaragtee are capitalized and
amortized to expense over the remaining lease #tisuch time as the put option expires or othesvissterminated, the Company will rect
the transaction as a sale and recognize gain en sal

- Eastshore

As discussed in Note 3, on November 26, 2002 thagamy sold three buildings located in RichmondgWwiia for a total purchase pri
of $28.5 million in cash, which was paid in full bye buyer at closing. These three buildings areeatly leased to a single tenant, Capital
One Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Capital Onaf@mal Services, Inc., under leases that expima ftay 2006 to March 2010. The Company
originally recorded the transaction as a sale aifdrced a $6.9 million gain.

In connection with the sale, the Company entertmlarrental guarantee agreement for each buildinthe benefit of the buyer to
guarantee any rent shortfalls which may be incufoedhe payment of rent and re-tenanting costsffive-year period from the date of sale
(through November 2007). The Company’s maximum sxp®to loss under the rental guarantee agreemest$18.7 million at the date of
sale and was $15.9 million at December 31, 2003.

The Company has now concluded that these rent giggsare a form of continuing involvement as dised in paragraph 28 of SFAS No.
66. Because the guarantee is for the entire spamged by a single tenant under a triple-net l@asgement, the Company’s guarantee is
considered a guaranteed return on the buyer’s iresg for an extended period of time. Thereforghase Consolidated Financial
Statements, the transaction is accounted for emading transaction, following the accounting noetldescribed in Note 1 and described
further in Note 3.
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The following condensed Consolidated Balance Saegtincome Statement data reconciles previouslyrtegh and restated financial

information (in thousands, except per share amyunts

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2003

December 31, 2002

Restatemen

Discontinuec

As Reported
with

Restatemen

Adjustments Discontinued Adjustments
As Reported Restated As Reported Operations Operations Restated

Net real estate asst $2,982,30; $241,91: $3,224,21. $3,008,881 $ (42,61¢) $2,966,26: $391,31( $3,357,57:
Property held for sal 65,72¢ — 65,72¢ 124,05¢ 42,64t 166,70: — 166,70:
Cash, cash equivalents and

restricted cas 24,88¢ 1,26¢ 26,15 19,59¢ — 19,59¢ 6,83t 26,43¢
Accounts, notes and straight-line

rents receivable, ni 93,63¢ (6,48%5) 87,15¢ 93,41: — 93,41 (12,65¢) 80,75¢
Investments in unconsolidated

affiliates 74,66 (12,249 62,41° 79,50¢ — 79,50¢ (29,15) 60,35
Other assets, n 85,59¢ (8,239 77,36 69,91( (27 69,88! 7,37 77,26(
Total Assets $3,326,80' $216,21: $3,543,020 $3,395,36' $ —  $3,395,36! $373,71° $3,769,08!
Mortgages and notes payal $1,558,75! $ 159,000 $1,717,76! $1,528,721 $ —  $1,528,721 $ 265,04( $1,793,76!
Accounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabiliti 111,77. (10,169 101,60¢ 120,61« — 120,61- (10,359 110,26(
Financing obligation — 124,06: 124,06: — — — 121,01 121,01:
Cc-venture obligation — — — — — — 43,51 43,51
Total Liabilities 1,670,531 272,90¢ 1,943,431 1,649,33 — 1,649,33.  419,20¢ 2,068,54.
Minority interest 165,25( (37,479 127,77¢ 188,56: — 188,56 (35,245 153,31¢
Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,491,02! (29,219 1,471,81  1,557,47. — 1,557,47. (10,247 1,547,22!
Total Liabilities and

Stockholders’ Equity $3,326,80' $216,21: $3,543,020 $3,395,36! $ —  $3,395,36¢ $ 373,71 $3,769,08!
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December 31, 2002

December 31, 2001

Restatemen

As

Reported Adjustments

Operations

with

As . . . h
Restatec Reported DiScontinuec Discontinuec a g siments

Operations

As Reported Restatemen

Operations

As Reported Restatemen

with

As . . . h
Restatec Reported Discontinuec Discontinuec a i ,siments Re

Operations

Rental and other
revenues
Operating expenses:
Rental property
and other
expenses
Depreciation
and
amortizatiol
Impairment of
assets held
and used —
General and
administrativi 24,81°¢
Litigation
expense —
Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of
deferred
financing
costs
Financing
obligations —

$422,06: $

147,38(

129,22!

111,19¢

3,07¢

Other
income/expense:
Interest and
other
income
Loss on debt
extinguishment —
Gain on
extinguishn
of co-
venture
obligation —
Gain on disposition of
property, net
Cc-venture expens
Minority interest
Equity in earnings of
unconsolidated
affiliates

11,91¢

3,77¢

(3,009

4,75C

82,637

31,03:

12,87¢

454

8,33

1,32%

17,69:

(5,696)

(14,659

16,30:
8,54(

(4,589
2,19(

20z

178,41:

142,10¢

25,26¢

119,52¢

4,40t

17,691

6,22(

(14,659

16,301
12,31¢

(4,589
(819

4,957

$504,69¢ $454,22( $

143,41

126,63t

24,57¢
2,70C

109,13

1,39:¢

13,65(

(379)

12,247

(9,659

8,06:

(5,709)

(4,889

(89)

(851)

1,357

(21,159 $

433,06 $

137,71¢

121,74¢

24,57¢
2,70C

109,13

1,39:

13,56:

379)

11,39¢

(8,296

8,06:

88,66(

31,85( 169,56:

19,04 140,79(

9,91¢ 9,91¢

1,61€ 26,19:

— 2,70(
9,81¢ 118,95:
2,07¢ 3,46¢

12,48t 12,48t

(5,849  7,71:

— 379

11,29¢
(7,730
3,94¢

22,69:
(7,730
(4,347

(2429 564

$521,72! $506,85( $

154,94
121,06°

21,404
106,49¢

2,00t

24,854

(714

16,17

(189_45)

8,911

(15,762)

(11,927)

(14

(1,719

(42€)

3,44¢

(56,929 $

449,92t $ 85,447 $5

139,18 29,87¢ 1

109,14t 18,481 1

21,39( 1,99¢

104,77 14,11¢ 1

2,00¢ 2,03:¢

= 11,841

24,42t (10,43)

(714 —

16,17: 5,73¢
(6,859

(15,500 472, (

8,911 (1,375

Income from
continuing
operations

Discontinued
operations:

Income, net of
minority
interest

Gain on sale,
net of
minority
interest

23,81(

14,32¢

17,55¢

13,21¢

(11,89)

(9,079

37,02¢

2,42¢

8,487

70,29¢

12,31

10,85¢

(10,147

9,39¢

752

60,147

21,701

11,607

1,098 61,24:

(12,65)  9,05¢

(27) 11,58

131,21

(24,48/)

24,48

106,72 (1,109 1

24,48 (12,729

Net income

Dividends on preferred
stock

Excess of preferred
stock carrying valu
over repurchase
value —

55,69¢

(30,85

(7,759

47,94¢

(30,857)

93,46!

(30,85

93,461

(30,857)

(11,58) 81,87:

— (30,859

131,21:

(31,500

131,21:

(31,500 —

— 1,012




Net income available
for common

stockholders $ 24,84 $ (7,750 $ 17,09 $ 62,60¢ $ — $ 62,60¢ $ (11,589 % 51,02¢ $ 99,711 $ — $ 99,711 ¢ (12,819 %
I B B I B B B B B B B
Net income/(loss) per
common share —
basic:
Income/(loss) from
continuing
operations $ (019)% 028$ 01z2$% 074% 0.19% 0.5t $ 00z% 057% 18483 0.45 $ 13¢ % — 3
Discontinued
operations 0.6C (0.40) 0.2C 0.44 0.1¢ 0.6 (0.24) 0.3¢ — 0.4¢ 0.4¢ (0.29)
Net income() $ 047$ ©19$% 03z$% 11£$ — 3 1.1€ $ 029% 09 $ 184% — 3 182 % 0.29%
I L I I B B B B B B B e
Net income/(loss) per
common share —
diluted
Income/(loss) from
continuing
operations $ (019% 026 $ 01z%$ 074$% 0.19% 0.5% $ 00z$ 057% 18:$% (0.45) $ 1.3 $ (0.0) %
Discontinued
operations 0.6C (0.40) 0.2C 0.4 0.1¢ 0.6z (0.24) 0.3¢ — 0.4¢ 0.4¢ (0.249)
Net income® $ 047 $ (015$ 03z$ 117 8% — % 117 $ (029$ 095 $ 1.8 $ — % 1.8 $ 024 %
L

@ Amounts represent net income available to commacksblders per share, which is after deductingepreti dividends and adding excess

of preferred stock carrying value over repurchasae:
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

19. RESTATED Q UARTERLY F INANCIAL D ATA (Unaudited)
The Company has set forth selected quarterly filshdata for the years ended December 31, 2002668. As discussed in Note 18,

the Company restated its results for the yearscebdeember 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. Because cefttie data set forth in the following
tables varies from amounts previously reportedhenfiorm 10-Q for the applicable period, the follogvtables reconcile the previously

reported quarterly financial information to thetegsed quarterly financial information and descitibe reason for the differences (in thousa
except per share amounts):

First Quarter 2003

Second Quarter 2003

As As
Reported Reported
Discontinuec with Restatemen Discontinuec with Restatemen
As Discont. As Discont.
Reported Operations Oper. Adjustment Restated Reported Operations Oper. Adjustment Restated

Rental and other revenu  $109,02( $ (5,052) $103,96¢ $ 23,50¢ $127,47¢ $105,65¢ $ (2,007) $103,65° $ 23,16: $126,82:
Rental property and other

expense: 37,31¢ (1,43¢) 35,88( 7,54z  43,42: 36,87( (751) 36,11¢ 8,16¢  44,28:
Depreciation and

amortizatior 33,294 (1,365 31,92¢ 4,45¢ 36,38° 32,41: (52C) 31,89: 4,11¢  36,01(
General and administrati\ 5,34¢ — 5,34¢ (672) 4,67 6,52¢ — 6,52¢ 43¢ 6,96(
Interest expens 28,30( — 28,30( 7,63 35,93! 28,57¢ — 28,57¢ 6,77¢ 35,35}
Other income/expen: 2,89( (32) 2,85¢ (16,33%) (13,47¢ 3,22¢ (22) 3,20¢ (1,327%) 1,881
Gain on disposition of

property, ne 88: — 88: (79) 804 1,632 — 1,632 (22 1,61(
Ca-venture expens — — — 2,08¢ 2,08¢ — — — 2,16¢ 2,16¢
Minority interest (1,227 26C (961) 2,545 1,582 (65€) 84 (572) 634 62
Equity in earnings of

unconsolidated affiliate 1,761 — 1,761 (612 1,14¢ (48%) — (48%) 1,86: 1,37
Income from continuing

operations 9,07¢ (2,019 7,057 (12,0200 (4,969 4,99/ (66€) 4,32¢ 2,64¢ 6,972
Discontinued operatior 2,09¢ 2,01¢ 4,11¢ (3,24)) 874 5,12¢ 66¢ 5,79¢ (4,089 1,71(C
Net income 11,172 — 11,17 (15,269 (4,089 10,12( — 10,12( (1,43¢) 8,68
Dividends on preferred

stock (7,719 — (7,719 — (7,719 (7,719 — (7,719 — (7,719
Net income available for

common stockholders $ 3,45¢ $ — $ 3,45¢ $ (15,267 $(11,807) $ 2,407 $ — $ 2407 $ (1,439) % 96¢

Net income per share-
basic:
Income/(loss) from

continuing operations $ 00z $ (009 $ (0.0)$ (029% (02H%$ (OO05H)$ (00H$ (0.Oep$s 0.08 % (0.00
Discontinued operations 0.04 0.0z 0.07 (0.05) 0.0z 0.1C 0.01 0.11 (0.0§) 0.0z
Net income® $ 00€ 3 — $ 006 $ (020% (0299% 0.05 3% — $ 00t $ (009)% 0.0z

Net income per share-
diluted:
Income/(loss) from

continuing operations $ 00z $ (009 $ (0.0)$ (029% (02H%$ (©OO05)$ (00H$ (0.oep$s 0.08 % (0.00
Discontinued operations 0.04 0.0z 0.07 (0.05) 0.0z 0.1C 0.01 0.11 (0.0§) 0.0z
Net income® $ 0.06 $ — $ 006 $ (028% (029% 0.0: % — $ 00:$ (0.09% 0.0z

Third Quarter 2003

Fourth Quarter 2003




Rental and other revenu

Rental property and other expen
Depreciation and amortizatic

General and administratiy

Interest expens

Other income/expen:

Gain on disposition of property, n
Cc-venture expens

Minority interest

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affilia

Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operatior

Net income
Dividends on preferred stox

As

Net income available for common stockholder $ 13,76( $

Net income per shar-basic:
Income/(loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net income®

Net income per shar-diluted:
Income/(loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Net income®

Reported
Discontinuec with Restatemen Restatemen

As Discont. As
Reported Operations Oper. Adjustment Restated Reported  Adjustment Restated
$106,99: $ (45F) $106,53t $ 16,79¢ $123,33: $107,90: $ 19,167 $127,06¢
37,18¢ (1249 37,06( 6,73¢ 43,79¢ 38,32 8,581 46,90¢
31,54: (193 31,35( 3,213 34,567 34,05¢ 1,087 35,14!
6,27¢ — 6,27¢ 474 6,75( 6,671 21¢ 6,88
28,94 — 28,94 7,182 36,12 28,45 5,75¢ 34,20¢
2,50¢ — 2,50¢ 15,22« 17,73( 3,34: (1,610 1,73
864 — 864 4,692 5,55¢ 397 3,94¢ 4,34¢
— — — 33¢ 33z — — —
(857) 15 (842) (1,150 (1,992 (62¢) 162 (465)
1,62¢ — 1,62¢ (545) 1,081 1,84¢ (509 1,34t
7,18¢ (123) 7,06: 17,07+ 24,13 5,364 5,51¢ 10,88:
14,28: 125 14,41( (6,467 7,947 7,56¢ (7,189 38t
21,47: — 21,47: 10,61: 32,08 12,93( (1,669 11,267
(7,719 — (7,719 — (7,719 (7,719 — (7,719
— $13,76( $ 10,61: $ 2437 $ 5217 $ (1,667 $ 3,55¢
$ 0ON$ — $ (OONS$ 032 $ 031 $ (005$ 011 $ 0.0€
0.27 — 0.27 (0.12) 0.1F 0.1F (0.14) 0.01
$ 02 $ — $ 026 3% 020% 04 $ 01C $ (0.0 % 0.07
$ O)$ — $ (OOHNS$ 032 $ 031 $ (005$ 011 $ 0.0€
0.27 - 0.27 (0.12) 0.1¢ 0.1¢ (0.19) 0.01
$ 02 3 — $ 026 % 0209% 04 $ 01C $ (009 % 0.07

@  Amounts represent net income available to commackbblders per share, which is after deductingepretl dividends.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

19. RESTATED Q UARTERLY F INANCIAL D ATA (Unaudited) - Continued

First Quarter 2002 Second Quarter 2002
As As
Reported Re- Reported Re-
with statement with statement
As Discont. Discont. As Discont. Discont.
Reported Oper. Oper. Adj. Restated Reported Oper. Oper. Adj. Restated
Rental and other revenu $124,97: $(13,70¢) $111,26: $22,42¢ $133,68¢( $118,61{ $(12,95¢) $105,65! $21,77¢ $127,43:
Rental property and other
expense: 38,50¢ (3,719  34,78¢ 7,14(C 41,92¢ 36,94( (3,39¢) 33,54« 7,60¢ 41,15:

Depreciation and amortizatic 31,28¢ (3,05() 28,23¢ 4,60C 32,83¢ 31,29¢ (2,824 28,47: 4,62¢ 33,10(

Impairment of assets held for L — — — — — — — — 9,91¢ 9,91¢
General and administrati 5,36( 4 5,35¢ 28 5,38¢ 9,051 4 9,04 (715) 8,332
Interest expens 26,37: (43C) 25,94 6,28¢ 32,227 27,45¢ (43C) 27,02¢ 554( 32,56¢
Other income/expens 3,41F (98) 3,317 (1,479 1,83¢ 2,76¢ (75) 2,68¢ (1,359 1,331
Gain on disposition of property,

net 944 — 944 50t 1,44¢ 9,36¢ 82¢ 10,19: 10,01: 20,20
Cao-venture expens — — — (2,369 (2,369 — — — (2,029 (2,029
Minority interest (3,699 80¢€ (2,897 844 (2,049 (3,379 642 (2,730 75¢ (1,972
Equity in earnings of

unconsolidated affiliate 2,56¢ — 2,56¢ (792 1,772 2,47¢ — 2,47¢ (569 1,90¢€
Income from continuing

operations 26,67C  (5,79¢) 20,87: 1,08¢ 21,96( 25,09¢ (4,90¢) 20,18t 1,61¢  21,80¢
Discontinued operatior 202 5,79¢ 6,000 (3,24)) 2,75¢ 2,65¢ 4,90¢ 7,56z (3,346 4,21¢
Net income 26,87: — 26,87. (2,159 24,71¢  27,75( — 27,75C (1,728  26,02:
Dividends on preferred stox (7,719 — (7,719 — (7,719 (7,719 — (7,719 — (7,719

Net income available for
common stockholders $19,15¢ $ — $ 19,15¢ $(2,15% $ 17,00¢ $ 20,037 $ — $ 20,037 $(1,72¢) $ 18,30¢

Net income per shar-basic:
Income from continuing

operations $ 03¢ $ 01H$ 022 $ 00z$ 027 $ 032 9% (009% 02z $ 00 & 0.2¢
Discontinued operatior — 0.11 0.11 (0.06) 0.0t 0.0t 0.0¢ 0.14 (0.06) 0.0¢
Net income® $ 03¢$ — $ 03¢ $@00OHY)$ 032% 037 — $ 037 $(00)% 0.34

Net income per shar-diluted:
Income from continuing

operations $ 03€$ (01D$ 025 $ 00z $ 027 $ 032 3% (009$ 025 % 005 $ 0.2€
Discontinued operatior — 0.11 0.11 (0.0¢) 0.0t 0.0t 0.0¢ 0.14 (0.0¢) 0.0¢
Net income® $ 03¢ $ — $ 036 $©00H)$ 03:% 037$ — $ 037 $ (009)$ 0.3
Third Quarter 2002 Fourth Quarter 2002
As As
Reported Re- Reported Re-
with statement with statement
As Discont. Discont. As Discont. Discont.

Reported Oper. Oper. Adj. Restated Reported Oper. Oper. Adj. Restated
Rental and other revenu $117,36¢ $(8,37F) $108,99: $20,99: $129,98¢ $112,35: $(5,20]) $107,15! $23,467 $130,62(
Rental property and other expen 37,051 (2,227 34,82¢ 8,837 43,66 3597: (1,419 34,55 8,26%F 42,81¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 31,52: (1,849 29,67 4,782 34,45¢ 36,58 (1,21f¢) 35,36¢ 5,03: 40,39¢

Impairment of assets held for L — — — — — — — — — _



General and administrati
Interest expens
Other income/expens

Gain on disposition of property, n

Ca-venture expens
Minority interest

Equity in earnings of unconsolidat

affiliates

Income from continuing
operations
Discontinued operatior

Net income
Dividends on preferred stox

Net income available for common

stockholders

Net income per shar-basic:

Income from continuing operatiol $

Discontinued operatior

Net income®

Net income per shar-diluted:
Income from continuing operatiol $

Discontinued operatior

Net income®

@  Amounts represent net income available to commackbblders per share, which is after deductinggpretl dividends.
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6,847 — 6,847 2,29:  9,13¢ 6,026 — 6,02¢ 11 6,037
27,86(  (430) 27,43¢ 566¢ 33,107 30,117 — 30,117 6,89 37,00
2,451 (54) 2,397 (1,459 94: 4,797 (16) 4,781 (1,558 3,22

90€  (496) 41z 357 76¢ 19¢  (351)  (152) 427 271
— — — (1,839 (1,839 — — — (507 (1,507
(2,337  51€ (1,821 1,491 (330 (1,199 341 (852)  85€ 4
1,25¢  — 1,25¢  (457) 80z 1,768  — 1,76 (605)  1,16(
16,367 (3,907 12,45: (2,489 9,966  9,22¢ (2,590 6,63: 877 7,51
(1,539 3,907  2,36¢ (3,027)  (65%) 14,79« 2,59C 17,38¢ (3,065 14,31
14,82 — 14,82 (5515 9,307 24,017 — 24017 (2,189 21,82
7,719 — (7,719 — (7,719 (7,71 — (7,71 — (7,71
$ 710¢$ — $ 710¢ $(5515 % 1,59/ $ 16,30 $ — $ 16,30: $(2,18¢) $ 14,11¢
0.17 $ (0.0 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05$ 004 $ 007 $(0.05$ (0.09$ 00z $ —
(0.09  0.0¢ 0.0 (0.0 (0.0) 026  0.0¢ 0.3Z (0.0  0.27
014 $ — 014 $ (01)$ 00 $ 031$ — $ 031 $ (00)$ 027
0.17 $ (0.0 $ 0.0S $ (0.05$ 004 $ 007 $(0.05$ (009 % 00z $ —
(0.09  0.0¢ 0.0 (0.0 (0.0) 027  0.0¢ 0.3z (0.05  0.27
014 $ — 014 $ (01)$ 00 $ 03C$ — $ 03C$ (00)$ 027
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

20. OTHER E VENTS
Retirement of Chief Executive Officer

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer retired omdB0, 2004. In connection with his retirement,@fmenpany’s Board of Directors
approved a retirement package for him that incluml&édnp-sum cash payment, accelerated vestingok siptions and restricted stock,
extended lives of stock options and continued cageunder the Company’s health and life insuratere for three years at the Company’s
expense. Under GAAP, the changes to existing stptikns and restricted stock give rise to new mesasant dates and revised compens:
computations. The total cost recognized under GAgPRhe six months ended June 30, 2004 was $4lomikomprised of a $2.2 million
cash payment, $0.6 million related to stock opti&is7 million related to restricted shares andua$0.1 million for continued insurance
coverage. The total expense is $1.7 million lovsantthe amount previously disclosed by the Compraepnnection with its first quarter
2004 earnings due to an adjustment to the methedloing the accelerated vesting and extensiohefives of the stock options under SF
No. 123 and No. 148. Previously, the Company hadroed the intrinsic value of the options as ofda& of the Boar's approval. However,
the Company has subsequently determined that thes®es to the options should be accounted fogughrer valuation techniques, as set
forth in SFAS No. 123 and No. 148. Certain compdsief this retirement package were required todsegnized as of the Board’s approval
date, which was in the first quarter, while othemponents were required to be amortized from thtg dntil his June 30, 2004 retirement
date. Accordingly, $3.2 million was expensed infihg quarter and the remaining $1.4 million wagensed in the second quarter. The
December 31, 2003 financial statements do notatedley costs associated with the retirement package

WorldCom/MCI Settlement

On July 21, 2002, WorldCom filed a voluntary petitiwith the United States Bankruptcy Court seekeligf under Chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code. In connection withbiankruptcy filing, WorldCom rejected leases wlitt Company encompassing 819,
square feet including the entire 816,000 squareHighwoods Preserve office campus in Tampa, Féoriche Company submitted
bankruptcy claims against WorldCom aggregating $2dillion related to these rejected leases andrattaters. WorldCom emerged from
bankruptcy (now MCI, Inc.) on April 20, 2004. On @gust 27, 2004, the Company and various MCI subsédiand affiliates (the “MCI
Entities”) executed a settlement agreement. Theesgent provided that the MCI Entities will pay tbempany approximately $8.6 million in
cash and also transfer to it approximately 340gl@0res of new MCI, Inc. stock. The Company recetheds8.6 million cash payment and
the MCI, Inc. stock in September 2004. The Compsoigt the stock for net proceeds of approximately $illion, and will record the full
settlement of approximately $14.4 million as Otlmome in the third quarter of 2004.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
SCHEDULE I
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 200

(% in thousands)

Bal_ange at Charged Balance a
beginning of to expens Deductions
end of
year year
Year ended December 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,45] $ 1,51¢ $ (1,74) $ 1,23t
Year ended December 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,21 $ 2,81: $ (2,569 $ 1,457
Year ended December 31, 2001
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 82t $ 2,39« $ (2,00¢6) $ 1,21:
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
SCHEDULE IIl - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA

12/31/2003
(In Thousands)

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

TION

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Building &
Improvements Total

Accumulated

Date of

Life on
Which
Depreciation

Depreciation Construction is Computed

Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period
2003 Building & Building &
Description City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land
Atlanta, GA

1035 Fred Drivi Atlants

1700 Century
Center
1700 Century
Circle
1800 Century
Boulevard
1825 Century
Center
(CDC)
1875 Century
Boulevard
1900 Century
Boulevard
2200 Century
Parkway
2400 Century
Center
2600 Century
Parkway
2635 Century
Parkway
2800 Century
Parkway
400 North
Business
Park
50 Glenlake
5125

Atlants
Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants
Atlants

Fulton Industric
Drive Atlants
6348 Northeast
Expresswa) Atlants
6438 Northeast
Expresswa) Atlants
Bluegrass 12.7
Acres
Bluegrass FI
12.13 Acres Atlants
Bluegrass Lake
I Atlants
Bluegrass Land
Site V10
Bluegrass Lanc
Site V14
Bluegrass PH
32.346 Acre! Atlante
Bluegrass Phas

Atlants

Atlants

Atlants

2 Atlants
Bluegrass Place
I Atlants

27C

1,11¢

1,441

864

16

15
81¢
1,82¢
2,39
5,39¢
6,30z

491

1,26:
3,16t
2,48

29,037

8,91(
4,737

14,41(

10,66:
21,61
20,41¢
6,23¢
20,00¢
3,11€(57¢)
1,66¢

2,23¢

2,061

46¢
112

(3,116)

17¢

13C

4,044

55

27C

1,11¢

1,441

864

97¢
2,50(

181
16

19
81¢
1,82¢
2,39
5,39¢
6,30z

491

1,84C 2,11(
3,50¢ 4,61¢
2,87¢ 2,87¢

38,42: 39,86:

15,21¢16,08:¢
10,23¢10,23¢

5,344 5,344
15,82¢15,82¢
13,43%13,43¢
11,42¢11,42¢
22,61:22,61:
20,79720,797

6,70¢ 7,68:
20,11¢22,61¢

1,84¢

2,36

4,044

2,11¢

2,12
2,54¢

16

19
4,86(
1,82¢
2,39
5,39¢
6,302

2,607

28¢
728
17¢

5,741

664
1,782
1,10¢
2,991
1,70¢
2,16¢
3,99¢
3,64:

1,12¢
3,03¢

30%

43¢

83z

33C

1973
1972
1983

1975

2002

1976

1971

1971

1998

1973

1980

1983

1985

1997

1973

1978

1981

N/A

N/A

1999

1999

1999

N/A

N/A

1995

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A
N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A
N/A

5-40 yrs.



Bluegrass Plac

Il Atlantg
Bluegrass

V93.04 Atlants
Bluegrass

Valley Atlantzs
Bluegrass Wet

Land Atlante

Century Plaza Atlants
Century Plaza | Atlants
Chastain Place Atlants
Chastain Place

I Atlants
Chastain Place

1] Atlants
Chattahoochee

Avenue Atlants
Corporate Lake Atlants
Cosmopolitan

North Atlants
Deerfield | Atlants
Deerfield Il Atlants
Deerfield Ill Atlants
EKA Chemical Atlants
Gwinnett

Distribution

Center Atlants
Highwoods

Center | at

Tradepori  Atlants
Highwoods

Center Il at

Tradepori  Atlants
Highwoods

Center Il at

Tradepori  Atlants
Kennestone

Corporate

Center Atlants
La Vista

Business

Park Atlants
Newpoint Place

| Atlants
Newpoint Place

Il Atlants
Newpoint Place

] Atlants
Newpoint Place

v Atlants
Newpoint Place

Land Atlants
Norcross | & Il Atlants
Nortel Atlants

412
1,08:
1,50(
2,67¢
1,29(

1,38(
472

53¢

24¢
1,27¢

2,85¢
(3) 1,20¢
(3) 1,70¢
1,01C
(1) 60¢

1,12¢

1) 307

(1) 641

(1) 40¢

51&

821
82¢
1,49¢

66€

2,58¢

8,56
7,738

1,87¢
7,30C

4,18(
3,90(
5,521
9,88¢

6,007

4,922

5,26¢

2,01¢
32,11

11

4,24¢

1,28¢
1,31¢
3,314
2,02t
1,33

11€
22¢

1,174
(53

3,76¢

572
3,27¢
4,23(C
2,271

27¢

92t
3,05¢
4,85¢
2,382
4,72¢
10

65
12

41z
1,08
1,50(
2,67¢
1,29(

1,38(
472

51¢

821
82¢
1,49¢

66¢

2,59¢ 3,00¢

1,08:
4,24¢ 5,74¢

2,67¢
9,85211,14:
9,05210,43:
3,31¢ 3,78¢
2,028 2,632
1,332 1,871

1,994 2,24
7,52¢ 8,801

5,35¢ 8,20¢
3,847 5,051
5,621 7,22¢

3,76¢ 4,77¢
9,88€10,49¢

6,57¢ 7,70%

3,27% 3,58(

4,23C 4,871

2,271 2,68(

5,201 5,71¢

6,19C 7,011
3,05¢ 3,88(
4,85¢ 6,357
2,382 3,05(
4,72¢ 5,71¢

10 2,13¢

2,081 2,401
32,12 35,46¢

41c

1,28¢
1,03¢
53¢

141

362
1,33¢

982
1,081
1,121

16€
1,43

1,18¢

81¢

994

12C

1,13¢
43¢
1,00¢
57¢
14¢

364
4,65:

1996
N/A

2000
N/A

1981
1984
1997
1998
1999

1970
1988

1980
1999
1999

2001
1998

1991

1999

1999

2001

1985

1973
1998
1999
1998
2001
N/A

1970
1998

5-40 yrs.
N/A
5-40 yrs.
N/A
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
N/A

5-40 yrs.
5-40 yrs.
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Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period Life ¢
Whic
2003 Building & Building & Building & Accumulated  Date of  Depreci
Description City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction is Comy
Oakbrook | Atlanta (2) 87z 4,95k 42¢ 872 5,38¢ 6,257 1,02 1981 5-40
Oakbrook
Il Atlanta (2) 1,57¢ 8,96: 661 1,57¢ 9,62: 11,20: 1,80z 1983 5-40
Oakbrook
] Atlanta (2) 1,48C 8,39¢ 30¢ 1,48( 8,70¢ 10,18¢ 1,58 1984 5-40
Oakbrook
v Atlanta (2) 95z 5,40¢ 36¢ 952 5777 6,73(C 1,16¢ 1985 5-40
Oakbrook
\ Atlanta (2) 2,20¢ 12,51¢ 464 2,20¢ 12,98: 15,18¢ 2,42¢ 1985 5-40
Oakbrook
Summit Atlanta 95C 6,68¢ 403 95C 7,091 8,041 1,25¢ 1981 5-40
Oxford
Lake
Busines:
Center Atlanta 85E 7,15¢ 32C 85E 7,47 8,33( 1,28¢ 1985 5-40
Peachtree
Corners
Il Atlanta (3) 1,92: 7,992 — 1,92: 7,99z 9,91* 2,127 1999 5-40
Peachtree
Corners
] Atlanta 88(C 2,01¢ 1,65¢ 88(C 3,672 4,55 20 2002 5-40
Peachtree
Corners
Land Atlanta 1,221 1,221 1,221 N/A N//
South Park
Residen
Land Atlanta 50 50 50 N/A N/4
South Park
Site
Land Atlanta 1,20¢ 1,20¢ 1,20¢ N/A N//
Southside
Distribut
Center Atlanta 81C 4,58¢ 163 81C 4,752 5,56: 826 1988 5-40
Tradeport | Atlanta 557 2,457 557 2,457 3,01¢ 31€ 1999 5-40
Tradeport
Il Atlanta 557 3,07< 557 3,07¢ 3,63( 63C 1999 5-40
Tradeport
]| Atlanta 67:% 4,46¢ 672 4,46¢ 5,137 953 1999 5-40
Tradeport
v Atlanta 667 3,857 667 3,857 4,52¢ 374 2001 5-40
Tradeport
\ Atlanta 462 2,327 462 2,327 2,79( 10t 2002 5-40
Tradeport
Land Atlanta 5,31¢ 38 23 5,352 23 5,37t 2 N/A N//
Two Point
Royal Atlanta (1) 1,79: 14,96¢ 25E 1,79: 15,21¢ 17,01 2,39t 1997 5-40
Baltimore,
MD
Sportsman
Club
Land Baltimore 24,93 (9617) 23,97( 23,97( N/A N//
Charlotte,
NC
4101 Stuart
Andrew
BoulevarCharlotte 70 512 11€ 70 63C 70C 152 1984 5-40



4105 Stuar

Andrew

Bouleva Charlotte
4109 Stuart

Andrew

BoulevarCharlotte
4201 Stuar

Andrew

Bouleva Charlotte
4205 Stuart

Andrew

BoulevarCharlotte
4209 Stuar

Andrew

Bouleva Charlotte
4215 Stuart

Andrew

BoulevarCharlotte
4301 Stuar

Andrew

Bouleva Charlotte
4321 Stuart

Andrew

BoulevarCharlotte
4601 Park

Square Charlotte
First

Citizens

Building Charlotte
Mallard

Creek | Charlotte
Mallard

Creek

1] Charlotte
Mallard

Creek

\Y] Charlotte
Mallard

Creek V Charlotte
Mallard

Creek

VI Charlotte
Oaknhill

Busines:

Park

English

Oak Charlotte
Oaknhill

Busines:

Park

Laurel

Oak Charlotte
Oaknhill

Busines:

Park

Live

Oak Charlotte
Oaknhill

Busines:

Park

Scarlet

Oak Charlotte
Oaknhill

Busines:

Park

Twin

Oak Charlotte
Oaknhill

26

87

11C

134

91

13z

232

73

2,601

647

@) 1,24¢

84t

34¢&

(4) 1,66¢

84¢

@) 75C

(2 471

1,40:

() 1,07¢

(2) 1,24:

19C

63¢

812

984

66¢

982

1,71C

7,80¢

5,50¢

4,18¢

4,81C

1,164

4,25¢

2,67¢

5,62(

6,081

7,057

40

87

47

29

37

1,027

48€

781

©)

11,80¢

211

26€

1,28¢

26

87

11C

134

91

13z

232

73

2,601

1,24¢

84t

34¢€

1,66¢

84¢

75C

471

1,402

1,07:

1,24:

1,031

69¢€

1,02¢

1,83¢

574

8,83t

5,991

4,96~

5,07

1,155

11,80¢

4,46¢

2,94

6,90¢

6,39¢

7,904

22C

76€

1,00¢

1,16¢

78¢

1,161

2,071

11,43¢

6,63¢

6,21%

5,927

1,50

13,47

84c

5,21¢

3,414

8,30¢

7,472

9,14

41

144

214

354

12¢

1,20(C

1,445

661

70%

164

2,307

82¢

63C

1,51¢

1,26¢

1,54¢

1984

1984

1982

1982

1982

1982

1982

1982

1972

1989

1986

1990

1993

1999

N/A

1984

1984

1989

1982

1985

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

N/4

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40



Business
Park
Water
Oak

Oaknhill
Busines:
Park
Willow
Oak

Oaknhill
Land

Pinebrook

Ridgefield

One
Parkway
Plaza
Building

Two
Parkway
Plaza
Building

Three
Parkway
Plaza
Building

Six
Parkway
Plaza
Building

Seven
Parkway
Plaza
Building

Eight
Parkway
Plaza
Building

Eleven
Parkway
Plaza

Twelve
Parkway
Plaza

Fourteen
Parkway
Plaza
Building

University
Center

University
Center
East

University
Center -
Land

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte
Charlotte
Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

Charlotte

) 1,62¢

2) 44z

3,89¢
84¢
79t

1,11(

1,69¢

(5) 1,57

16C

112

48:

1,24%

1,28¢

7,122

9,20¢

2,51C

4,63(

4,74¢

6,78¢

6,28

4,64¢

4,69¢

831

992

86¢

71C

2,64(

26¢

214

2,222

1,80¢

7,08¢

20¢

15

(1,640

1,62¢

44z

3,89¢
84¢
79t

1,11(

1,69¢

1,57(

48:

1,24¢

1,30¢

5,482

10,04( 11,66

3,06¢

5,02%

5,741

7,65¢

6,992

2,64(

4,917

4,917

2,222

1,80¢

7,08¢

20¢

3,50¢

3,89¢
5,87¢
79t

6,851

9,34¢

8,562

2,64(

4,917

4,917

2,38:

1,91¢

7,56¢

1,45¢

1,30¢

5,482

1,891

1,27:

1,61¢€

1,47¢

45¢

1,02¢

1,01(

368

434

1,552

15

1985

1982

N/A
1986
N/A

1982

1983

1984

1996

1985

1986

1999

1999

1999

2001

N/A

N/A

5-40

5-40

N/#
5-40
N/#

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

5-40

N/#

N/#
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Cost Capitalized Gross Amount at
Subsequent to Which Carried at
Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period
2003 Building & Building & Building & Accumulated Date of
Description City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements  Total  Depreciation Construction
Columbia,
SC
Centerpoint Columbia 1,31: 7,452 34¢€ 1,31z 7,79¢ 9,111 1,551 1988
Centerpoint
[ Columbia 1,18:¢ 8,04¢ 38 1,18¢ 8,08: 9,26¢ 1,46¢ 1996
Centerpoint
\% Columbia 26E 1,41¢ 26E 1,41< 1,67¢ 261 1997
Centerpoint
VI Columbia 27¢€ 27¢ 27¢ N/A
Fontaine | Columbia 1,21¢ 6,907 1,46: 1,21¢ 8,36¢ 9,58¢ 1,782 1985
Fontaine Il Columbia 941 5,33t 164 941 5,49¢ 6,44(C 1,01t 1987
Fontaine Il Columbia 852 4,832 (539 8532 4,29¢ 5,152 87¢ 1988
Fontaine V= Columbia 39t 2,24( 16 39E 2,25¢ 2,651 412 1990
Greenville,
SC
385 Building
1 Greenville 1,41z 4,18¢ 1,41z 4,18t 5,601 1,271 1998
385 Land Greenville 1,80( 1,80( 1,80(C N/A
770 Pelham
Road Greenville 70k 2,812 371 70E 3,18: 3,88¢ 50€ 1989
Bank of
America
Plaza Greenville 64z 9,48t 2,40¢€ 642 11,89: 12,53 2,521 1973
Brookfield
Plaza Greenville (2) 1,48¢ 8,45( 76C 1,48¢ 9,21C 10,69¢ 1,982 1987
Brookfield-
Jacobs-
Sirrine Greenville 3,027 17,14¢ 9 3,022 17,15¢ 20,18( 3,13¢ 1990
MetLife @
Brookfielc Greenville 1,03¢ 10,71¢ 1,03¢ 10,71¢ 11,75% 94z 2001
Patewood
Business
Center Greenville 1,312 7,447 10¢ 1,312 7,55 8,867 1,347 1983
Patewood Greenville 942 5,117 552 942 5,66¢ 6,611 991 1985
Patewood | Greenville 942 5,17¢ 381 94z 5,657 6,49¢ 1,08¢ 1987
Patewood Il Greenville (2) 83t 4,74C 16€ 83t 4,90¢ 5,741 874 1989
Patewood IV Greenville (2) 1,21C 6,86¢ 184 1,21( 7,05C 8,26( 1,28C 1989
Patewood V' Greenville (2) 1,67 9,517 96 1,67 9,61: 11,29( 1,74¢ 1990
Patewood V Greenville 2,36( 8,881 2,36( 8,881 11,24 1,865 1999
Verizon
Wireless Greenville (20) 1,79C (2,790 — 2002
Jacksonville
FL
Belfort Park
VI - Land Jacksonvilli 48( (13%) 34t 34t N/A
Belfort Park
VII -
Land Jacksonvilli 1,85¢ 10 1,86¢ 1,86¢ N/A
Kansas City,
MO
Country Clul
Plaza Kansas Cit (6) 14,08’ 140,35¢ — 86,88¢ 14,087 227,24 241,33 25,767 192(-200:2
63rd &
Brookside Kansas Cit 71 28¢€ 45 71 331 402 56 1919
Alameda

Towers Kansas Cit 231 (237) N/A



Bannister

Rd. Kansas Cit

Brookside
Shopping
Center

Challenger -

Land Kansas Cit

Colonial
Shops
Corinth
Executive
Building
Corinth
Office
Building
Corinth
Shops

South Kansas Cit

Corinth
Square
North
Shops

Fairway

North Kansas Cit

Fairway
Shops
Fairway

West Kansas Cit

Residential -

Land Kansas Cit

Land - Hotel
Land -

Valencia Kansas Cit

Land - JCN
Parkway
450z-1

Land - JCN
Parkway
4510 &

4518 Kansas Cit

Land -

Lionsgate Kansas Cit

Land -
Woodson

Commerc Kansas Cit

Neptune

ApartmentKansas Cit

Parklane

Apartmen Kansas Cit

Red Bridge

& Holmes Kansas Cit

Rental
Houses
St. Charles

ApartmentKansas Cit

Wornall
Road

Apartmen Kansas Cit

Nichols
Building
One Ward

Parkway Kansas Cit
Kansas Cit

Park Plaz:

Parkway
Building

Prairie
Village
Office

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

121

2,511
19,09/

13¢

2,69:¢

758

2,31 67¢
851

484

94z

50

10C

3,50¢

2,611
4,121 1,07:
278

39C

29

18¢€
70C  49C

66€
(6) 1,35-

39¢

(122)

9,34(
(19,099

644

2,29(

2,14¢

4,34¢

11,231

3,212
3,152

3,44

6,13¢

1,574
(390)

764

16t

17z
1,98¢

3,87¢
6,28¢

2,007

86¢€

28

54¢€

29¢

14¢€

101

21
17¢

(166)
837

(108)

2,511

13¢

2,69:¢
758
672
851

611

942

50

10C

3,50¢

2,611
1,07:

278

29

18€
49C

66€
1,352

39¢

10,20¢

672

2,83¢

2,48¢

4,34:

11,68¢
3,41%
2,96¢

3,68¢

6,437

1,72

86%

16t

194
2,162

3,70¢
7,12C

1,89¢

12,71,

81C

3,352

3,017

5,38t

14,37¢
4,16t
3,63¢
4,54(

611

942

50

10C

3,50¢

2,611
7,51(

1,99

86t

194

38C
2,652

4,374
8,47

2,29¢

1,344

104

474

38¢

623

1,637
55C
472

51&

114

23

28
34C

74€
1,09¢

351 190¢-191(

N/A

1919
N/A

1907

1973

1960

1953

1962
1985
1940
1983

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
1988
1924
N/A
1960

1922

1918
1978

1980
1983



Center

Prairie
Village
Rest &
Bank

Kansas Cit

Kansas Cit

(®)

74¢

2,997

(749)

(2,997)

1,372

1,372

1,372

14¢

1960

1948
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Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period
Building & Building & '\-,U;

2003 Improvements Improvements Building & Accumulated Date of  Depre
Description City Encumberance Land Land Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construction is Cot
Prairie
Village
Shops Kansas Cit (8) 3,28¢ 14,37: 1,94( 3,28¢ 16,317 19,60¢ 2,511 1948 5-4(
Shannon
Valley
Shoppin¢
Center Kansas Cit 5,68( 1,891 7,46¢ 1,21C 1,891 8,67¢ 10,56¢ 1,50C 1988  5-4(
Somerse Kansas Cit 30 122 30 12z 152 17 1998 5-4(
Two Brush
Creek Kansas Cit 961 4,31: 16 961 4,32¢ 5,28¢ 707 1983  5-4(
Valencia
Place
Office  Kansas Cit (6) 1,53( 36,70¢ 1,53( 36,70F 38,23t 4,674 1999 5-4(
WhiteHorse
Commerckansas Cit 2,20C (2,200 N/A N
Memphis,
TN
3400
Players
Club
Parkway Memphis (2) 1,00t 5,17( 1,00t 5,17C 6,17¢ 1,287 1997 5-4
6000 Popla
Ave Memphis 2,34( 11,38¢ 54z 2,34( 11,927 14,26 957 1985 5-4(
6060 Poplar
Ave Memphis 1,98( 8,671 45¢ 1,98( 9,13¢ 11,11¢ 76C 1987  5-4(
Atrium | &
Il Memphis 1,57(C 6,25: 71z 1,57C 6,965 8,53t 1,25 1984  5-4(
Centrum Memphis 1,01z 5,58( 232 1,01z 5,81z 6,82¢ 89¢ 1979 54
Hickory Hill
Medical
Plaza Memphis 39¢ 2,25¢ 13¢ 39¢ 2,398 2,79 48C 1988 5-4(
Internations
Place Il Memphis (4) 4,84 27,57 1,28¢ 4,847 28,857 33,70¢ 5,49¢ 1988  5-4(
Shadow
Creek|  Memphis 924 7,53¢ 924 7,535 8,45¢ 90z 2000 54
Shadow
Creek Il Memphis 734 6,55¢ 734 6,55¢ 7,29: 32¢ 2001 54
Southwind
Office
Center A Memphis 99¢€ 5,651 22C 99¢€ 5,871 6,867 1,08¢ 1991  5-4(
Southwind
Office
Center B Memphis 1,35¢€ 7,69¢ 203 1,35¢ 7,89¢ 9,25¢ 1,46C 1990 5-4(
Southwind
Office
Center C Memphis (2) 1,07( 5,74¢ 1,07C 5,74¢ 6,81¢ 1,03¢ 1998  5-4(
Southwind
Office
Center D Memphis 744 6,117 744 6,117 6,861 1,29¢ 1999 5-4(
The
Colonnad Memphis 1,30(C 6,481 1,24¢€ 1,30C 7,727 9,027 1,63: 1998  5-4(

Nashville,
TN
3322 West



End
3401 West
End
5310
Marylanc
Way
BNA
Corporat
Center
Century
City
Plaza |
Cool
Springs |
Cool
Springs
I
Cool
Springs
Land
Eakin &
Smith
Eastpark I,
I, & 11
Harpeth on
the
Green Il
Harpeth on
the
Green llI
Harpeth on
the
Green IV
Harpeth on
The
Green V
Hickory
Trace
Highwoods
Plaza |
Highwoods
Plaza Il
Lakeview
Ridge |
Lakeview
Ridge I
Lakeview
Ridge Il
Seven
Springs |
Seven
Springs -
Land |
Seven
Springs -
Land Il
SouthPointe
Southwind
Land
Sparrow
Building
The
Ramparts
at

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville
Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville
Nashville
Nashville
Nashville
Nashville
Nashville
Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Nashville
Nashville

Nashville

Nashville

Brentwooc Nashville

Westwood
South
Winners

Nashville

3,02¢

4,88(

1,55¢

902

1,58

1,82¢

7,63¢
2,69:

2,371

(1) 1,41¢

(1) 1,66(

(1) 1,71¢

(1) 662
(4)1,16¢
(1) 1,77z
(1) 1,44¢

1,76¢
(1) 60E
(1) 1,07¢

2,07¢

3,127

3,71¢
1,65¢
3,662

1,26z

2,39¢

(1) 2,10¢

27,49(

19,90¢

6,25¢

19,66¢

3,61-

12,477

9,55:

5,671

6,64¢

6,84:

6,31¢

5,04

12,80¢

1,77¢

2,75¢

70

1,80(C

501

14,207

22,36¢

1,32¢

2,572

834

73C

5,42¢
5,871
8,68¢
7,744
232
5,05¢
13,10¢

14,06

7,911

34¢

35¢

11,26(

3,02¢

4,88(

1,55t

1,82¢

8,961
2,692

2,371

1,41¢

1,66(

1,71¢

662
1,164
1,772
1,44¢
1,76¢

60%
1,07:

2,07¢

3,122

3,71¢
1,65¢
3,662

1,262

2,39¢

2,10¢

29,26¢ 32,28¢

22,66¢ 27,54¢

6,32¢ 7,88:

21,46¢ 21,46¢

4,11: 5,01¢

14,207 15,79(

22,36% 24,18¢

8,961
12,477 15,16¢

12,12% 14,49¢

6,511 7,93(

7,45¢ 9,11¢

7,57z 9,28¢

5,42¢ 6,091
5,871 7,041
8,68¢ 10,46(
7,744 9,192
6,54¢ 8,31¢
5,05¢ 5,661
13,10¢ 14,17¢

14,06 16,13¢

3,122

3,71¢
7,911 9,56¢
3,662

5,39t 6,65

13,16 15,55¢

11,26( 13,36¢

3,28¢

4,684

1,22(

4,41

79¢€

2,88t

2,142

2,607

2,571

1,19¢

1,28

1,48

1,38¢

54¢
2,361
2,11¢
1,26¢
1,13¢
2,33:

474

1,45¢

1,00

1,04¢

2,54¢

1986

1982

1994

1985

1987

1999

1999

N/A
1999

1978

1984

1987

1989

1998
N/A

1996
1997
1986
1998
1999

2002

N/A

N/A
1998
N/A

1982

1986

1999

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(



Circle

Norfolk,
VA
Greenbrier
Business
Center

Orlando,
FL
Capital
Plaza Ill
In Charge
Institute
Interlachen
Village
Lake Mary
Land
Landmark |

Nashville

Norfolk

Orlando
Orlando
Orlando

Orlando
Orlando

(1) 1,491

93¢

2,99¢
501
90C

9,80¢
6,78¢

7,25¢

5,30¢

2,68¢

30,65:

(93€)

(900)

(3,739

57¢

(5,305)

2,79¢

(2,689

39C

1,491

2,99/

501

6,071
6,78¢

7,835 9,33(

2,99/

2,79¢ 3,291

6,071
31,04: 37,82]

1,24t

44§

4,95:

1987

1984

N/A
2000
1987

N/A
1983

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(

5-4(



Table of Contents

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period
Building & Building &
2003 Improvements Improvements Building & Accumulated Date of

Description City Encumberance Land Land Land Improvements Total Depreciation Constructio
Landmark I Orlando 6,78t 29,41: 71z 6,78t 30,12¢ 36,90¢ 4,49 1983
Metrowest

Center Orlando 1,34¢ 7,62¢ 97¢ 1,34¢ 8,607 9,951 1,61¢ 1988
MetroWest

Land Orlando 3,13¢ 3,13¢ 3,13¢ N/A
Pine Street Orlando 2,76: 34,35¢ 10C 2,762 34,45¢ 37,22: 5,69t 1999
Pine Street | Orlando 3,03( 48,04 3,03( 48,04: 51,07: 7,06( 1999
Signature Plaz Orlando 4,30z 33,63" 767 4,30z 34,40¢ 38,70¢ 6,40: 1982
Sunport Cente Orlando 1,508 9,98 (98) 1,50¢ 9,88¢ 11,38¢ 1,54¢ 1990
Piedmont

Triad, NC
101 Stratforc Piedmont Tria 1,20¢ 6,91¢ 95k 1,20¢ 7,871 9,07¢ 1,166 1986
150 Stratforc  Piedmont Tria 2,77 11,46¢ 62¢ 2,771 12,09¢ 14,87: 2,727 1991
160 Stratford -

Land Piedmont Tria 96€ 96€ 96€ N/A
2606 Phoenix

Drive-100

Series Piedmont Tria 63 46€ (63 (46€) 1989
2606 Phoenix

Drive-200

Series Piedmont Tria 63 46€ (63 (46€) 1989
2606 Phoenix

Drive-300

Series Piedmont Tria 31 22¢ (31 (229 1989
2606 Phoenix

Drive-400

Series Piedmont Tria 52 382 (52 (382) 1989
2606 Phoenix

Drive-500

Series Piedmont Tria 64 471  (64) 477 1989
2606 Phoenix

Drive-600

Series Piedmont Tria 78 575 (79) (57%) 1989
2606 Phoenix

Drive-700

Series Piedmont Tria 53: (539) 1988
2606 Phoenix

Drive-800

Series Piedmont Tria 2,30¢ (2,30¢) 1989
500 Northridge Piedmont Tria 1,78¢ 4,174 (1,789 (4,179 1988
500 Radar

Road Piedmont Tria 20z 1,507 153 20z 1,66C 1,862 38€ 1981
502 Radar

Road Piedmont Tria 39 28k 52 39 337 37¢ 81 1986
504 Radar

Road Piedmont Tria 39 29z 77 39 36S  40¢ 83 1986
506 Radar

Road Piedmont Tria 39 28k 15 39 30C 33¢ 63 1986
520 Northridge Piedmont Tria 1,70C 4,16¢ (1,700 (4,16€) 1989
540 Northridge Piedmont Tria 1,93¢ 4,63¢ (1,939 (4,639 1989
550 Northridge Piedmont Tria 444 1,07t (4449 (1,07%) 1989
531 Northridge

Office Piedmont Tria 1,601 3,80¢ 1,601 3,80¢ 5,41( 87 1989
531 Northridge

Warehous¢ Piedmont Tria 4,54( 10,81( 4,54( 10,81( 15,35( 24¢ 1989



6348 Burnt
Poplar
6350 Burnt
Poplar
710

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Almondridge Piedmont Tria

711

Almondridg: Piedmont Tria

7341 West
Friendly
Avenue

7343 West
Friendly
Avenue

7345 West
Friendly
Avenue

7347 West
Friendly
Avenue

7349 West
Friendly
Avenue

7351 West
Friendly
Avenue

7353 West
Friendly
Avenue

7355 West
Friendly
Avenue

7906 Industrial

Village
Road

7908 Industria

Village
Road

7910 Industrial

Village
Road
Airpark East-
Building 1
Airpark East-
Building 2
Airpark East-
Building 3
Airpark East-
Building A
Airpark East-
Building B
Airpark East-
Building C
Airpark East-
Building D
Airpark East-
Copier
Consultant:
Airpark East-

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

HewlettPacl Piedmont Tria

Airpark East-
Highland

Airpark East-
Inacom
Building

Airpark East-
Service
Center 1

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

@)
(")
@)
(")
@)
(")
@)

(")
@)
(")

)

(")

72

66

97

53

10€

12:

72

62

461

321

73€
2,38¢

85C

228
465

14t

265

23¢

2,88¢
1,36¢
10,23:

53€

841

55¢€

39¢

78¢

91z

53¢

46(

47t

46(
1,51(
1,84
1,28¢
2,91
3,22¢

9,53¢

1,06¢

1,07¢

1,09¢

(2,555)

(217)

1,02t

55€

39€

36
60
(10,23)

(536)

15¢

94

23

40

104

41

42

18

80

12¢
17t
194
591
58¢€
2,032

4,04¢

31¢
92(
&)

922

152

721

33¢

11z

72

66

97

53

10€

12¢

72

62

461

321

73€
2,38¢

1,87¢

22¢
1,02¢

14t

661

23¢

2,92t

1,42¢

994

64¢

50C

742

43:

89z

95¢

58(

47¢

55¢

462
1,63¢
2,017
1,48
3,50¢

3,81

3,64¢

1,76¢

1,107

721

48€

99¢

1,07¢

652

54C

524
2,01¢
2,47¢
1,80¢
4,011

4,54¢

11,577 13,95¢

4,04¢

1,37
92C

1,07¢

922

1,251

5,92¢

1,60(C
1,94

1,221

1,58¢

1,48

64¢

341

23t

17¢

104

152

87

17C

13€

10z

11t

98

82¢
2,741

694

221

20C

36C

28¢

1990

1992

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1988

1985

1985

1985

1990

1986

1986

1986

1988

1990

1997

1990

1996

1990

1996

1985



Airpark East-
Service
Center 2

Airpark East-
Service
Center &

Airpark East-
Service
Center 4

Airpark East-
Service
Court

Airpark East-
Simplex

Airpark East-

Warehouse

1
Airpark East-

Warehouse

2

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

@)

(")

)

(")
)

(")

@)

224

17C

271

354

372

94z

1,21«

92¢

774

1,607

1,51

35C

30z

31z

184

78

224

17C

621

354

372

1,24¢

1,527

1,43¢

1,831

1985

1985

1985

1990

1997

1985

1985
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Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to
Initial Cost Acquistion

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at
Close of Period

2003 Building & Building &
Description City Encumberance Land Improvements Land Improvements

Land

Building &
Improvements

Accumulated

Date of

Li
w
Depi

Total Depreciation Construction is C¢

Airpark East-

Warehous

3 Piedmont Tria (7) 34C 1,48( 42¢
Airpark East-

Warehous

4 Piedmont Tria (7) 657 2,66¢ 58
Airpark

North -

DC1 Piedmont Tria (7) 857 2,90¢ 297
Airpark

North -

DC2 Piedmont Tria (7) 1,29¢ 4,37t 30¢€
Airpark

North -

DC3 Piedmont Tria (7) 44¢ 1,511 86
Airpark

North -

DC4 Piedmont Tria (7) 447 1,50¢ 87
Airpark

South

Warehous

1 Piedmont Tria 54¢€ 3,092
Airpark

South

Warehous

2 Piedmont Tria 74¢ 2,517
Airpark

South

Warehous

3 Piedmont Tria 602 2,36¢
Airpark

South

Warehous

4 Piedmont Tria 49¢ 2,45k
Airpark

South

Warehous

6 Piedmont Tria 1,73 5,83¢
Airpark West

1 Piedmont Tria (5) 954 3,82( 56¢
Airpark West

2 Piedmont Tria (5) 884 3,53¢ 262
Airpark West

4 Piedmont Tria (5) 22¢ 903 147
Airpark West

5 Piedmont Tria (B) 24z 967 27¢
Airpark West

6 Piedmont Tria (5) 32¢ 1,304 11t
ALO Piedmont Tria 177 994
Brigham

Road -

Land Piedmont Tria 7,05¢
Chesapeak Piedmont Tria (5) 1,23¢ 4,94¢ 7
Chimney

Rock A/B Piedmont Tria 1,611 4,041 21
Chimney

Rock C  Piedmont Tria 604 1,51z (28)

1,29¢

44¢

54€

T4¢

603

49¢

1,73¢
954
884
22¢€
242
32€
177
7,05¢
1,23¢
1,611

604

1,90¢

2,724

3,20¢

4,681

1,59

1,59¢

3,09:

2,51;

2,36¢

2,45¢

5,83¢
4,38¢
3,79¢
1,05(
1,242

1,41¢
994

4,951
4,06z

1,48¢

2,24¢ 37¢

3,381 63€

4,062 73¢

5,97¢ 1,06¢

2,04t 36¢€

2,042 36¢

3,63¢ 457

3,26¢ 28¢

2,971 234

2,95¢ 57¢

7,572 1,022
5,34 1,091
4,68z 86¢
1,27¢ 25t
1,48¢ 26¢
1,74 35C
1,171 89
7,05¢

6,18 1,101
5,67: 561

2,08¢ 167

1986

1988

1986

1987

1988

1988

1998

1999

1999

1999

1999
1984
1985
1985
1985
1985
1998
N/A

1993
1981

1983

5z



Chimney

Rock D
Chimney

Rock E
Chimney

Rock F
Chimney

Rock G
Consolidated

Center/

Building I Piedmont Tria
Consolidatec

Center/

Building

] Piedmont Tria
Consolidated

Center/

Building

1] Piedmont Tria
Consolidatec

Center/

Building

\Y] Piedmont Tria
Deep River

Corporate

Center
Enterprise

Warehous

| Piedmont Tria
Forsyth

Corporate

Center
Highwoods

Park

Building I Piedmont Tria
Inman Road

Land Piedmont Tria
Jefferson

Pilot Land Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5610 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5620 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5630 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5635 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5640 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5650 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5655 Piedmont Tria
Madison Par

- Building

5660 Piedmont Tria
Madison

Parking

Deck Piedmont Tria
Regency

One-

Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria
Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

Piedmont Tria

23¢€
1,69¢
1,432

1,04¢

62t

62¢

68C

37€

1,03

45Z

2) 326

1,99:
941

11,75¢

211

941

1,48¢

89:¢

1,827

1,081

1,941

1,91C

5,75¢

591 50
4,261 (72)
3,60¢ (262)
2,61¢ (172)
2,18: 7
4,43¢ 19¢
3,57¢ 53
1,65¢ 114
5,89: 352
3,57¢

1,85: 65¢
8,61-

(941)
5,59t

492 (211) (495)
2,216 (20)
3,50: 9)
2,10¢ 11
6,52- (41)
2,54¢ 25
7,10¢ 142
4,501 (34)
8,82- 487

23¢€
1,69¢
1,432

1,04¢

62t

62¢

68C

37€

1,03¢

45Z

32¢€

1,99:

17,35«

941

1,48¢

89:¢

1,827

1,081

1,941

1,91(

5,75¢

641 877
4,18¢ 5,88:
3,34z 4,77¢

2,44, 3,491

2,19C 2,81¢

4,63% 5,25¢

3,62% 4,30¢

1,76¢ 2,14t

6,24¢ 7,27

3,57% 4,02¢

2,51z 2,83¢

8,61210,60¢

17,35«

2,19¢ 3,13¢

3,492 4,98(

2,11 3,00¢

6,481 8,30¢

2,575 3,65¢

7,251 9,192

4,461 6,371

9,30¢ 15,06

12¢
604
50C

368

33t

708

54¢

1,24i

25¢

65C

29¢

91¢

35¢€

1,027

624

1,167

1983
1985
1987

1987

1983

1983

1989

1989

1989

2002

1985

2001
N/A

N/A

1988

1983

1983

1986

1985

1984

1987

1984

1987



Piedmont

Center Piedmont Tria
Regency

Two-

Piedmont

Center Piedmont Tria
Sears Cenfa Piedmont Tria
The

Knollwood

-370 Piedmont Tria
The

Knollwooc

-380 Piedmont Tria
The

Knollwood

-380

Retail Piedmont Tria
University

Commerci

Center-

Archer 4 Piedmont Tria
University

Commercis

Center-

Landmark

3 Piedmont Tria
University

Commerci

Center-

Service

Center 1 Piedmont Tria
University

Commercis

Center-

Service

Center z Piedmont Tria
University

Commerci

Center-

Service

Center = Piedmont Tria
University

Commercis

Center-

Warehouse

1 Piedmont Tria
University

Commerci

Center-

Warehous

2 Piedmont Tria
US Airways Piedmont Tria
Westpoint

Business

Park Lanc Piedmont Tria
Westpoint

Business

Park-BMF Piedmont Tria
Westpoint

Business

Park-

Fairchild Piedmont Tria
Westpoint

Business

Park-

LuwabahnBeedmont Tria
Westpoint

Business

51t

43t

(1) 831

(7) 1,81¢

(7) 2,971

(")

514

42¢

27¢

21¢

20z

19€
(2) 2,62t

861

79¢

64C

34¢

3,44¢

7,467

11,98:

2,05¢

1,77¢

1,15¢

81z

78€
15,06¢

3,181

2,571

1,38¢

102

(640)

2,92¢

1,951
347

52:

1,02:

162

413

131

35

33C

18

42
(3€)

(2,577)

51t

43t
831

1,81¢

2,971

514

42¢

27¢

21¢

20z

19€
2,62¢

964

79&

34¢

2,92t 3,44(

1,951 2,38¢

3,79% 4,62¢

7,99C 9,80¢

13,00¢ 15,98z

164 164

2,267 2,781

2,191 2,62(

1,28¢ 1,56

894 1,10¢

1,02¢ 1,19¢

83(C 1,03

82& 1,02¢
15,03:17,65¢

964

3,188 3,98(

1,388 1,731

86¢€

33¢
88¢

1,971

2,95(

48

521

471

311

20¢

29z

182

184
2,307

707

30¢

1996

1996
1989

1994

1990

1995

1986

1985

1983

1983

1984

1983

1983

197(-1987

N/A

1986

1990

1990

5-¢
5-¢

5-¢
5-¢

5z



Park-Wp

3&4 Piedmont Tria 171 687 (177) (687) 1988 5-¢
Westpoint

Business

Parl-Wp 5Piedmont Tria 377 1,60¢ (377) (1,609 1988 5-¢
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Description

City

Initial Cost

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Acquistion

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Close of Period

2003
Encumberance Land

Building &

Building &

Improvements Land Improvements

Land

Building &

Improvements Total

Accumulated

Date of

D

Depreciation Construction is

Westpoint
Business
Parl-Wp 12

Westpoint
Business
Parl-Wp 11

Westpoint
Business
Parl-Wp 13

Research
Triangle,
NC

3600 Glenwoor

Avenue

3737 Glenwoor

Avenue

4101 Researct

Commons

4201 Research

Commons

4301 Researct

Commons

4401 Research

Commons

4501 Researct

Commons

4300 Six Forks

Road

4800 North
Park

4900 North
Park

5000 North
Park

3645 Trust
Drive - One
North
Commerce
Center

5200 Greens
Dairy-One
North
Commerce
Center

5220 Greens
Dairy-One
North
Commerce
Center

Phase | - One
North
Commerce
Center

W Building -
One North

Piedmont Triac

Piedmont Triac

Piedmont Triac

Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang
Research Triang

Research Triang

Research Triang

Research Triang

Research Triang

Research Triang

1,34¢
1,20¢

90C
1,24¢

78E

2,67¢

1,13t 77C

(2) 1,01(

382

76€

2,031(499)

1,57((39%)

1,21¢

10,99/

8,34¢
11,85¢
8,231
9,387
5,85¢
15,59¢
17,63(
1,98

4,612

2,95¢

961

2,16¢

4,46:

22

18,33!

6,027

4,27¢

1,527

53¢

2,031

86¢&

23€

34C

1,413

(2,03))

(1,570

297

1,34¢
1,20¢

90C
1,24¢

78E

2,67¢

77C

1,01(¢

382

76€

1,23€ 1,53t

10,99¢10,99¢
18,33£18,33¢
8,34¢ 9,69¢
11,85¢13,06:
8,231 9,13
15,41¢16,66:
5,85¢ 6,641
19,86¢19,86¢
19,15721,83¢
2,51¢ 3,28¢

6,64% 7,65:%

3,81¢ 4,60¢

1,197 1,36¢

2,50¢ 2,89(

5,87¢ 6,64¢

22(

741

444

1,27¢

1988

1988

1988

1986

1999

1999

1991

1989

1987

1985

1995

1985

1984

1980

1984

1984

1984

1981



Commerce

Center Research Triang
801 Corporate
Center Research Triang

Aspen BuildingResearch Triang
Blue Ridge I Research Triang
Blue Ridge Il Research Triang
Cape Fea Research Triang
Catawbe Research Triang
Cedar Eas Research Triang
Cedar Wes  Research Triang
CentreGreen

One -

Weston Research Triang
CentreGreen

Two -

Weston Research Triang
CentreGreen

Three Land

Weston Research Triang
CentreGreen

Four Research Triang
CentreGreen

Five Land -

Weston Research Triang
Concourse Research Triang
Cottonwood  Research Triang
Creekstone

Crossings Research Triang
Cypress Research Triang
Day Tract

Residentia Research Triang
Day Tract LancResearch Triang
Dogwood Research Triang
EPA Research Triang
GlenLake LancResearch Triang
GlenLake Bldg

I Research Triang
Global

Software  Research Triang
Hawthorn Research Triang
Healthsource Research Triang
Highwoods

Centre-

Weston Research Triang
Highwoods

Office

Center Nortl

Land Research Triang
Highwoods

Office

Center Sout

Land Research Triang
Highwoods

Tower One Research Triang
Highwoods

Tower Two Research Triang
Holiday Inn

Reservation

Center Research Triang
Inveresk Land

Parcel 2 Research Triang
Inveresk Land

Parcel & Research Triang
Ironwood Research Triang
Magnolia Research Triang
Lake Plaza Ea:Research Triang
Laurel Research Triang

1,16¢
82¢
56C
1) 722
(1) 462
131
125
562
562

(4) 1,52¢

(4) 1,65¢

1,87€
(4)1,77¢
3,06:
(3) 98¢
60¢

728
567
7,66¢
8,52+
76€
2,601
5,33t
(4) 924
(2) 465

904
1,30¢

(1) 531

35¢

2,411

(2) 20

368

(3) 85€

6,81¢f

2,08¢
4,60¢
1,41(
1,63(
1,63¢
2,491
2,47¢

15,12¢
3,24¢

3,841
1,72¢

2,76¢

3,76¢

49

16,74«

2,72i

1,33i
3,57¢
6,32¢
2,51;

(560)

(569)
(569)

(567)

12

1,74¢
9,30(
(2,089)
987
19¢
734
1,02
(2,49))
(2,47%)

9,432

9,54¢

12,16¢

19C
(1,729

61€
1,652

21,13%
7,13¢

581
12,32

7,09t

962

24,30¢

144

264
667

1,16:
82¢
722
462

131
12t

1,52¢

1,65

1,87¢
1,77¢
3,062
98¢
60¢
72€
7,672
8,52¢
76€
2,601
5,33¢
924
465

904
1,30¢

531

2,42:
20z

368

8,55¢ 9,71¢
9,30(10,12¢
5,59 6,31¢
1,60¢ 2,07(C

2,364 2,49¢
2,655 2,78(

9,43210,96!

9,54£11,19¢

1,87¢
12,16 13,94«
3,062
15,12¢16,11:
3,401 4,01
4,031 4,75¢
7,672
8,52¢
3,38t 4,151
1,65z 4,25:
5,33¢
21,13:22,06:
7,135 7,60(

4,350 5,25¢
12,32:13,62¢

7,09t 7,62¢

49  40¢€

2,42
17,70717,91(

24,30¢24,67:

2,871 3,73¢
657

54¢
1,601 1,92(
4,245 4,37¢
6,32t 7,181
3,33¢ 4,22

2,145
252
1,65(
68C

1,504
1,342

1,55¢

91t

25C

4,42¢
79C

90¢<

71¢
2,22¢

2,44
2,861

1,26¢

20

5,76¢

2,21¢

725

41%
1,967
2,017

90¢

1983

2002
1980
1982
1988
1979
1980
1981
1981

2000

2001

N/A
2002
N/A
1986
1983

1990
1980

N/A
N/A
1983
2003
N/A
2002
1996

1987
1996

1998

N/A

N/A
1991

2001

1984
N/A

N/A

1978
1988
1984
1982

S sem sem s st e s

fem e b s



Leatherwooc Research Triang
Maplewood  Research Triang
Northpark-

Wake Fores Research Triang
Northpark Lant

- Wake

Forest Research Triang
Overlook Research Triang

21z
(1) 14¢

49¢

1,58¢
39¢

891 60¢€
3,62¢

4,021

11
9,42

213
14¢

49¢

1,597
39¢

1,49¢
3,62¢

4,021

9,42

1,712
3,77¢

4,51¢

1,591
9,821

36€
467

1,08¢

1,07¢

1979
N/A

1997

N/A
1999
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Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period
Building & Building &
2003 Improvements Improvements Building & Accumulated C

Description City Encumberance Land Land Land Improvements Total Depreciation Con
Pamlico Research Triang 28¢ 11,18: 28¢ 11,18:11,47( 4,76(
ParkWest One -

Weston Research Triang 383 4,02: 383 4,027 4,40¢ 467 .
ParkWest Two -

Weston Research Triang 503 3,38¢ 503 3,38¢ 3,891 453 .
ParkWest Three Lanc

- Weston Research Triang 834 29 863 863
Progress Center

Renovatior Research Triang 35¢ 35¢ 35¢ 14
Pulse Athletic Club at

Highwoods Research Triang 14z 3,04z 14z 3,042 3,18¢ 1,01¢
Raleigh Corp Center

Lot D Research Triang 1,211 1,211 1,211
Red Oak Research Triang 38¢ 6,63( 38¢ 6,63C 7,01¢ 1,49¢
Rexwoods Center  Research Triang (5) 87¢ 3,73( 381 87¢ 4,111 4,98¢ 1,472
Rexwoods Center  Research Triang 362 1,81¢ 5 362 1,82: 2,18t 46€
Rexwoods Center II Research Triang 91¢ 2,81¢ 53¢ 91¢ 3,34¢ 4,26¢ 94¢
Rexwoods Center I' Research Triang (5) 58¢ 3,21¢ 58€ 3,21t 3,801 73€
Rexwoods Center' Research Triang (2)1,301 5,69¢ 1,301 5,69¢ 7,00 1,17¢
Riverbirch Research Triang (2) 46¢ 4,03¢ 97¢ 46¢ 5,01¢ 5,48t 1,68¢
Situs | Research Triang 692 4,64¢ — 692 4,64¢ 5,33¢ 1,70
Situs Il Research Triang 71€ 6,25¢ — 71€ 6,25¢ 6,972 1,83t
Situs llI Research Triang (3) 44cC 4,07¢ — 44C 4,07¢ 4,51¢ 177 ¢
Six Forks Center Research Triang 66€ 2,66¢ 663 66€ 3,328 3,99« 721
Six Forks Center |  Research Triang 1,08¢ 4,53: 96( 1,08¢ 5,49: 6,57¢ 1,22:
Six Forks Center Il Research Triang (2) 862 4,411 492 862 4,90 5,76t 1,12(
Smoketree Towe Research Triang 2,35z 11,74 1,941 2,35z 13,68¢16,03" 3,51¢
South Square Research Triang 60€ 3,81¢ 1,292 60¢€ 5,107 5,71% 1,19¢
South Square | Research Triang 52t 4,69¢ 40z 52t 5,101 5,62¢ 1,23¢
Sycamore Research Triang (2) 25t 5,17¢ 25E 5,175 5,43( 1,041
WESPEC Tract : Research Triang 1,40z 32 1,43¢ 1,43¢
WESPEC Tract 2l  Research Triang 754 28 782 782
WESPEC- Tract 3  Research Triang 2,531 13t 2,672 2,672
Weston- Land Research Triang 522 26 54¢ 54¢
Weston Commons

Tract- 2B Research Triang 1,112 32 1,144 1,144
Weston Commons

Tract- 5A Research Triang 1,237 29 1,26¢ 1,26¢€
Weston Commons

Tract- 5B Research Triang 2,221 31 2,252 2,252
Weston Commons

Tract- 5C Research Triang 2,54: 174 2,717 2,717
Weston Commons

Tract- 6A Research Triang 1,45: 76 1,52¢ 1,52¢
Weston Commons

Tract- 6A2 Research Triang 2,08¢ (2,08¢)
Weston Commons

Tract- 6B Research Triang 2,251 117 2,36¢ 2,36¢
Weston Commons

Tract- 6C Research Triang A7¢€ 97 57t 57t
Weston Commons

Tract- 8A Research Triang 2,34z 2,782 5,12¢ 5,12¢
Weston Oaks Cou  Research Triang 1,831 15z 1,98¢ 1,98¢
Willow Oak Research Triang (2) 45¢ 5,14( 45¢ 5,14C 5,59¢ 1,084
Other Propert Research Triang 47 9,14¢ 47 9,14€¢ 9,19: 6,35:



Richmond, VA

1309 E. Cary Stre

4900 Cox Roal

Airport Center |

Airport Center Il

Capital One Building

Capital One Building
Il

Capital One Building
1

Capital One Parking
Deck

Colonade Building

Dominion Place - Pitt
Parcel

East Shore

East Shore |

East Shore I

East Shore I\

Grove Park

Grove Park Buidling |

Grove Park Buidling |

Grove Park Buidling

Grove Park Buidling -

Grove Park Squat

Hamilton Beact

HDC Land Site -
Parcel €

Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond

Richmond
Richmond

Richmond
Richmond

Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond
Richmond

Richmond

171
1,322

77¢

317
(10)1,27¢

(10) 477
(10)1,27¢

(10)
(4) 1,36¢

1,101
1,53
907
1,78¢
1,44~
718
111
111
12¢
12¢
194
1,08¢

1,27¢

691

5,311
5,01¢ (779
2,62t (317)
(1,279)

(477)

(1,279

6,10t

5,971

6,85:

6,00
(1,439

(194)
4,34¢

(1,275)

96
727

(5,019)

(2,625)

11

5,132

52:

171
1,32¢

1,36¢

1,101
1,53

907
1,78¢

718
111
111
12¢
12¢

1,08¢

787
6,03¢

6,11¢

5,971
6,85¢
6,09t

5,132

4,86¢

95¢
7,362

7,48(

1,101
7,50¢
7,76(
7,87¢

5,84¢
111
111
12¢
12¢

5,95¢

16¢
1,42

15z

804
1,722
897

88¢

1,057
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Initial Cost

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to
Acquistion

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at
Close of Period

Building &
Improvements

Building &
Improvements

2003 Building & Accumulated Date o

Description City Encumberance Land Land Land Improvements Total Depreciation Construct
HDC Land Site C -

Parcel £ Richmond 942 (942) N/A
HDC Land Site D -

Parcel 4 Richmond 1,721 (1,727 N/A
HDC Land Site E -

Parcel 3 Richmond 1,80¢ (1,809 N/A
Highwoods

Distribution Cente Richmond 581 6,332 (58]) (6,339 199¢
Highwoods Common Richmond 521 3,56¢ 521 3,56¢ 4,08¢ 30C 199¢
Highwoods Five Richmond 80¢€ 5,071 80¢€ 5,071 5,87 644 199¢
Highwoods Ong Richmond (2) 1,84¢ 9,38¢ 1,84¢ 9,38411,23( 1,917 199¢
Highwoods Plazi Richmond 90¢ 5,79¢ 90¢ 5,79¢ 6,70 44&  200C
Highwoods Twc Richmond (4) 78€ 6,20¢ 78€ 6,20¢ 6,99/ 1,122 1997
Innsbrook Centr: Richmond 914 6,76¢ (914) (6,76¢) 198¢
Innslake Cente Richmond (1) 84t 6,56( 84t 6,56( 7,40¢t 55¢ 2001
Liberty Mutual Richmond 2,837 1,20¢ 4,82 661 1,20¢ 5,48¢ 6,691 1,06¢ 199C
Markel Americar Richmond (10) 1,37= (1,372) — 199¢
Mercer Plaz: Richmond 1,55¢ 12,35((1,55¢€) (12,35() 1984
North Park Richmond 2,16 8,65¢ 74¢ 2,16 9,40711,57( 1,80C 198¢
North Shore Commot

A Richmond (4) 1,34« 12,80z 1,34« 12,80:14,14" 1,311 200z
North Shore Commaot

B - Land Richmond 2,067 2,067 2,067 N/A
North Shore Commot

C-Land Richmond 1,902 1,902 1,902 N/A
North Shore Commaot

D - Land Richmond 1,261 1,261 1,261 N/A
One Shockoe Pla: Richmond 15,42¢ 15,42¢15,42¢ 3,12¢  199¢
Pavilion Richmond 181 181 181 N/A
Sadler & Cox Lanc Richmond 1,827 1,827 1,827 N/A
Stony Point F Lani Richmond 2,07¢ 25 2,10z 2,10¢ N/A
Stony Point | Richmond 1,38¢ 11,63( 1,18( 1,38¢ 12,81(14,19¢ 2,271 199C
Stony Point Il Richmond 1,63¢ 12,62¢ 1,63¢ 12,62¢14,26: 2,27¢  199¢
Stony Point llI Richmond 1,19¢ 10,20: 1,19¢ 10,20:11,39¢ 1,00¢ 200z
Technology Park Richmond 541 2,16¢ 33¢ 541 2,50¢ 3,04 574 1991
Technology Park Richmond 264 1,05¢ 35 264 1,09: 1,357 21¢ 1991
Vantage Place / Richmond (4) 20z 811 78 203 88¢ 1,09: 17€ 1987
Vantage Place | Richmond (4) 23: 931 15C 232 1,081 1,31« 21t 198¢
Vantage Place | Richmond (4) 23t 94C 75 23t 1,015 1,25(C 207 1987
Vantage Place | Richmond (4) 21¢ 873 58 21¢ 931 1,14¢ 195 198¢
Vantage Point Richmond (4) 1,08¢ 4,50( 45C 1,08¢ 4,95(C 6,03¢ 1,05¢ 199C
Virginia Mutual Richmond 1,301 6,03¢ (157) 1,301 5,88t 7,18¢ 505 199¢
Waterfront Plazi Richmond 58t 2,347 e 58t 3,122 3,70 892 198¢
West Shore Richmond (1) 35¢ 1,431 41 35¢ 1,472 1,83( 285 199t
West Shore | Richmond (1) 54t 2,181 15€ 54& 2,337 2,88: 44€ 199t
West Shore Il Richmond (1) 961 4,39¢ 961 4,39¢ 5,35t 803 1997
South Florida
The 1800 Eller Drive

Building South Florid 9,82 491 10,31410,31« 1,68¢ 198:
Tampa, FL
380 Park Plac Tampa 1,50¢ 8,22: 1,50¢ 8,22% 9,731 997 N/A
Anchor Glass Tampa (3) 1,281 11,31¢ — 1,281 11,31¢12,59¢ 1,692 198¢
Atrium Tampa 1,357 9,30z 2,72¢ 1,357 12,03:13,38: 2,187 198¢
Bay View Office

Centre Tampa 1,30¢ 5,964(1,309) (5,969 1982



Bay Vista Garden
Bay Vista Gardens |
Bay Vista Office
Building
Bay Vista Retai
Bayshore
Brookwood Day Care
Center
Countryside Plac
Cypress Center
Cypress Center |
Cypress Center IV -
Land
Cypress Commor
Cypress Wes
Feathersound
Corporate Center
Firemans Fund
Building
Harborview Plazi
Highwoods Plaz
Highwoods Preserve
Energy Plan

Tampa
Tampa

Tampa
Tampa
Tampa

Tampa
Tampa
Tampa
Tampa

Tampa
Tampa
Tampa
Tampa
Tampa
Tampa
Tampa

Tampa

447
1,32¢

93t
28
(3) 2,24¢

61
845
3,172
1,19(

3,08(
(4) 1,211
1,947 61F

2,10¢  80C
(4) 50C

3,531
(10) 54F

4,82¢
7,101

4,51z
1,17¢
11,68¢

347
3,731
12,76«
7,601

30C
11,477
5,13¢
7,442

4,19:
29,94/

134

(61)
(849

(545)

(7)
(6)

514
12¢

(347)

(3,719)

(108)
63C

99¢
83€
492

47

50C

447
1,462
93t

28¢
2,24¢

3,172
1,19(

3,08(
1,211
61t
80C

50C
3,531

4,81¢ 5,26
7,09t 8,557

5,02¢ 5,961
1,30€ 1,58¢
11,68¢13,93¢

12 12
12,65¢15,83:
8,231 9,421

30C 3,38(
12,47%13,68¢
5,97C 6,58¢
7,93¢ 8,73¢
4,240 4,74(
29,94:33,48:

50C 50C

714
1,06t

762
227
1,78

4,157
908

47
3,331
1,124
1,231

692
1,951

71

198<
1997

198-
1987
199C

198¢
198¢
1982
198¢

N/A
198t
198t
198¢
1982
2001
199¢

N/A
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Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Gross Amount at
Which Carried at

Initial Cost Acquistion Close of Period
Building & Building &
2003 Improvements Improvements Building & Accumulated Date o

Description City Encumberance Land Land Land Improvements  Total Depreciation Construc!
Highwoods Preserve Tamp: 1,61¢ 25,77¢ 1,61¢ 25,77¢  27,39¢ 3,381 199¢
Highwoods Preserve Tamp: 27¢€ 1,65( 27¢€ 1,65( 1,92¢ 47C 2001
Highwoods Preserve

I Tamp: 1,38: 22,88: 1,38: 22,88. 24,26: 2,586 199¢
Highwoods Preserve

v Tamp: 1,63¢ 25,13« 1,63¢ 25,13: 26,77 2,547 199¢
Highwoods Preserve Tamp: 1,44C 21,057 1,44C 21,057 22,497 1,322 2001
Highwoods Preserve

VI - Land Tamps 63¢ 63¢ 63¢ N/A
Highwoods Preserve

Land Tamp: 1,80z 231 2,03¢ 2,03¢ N/A
Horizon Tamp: 9) 6,23¢ 1,212 7,451 7,451 1,02¢  198(
LakePointe | Tamps 9 2,00C 15,84¢ 12,02t 2,00¢ 27,87 29,87 4,127 199¢
LakePointe Il Tamps (9) 2,10C 32,59¢ 2,10C 32,59 34,69t 4,972 198¢
Lakeside Tamps 9 7,34¢ 11C 7,45¢ 7,45¢ 1,14 197¢
Northside Squar

Office Tamp: 601 3,631 282 601 3,92( 4,521 60 198¢
Northside Squar

Office/Retall Tamp: 80C 2,83¢ 95 80C 2,931 3,731 43¢ 198¢
One Harbour Plac  Tamp: (5) 2,01¢ 25,25 79¢ 2,01¢ 26,05( 28,06¢ 2,14¢ 198t
Parkside Tamps 9 9,381 82¢ 10,21( 10,21( 1,49¢ 197¢
Pavilion Tamps 9) 16,34¢ 1,93¢ 18,28: 18,28: 2,60¢ 198
Pavilion Parking

Garage Tamps 9 5,61¢ 5,61¢ 5,61¢ 58S 199¢
Registry | Tamp: 744 4,22 61t 744 4,837 5,581 984 198t
Registry Il Tamp 90¢ 5,15k 48¢ 90¢ 5,64: 6,551 1,08¢ 198
Registry Squar Tamp: 344 1,95¢ 17:¢ 344 2,12 2,471 424 198¢
Sabal Business Cent

I Tamp: 37E 2,131 24¢€ 37E 2,37 2,752 493 198:
Sabal Business Center

Il Tamp: 342 1,93¢ 63 342 2,001 2,34: 368 198«
Sabal Business Centi

I Tamp 29C 1,64t 22 29C 1,667 1,957 307 198¢
Sabal Business Center

v Tamp: 81¢ 4,64t 23¢ 81¢ 4,88: 5,702 95¢ 198¢
Sabal Business Cent

Y, Tamp: 1,02¢ 5,822 19C 1,02¢ 6,01% 7,03¢ 1,09¢ 198¢
Sabal Business Center

VI Tamp: 1,60¢ 9,12¢ 271 1,60¢ 9,40t 11,01« 1,69¢ 198¢
Sabal Business Centi

Vil Tamp: 1,51¢ 8,617 42C 1,51¢ 9,037 10,55¢ 1,597 199(
Sabal Industrial Park

Land Tamps 323 4 327 327 N/A
Sabal Lake Building Tamp: 572 3,24¢ 663 572 3,90¢ 4,481 69€ 198¢
Sabal Park Plaz Tamp: 611 3,46¢ 39 611 3,50¢ 4,11t 63€ 1987
Sabal Pavilion Tamp 964 11,93¢ 964 11,93¢ 12,90 1,84¢ 199¢
Sabal Pavilion | Tamps 561 561 561 N/A
Sabal Tech Cente Tamps b4¢ 3,111 93 b4¢ 3,20¢ 3,752 59& 198¢
Spectrunm Tamps (9) 1,45C 14,46 1,78: 1,45(C 16,24: 17,69 2,25¢ 198/
Summit Office

Building Tamps 57¢ 2,74¢ (579 (2,749 198¢
Tower Place Tamp: (3) 3,19« 19,76( — 3,19¢ 19,76( 22,95¢ 4,06€ 198¢
USF&G Tamp: 1,36¢ 7,75¢ 2,25( 1,36¢ 10,00« 11,37( 2,541 198t
Watermark 10,14,1 Tamps 4,79 4,79 4,79 N/A
Watermark 1: Tamps 2,23: 2,23: 2,23: N/A
Westshore Squal Tamp: 2,51¢  1,13( 5,20¢ 274 1,13(C 5,48( 6,61( 88¢ 197¢



(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

709,15: 2,204,55((55,157) 957,72 653,99° 3,162,2813,816,27

541,72:

These assets are pledged as collateral for a $l13,800 first mortgage loa
These assets are pledged as collateral for an 8,600 first mortgage loa
These assets are pledged as collateral for a $&0@T first mortgage loal
These assets are pledged as collateral for a $120®0 first mortgage loa
These assets are pledged as collateral for a $20@5 first mortgage loal
These assets are pledged as collateral for a $8,000 first mortgage loa
These assets are pledged as collateral for a $4P@Dfirst mortgage loal
These assets are pledged as collateral for a $ILO@B first mortgage loal
These assets are pledged as collateral for a 6@ first mortgage loal

(10) Costs capitalized are offset by dispositic
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES INC.

NOTE TO SCHEDULE llI
(In Thousands)

As of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
A summary of activity for Real estate and accunadatepreciation is as follows

December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Real Estate
Balance at beginning of ye 3,965,32:  3,949,20 3,781,471
Additions
Acquisitions, Development and Improvme 100,01: 217,78t 327,84¢
Cost of real estate sold and reti (249,059 (201,66 (160,119
Balance at close of year ( 3,816,27 3,965,32 3,949,201
Accumulated Depreciaitio
Balance at beginning of ye 460,07  363,14: 261,20°
Depreciation expens 121,73: 121,62 116,31(
Real estate sold and retir (40,089 (24,69 (14,37Y)
Balance at close of year ( 541,72:  460,07: 363,14

(&) Reconciliation of total cost to balance stoagtion at December 31, 2003, 2002, and 200THausands

2003 2002 2001
Total per schedule I 3,816,27 3,965,32 3,949,201
Construction in progress exclusive of land includedchedule i 7,48t 6,81¢ 108,13:
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 21,81¢ 20,96¢ 19,39¢
Property held for sal (76,137 (182,199 (156,49()
Reclassification adjustment for discontinued openat 454 7,67¢
Total real estate assets at ¢ 3,769,44! 3,811,36 3,927,91i

(b) Reconciliation of total Accumulated Depreitia to balance sheet caption at December 31, Z80®, and 2001 (in

Thousands
2003 2002 2001
Total per Schedule | 541,72:  460,07: 363,14
Accumulated Depreciatic- furniture, fixtures and equipme 13,92 9,20¢ 9,64¢
Property held for sal (10,407 (15,499 (8,899
Total accumulated depreciati 545,23! 453,78t 363,89
Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-3 Nos. 333-51671B83-51759, 333-61913 and 333-

99499-01 and Form S-8 Nos. 333-38878, 333-12113-28359 and 33535901) and in the related Prospectuses of HighwBodgerties, Inc

in the Registration Statement (Form S-3 Nos. 3337%1and 333-99499) and related Prospectus of Highdw®&ealty Limited Partnership of
our report dated October 22, 2004, with respethiéaconsolidated financial statements and scheadldigghwoods Properties, Inc. included
in this Annual Report (Form 10-K/A) for the yearded December 31, 2003.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF



Raleigh, North Carolina
November 9, 200

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Highwoods Properties Inc

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this amhveport, fairly present in ¢
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this annual repor

The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules -14 and 15-14) for the Registrant and we ha

(@) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the Registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual retgisrbeing preparec

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(c) disclosed in this report any change in the Regt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haterialy affected, or is reasonably likely to méadly affect, the
Registrar’s internal control over financial reportir

The Registrant’s other certifying officer andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimriernal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAGdmmittee of Registrant’s Board of Directors farsons performing the
equivalent functions)

(@) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Regyistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaiaeé report financial
information; anc

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ines\management or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
Registrar’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: November 15, 20(C

/s/ EDWARD J. FRITSCH

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.Z
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Highwoods Properties Inc

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this amhveport, fairly present in ¢
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the Registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this annual repor

The Registrant’s other certifying officer andré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules -14 and 15-14) for the Registrant and we ha

(@) designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the Registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this annual retgisrbeing preparec

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation;

(c) disclosed in this report any change in the Regt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the



Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that haterialy affected, or is reasonably likely to méadly affect, the
Registrar’s internal control over financial reportir

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer ankave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the iAGdmmittee of Registrant’s Board of Directors farsons performing the
equivalent functions!

(@) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Regyistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaiaeé report financial
information; anc

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ine@\management or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
Registrar’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: November 15, 20(

/s| TERRYL. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treaster

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsgrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foetperiod ended December 31,
2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, EdwardFritsch, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9@t Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/  EbwARD J. FRITSCH
Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

November 15, 200

Exhibit 32.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Annual Report of Highwoodsgrties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foetperiod ended December 31,
2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, TdrnStevens, Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9l Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2) The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ TERRYL. STEVENS

Terry L. Stevens
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasuer

November 15, 200

End of Filing
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